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ns man and wife—and, having read the marriage ceremony, he proposed that it should legiti-
m their position as husband nnsgl wife. She refused—she régarded the proposition almost with
horror. She immediately left Edinburgh and went to her sister’s house in Wales, in April, 1857.
The reading of this service hung upon her like a terrible cloud; for he had told her that the
effect of it was that he could claim her as his wife—that that position was fastened on her by the
mere reading of the ceremony. She refused to be bound by it, and fled from him. While at her
gister's house he wrote to her asking her to come back to him, and finally sul-ymg that he would
jﬁﬂlﬂ to her wishes, and that they should be married by & Catholic priestin Ireland, ad that
if she lived with him the marriage should be kept secrst. She yielded so far, and consented to a
secret marriage, provided it was celebrated by a Catholie priest in a Cathelic church, In 1857
she left her sister's house, unknown to all, crossed over from Milford Haven to Waterford, where
she met the defendant in the month of Angust. The cbject of this meeting was, that they should
be made man and wife by the priest of that religion which she loved. They failed to get a priest
in Waterford, and eventually, he having proposed that they shngld go to the north of Ireland,
reached Rostrevor on the 10th of August, 1857. Between Miss Longworth and the defendant
nio impropriety whatever existed during the period to which he had alluded. She went to the
riest of Rostrevor, the Rev. Mr, Mooney, and told him her whole ease : he referred her to
e Rishop of Dromore. The bishop and the parish priest consulted together, and the result was
that the bishop consented to the solemnisation of the marriage by the Rev. Mr. Mooney. After
they reached Rostrevor, defendant came to Dublin for a few days and then went back to Rostrevor
agam, and on the 15th Angust, 1857, Teresa Longworth and William Charles Yelverton were
married in the parish church of Killowen, by the Rev. Mr. Mooney, the parish priest. The
defendant and }.[?.fla Longworth attended miass on the Saturday previcous fo the marriage in the
chapel of Warrenpoint, and on the day of the marriage in the church in which they were
married. ‘The marriage ring was purchased in Dublin by Major Yelverton, from a jewellor named
Martin, It was the smallest ring the jeweller had ever sold, and the smallness of the ring, and
the circumstances on which it had been sold, made a great impression upon him, and he would.
rove that }Lnj!::r Yelverton bought it. The time of the celsbration of the marriage was after
Eigh-mm on the Feast of the Blessed Virgin ; the priest was robed in his vestments; they knelt
down before him at the altar, and he pronounced the marriage benediction over them after they
had pledged their troth, ““To have and to hold, from that day forward, for better for worse, for
rich or for poor, in sickness or health, till death wus do part, 1f’ holy church will permit it, and
therefore I do pledge thee my troth.” Before the marriage the priest asked Major Yelverton
whether he was a Catholic? He said—*T1 am, but a bad one, I'm afraid; but I am no Pro-
testant." Wh{.did the priest ask that queation? Beeause by the law of the land & clergyman
marrying a Catholic and a Protestant was guilty of a felony, and he asked it to be sure he was
* mot breaking the law. It was strange that a man who had so plighted his troth should repudiate
the woman to whom he had plighted it. The answer which the defendant would give waz that
there was no marriage in that ehurch on that occasion—that he took her in there merely to ense
her conscienes, to legitimise her relationship to him as his mistress! What would they say to
sucha man? He would be hunted from the court by the exeeration of every man if what he said
was true, that he profaned the ceromony of marviage to make this woman his more eonfiding

mistress :—

: : ¢ Buch am act
As blurs the grace and blush of modesty ;
Makes Virtue Hypoerite; takes off the rose v
From the fuir forehead of an innocent love,
And sets a blister there : making
Harm%: vows as false as dicers’ oaths, and
Sweet Religion makes a rhapsody of words.”

He eould not believe that he would have the hardihood to sit in that box and tell that he &

to the chapel and used the ring, and had the priest there for the purpose of makin herﬂhgi:
mistress, and not his wife. After travelling about after the marriage they returned to Edinburgh
and while there the plaintiff in this action and his wife came on a visit to them, and he introduce
Mrs. Yelverton to them na his wife. In 1857 Mra. Yelverton went on a visit to Mr. Thelwall
at Hull, and Major Yelverton followed her, and, while there, it was arranged that Major Yelverton
and his wife should travel on the Continent, and Mr. Thelwall would tell them that during the
Fhole time at Edinburgh and Hull the relationship between them was that of man and wife, and
he believed if any one at this time had told Major Yelverton that the lady was not his wife he
wold have hurled him to the ground. When it beeame necessary to procure a pasaport for Mrs.
Hﬂhnrl'.nn* on their gum{t abroad, Major Yelverton caused her name to be written in full in it
hﬂ&'ﬁl{rma Yelverton. He wrote to her from Hull a letter enclosing her passport, in which

* Qarissima Min,—How do you get on? T ho ill b
1 pe you will be able to start b -
?-ih:tl{atarb, if you do not telegraph to stop me, he%um three o’ clock Dt;-rgurrgv:,bm .':-lfl::mt[;'ufl;mr'ﬁl:i
isg l:mg on a8 well as can _lm F:punﬂml. t was lucky I did not settle to start on Wedneaday, as
wi'ﬁu vee was postponed till Thorsday toenable the Com». in Chief to make a speech abouk .

ﬁ:h?h:?g'ﬁ[’:ﬂf, ;lf soldiers. I send you your passport visé, You must sign it, and (take 'enre
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i we fear conld be avoided, and you certainly caunot doubt that it 1s equally unweleome to me as it
~ can be to you ; but, if the future proves that T have been deceived by others, that will not absolve
~ you from your faith, the which, if you break with me, you will never, from that moment, have one
~ of even tolerable content during the rest of your life.

: terrible hurled at any woman ? Terms of endearment had no power—hcr

-m:?;ra:hﬁ;eﬁ?ﬁ ;msha could not E]ll:l!lll'l'ﬁ it. She told him she should malke the marnage

' public. *“If you break your faith with me you will never have a contented day during the rest of
your life.” And he kept his promisc.” He then proceeded in this letter :—

“If v 1 anv love for me, you must change that resolution. If I depart this life, you
may E;Lﬁﬂ?udf ff'm}ruu 0, youma ]J.E}L'\’E a legacy of the facts; but whilst we both live you must
trust me and 1 must trust you. hen I find my trust misplaced, if you have any nﬁ'm‘-tmn‘fﬂ'r
me, I do not envy vou the future—your duty les this way, not that. L have now anid my say: E]TD
as you will. If you wish to be my dearest little Tooi-toor azain, write quick and say so, aud 'l
fry and bring you such a lot of bon-bons. T do not feel at all certain of getting away before
Saturday, the 2nd, but if T did get off by the two o'clock train on the B1st, I should not reach
Hull until midnight; besides, dearest, T do not much like the notion of going to feteh you from
the Th——, which you seem to ‘meditate. Write and tell me what hotel to go t-l;.- in H.u.lll, and
T will send you a message when I arrive; but the only certain wuy of H.an%' New Year's Eve
together wili be for you to come here. We need not stay in Edinburgh. Il have a cage for

u; it isa long journey for you, and I should hardly advise Euu taking it; the only thing is,
Eﬂ if we were somewhere near here, you could ride (if you liked) the mare, as I have another

lent me. ‘Tell me what time you receive this : it is to go by the seven p.m. post. Adﬁ%?, I:EJ‘IEBIEEHI
Molte baccio, sempre a te. Canro.

She was strugeling, not for 1ife, but for honour., If her letters were produced it would be seen that
she told him she had also a duty towards the child of which she was about to become the mother
—that she had a duty towards society, towards her mother, who was in the house—towards a long
line of ancestors whose name was never tarnished by disgrace, that he should acknowledge her as
his wife. And what was his degrading answer?® Do it, but be prepared for the remainder of
our life for disgrace and humiliation—to be sent upon the world branded by me as my mistress.

them imagine the condition of this ill-fated lady, pressed by this man whom she loved with

devotion. She agreed to go abroad with him, and to keep the marriage secret for the present.

She told him to come to her, that she was in despair at getting the letter; and on the 17th
January he wrote the following letter :—

¢ Tooi-tooi Carissima—How ave the eyes? T arrived here in due course, having sat in the
eoffee-room at the Railway Hotel, York, from eleven to two, without a single nap, thinking of you,
and reading the Tones. A fussy old gentleman was doing ditto; wondeved whether he had just

left a tooi-tooi behind him ; have done nothing sinee I came hnc'k but paint at * Carim,” and 1t is
nearly finished. The mare is still lame, and I fear it is incurable; must send her back to the

brother for breeding purposes. I am in deep grief about it, as she was just getting perfect; just
like my luck. 1 suppose, if vou ever appr perfection, you'll ﬁu getting lame or something.
I fell asleep in my arm-chair before the five a few nights ago, and dreamt you came and awolke me
much against the grain, and then you sat down in the n‘;ﬁgr chair, and talked about all sorts of
things, and finally insisted on my gc-in'ﬁetu bed, and I awoke standing up, and having made a step
or two towards the door, I never recollect having so real seeming a dream. What do you mean
by it? Disturbing my slumbers in that way? You had on a black silk dress too; I felt it when

- you stooped oyer me, and I put my arm round your waist, and you pulled me into a bolt-up right
gitting posture. You're a dearest darling darling small tooi-tooi, &e. 4 ol e : and
““da capo’ Addio. Sempre a fe. ¢ Canvo.”
In the beginning of May, 1858, they left England, and travelled on the continent, and in April,
1858, the reasons for making the marriage public were increasing every day, At Bordeaux she
waa taken seriously ill, and his leave having expired, he left her there, and on his way to
England he posted the following letter :—

* Poor little Tooi-tooi, left ulone. How does she get on? Thought of her all night when
awake, and dreamt of her when asleep. Arrived at 5h. 15 matin, Had a bath, and having still
A quarter of an hour, write to small Tooi-tooi, Did Madame Andre get her key? I turned it in
the armoire, where your dresses are, intending to ask her to keep it until she left the rooms, or
brought up your dresses, but put it into my pocket, and discovered it about five o'elock, when I
%ﬂo;lt back with the address she gave me attached, from Angouléme, I think. Dearcst small

I 1-tooi, you must get well and strong, and we'll have o lark next autumn yet, and have no more
HIH alarms (or real ones). I am very miserable at leavin u, especially in such a weak state.

ext time we have to part we must both start to travel in different directions, for the necessity of
doing something is naturally a relief to

€ amazement of a bonne and two pretty girls in her chnrge—one of the latter, a small fairy

:'bnut:htrnlvu years old, found me out in the fact, and announced it, at the same time wanting to
T Good-bye, carissima mia. Write, or get Madame to do so. Sempre a te. Mille

“S0annot!

the mind. Ibegan to cry again when on the railway, to

That letter was addressedq—:¢¢ ; T4 Y . TN T Tt
Wiios, Botdaatia 140 A Madame Yelverton, Chez Madame Andre, No. 9, Fosse de 'Inten-

He believed that the tenrs the defendant thon wept came from the honest
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sure that were there a man in the case you would not let him go unpunished, You will recollect

befor nsen keeping the marriage seeret that this, and this alons, was the
i it T capmg_mh n'lfhut vile thing wanted to make a claim on the

ifice T could not willingly make for 1 I
;ﬁlf m FEE:“ had deceived ]:ﬁ,fand introduced an improper person into her house in order to |
abandon hier. Imagine, if you can, the misery I have gone through—think of your own sister in
such a position, 1'%1; 54y you never think—that is a fib; in your present position 1t 1s positive you
think a ereat deal, but you fear to disclose your thoughts. }Iag I guess? You think, perhaps,
that it would be better for us to keep apart for a long, long time, until circumstances remedy
themselves? 'This may be wise, but so very hard; even now time hangs like an incubus upon me.
gﬂmmu.l?uﬂnu . I should be tempting you to come over, only I am so very ugly
that you could not love to fm}k at me. It is strange you do not miss me more, We have never
lived together sufficiently. If we could remain together for six months, then you would,
You are a very hn?l Carlo to write to me often ; it isthe nnlly' pleasure leftme. I cannot see to read
or write—my days are so long and dreary—my nights restless and feverish—your letters the only
int I have to look forward to, so pray think of me, I often lie awake from daiolighb waiting for
E, postman. I will seal!my letter, but I had already taken the precaution about signing. It
had struck me that such letters as I write to you could only be written by a wife or ——,
Please write directly. When do you thinl you can get off to Dublin ? T feel so nervous and anxious
to know what your mother will say. I trust it was she who opened the letter; any of your sisters
would not dare; so, after all, perhaps thereis not so much harm done, but I shall be glad when
you go. Cara mia, think, at least, of the happiness we have known together—so entire, so un-
mﬂﬂ. Is there other joy in the world to Ea eompared to reciprocated love? How everything
on earth became indi ut our two selves, ., You said I was the dearest small Tooi-tooi that
ever lived, and I thought there wasnot in the wide wide world another Carlo like mine.
terrified. She to Seotland ;EEfﬁ iﬁuvam?ﬂm
She got no answer—she became ified.. came to Sco i e heard he was at Leith.
Shawa;lﬂ there, and met with his brother. She appealed to him to declare their marriage. He
said he was a ruined man, and asked her to go to Australia. She refused. He then said if she
went to Glasgow he might manage to come to her. He left her, and wrote the following letter
immediately after:—

& Poar little Tooi-Tooi,—I cannot go and se¢ you mni-ﬁttinre iqat-'uuw. You must go to Glas-
gow, a5 I asked you. Do not forget the man’s name—Gilligan’s Liver ﬁtahlea. My brother has
eome; I will send him to see you this afternoon about four o’clock. Addio.” . '

On the 26th of June lie went through the nmmmg of marriage with another woman in Seot-
land, What was she to do? What coulidl be more desolate than such a situation? The world
had not believed the defendant’s calumny. The lady still enjoyed the respect of the world.
Women of fortune and rank refused to believe his lying story. She had by every means in her
power, from time to time, sought to bring him faee to face with her. Mr. Thelwall was a friend
of hers. He had known her as the wife of Major Yelverton. He supported Ler, and he now

. hrnuﬁlti Major Yelverton to-the bar of justice, to compel him to distharge this duty of soeial life.

She sought to bring him to justice in varions courts in Lendon, wheve she could tell her sad
story. He shrunk from her challenge, and pleaded that he was not a domieiled Englishman, and
the plea was held good, and the suit dismissed. So'there she was ever since asserting her honour
and character, and he belind her back blasting her reputation. Last year the defendant was sued
by a man who gave articles of clothing to this lady, as° Major Yelverton's wife. He sought to

‘the action on the ground that' it was sought by it to establish the marriage. The court

sed to stop the aetion, and at the last moment the defendant slunk away like a coward, gave a
consent for judgment, and paid the money. He had'**serewed his'courage to the sticking point'
at last; but he (Sergeant Sullivan) very much doubted whether he would present himself before a
Jury and say that the ceremonial of marriage was all a mockery, and that the woman was his
mistress still. But his falsehood would not avail him, for the marriage would be proved to de-
monstration. They had, under the hand of the priest, the certificate of the murriage,

Enm{: Armstrong, for the defendant, said—Unless that certificate was offered in evidenoe,
the de nt could not be affected by it.

Bergeant Sullivan said he was prepared to submit it in evidence. The jury would understand,
he said, when the case was over, the meaning of that interruption. The cuse of the plaintiff was
the ease of truth against falsehood. They did not care what had oceurred, The priest, perhaps,
had been threatened with felony. However, they would put him in the witness-box, He be-
lieved the clergyman would swear that there wad o ceremony of marriage performed, and that

Yelverton told him he was a Catholic, If they believed the marringe was performed, the

ant would probably say—*“ Be it so; but there is a statute in Ireland which makes n mar-
riage void, becwuds 1 was n Protestant at the time the marriage was celebrated. No doubt there
was such a statute passed in unhappy times, when it was almost a crime to profess the Catholic
faith, even when learmed with lisping “EE at the knees of the most virtuous of methers or in-
strusted by the moat loyal of fathers. DBut what a miserable subterfupe—what a dishenourable
pleal Was it for this that Barr Yelverton, the scholar, the man of refined mind, the ornament
of his noble profession, won his first go, that he might transmit it to be defiled by his dege-
nerate déscondant?  But this miserable plea would not avail him, for at the altar he stated him-
self to be a Catholie. The jury had it ifr their power to hold kim to what he said. He asked the
jury not to allow the marri ceremony to be made the trick of libertines to dash down, the in-
sulting argument that would be put to them, to send the defendant from that eourt the lawful
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FORTEAIT OF TERESA LONGWORTH.

church, where there were only two or three persons at the time. The clergyman had his vest-
ments on. Major Yelverton provided a ring. The ring now gn my finger is the ring he
placed on my finger. I walked straight to the altar rails, and Major Yelverton, in reply to the
cl an, said he was free to marry, that he was a Catholic, but that he was afraid he was not a
ﬁﬁe, but that he was no Protestant, The priest went inside the rails, Major Yelverton knelt

wn by my side, and the priest read some prayers in Latin, and after that commenced the marringe
service. It was the same, as far as I can recollect, that we had read in Edinburgh together. We
both repeated the words. He said, '* Repeat after me—I, Maria Teresa, take you, William Charles,
for my lawful husband.” I said so. He said he took me for his lawful wife, 'The priest
asked for a picce of money, and Major Yelverton took a piece of money from his pocket, ani said
he endowed me with it. ‘Then he took a ring from his waistcoat pocket, and pushed it on the
third finger as usual. The priest then read wmiore prayers in Latin, and gave the blessing. The

iest then congratulated us, and Major Yelverton gave him £10, and I said the second £5 was for
E‘:dispcmntlnn. We then left the church, and the clergyman wished us happiness. 1 had
Erra?iarual » gone to confession to the clergyman. The dispensation was to dispense with the banns.

stated !jm caze truly to Mr. Mooney. 1 believe it would be a sin to live together as man and
wife except married by a Catholie priest. I saw Major Yelverton at mass twice in Edinburgh.
He told me he believed in the Catholic doctrines, though he did not practise them. e always
made fun of the Protestant religion. He told me that part of his family were Catholics, and part
Protestants ; that his grandmother and aunt were Catholica. After the marriage ceremony we
lived as married people, and not before it. At the time of the marripge the name Yelverton was
not given. I had given him a solemn promise before we were married not to diseloge the narriage
until he gave me permission ; the priest, however, knew the name Yelverton. We went to the
Giant's Causeway after the marriage ceremony, and we parted in Belfast for a short time, He
went to his family, I went to KEdinburgh, where I saw him after about a fortnight, Mizs
H'!“B.I‘]:ﬂﬂ{], who had become a Catholie, was in & convent, and I took her out to live with e,
Major Yelverton gave me permission o tell her about the marriage. Major Yelverton lived with
me in Edinburgh. I introduced him to Mr. and Mrs, Thelwall, whom I had previously told I
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"} wded court. Her direct examination was continued by Mr. Whiteside, in reply to whom she-

1?- ﬁt&& that the 12th or 13th of April was the time when }ﬂjor Yelverton read the Scotch marriage;

T then lived in My, Gamble's honse, in Edinburgh; we left for Hull. _

- At this point of her examinationrs. Yelverton suddenly beeame mueh confused and agitated.
‘She trembled violently,—her eyes wera stedfastly fixed on a gentleman who eccupied a seat on one
of the side benches, immn:lialairr opposite the witness box. She fell back in an exhausted and
fainting state. The test compassion was felt for her by all present, and restoratives had to be

and used she appeared to recover.

. The solicitor for the plaintiff having communieated with Mr, Whiteside, _

Mr. Whiteside said—My lord, I understand the agitation of the witness is caused by the.

m{ the mndnut. I would therefore, my lord, request that your lordship will ask the
tﬂ Wi W 5

The Chief Justice—I cannot order him fo do so. His presence is entirely a matter of taste and

‘Mr, Brawster— Of course, the defendant will withdraw. ; ]
The defendent then got up to leave, but delayed some time, the agitation of the witness con-

tinuin
A f’ uror sald—YWe are of opinion, my lord, that the defendent ought to withdraw, secing that

his discomposes the witness.

‘m defendant then withdrew, but the witness was unable to answer Mr. Whiteside for some
moments, owing to her eontinual trembling. After a short delay, i ’

Examination resumed—We had three rooms in Mr. Gamble's house in Edinburgh. Miss
M‘Farland was with me all the time Majov Yelverton visited me. She has since become a Sister
of Mercy. Mrs, Gamble occupied the third story. Miss M‘Farland was always with me, day and

ight during that period. ﬂﬂuw returned after the marriage, we got another residence in
burgh. Miss M‘Farland was with me then. Major Yelverton said he would make Miss
M‘Farland a present of a Catholic prayer book at the convent at Morringside. That was before
we went to Ireland, I was ill at Bordeaux. I sent for my sister, Madame Le Favre, who came
* from Boulogne to me. Monsisur Loppe accompauied her, I was very ill then at Madame Andre's,
I was removed from that house to mfntal. left Bordeaux with them. Monsieur anﬁ went
to the Post-office at Bordeaux for me, and got a letter. Itis lost, It was directed to ** Madame
Yelverton.”” It was in my husband’s handwriting. I showed that letter to my sister and Mons.
pe. It desired that my sister should keep the marriage secret.  Madame Lé Favreis confined
to her bed in London. She was coming over here. I heard suddenly yesterday, that Mr. Belamy,
mhmth_at-m-law,m dead, I was living forthree monthsat Mrs. Stalker's house in Ediuhmghuj'tm-
the m.arngﬁ I was always addressed and B?nkl.m of as Major Yelverton's wife. At the Highland
Inn, at Linlithgow, he asked the waiter to * brmgIham down his wife's things.”” When abroad the
letters were addressed to ** Madame Yelverton.” I think Major Yelverton's brother called twice on
me, but 1 saw him only once. He spoke to me very courteously. I have been visited sinee my
marriage by most respectable people. ;

. THE HON., MRS, YELVERTON'S CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. BREWSTER.

_ Cross-examined by Mr. Browster, Q.C.—I have two aunts and an uncle by marriage, and
r-in-law in Ireland at present. T had three brothers in 1852, William, John, and Thomae.
William was then in Australia. I don't know if heis alive. 'We have not heard of him since
then. John, T believe, is in Australia. I heard from himsix or eight months ago. He was in
- England in 1853. John is the youngest brother. He was onee in New Zealand. I had two
sisters in 1852, Madame Le Favre and Mrs. Bellamy. I am the youngest. Mr. and Mrs,
Thelwall are no relations of mine. Mr. Thelwall is an iron master at Hull. He does not keep
lodgings. I first became dequainted with him some time before 1852, in Derbyshire, at Mrs,
ﬂhug}:'u house, his wife'smother, My fathorwasalivein1852, Heresided at Smedley in 1852, and T
resided with him when T wasat home. T was often abrond on visits. In 1852 T went abroad. My
father'shouse wasalwaysmy home whilehelived. My brother John, and my sister Sarah, when she
wnt-hﬂm%uhved with my father. T was muchaway from heme in 1852. In 1851 we werenot much
athome. That was the exhibition year. T wasneverin Ireland or Scotland before 1852, The
ﬁl;‘lt time T visited Scotland was in 1857. My mother has boen dead 17 or 18 years. I was at
fam when my mother died at our house in Manchester  We had also o country house, which m
ther gave up some time before his death, My father woa supposed to be a wealthy man. H’n;
h&e]? nwmll;h wan, but Tdon't think he was wealthy when he died.  He left money in the
]ut I don't kiow how mueh. I was mnde exeeutrix, but T did not prove the y?iﬁp The
. ﬂmh amid there were £50,000, which wera not accounted for, My, Hawe, my fathor's
hu“mnmn e 8o, My I'Etth?r had property ealled Longworth, near Manehester. There ave several
firet, kil l;m them. ['don’t know the aotual income of them. I got about £200 a-year at the
o B&l{ﬂ.n out tht‘e-elymm ago. It is completely stopped now. 1 received it from Mr. Bellamy,
e ity “m!' eame to Ireland last {cnr. I sawr her in Mavoh dast. T have not boen to visit her
= Bmtlnnd“w'ihi;ﬁ there in 1860, Thave not been to see her in Wales since my marriage. She wag
ik thene 'th me in Autumm 58, and in the spring following; She remained two or three
iy H:}t me; in the beginning of *62, T think, T was living with Mr. Longworth, at
: 18 my cousin, He ia consul at Belgrade, f:tiwn;rs ealled him and represented him
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I saw Mr. Roe, & friend of Yelverton's at Turner’s and I knew of him therefore before 1 heard of
him from Yelverton. I do not recollect writing to Yelverton that I made Roe's acquaintance
letter handed to witness, date 22nd June no year). This is a letter from me to Yelverton, and
. Roe is mentioned in it. I think after Mr. Hoe was introduced to me he cultivated my acquain-
tance. He had o yacht at Naples, and asked me to go on board, but I did not. He was unmarried.
I saw he was a gentleman, but I don’t recollect that he was a man of fortune. He wasan agreeable
man sometimes. I neither like or dislike his society. I wavered very much whether I liked him
ornot. He used to speak bitterly of people. I see in the letter that I say he exercised an * evil
influence over me'—the expressioh was unfortunate, as what I meant was.that he was disa-
greeables It is a desoription of Mr. Roe's manners. He said very disagreable things, but not
wrong things. He never said anything to me that it was not proper for a gentleman to say to a
lady. He says in the letter that I was *“a prude”—I did flirt with him, and then I would not.
At {iuma he was agreeable, and we talked a good deal. At other imes he was disagreeable, and
I would not speak to him, and then he would say I was a prude. It was arranged thav I was to
o on board his yacht with a chaperone, but he was not to go. The ehaperone was Miss Onslow.
he matter was discussed amongst our friends. He afterwards said he would go on board with
me. I then said I would not go, and be said I was a prude, and he afterwards went off, as my
letter to Yelverton says, *in a gale of wind " (laughter).
dafHELu Brewster then proceeded to examine the witness out of several of her letters to the

endant. 5

The witness said it was not fair to read her letters without reading the replies.

Mr. Whiteside said the complaint of the witness was perfectly proper, for he saw by looking
over the letters that each explained the other. )

The Chief Justice said the answers and replies should be read whenever the witnessrequired it.

Mr. Brewster—Well, Miss, or whatever else you are to be called by, what letters do you wish
to be read ? (Disapprobation in court.) % :

The witness then read several of the defendant’s letters to her and her letters in reply. In
reference to a passage in one of them, where she said she gﬁt into trouble by not keeping her
secrets, she said two Italians, one a prince, were thinking of fichting a duel about her. The prince
was T.ﬁng (she said) his addresses to me: and I did not like him. He was short and broad
(laughter). Another Italian gentleman that I said that to told the prince, and added that I could
not think of him. They quarrelled, and were about to fight a duel.

The Chief Justice—But did they ? (laughter)?

- Witness—0Oh, no; they made a great fuss, but did not fight; I do not think they intended to
fight at all (laugilter). -

The eross-examination was then continued, and was confined almost exclusively to the meaning
which the witness put on ]part.iculur passages of her letters to the defendant. In the course of the
cross-examination the following letters were read by Mr. Brewster and by Mr. Whiteside :—

. Naples, June 22nd, 31 8t. Lucia.

** My dear Captain Yelverton—Iam half afraid that I shall just miss you when you come to Naples,
at which contretemps 1 should be provoked—je ne saurais dire pourquoi ; but 1 wanted to see you
perhaps to renew m1 Jirst impression, for I do firmly believe in first instinetive feelings; and
although sometimes obliged to change my opinion, still nearly invariably je i-etowrne toujours a mes
premiers amours, My movements are extremely uncertain at the present moment, I am goingin
the Sapphire to Tunis, and Heaven knows where else, tobe finally landed at Malta or Corfu, where
my brother is to fetch me, and to conduct me to Bosnia ; however, there is no end of fuss about
taking out a Neapolitan crew, and I hope we shall not get off for another three weeks or a month,
Do you call the begiuning of July the drd zr the 13th? If the former, I shall see you, Are you
gong to England? Have you heard unything of Mr. Roe depuis? (by the bye, you never
answered my last note; ﬁu on't like writing, ¢'¢st bien ; well for you that you have never been
necessitated to like it). If, as yousay, you wish to know me better, do not je vous en prie, take his
:?mmn on the subject; in the first place, he had a most evil influence upon me quoigue en me

wirmant ; in the second, he changed hissentiments respecting me about every otherday !l fe vous
demande if, his opinion is to be trusted, One day, ‘I was just the sort of person he did like;’ the
next he discovered me to be a prude, contracted in my opinions, &e., and finding o great mangue de
Je ne sais quot, which to him was positively indispensable ; apres cela there was nothing on the face
of creation that he would not accomplish, 1f I would name it. 1 was installed in the main eabin—
(not in Egrsun—em:ulu-mntamllyuI never set foot upon the Endora) —and honourably mentioned in
the log book. All is well that ends well, but it didn’t, for he went off in a tremendous gale of
wind, cursing me sals doute in his heart for the total neglect of certain polite notes and proffered
service ; gray_ tell him I did answer, but it fell into bad hands—worse even than his; stay, you will
forget it, I will put it on Empur. Now tell me truly, ave you as inconsistent as your friend ? because
he surpnssed everything 1 had ever met with ; nevertheless, after I had finished laughing at his
atormy exit from the scene, I felt vory sorry he was gone. I am becoming a species of amphibious
nnl-_.I{TﬂE’ and getting quite interested in ynchts and yichtin 3 we had seven or cight here a little
ﬂ; e ago, but they are all gone vxcept the Sapphire.  You ought to know her at least by sight;
she belongs to Captain Blaydes, an old friend of my brother's, Naples is very dull, and I sometimes
get weary of my own theught; c'est a dive, thoughts will have their own way, and fix thomselves
on subjects too EIntuutuhlu to their mistress. T understand the Turks Lave taken possession of a
territory near Brousa, from which we should have to hoist them. I have likewise been informed
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he assigns iz, that the servants rob him—so she isgone. Itis very frightful, a man'w
inmeither God nor devil=—mais refotrnons @ nos mowtons, 1 don't k’ﬁﬂ"rl" why I fiew off in
tangent, so I passed the whole summer here in a state of petrifieation, if the heat had all
that ; however, in a state of trance all the yachts went off, and are just returned; every
Naples, and I did not like any one sufficiently to wishto be domiciled with them, so I remainedin
most utter state of solitude coneeivable, it may have been for weeks, months, or years for all I know =
about time; moreover, every one else like you took a fitof silence. Madame Lefebvre wasill. =
Sara'was too busy arranging matters for her-npprnnahiuﬁ]?awia . Alcide had sans dowte, a fitof
the ruminations which he is subject to every now and Lo ﬂ unfortunate brother who went
ont to Australia has not been heard off for two months. T felt all alonein the world—dead alive—
a first object to mo one, so having plenty of time for reflection I came toa wunﬂaﬂfulﬁegm%rplm
of action for the future, which is tobe carried out, foud & I'lienre, after Sara'is ma . Would
you helieve it, she has lacksment abandened the Turkish expedition, and now she has found her
man gone to settle down in Wales! ! T amsorry Aleide is no longer at Monastir, or mighthave
paid him a visit for the shooting when yon gointo Albania ; perhaps T might have been so kind as
to offer myself as pour escort ! | buen very polite, watched the sun rise for ggg, and given you &
part of my plaidie, if you had been very good as Tewas. How could Mr. say I was a prude?
Aw contraire, I am not sufficiently so as times go, but trop au naturel and people understand me,
You don’t think me a prude, do you #"

“Jara Theresa mia,~—Your last form of address is better; don’t be selfish to change it, if you
don’t see why, never mind ; if we dll stopped to see our way clearly we should all obviously take
root. What place would you like'to be ?  You seem by your last to be in great danger. There is
nath::rg-tp 9%119.1 the pleasnres of lecomotion, and nothing so destructive to that pleasure as the
sort of slongh by which you are threatened to be surrounded. Who would not prefer the fate of
the Wander ew to that self-imposed by Diogenes. 1 am on board ship, almost becalmed,
100 miles south-west of Malta. T was interrupted in my intended animadversion on the tub
philqu{:ar by a call to eketch a magnificent waterspout, and my wretched pictorial imitation of
mature mnﬁ been most undeservedly applauded by my fellow- gers, you may thank them
for an% irregularities contained in this my epistle from Palmyra. I veeeived yours at Varna, whe

I give to 8t. Anthony,’ it arrived a little before T di -m.a(mlf. I stayed there a week, an
at _ﬂmmmu?:glu altogether about ten days. Our army at Varna is dreadfully wenkened by
cholera and other sicknesses. The French are worse; and both fleets nearly as bad, Verily, he
of Russin must be assisted by his namesake. Nothing of importance can be done against him this
year, on this side, I fear. How beautiful these places are, and the contrast to that arid rock made
them doubly so to me, T'expeet to pass next winter in Turkey, probably in the neighbourhood of
Seutari, as T presume our artillery must be wintered thereabouts, ‘and I have prospects of joining
the army, § or will, or canjyou leave all these shadowy undefinables, and wander sunwards
this winter? Leave parchments to those that understand them. Sign nothing that you do not
understand. Try and make it the interest of some of the learned in deeds to be henest 4o you.
Pack up your trunks, and give time and space an opportunity to assist you in packing solemn
remembrances 1nto their proper receptacle, which must be a net woven by eur will, and

riected gradually, so as to bring its contents under control. ‘Not to come forth unbidden,’
18 the motto on the opening of this receptacle, and we all carry one, God knows where.
There is advice for you. T did mot mean to do so purposeless a thing, ?bn‘t, as it 13 written,
I eommend it to its patront ‘saint.  Listening to contents of deeds, &o., always gives me
the same feclings that it does ‘to hear a child speak fluently a language 1 may be learning.
When the lawyer explains, you know thet he, like the child, knows mothing else!  but,
somehow, both positions make me feel a distrust of my own mental powers—a highly dis-
agreeable sensation, is it mot? However, it is one I am mot likely [to experience nruch of
n my own affnirs; and so much the better. You see T just know enough a it to have an
indefinite pity for you. Does that satisfy you? A curious thought has been hunting me : it is
this :—8u we were to meet, be sh together in the pack, come into contact in this ever
trembling kaleidescope, do you think we should recognise one amother in substance, or would a
sort of mesmerie sympathy cause recognition ; or should we each pass on unknowing and unknown,
and resume a distant correspondence. Which do you think?  Now, there is a beautiful sunset,
and nothing will satisfy my boring friends but I must join them in a j overboard and swim
about our stationary craft.” Addis. 1 hope you may have your wishes mra they are defined to
youraslf.—Ever yours truly,

Rl R ) 6 Yoive o
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THE HON, W. CHARLES YELYERTON DBIECLARES HIS AFFECTION.

he lukewarm. We are umu,uinﬁnumlves here blowing up everything we can get powder to explede
under, or in making occasionally a very pretty few d'arfrfice.
“f Addio Cara." ‘ CARLO.
Another letter runs thus ;— s
¢ Although you are a lover of the indefinite, others, I assure you, are not so fond of the mystical.
e superiswre very soon en de dews mols defined our relative position. Owu o'est felle chose ? ¢ est
& vous @ dire laquedle ¥ Of course 1 chose the one which cleared my character, as any indefiniteness
on my part would have confirmed the evil suspicions already infused into her mind by the malicious
interpreter of the note. To have spoken to her'of her congeniality of mind, similitude of thought,
sympathy of idea; natural communion of spirit, would have been algebra to her. The French
ve mo imagination, and condemn or do not believe in it in others ; they have a set formal rule
for these sort of affairs, and deviation from this rule they call by a very ugly name. A French
rlis never trusted an instant until she is regularly financee, and all money difficulties are settled.
I wonderif they are any better for all these precautions)? It was my object, then, to retain my
present asylum, uot only beeause I have nowhere else to goto, but also the withdrawal of the
protection at the present moment would give a shadow of truth to any rumours that may be afloat,
wnd I perceived that unless T could explain the matter to the satisfaction of the superiewre, she
Yould have withdrawn it. Tell me, have I done right ? = They are deeply disappointed to discover
ﬂ:}t I have wne attachs mrm::imu&—-lh:r}f had set their hearts upon turning me into a Saveer ae
G "ﬁ't{s-uan:l no argument or inducement will be spared to tempt me to give it up, so the supericnre
‘;". 18 one of the cleverest women I have ever met) began by thoroughly frightening me on the
ﬂﬂ-whem she guessed I should prove most weak and gengitive—my p;un:ig name; so 1 was
|-1|I-Q:uf nervous when last I wrote, but your letter set me all to right again ; 1f you will be my
!.-uun,-l"LI do not care a fig for any one; no, I do not want you to shoot rmy one for me, thank you,
-rﬂcﬂlﬁ.. tﬂ“t shot yourself! and 1 am so determined about it. ghe will try to get the note. I just
¢ "t 1 did say something very shocking in it—** In cose you cannot find the house, whistle
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or conscieneo. Nevertheless, you are bound to pay your just debt to him, which we could do in
Hioa, k. there would be the original dgg:: t Eaarljr premium on the life -pullcg, and the
. interest on the premium. The policy could be sold, if he does not wish to keep it; and had this
. been done before the peace would have brought much more. We could soon pay the original debt
—and surely he would wait a little, and not proceed to extremities? But even in that case you
would only have to keep out of the country—they would stop your pay. I should go and live with
my friends, and require so funds, “After all it would come nearly to the same thing, whether you
lived on your own and ﬁwm up mine, or lived on mine and gave up your own; bot would entail
temporary separation; but I'would teach you to trust me, and then we should not be oo unhappy.
That you :ﬁf think seriously of this I know; but I want to ask you, Carlo mio, in the name of
the few, short, happy hours we have spent together, to make me the confidante of your thoughts,
as you would were I assez flewreuse to be near enoungh to read in your heart. you have
8 d to be frank enough, and the delight of sympathy is to shave everything, good or had, and
as [ know the length, depth, and breadth of your wiskedness now, you need have no fear of luamg

good opinion—comprenes vous #  To-day I have been running about, and have found the .
?M&m you were sighing for the other niihb entirely closed in by verdure; if overhgngs the
sea, impervious to human eye or ear; nb::II the nightingale above would melodise our thoughts,
too deep and sacred for mortal words to tell. I send you some of the violets charged with much
that mt might that you might claim, if in their native bower; ne quanfo fludi ha & mare it tanto
baci baci arvesti viene tortlo @ prato. I cannot at all imagine by what strange transaction you
have anived at your present state of feeling towards me. It is' the very last that I should ever
have contemplated inspiring, and so opposite to my idealisation of you, The glimpse you had of
me four years ago could not have produced such an effeet ; or supposing it did so, 1t must have
long since died a natural death. Our correspondence ought to have generated in you, as in
me, esteem, admiration, affectionate trust, and confidence—idealised ethereal love—alove to live or
to die for—a little Platonic at first, but finally becoming the elixir par excellencs of life. You
might be in love with a Flrkess, inatead of an over spiritualised Englishwoman. T could easily
somprehend that great external attractions might have operated on your sense of the beautiful, &e.;

being of an inflammable temperament q;rhich, in spite of your apparent coldness and stoieism
L think you must be) you might take fire. But nature hos'nof endowed me with a single physica
beauty calculated to excite such sentiment, I have not a festure that will bear inspection—no
eyes, but when the soul speaks through them—and noone could ever look at me a second time, were it
not for the contents, not the casket itself. On this I rely, not only to gain (if I have a chanee)
but to kee fnu: affections. However, by this time, you have no doubt come to your more sober
sensed, must forgive you your madness and fﬂhj’ this time, aye, a thousand times, if neces-
sary, but you must, gor wiil eventually, become all my heart’s desire. The strongest and most
prominent point of my character is the extreme tenacity of purpose—and I may say the incapaeity
to relinquish an object once fairly sought. No obstacle daunts—no sacrifice appals me—no means
however trivial, escape me, and ‘struggle only augments my courage. When animated by one
idea, I can win my way with any one, and have, under these circumstances, made the most
unpromising people do the most ely things; but it is seldom I get roused to this energy—I
am usually very quiet and harmless, and too yiafd:ing. When you write me, will you se ¢ emprie
write from your heart, and not those indifférent icicle letters which have cost me such bitter
moments, and utterly failed in their purpose of alienating me. I gan neverfeel indifferently towards

, 80 you might as well be a little kind, and now you have betrayed yourselftoo far, ever to think
of cheating me again. "Will you ever have patience to wade through all this? T lost my knife in
the Crimen, and cannot mend my pen. Your letters are unfortunate love tokens.”

De witness, in reply to questions, said :—Major Yelverton came to visit me at the convent and
hospital at Galata, and proposed for me, I E&iﬂ? would not be married until after the war. That
until that time I would remain with the nuns. He kissed me on that oceasion, That was the second.
oceasion on which we met. When I went to the camp T had no intention of seeine the defendant
I was there about fourteen days before he saw me. He was invited by General Straubenzie. T had
informed Mrs. Straubenzie that I was engaged to him. We eould see the defendant’s hut from

Straubenzie’s quarters. Mrs. Straubenzio was anxious to forward my views, The defen-
; lhut-:ame‘ulmmt every day. Whilst we were there he asked me how I should like to be an
officer’s wife, and live as . Btraubenszie did. T said I should rather like it. He said one
day that he was deeply in debt, and could not marry unless he found a lady to 'pu:,r his debts
He suid he was o few thousand pounds in debt. "I snid 1 had only my income of £200
& year, and he said he would remain single until something favourable oecurred, and that
would marry no one but me, I said the same to him, and he said He would not pled
me. He said there was no chance of retrieving his difficulties. He took an affectionate leave of [:ne E:
that occasion, He came afterwards several times, and snid he could not keep away fr 1l I's
house, and that he should have me. He pro osed a gecrot marria E I 11r v Iw-g ﬁnﬂm
that he never said—*“ Fhere is one word, and that is * marriage * ﬂ:‘t{;ﬁumua?:::ﬂ‘h “I*Ht?:r
between us,” When leaving General Straubenszio’s Captain Yelverton asked l-:;H a];m ;’imm out
::'uk: i‘: Eﬂl anl:-;l.! Sevptmie Ut the Groek ﬁh“ﬂ?h: which he pointed out to l?’lll:?. Exi morning I
et {_e.n 1 suddenly. The vessel was about to start as T awoke, 1 saw the door of my cabi
At Efiutﬁylignm#m'&fﬂ me that he hﬁﬂr talken that means of taking a last farewell of me. I did
Wi Javt o hig“’ﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬂiﬁ? t‘;lﬁc- Eﬂgm] If‘rqm him when T went on board on that ocoasion. He
8, imploring me to go on shore with him, and eagh time a
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Witness—There has been a age torn out in that letter, but not by me. I don't know
whut,hla:-]g:swas :ﬁfﬁ out when I gliﬁ it to the Procurator Fiscal for the case in Scotland.

Counsel then read the following letter from Major Yelverton to the witness:—

i in—I came by the Danube. I wrote to you from Vienna. One letter of yours,
lﬁrgg?:;a tE E}??&B}iﬂﬂ, reached n{e here, also one directed tg London. I hope you received mine
from Vienna, I amsorry I made a false promise, though I meant fully to keep it when 1t was
made. The Head became irresistible, and it was broken. Listen to the dialogue :—(Brain)—
Why ave you going? Eﬂ}“}—l promised, (B)—Why did you promise? {Self)—We wished
to meet again. (B)—What for? To make a beginning to the end or add to the endless. '[:Se].i':r—_-
For my part t]:e(fm'mer. (B)—Fool, then the end will be all of your making. (Self)—True, if
there be one. (B)—That must not be. (Self)—No, I'll go by the Danube er Moscow. (B)—
A steamer zoes to Odessa to-morvow. (Self)—H'm, a steamer to Odessa to-morrow. So you see,
Carissima, I cannot go more than half way, and if any force, odylic or magnetic, gull you the
other half we shall meet : if not, not. None of your letters showed such a force when t the
Crimea. Your own actions there did not show it, and therefore I went the other way. IfI
understand your last letter to London right, we may meet again, I shall be in or close to London
about the end of September or beginning of Uctober and tolerably free. Write what you wish;
you cannot read this without knowing what I do. Where two opposing forces act, there must be a
vibration ; but that is nef aberration of mind, only fluctuation of the current purpose. I now know
mine. Oirgumstances, will, and inclination have determined its direction. Try and know yours,
and communicate it; and then if there be an end we shall see it, I purposely avoid now, as
much as I can, any attempt to influence your decision. Let them persuade you to go the other
way, if they can convinee you, May Enu be happy. .dddic Fenso a te. £ CARLO.

% Miltown, near Dublin, August 16th,"”

The witness gave the following explanation :—The promise which he made was te come to
meet me and to make arrangements for our marriage. I don’t remember when or wherel
received that letter. The expression in the letter to make *‘a beginning of anend’’ meant to
make an end of the correspondence that had subsisted between us for some time, and to begin a
new life by our marriage. He says his heart's wish was to begin a new life—that is, to begin the
end. The metaphorical conversation in his letter refers to this; he says his brain told him to be
prudent and not to marry, whilst his heart and soul attracted him to me; finally the brain
triumphied. He goes by tﬁe Danube, and says—*"* if force pull you half way, then we shall meet'’
—that was an intimation to me that if T agreed to a secret marnage we should meet and be united.
He tells me also where I will find and meet him in September, if I chose. ** Write what you
wish,'" he says; * you eannot read this without knowing what I do’’ ; what he wished was to make
a beginning of the end—that is, to begin our married life. Whilst.I was at Belbee, I heard a
report that he had gone by the Danube, . :

Counsel next read the following letter written by the witness to the defendant: =

**Caro mio Carlo—You ask me to write what I wish! Could anything be so tantalizing ?
Have you not made me endure the torments of Tantalus over and over again? Have I not
expressed to you that I had but one wish—that if you would gratify that one I would never
trouble you to all time and eternity with another, **only to see you once.” You know all about
that Odessa, &c., &c. Again I repeat the wish, it is the only one that actuates me—it has been
dlgacrepuinte I, but not given up—it is not in my nature to give a thing up, but I this time propose
milder conditions. Your comparing yourself and your lukewarm feelings to the ardent flame and
consequent misery of Tantalus is rather a good joke. All I wish from you now is your exact
address, where you are to be quartered, and the sort of house you are living in, that I may
not go hunting a whole town over for you, and committing inconvenient blunders. You
tell me that circumstances and inclination” have decided your couwrse. I had hitherto lulled
myself in the happy delusion that it was the former alone which had dominated, I believe that
inelination inclined to, not from me.. Oh, when will vou learn to consider me as something more

.impressionable than adamant ? - When will you feel that you have entangled your fingers in the
~ vital threads of my existence, and that it is wanton cruelty to keep pulling them a tort and a

travers, winding me up to a third heaven or saddenly letting me down to Tophet# You know
Eerfer;ﬂg well that be my resolution what it may I cannot exeeute it if you oppose it. You knew
should not suceeed in gbtting into the convent—you do know that you have strivento gain an
ascendency over me—that you have infatuated, enthralled, bewitehed, maddened me—that I have
0o more command over myself—that I may struggle and writhe; weep and pray, and play ** such
pranks before high Heaven as make the angels weep ™ in vain, m vain; and now that your
%ﬁ“m?h 18 L'umplr:ta-‘-aml that you have obtained boundless empire oyver me, are you satistied ?
. E t l.ﬂt all you desired? If ao, ¥ou may rest upon your oars, cut the strings, let me go adrift,
Ei‘: prodest, where 1 find anchor again,  Never ean I meet with a move reckless steersman, than
e one who would bongre malgre 88 himself of my helm, Perhaps by some fatal attraction

2 m,!‘:! :}Elﬂ ;.:ﬂ'l!t-mlll'! to float around your bark—heed me not—I shall die some day, orbe swallowed
hp ~Fh 0 sharks. If for yourself you have any definite wigheswith regard to me, one desire might
h“?," veen fulfilled which would have been a gleam of sunshine on my dismal lite, and would not
ave interfered with your liberty, present position, or future prozpects ; but unfortunately my
marvellous and ingenious discovery was of no avail—time is past, and you do not love me as you
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. Yelverton, and if he came to Constantinople, he (the bishop) would marcy us privately in his ewn
chapel, and that after our marriage we might either remain there or snrt.. according to ciroum-
stances. The bishop said he would keep the marriage secret, and would allow Yelverton to live in
a sort of seminary or college, that he might make a refreat thers, or return to England as ‘we
might  “When I left Belbsc I went on board Sir James Close's yacht in the Bosphorus.
There was a large party of ladies and gentlemen on board, L left the yacht to embark in a steamer
for Alexandrin. I went from there to Cairo, up the Nile, and as far as the first cataract. 1 was at
Thebes, in Egypt. Idon’t think we went as far as Nubia. I think we joined t.ha-al:u.B-at Rosetia.
T eame back in the same ship in whieh I went. I think there was some arrangement by which the
steamer was hired, not expressly for us, but that it should wait some time forus. There were no
persons on board but ourown party, which was somposed of about fifteen. There was 4 Mr. Shears
of the party. He made me an offer of marriage during that trip. He was a lientenant in the
navy. 1 had not known him before I went to the Crimea. Mr. Gisborne was also amongst the
wy. He was a private gentleman. 1 canvot remember the names of any others who were of

. Brewster read a lefter from the witness to Major Yelverton, containing the following
passagos :—** Brery day Carlo seems to sink deeper into the mystic future to which I never seean
end nntil it makes an end of me. Must I go wandering over the werld to search him there?  *
* If ever you did anything charitable, do it now and send me three lines of address in pity.
My letters disappeared between this and the Pyramids. I hope some of the Arabs may get them,
that they may never be read. My sister isina dreadful way, and I dare not go near her. The
interpretation of E{rmuu.- note is deeply grieving tome * # I have only one wish, to see you; is
E:m-tu be gratified now or at any olher time? * % You need not see me if it 1s not agreeable

you.” i
The witness in a:]l:lelaunﬁnn said—My sister aEuku very severely of him and said he was not
straightforward. The letters were lost inn carpet bag. I think itwas Mr, Gisborne who recovered
them for me. I gotthem back in the same bag in which they were. It was returned to me
unlocked. I missed them in Malta, when I was in the Sybille, Mr. Close’s yacht.
Mr. Brewster read another letter from the witness :—
¢ Sybille Yacht, Valetta.

_*“One whole month T have spent hunting Malta for news witheut success. I have tvied every-
thing and eyverybody, but you are out of the pale of human icformation. I know by heart
Apmy List, but there is nothing satisfactory there. Artillery seems %o bid defiance toall rules of
arithmetic. There is evidently nothing more to be learnt in Malta, so I must try elsewhere,
Now, do you not think in your judgment that if he were not a melange of the queerest material
that angels ever made up in the vast laboratory of humans (they must, at his creation, haye been
g'mg a new invention, which was not answering their expectations, was given up and only one

that sort was produced), he would say at once, either **1 am quartered so and so, or don’t
trouble yourself!" This piauea me very dreamy, worse than dreamy—it approaches within a
hair’s breadth of reality ; he not only haunts me, but I feel sometimes, ﬁmmmg. v whole system,
a thrill as from a palpable touch. About the harbours, at the corners of every s in the
salons, and military affairs everywhere, high and low; a row .of bright tiny buttons are: ever
. appearing before me, they messmerised me, the first. time I ever saw them, and I do believe they
act as small galvanic batteries; hut my fate seems dawning upon me. Iam everto pursuea
shadow—no reali ntasmagoria luring me on. The ancients did not know of the Syvens
did they *—dreadful to be reserved for such o discovery. The last letter of August 15 was a o.hg;'
4" euvre of jllplomnht: diction ; the thing must d¢ but it must come to pass, he wills it so; yet
interferes witk no one's arrangement—no force, mo persuasion is used—nothing—only it must e
Sophist that thou art. “I puﬁuﬂg refrain from influencing you!" he says—how lkindl

te, when I ean necither call body or soul my own. If I were tied up by our hawser
were not half as fast and firm—but it is clever de separe o' est pas. 1 leave horein the Strumhnii,
man-of-war, which is to transport me to Spithead, I shall then go on to the Marchioness's, where
yom might send a note if you are still in the land of the living, not that you nced trouble; if you
m:il‘!nd me any paper or book with it in, it will answer the same purpose. Youw can be spared
- antalus, though I do not believe & word abont that. I want very much to see if you have eut

i ﬁ"-“-“' moustache, and I have got a glass in which I can see round the corner—no Irishism,

e you would be a little more generous towards me, and let me eonfide in you implicity—not to
“w@m“ keep certain thoughts and foelings in pefto. I am so situated now in the game, that
{d E:Eﬁe only person to whom, as the law says, { ean speak the truth and the whole teuth, Do
e mt:iemym . You, on your part, ought to be man enough to resist when ne ’
P Pyt .”Wht me talk—it is o woman’s privilegs, et da vera. Lonly know one legitimate mode
_— “Eda mouth, and that you cannot practise by letter, Sir. I obey you move au pied de la
e ﬂ?m'd’ vora. A clever metaphysical writer says that “some anxiety invigoratos

et ‘QIMd: others to depress’” (nothing depresses me exoept the trial to be veasonable).
of drsrnl,up' £1p i.n: of intellectual advancement is that in whish it is most active—the great secret
et !“'IJ; the faculties is to give them much to do—and much inducement to do it—all the

1 o f ers whom I have eonversed with have agreed in this axiom—where there is a
Mu]i:l n"d ;:?}r l'lﬂtilill-?’_ of what eirenitous or irksome way this may be through trials and dangers,
dainéd In wmh : nds, life must besome as a feather in the balanee where there is an object 1o be

: ak is life without an object? I for one do not value it. I must have intenser joys






PARTING SCENE AT BORDEAUX.
;washed out anything, very limp, usclesai(smd good for mothing but a rubbish bag. T have been

ywith you the whole journgy. Did you know it? And will you come to me again to sce the new
year in as you did last year? Exactly, just the same—you know how I mean ; and will wait for
you just before the old year goes out—and I am about to work some spell with the half plaid that
will ensure its being made one before we see another new year in together. Itisno use our writing
any longer. I quote your own words, ** The next act cannot be written, it must be played out,
and the actors must e’en make the best of it.” Besides, what on earth are we to write about:
You will not write what you feel, neither will you let me. By the way, the letters are come back
again! What do you think of that omen? They had got to Gibraltar. I prayed to St. Antony,
and you know he niwa.]rﬂ patronised us and connived at our getting together; he it was who helped
us to find each other in the dark that first night, who made me want letters ?uﬂting in Malta ; he
who made somebody find out that dark hole in Galata; who made the general's Aut have a peculiar
attraction; was it not 7 We had offended him somehow when somebody went off by the Danube.
I am in the humour for a chat. I have never flirted a bit since I came on board; but you don't
like eross, and have no more paper, this, as you may guess, is out of my journal. I shall go to
the marchioness’s until I hear from you. Don't forget New Year's Eve.  Seordati di me.
" TERESA,
“ Monday—Arrived at Portsmouth,"”

. The witness in reference to these passages, said—Feeling that my sister had misunderstood
him T felt that there was no use in speaking of him, because when she takes an idea she generally
audheres to it; therefore, I had resolved not to mention the subject again to her. We had divided
the plaid—he taking one half, and I the other; and I meant, in alluding to it, that I should make
gome arrangement by which the plaid should be joined before the year was out.

Mr. _Br&w5t¢1- read a letter from witness to Major Yelverton, in which she mentioned that she

was obliged to answer three letters at once.  And asked the witness where were two of the tliree

letters mentioned, as he found only one letter from the defendant, in the printed book, to which
the anawer referred,

E!:h;. Brewster read the following letter :—
L:ﬂmfcntmnuhty 18 7o the question between us—I dislike every shadow of it as much as
yourself. My whole life you know has been a protest against it; and in my relations with you it
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i ourse our fate never so. - I have come to this conviction—have not you? Now
::ﬁﬂf{;u t]:lﬂﬂi night to you—here are those men coming uf from dinner, 1 do not want te sfay
were, or, if it pleases them to have me, I wish to leave myself here, and come in spirit to you, Do
not write here for fear of aceident. _ﬂal-! I want to see you, and dare not begin to arrange un}'jilé%ng
leat it should all go wrong, I begin to anticipate I am quite prepaved for any possible mishap
bofore I get my wish, Write to Canterbury, the Dane belongs to the gate, of course. rCss
on back of letter, Major the Hon, W, €. Yelverton, Royal Art1 lery—re-addressed, Leith Fort).

Mr. Brewster asked witness where were two of the three letters mentioned, as he found only one
lotter from the defendant in the printed book, to which the letter he had just read referred. =~

Mr, Whiteside said he wished to know whether the defendant had served notice on the plaintifis
attorney to produce these letters. ~Every letter that witness had werse given up. |

The witness said she found from & memorandum which she had made that several of the letters
were displaced from their proper place in the printed book. :

Mr. iteside said that was an important fact. g e

The Chief Justice said the witness could that evening refer to the memorandum, and on
Monday morning she might malke any observations she ﬂ.f:&medn ht on the letters, "

Mr, Brewster read from tha%fatltf]:l of tl}a witness previously referred to this passage—"* You tell

‘my best chance was lost at ava.'’
= itness—The meaning of that is, his offer to get married in the Greek Church at Balaklava.
But T considered that no chance at all. I wish to observe, too, that wrong interpretations have
been given to some of the passages in my lettersand the emphasis put on the wron words,

Mr. Whiteside—That complaint is very true, but depend upon it I will put the emphasis on
the right words (laughter. :

Ur%ua anmi:{;'agilfu ras?lmeﬁ——'l'hu last letter is written from my brother-in-law’s (Bellamy) in
Wales. I went from thence to London, Miss M‘Farland was in London; she had recently come
from Paris, and was stopping in London at a friend’s place. I don’t kiiow the name of the friend.
Mr. M‘Farland’s father fell into difficulties and went into the Charter-house, and she had no
home of her own in London. Imet herat the Marchioness de la Vienne's. We went straight from
London to Edinburgh, and stopped at the Ship Hotel. I do not recollect how hng wu_mmm{.&qﬂ
there. Yelverton visited me at the hotel. .fsant him word that I had arrived, but did not,
him where I was. He, however, asked the messenger where I was a.tuppm.%._ I expected to have
found Mrs. M'Kye in Edinburgh, but she was not there, We had letters of introduction to other

sons in Edinbu The last time I saw Mrs. M‘Eye was at Malta, but I thought she had

home te FEdinburgh where she always resided. We went to Mrs. Gamble's at Edinburgh and
ved on the third flat. Mrs. M‘Farland had not changed her religion until this period, She was
received into the Catholic ehurch at a convent in Edinburgh after I left that place. I placed her
in the convent to receive instructions before she became a Catholic. It was early in February
that we came to Edinburgh. When Yelverton visited me the marriage was alluded to. It was
alluded to, I think, in some way the first time he visited me. He went to his brother's marriage
while we were at Tdinburgh. hen he first came he was lame from a fall from his horse. Iam
not aware that he was sufering from any other illness. I had a letter from him from London
the postmark on which is the 16th February, 1857. He returned to Edinburgh on the 25th. Ep
to the time of his return there had been no fixed mnﬂamant between us as to & marriage e
invited Miss MacFarland and I to take tea with him in Edinburgh, he being then an invalid, and
we went, He sent his carriage for us. We also dined with him by his invitation

Counsel read several brief letters which had been written by the defendant to the lady on the
occasion, Three of them were as follows :—

‘¢ Carissima—I did not receive your note until last night, or would have sent the dirty lace
with the other stuff. Did either of you leave a thimble, as I found one and do not know whether
it belongs to my gaudy housewife or no. You 'did not do me any very great harm on Monday,
and I am iﬁthns slowly but steadily sound again, and that dreadful man at the library never has
the books I mark off, but sends me novels of the most bread and butter, milk and luke warm water
description, There are three volumes in as many corners of the room, ugh. Il give you'a call
to-morrow about 3, and we'll drive down to see the horses; I'll bring my servant and send him
up the stairs, Addio, - CARLO.
by o Carrissima—I cannot get up fo see you, so you must come and see mo. Tell Croshy to order
“he Edinburgh carriage at whatever time you like. You shall have some dinner, if the last did
not frighten you from making such an attempt again, We shall improye, I dare say with practice.
I EIP-Ei:t to go to Edinburgh on Mouday. Addio, Penso a te.” CARLO,

** Carrissima—I had forgotten the photograph. I depart to the other side of the water
to-morrow, D.V. Thope you had a pleasant passage and dreams. I am sulky, hate uncertaintics,
and believe in nothing. Addw, Penso a ts.”

Cross-examination resumed—I received this last letter from him in ITull after T had left Edin-
burgh. I cannot tell the date of it, but 3lr, Thelwall can. There was a littlo sketch attached to
the letter {prudun?d]. Thiz was a aketoh portraying the positions in which we stood to each other®
ome represented him as qpprmchinrp‘;l me, and [ was uu‘gjng him away. In the other sketoh he
by L e Iegl‘“ﬂﬂt&fl a8 auﬂ'enuﬁ dreadful misery whilst I was going uulm{v to a convent, I did not
H.:.’” & iu““"“h- marriage, such as he proposed, without a ¢lergyman. It was in consequence of m
objections that it did not take place earlier. T saw him twice in chupel in Bdinburgh, He di
mot join me there, He might have seen me in chapel, but I ¢annot say whether he did or not.
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i iehing which death I should like best, or is it that my fate is looming over me,
:nntn::,rs:;l:omi!:ﬂ;ﬁgt'ah:ﬂgnn my contemplation? Sometimes in faney I do trust you and feel so
happy, then comes reaction—doubtful words and actions of yours occur to me; and oh ! if you thl:!
love me, surely you would help me. Anne gays, ‘the one to help you does not seem to be at hand;
ghe thinks I had better try my sister; butin her heart she knows—she can read every look of my
face—and she sees every time I speak to you, as well as I do myself—and 1 am too weak now to
disguine it under any cloak. I wish you would tell me you burn all these letters—please do.
Write to me here for a week or two—for though we leave to-morrow they will be forwarded. 1
shall not be able to write you after I join my sister. But if I get well enough to come to you, I
will find means; and if I die, I have told Arra to write and tell you all about it. Good bye, T do
pray for you, but it does not seem to have any result. In a morning you recollect I always come,
ways will," "
3 'ﬁlle :}imun gave the following explanation of the above letter:—Owing to my being half
married, and not married, I was in a very miserable state of mind, My impression was that the
Scotch marriage ceremony extended only to Scotland, and that it had this effect, that if he met
me there he could claim me as his wife. He importuned me so very much to live with him after
the Scotch marriage, that I had to leave Edinburgh to avoid his importunities ; and when I wrote
that letter, I felt that if he forced me to commit what I considered a mortal sin, and brought
ghame upon me, I could not survive it. [Letter pruduced}. I believe half of this letter now
- handed to me was destroyed by my husband and myself at Rostrevor. This half commences—
4 You ghall have a lump of sugar after it, especially if you do not make too many fuces, and ery
for it like a naughty little girl,”

Counsel then read the following letter :—

¢ Could not finish my last letter, was so shaky, Anne made me give it up, so slipped in the
cards instead., Are men deceivers ever, or did he suddenly feel himself bound to marry the girl he
had promised five years ago? Allak behir. T am writing in bed after dreams ; such another dream
will make me well'in a day or two, Two warm days have decided my cough to a final move. Are
you still sulky, or fallen into ths old slough of do nothingness ? Do you not believe in the mossy
Tiolet bank? ~ That is to be reserved for my special delectations when my turn comes. You can
make out your commonplaceism whenever you think proper, but I can give fwu no cowleur de rose
or violet scent—those are sacred to my dream. Don’t come begging to me for sunrays to light up
ur dark, miserable constructions, i ﬁuu will build up every day a disagreeable, angular, uncom-
ortable fabric under the plea of desirability, advisable expediency, with the view to its turning out
useful at some far off period—don't expect any of my moss or flowers to cover and disguise it with
—don’t try to pass it off on me as a fairy palace or a bower of h}is&; it is a stronghold in which you
intend to secure yourself. 1 will have no more to do with it than I am dound fo, as they say in
Germany, and always under protest that it is a cold, calculated, dismal affair. There is a French
proverb, ““on reewle pour miewz saufer.” Can you E.Ealjr it in this case ? It is said that a thing
to be worth havingilmtml: be worth sacrificing for. At that rate your worth is incalculable, con-
sidering what you have cost for the last five years. Calculating reminds me to tell you that T have
the necessary—shall I send you some? How teasing of you not to write when every day is of con-
sequence now, and when the least blundering may mar our whole plan. Suppesing my sister, not
heaging from day to day, knowing that I am ill here, should take it into her head to come to me
where are the dreams then ? If you wish for a certainty, take your measure accordingly, This I
was just going tatpoat to you. I want tosee you; I must. I have been dreaming ever since; I
cannot bear it. You know it is not in nature, and you swore before God, and you will not perjure
yourself ; but I'll go if you wish it, and remain ever ) “THERESA LONGWORTH,'
* Carlo, Carlo—come to me and comfort me with your spiritual presence.”

The witness said, in reference to the above letter :—I wrote that letter in Hull, By the words
*the stronghold in which you intend to secure yourself,’” I referred to the precautions he was
taking to gratify his own desire for secrecy, and to serve his own purposes, whilst in not having
married me in an open and straightforward manner he had sacrificed my feelings, and rendered me
miserable. By the ‘‘necessary ” I meant mouey. I think I sent him some money on that ocea-
sion. I certainly did send him money, but whether it was then or at another time I am not quite

Counsel then read the two following letters :—

*Cara Theresn—Exeuse me for continuing (for'this one time more) the old style of address in
part. T eongratulate you on the step you have taken most sincerely, as the most likely course to
render your future life a contented one; and if ever a remembrance of me crosses your mind in
Your new sphere of duties and pleasures, spare me a place in your prayers, and believe in me as one
always ready to act towards you as a sincere and respectful friend ; and permit me to add, as you
will perhaps be pleased to hear, that such is really the case—that by your marriage you have earned
my lasting gratitude—as, on reflection, I found that T had place myself in a false position with
regard to you, and one of all others the most painful to me—viz., that I had :-rumi:suti to you to do
more than I eould have performed when the time came, You may think 1It:is declaration a new
example of the truth of the old fable, but it is not so. T have passed that weakness. Forgive me

that 1 still retain that of addressing you on the outside of this by y iden n: g5
me ever yours to command, gy 8 by your maiden name, EELE:HML
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was accordingly placed in view of the witness, who was asked by Mr. Brewster, if she had ever seen
her before.—Witness replied that she had never seen that weman before. J

Did you ever ask her to go to London, and that you would get her a situation ?—I did not.

Mr. Brewster then asked to have Mr. Langster, who, he said, was the proprietor of the hotel at

introduced. -
BmiﬁTuﬁ;l;;tfruwﬂas laced near the witness, who was asked if she recognised in this person the
proprietor of the hntef‘in Rostrevor, where she had stayed. _
itness—I cannot say whether 1 have ever seen him. I could recognise Mrs, Langster, but Iam

not sure whether he is or is not the proprietor of the hotel. ; ;

In reply to Mr. Brewster, Mr. said that Mrs, Langster was not in town.

Mr. iteside submitted that Mr. gster, not being sworn, should not be asked anyquestions,
and he suggested that Mr. Langster, having been exhibited, should now follow thatwu-o?hm who
had been exposed, and withdeaw, which Mr, Langster acco Ly a5

Mr. Brewster then asked to have a'Mr. Transfield confronted with the witness,

Mr. Whiteside objeeted to his manner of proceeding with the eross-examination,

The Chief Justice said hethought Mr, Brewster should question the witnessin the usual way.

Mr. Brewster said he w to prove what occurred at the hotels, and to ask the witness
whether she knew these persons, so that there might be no dispute hereafrer as to whether they
were speaking of her. - d. . it iy

Chief Justice—You want them to ind her, and not her to mdemn? them,

Cross-examination resumed—Idon’t knowthe name of the hotel keeper at Newry. Waait with the
waiter there that the dispute you mentioned took place ?—I1 don’t know with whem it took place.

%r. ];wrgiwuqr—ﬁnw E;ﬂﬂﬁtﬂ.' mdwu;mhh?; e

r, teside—And that is w say is: irre +

Witness—They fook a lock of mmmﬁm mﬂﬁm, said they would know me
by it, and asked them what they could prove agninst me. i

Mr. Brewster—How do you know ¢

Chief Justice—What reason h'amginu. for saying that?

Witness—A person went there, and they mlﬁhmnthat a lock of hair was brought, which after
= E.m ‘ This is perfeotly illegal

. Brewster—This is 3 ;

The Chief Justice said what had been told to her by other ng could not be evidence,
Ewﬂrﬁu-nmin_lﬁm' resumed—IL went to: Boulogue the first week in May; I sent a letterto the

. Ly .

Had you ever a child borp alive?—No. :
‘70 THE VERY REV. FATHER MOONEY.

¢ Dearand Rev. Father—T trust that you, have not forgetten the lady who, last autumn, had
the %lans'ui'a ﬁ making your acquaintance, and to whom you rendered such inestimable service and
deeply valued kindness. Tean never forget you, my dear sir, for in you I recognise one of those
true ministers of the Almighty, who tread in the ever chavitable, kind, and merciful steps of our
Saviour, rejecting none who come with n.mrmvrinﬁ heart, ¥ou made mine a happy one in your
little church of ne, last 15th August, the Feast of Our Lady. In our rambles on’ the
continent, how often we have thought and spoken of that day! I have now the arrival of a little
stranger to look forward to, and finding some little difficulties about the baptism abroad—they
requiring a certificate from the priest who united the parents—I wish to take my precautions in
advance, feeling sure that you will ref;lniue_tu bring another lamb to the sheepfold, which, but for
Knur kindly help last i;anr, would otherwise have gone astray. 'I must now confide to you my
usband’s surname, which I was only allowed to do under the seal of confession (though I never
doubted for a moment that a secret was and is perfectly safe with you). My maiden name was
Marie Teresa Longworth. My husband's name is" William Charles Yélverton. ~ You will please to
add the surname to your own private register, as, of course, the child must be registered under the
father's name. But I need not entreat fmu tu_aﬁuw no one to see it but yourself, unless you had
a witness to the marriage, However, I rely implicitly on you, and you will find when the time
somes to proclaim this marriage, that you have not: m&ry saved two individual souls, but rendered
an incaleulable service to the Catholic church. T dare not tell you more at pmam:lt.: but some day
I shall come to see you and tell you all. You will be glad to henr that T havé much hopes of my

husband. With the most gra remembrance accept the ‘expression of
believe me ever dutifully yours, F* : DR U L Satiipend

‘ ' ‘M. T. YELYRERTON.
“ Please nddress to Miss Longworth, 30, Spring-street, Full, Yorkshire. :
to me at Lunenbach, German ke B J i hire. It will be forwarded

12, [‘ggnjt post marks on these Ettwu were Hull, June, *58; Dublin, June 11, ’58: Rostrevor, June

Mr, Whiteside—I think the answer of the rev. rentleman and th tificate of th :
should be read. As a general rule, you cannot riv.agm Ent ¢ certificate of the marviage
Chief Justice—As yet the time lh{.u not cume% DRI e pcaon ense,

R,“]H.i frﬁﬁ;ﬂ:;l:m told in the progress of the case an undertaking wae given to produse the
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MISS LONGWORTH VISITS THE WOUNDED,

Mr. Whiteside—I will do what I like when I hear you. (g
Sergeant Sullivan—I stated what I intended to do, and there it is. T
Cross-examination resumed—I wrote that letter. Major Yelverton was not married fo Mrs.

Forbes when I wrote it. It was not written in Boulogne ; it was written first in Bordeaux. I left
Bordeaux in May.

by

Mr, Brewster—I have no more to ask you,

Mr. Whiteside—Very good. (To witness)—Did you get an answer from the Rev. Mr. Mooney
return of post, with the certificate enclosed #

Mr. Brewster—I object to the question and to any answer that may be given.
Mr. Whiteside—Of course you do.

Chief Justice (to witness)—First of all, did you get an answer to the letter?
Witness—I did.

Mr. Whiteside (putting letter in witness's hand)—Is that the answer? Witness—It is.

Mr. Whiteside—Was your letter written before you heard of the defendant’s second marriage ?
Witness—It was. I did not hear of the second marriage till T got to Edinburgh, The second

marriage, in fact, only took place the day after I got to Edinburgh.

Mr. Whiteside—Did the reply of the Rev. Mr. Mooney contain anything ? {
Witness—It did, the mnn'?agn certificate.  (Identifics the ﬂn.cuu};gnt. gs being the marriage

certificate).

Mr. Whiteside—You wrote a number of letters to Major Yelverton after your marriage ?
Witnese—I did. . v

Mr. Whiteside—Have they been shown to you?  Witness—Not one.

Mr. Whiteside—How many letters did you write to him after your marriage
Witness—About twenty-four letters in Ireland.
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MISS LONGWORTH IN THE HOSPITAL AT GALATA.

Mr. Whiteside—None of these letters have been produced ?

Witness—None, except one at the end of the book.

Mr. Whiteside—Did you knowingly destroy any of the letters he sent to you ?

Witness—None, except those whicﬁ he destroyed at Rostrevor. . 3

Mr. Whiteside said it might be well to adjouwrn the re-examination of the witness, as it
then five o'clock.

The Court was then adjourned till this mnminﬁ.

As on the previous day, a large crowd collected outside the court, and when Mrs, Yelverton
came forth she was greeted with loud cheers.

FOURTH DAY,

The interest and execitement caused by this extraordinary case increased as the trial
advanced, This morning, for more than an hour before the opening of the court, the space in front
of the doors was blocked ,up by a dense crowd, who waited impatiently for the moment which
would decide their chance of witnessing the proceedings. Meanwhile a large number of ladies, the
fortunate possessors of tickets of admission, were allowed to pass through a private entrance, and,
by this meang, the side galleries became completely filled. e Chief Justice came on the i:ench
at half-past ten o'clock, and an order was then given to open the doors. The scene which then
ensued was, for a time, of the most alarming character. The policemen, whose duty it was to see
that the court should not become overcrowded, were pushed aside by the in-rushing crowd.
Several peaple were dashed down and trampled on. e bursting of wooden railings, and the
smashing of glass, increased the apprehension of those who were safely seated inside, that loss of
life would be the result of the maddened efforts of thousands of people to erush into a small court,
not capable of holding one-twentieth of the number who were struggling to get in. The Chief
Justice in vain caHed on the constables to close the doors and clear the passages ; and the confusion
and uproar coutinning, his Lordship adjourned the court for half an hour, in the hope that order
would be by that time restored, _

When his Lordship again took his seat, the excitement had in some measure calmed down, and
the trial was then proceeded with, Beveral persons of distinetion were accommodated with seats on

C
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'
3 4 ught in under the gallery, and T saw them peeping at me from a form.
% & %mu::ﬁﬂﬂywmﬁ to in some of the Totters was, that Major Yelverton and I should
“go abroad, to Monastir, and be married by Mr. Longworth, who was called my brather, although
¢ was only a cousin, and who was a consul, and by"’law could have married us. After our mar-
riage in E’dvinhurgh, in the absence of Major Yelyerton, Miss M‘Farland and I were searching in a
press, and we found a MS. law book, and in looking over it saw a marriage exactly like ours,
and we said, ‘It is a marriage after all.”” When Major Yelverton came in we read it oyer
er, and he said, ¢ Well, you see I know law better than you.” 1 asked him afterwards which
of aur marriages would be puh{ished, and he said either would do.
. Whiteside—But both's best. (La.uiht&r.']
o Serjeant Armstrong—Mr. Stuart, who proposed for me after my return from the Crimea,
and while on board Sir James Close's yacht in the Bosphorus,is a captain in the French army.
ior Yelverton did not, in his letter to my sistér, say that marriage could not be thought of
between us, or had not been spoken of. 'What he said was, that there was no engagement be _wein
us, that abstacles existed to our union, but that he meant no disrespect to me or 1{ family. At
ﬁnﬁn‘ some of Major Yelverton's letters were brought out of my poeket with my pocket-
2 dkerchief, and pn;ph.;ﬁf of El:hem, which ieierrlwedlm our iuat:rm:i, were dlcstruy{fd_qt _jp{dagfﬁ
, 's request. ile at Abergavenny, I had a large pocket made expressly, and carrig
m‘lﬁmﬂf’; nh:;“flt' Fﬁ; it, for thi rﬂmnfathnt :'I-‘nr sigter and I were on such aE%twlmW terms that I
‘had no box or desk locked. }Eha had access to everything, and would haye read the letters if she
saw them, without meaning any harm, The * fraternal scheme' may have referred not only to
marriage by my cousin, the consul, who was usually called my brather, but also to the fact
; Hnju:?ah'egtnu said if we trg'rullei for that purpose he would care me like a brother. There
been a previously expected little stranger in February or March of the same iyeqr 1858, I
disappointed with respect to it at Bordeaux. Two months after that event T oft Bordeaux,
ﬁ&.wi ess.was applauded on l.aavinﬂ—rh box.) IR o Thie :
Mr. John Thelwall examined by Mr. Townsend—T am the plaintiff in this action. T live in
Hull, and am an iron-master, I know Major and Mrs. Yelverton. Iknew her twelve or thirteen
years ago. Mrs. Thelwall is now 1ll, She is unable to travel. She knows Mrs. Yelverton as long
a8 I da. Tn July or August, 1857, Mrs. Thelwall and myself were in Edinburgh We saw Mrs.
Yelverton there at the house of Mrs. Stock, in Albany-street, where we lodged. She wqsthen
ealled Miss Longworth., I saw Major Yelverton in Edinburgh then for the firs: time. He came fo
ra. Stock’s, where we were staying the night before we returned to Hull. Mrs. Yelverton
atroduced us to him, hut he was not named. We knew who he was, She introduced me by
name, and my wife as her. sister, meaning an intimate friend. Mrs. Thelwall was not her sister,
but was, _years intimately acquainted. I knew that Major Yelverton was expected before he
came. Mrs, ri' elverton went and met him in the passage. He was then brought in and introdueed,
t his name was not mentioned. We all ha.dpnuﬂ‘de together. Nothing passed of importance.
;5 .noficed a wedding-ring on Mrs. Yelverton's finger. Ona subsequent occasion, in my house
| in presence of my wife, Mrs. Yelverton, and the Major, something was said about that
| mng. Mrs. Yelverton came to Hull about the beginning of November or December that %ua:, and
Was on a visit at my house until about the beginning of J-ug in the year after. Major Yelverton
eame to my house about six weeksafter. Majorand Mre. Yelverton were received in my house as
W couple. He remained a week or ten days, until his leave expired, and he afterwards came
& again for a few days, after being two or three weeks away. He stayed about a week on the
oceagion, His Eﬂ{ﬁ visit began on the 81st.of December. They occupied the same bed-rpom.
wore the same wedding ring, They spoke of a Continental journey. Mrs. Yelverton wore
eral rings on the wedding finger to hide the wedding-ring. She was not satisfied with
but was in doubt lest her friends on the Continent should see the wedding-ring.
mt?[ to get a atone fixed to her wedding-ring, which she could remoye and replace

AL pleasur discussed the mode of doing so, and said 1 would do as she desired. Major
Xel %?tqp_-waa preseat and took part in the conversation, I gota emall stone which fastened
on the ring with a small hook. The ring was always spoken of as a wedding-ring, 1
went to the office of the French consul in Hull for a passport. No passport was obtained thnr;nﬁajur
l:tgn was with meat the Consul’s, and the Consul told me that, on account of the then late
‘E'ﬁ“ the life of the Emperor of the French, no passports could be granted from Hull, and

the application should be made in London, throngh a banker or a magistrate. We were
OWN. & copy of the Times, in which directions were given.as to she mode of proceeding to obtain
Wﬂ Major Yelerton took a copy of the directions in peneilling, and we then went to a
n and got. paper, which I wrote on, I asked him how I should name Mrs. Yelverton, and
hﬂlﬂﬂd. do 50 in full “ Mrs, Tl_mrean Yelverton.” I did so, and we went together to the
magistrate’s office, e clerk said it wasnotright. The office was crowded, owing to a trial that
18 going an, and we did not wait, but went tn'ghiﬂnsrs. Smith's, bankers, and saw Mr. Cooke, one
the partners, who asked Hﬁﬁ‘ elverton the name of the party 1equiring the passport. He had
Elmuﬂ?gﬂlﬂ- it was fora relative, but he then snid, in reply to Mr, Cooke, “Mrs, Theresa
Tﬂﬂﬂnﬂ « The 'hunhler said he would write to his London correspondents about the passport.
(Fassport produeed and identified ; it was filled in the name of Mrs, Theresa Yelverton.) Lremember
a Eﬂrhl‘i"ﬂl'ﬂﬂbﬂn about the possibility of Mrs. Yelverton dying abroad, and Major Yelverton said,
IlEn 1:1 atﬂcwnf];ha would have her taken awny from wherever she mig‘ht be buried, and brought to
ngland. Bhe remarked—* Then, having been twice christened and twice married, I would be
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Counsel—You may have; but have you not met with several such cages ?

Witness—Well, I have. ; ! 3

Sergeant Sullivan—Did you ever meet a case ‘‘not on the square,” in which the lady was
introduced as the gentleman’s wife?

Witn hatically)—Never, sir (applause). .
,-!.r;hneﬁﬂ: %ﬁfi h%aﬁiﬁ axnn{iwd{hipﬂr. Whiteside, .C.—I am the daughter of a Scotch
E‘arlund. My father was a long time acquainted with the family of the Long-

author named M* L
worths. In February, 1857, my father allowed me to acmm];{auy Miss Longworth (the present
Mrs. Yelverton) to E?mhurgﬁ. e lodged at:Mys. Gamble's.  We had but one bed-room, which
T shared with her the whole time we were at Mrs. Gamble’'s. We went into society there amongst
my father's friends. We visited Lady Murray and Mr. Robert Chambers, to whom we had letters
nfxinh-nduch‘un. We remained in Edinburgh until April. I read French with Miss Longworth,
and praetised musie. Major Yelverton visited almost daily, as a suitor. He never was there~
night. He was most polite, attentive, and reserved. Miss Longworth and he rode out ;tﬂg‘t’.thti-
There was a Prayer-book of mine lying on the table. I was then a member of the Church oy
England. T recollect Mrs, Yelverton saying, with respect to that Prayer-book
. Brewster objected. (Objection a.l}l—éwcd‘ Major Yelverton not having been present.
Examination resumed—The Prayer-book contained the marriage service.. I changed my
religion, I am at present a Roman Catholie, and belong to the Sisters of Mercy, Blandford-square,
London., I went into the convent of St. Margaret, Morningside. It istwo miles from Fdinburgh.
Major Yelverton knew I was there. Mrs, Yelverton went from Edinburgh to Hull. She took me
to convent in the morning, and she went to Hull the same day. I had conversations with
Major Yelverton on the subject of religion. He alw:;:}s appeared to have a leaning towards
Catholicity. I saw Mrs. Yelverton after her marriage. I came out of the convent to reside with
her. I wasnotthen a nun. I was only receiving instruction in the Catholic religion in the
convent then. I went to Albany-street with Mrs, Yelverton. 1 saw a wedding-ring on her finger.
She told me she was married. Major Yelverton wrote to her under cover to me. I handed her the
letters unopened. We had two bed-rooms and a dining-room there. One of the bed-rooms was
occupied by Mr. and Mrs, Thelwall; Mrs. Yelverton and I had the other. Major Yelverton came
there one evening after dinner. She went out to meet him, and brought him in. He was
introduced, but I do not know whether by name, to Mr. and Mrs. Thelwall. He remained that
night, and afterwards, after the Thelwalls went Mt, and Mrs. Yelverton occupied the larger bed-
room. I associated with them as husband and wife. He wished the marriage to be kept secret.
I found a law book in Mrs, Yelverton's bed-room. There was something in it about Scotch
iages, I do not remember whether it was produced to Major Yelverton. I remember Mrs.
Yelverton being ill, Major Yelverton carried her into her own room. He was lame when we first
went fo Scotland, and Mrs. Yelverton and I visited him once. I was present during the whole of
the visit. Miss tnngwnrﬂa was a sincere Roman Catholie, ' -
Cross-examined by Mr. Brewster, Q.C.—It was from Mrs. Yelverton that I understood the
iage was to be kept secret, She told me so. . '
Did she not tell you that the marriage was to be kept secret beeause she was a Catholic and he
was not?—7Yes. (Sensation.)
Was not that after she came to Edinburgh the second time *—Tt was.
- Did they not at that time go by the name of M‘Farland ?—They did.
%\{fﬁnﬁmwuqﬁﬁ e e e M
ess—(Lo Mr., Whiteside)- As to the fact of the marriage, and as to its being kept secret
whatever the cause was, there w?:s no doubt. 3l L :
Mr, Joseph Martin examined by Sergeant Sullivan—I am a goldsmith'and jeweller in Dublin,
g produced)., This is a wedding ring, I saw the ring before. The size is peculiar, and
eisa mark on theinside. It is extremely small, and the mark is solder mark. I cannot
swear that I sold this ring, but I have a strong impression of having sold a similar ring on the
24th of July, 1857, I was first asked about the ring two years ago. I sold it to a gentleman like
Major Yelverton. His phat.ugmllalh was shown to me. I had some trouble to get a ring to
answery the size was so small. I have lately seen the defendant, and I feel just as satisfied he is
the party I sold it to. I would not swear positively., 1 remember his a earance, and the trouble
1 had in’ getting so small a ring fastens the circumstance on my mind, He said at last that an
rin - - ¥ ¥
g would do. The ring was second-hand, and not the finest gold.
ot W*@nﬁ:{m}uud*
r. Whteside—I muat ask your ] ip' i88i 1t : i
MFarland), {o ask her ono o u::;l:l .urclshlp s permission to recall that young lady, the nun (Miss
The Chief Justice—Certainly.
- Miss M‘Farland was raeallr.i.
ﬂr. E’htteulder—'?ell me this. When you said, a while ago—
oot nr-w ﬂ:_';’“f;—lllmg your pardon. I must insist on asking one question before the witness
Witness—] h:{a ave you been speaking to any person since you left that box ?
To whom *—T¢ Mrs. Yelverton.
.l;‘[rl:' Bmw"fﬂ‘—'ﬂmﬁ say whatever you like,
Hness—In my agitation T find T made a mistake, because I said it was in reference to
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You will exouse me—I mean she cannot be vemoved. She has never been well since her vigit
to England. We left Frmuﬁ% i% June lagt, Sheis dangerously ill.

Th . Dr. O’Connell, P.P., sworn. R ) _

H: T';B'%Fi’te?iaa hni':]!]llalii witness the certificate of mmﬂ:ﬁu. Are you acquainted with the form of
certificate given to parties who are married in the Roman Catholic Church ?—Iam. Thisis a very
gorrect certificate (evidence objected to; objection allowed).

The Rey, Mr. Mooney was then called. On being sworn he said ;- My lord, T beg leave, before
Igi evidence in this case to state——

: mﬁimﬁﬁwﬁgﬂu, gir: you are there to answer my questions, and for no other purpose.

Wit 1 only want to say— :

.'-I:. %E:rag-m%u&hmwmfﬁ{l are not there, sir, to make speeches.

Witness—I am not going to make a speech.

Mr. Brewstér—This is my learned friend’'s own wituess !

Mr. Whiteside—Is He? We will see that

Witness—My lord, will I not be allowed——
The Chief Justice—Attend to me, if you please. You are sworn, and your duty is to awswer

such questions as may be put to you. You will have an opportinity of explaining your answers.
Mr. Whiteside—What ara you by proféssion ?—I am a Catholie elergyman, parish priest of the
parish of Kilone, near Rostrevor. :
Do you officiate in the E.mnhdt—I do. e 1
Who is your bishop *—The Right Rev. Dr. Leahy is bishop of the diocesd.
Ta He here in court *~He is. :
Did vou get this letter (produced) from Mrs. Yelverton ?—T did, sir. ;
Did you send the documents in course of post—the certificate amd repilr-y F—T did.
Pray, sir, do you remember the lady who was examined here—Mys. Yelverton '—T'do.
Do you know Major Yelverton ?—I do ?
How lun%ia it since you 'saw Him last?—The last time T saw him was at Edinburgh, some time
in August, 1858, when he was brought béfore me to be'identified. .
Had you seen him before?—1I had. ]
ﬁeﬂap%] before ?—I saw him on the first occasion when he and Mis. Yelverton came before me in
When after that #—1I saw him in a iage at Warrenpoint, with Mr. Denvir, the attorney, in
May or June, 1858, and the next time I eaw 'wis when T identified him.
not Denvir and Major Yelverton come to you ?—No but a brother of Mr. Denvir came the
iight before. It was not in consequence of anything that passed between us that I saw Major
Yelverton. I saw him next day with Mr. Denvir. g Sl
Did you sign any docoment for him >—No,
Did you ever sign & document for Major Yelverton ?—T never did. i
When did you gee him the second time ?—At a hotel. Mr. Denvir was present, and ho on
else, I uigm:c{r nothing there, or nnﬁﬁbe-él!b for the, :
E'mt i::ﬁr t.l;ﬁ:ai;}n tfﬂu saw Mrs, Yelverton 3—It was sorme time previons to Augnat, 18567,
o ; Was.
Did you go with her to the bishop >—I went with her onee. T am not able to say the day.
Didl you'sée the lady who weiit with you'to the bishop and Major Yelverton, on the day of the
Festival of the Assumption, in your chapel?—I did. :
What day was that?—Tt was on a Saturday.
You weré after having High Mass >—No, Low Mass,
Did you expect those two parties *—They appeared before me.
Were you at the altar ?—1 was inside the rails of the altar.
Did they kneel before you P—They did.
Did they consent to be man and wife in your presence }—
Mr, Brewster obijected . :
Mr. Whitéside—Did you adk the man woulll he have the woman to be his wife, and the woman
would she haye the man to be her husband?—I asked first with respest to his religion
H:.r Et{lta:il{mu, i:ira'n {1 wﬂf] ﬂ?om%_ to that presently. (Question vepeated.) Did they agree
11 1o be mi Wwilie P-—1'eB.
# mﬁlﬁ?mﬂucg dtu usage, a piece of money produced ?—I have no knowledge of a piece of
L=l
Was there a ring >—I have no knowledge of seeing a ring, more than that T saw one when I
was giving him a shott exhortation after they had renewed their consent. When I looked down
I saw him having his hand upon her finger,
Putting a ving on her finger >—No,
Did you ever ses 0 ving put on a finger before 3T did, often and often.
Did you pronounce an exhortation and benediotion >—I pronounced no benediction (hisses).
Did you give an exhortation >—T did, before and after.,
Had you conversed with the lady several times before you saw her kneel at the altar that doy?
—1 conversed with her on two previous oceasions, and on the Arst oceasion she told me-~
Coutent yourself with answering my qﬂﬂﬂliﬂhj eir, Did you cnnwln'an with hor ?—I did
Did you ascertain that she was a Toman Oatholic =1 =1i=}i. . i
Dld ﬂhﬂ B0 to ﬂ“l]n'?#ifl!l .:'--—Ti'lﬂ_t 1w ”_ not anawer,
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And you will go no farther :—I say that I do not remember, 3

Do you know Mr, Waldron Burroughs, o magistrate in your neighbourhood p—VYes.”

Did you state in his presence that no trouble could come upon you, for that the two persons
game before you and declared themselves to be Roman Catholics *—I do not remember having
stated that to Mr. Waldron Burroughs.

Did you converse in his presence on the subject *—I do not remember.

Wﬁly_vnu swear you did not #—I have no recollection of having done so.

Suppose he swears you did, would you believe him ?—I would eertainly say I have no recol-
lection of having told L’m (hisses).

Did anybody ever speak to you about a prosecution >—TYes.

Did Mr, Denvir, the attorney F—No, he did not.

Did you ever say to anybody that no prosecution could be taken, as the two persons were
Roman Catholies?

Witness—To any one ?

Mr. Whiteside—Did you say it first 7—I did not say it {o any one that I remember.
But you will not swear you did not #—Not that I remember (hisses).
You sent'that certificate (produced), according to the directions given by Mrs. Yelverton in her
letter :—1 did, but, my lord, neither the certificate nor the letter was written by me (sensation).
Mr. Whiteside—Oh! oh! Were they written by your directions 7—Yes.
%7: whom ?—By my curate, 1

ith your knowledge and consent ?—Yes.
Cross-examined by Mr. Brewster, Q.C.—The fivet time I saw Mr, Yepverton was in Edinburgh.
An officer of the court was sent over for me as a witness for a criminal prosecution. He was
produced before me to be identified. It was before the Procurator-Fiscal. I was examined as 8
:ﬂt:;;m' There was no one present but myself, Mr, Yelverton, the Procurator-Fiscal, and his

Was not Mr, Yelverton then a prisower *—I do not know,

1d you not see the lady in Ireland before you saw Mr. Yelverton at all ?—Yes, \
ia How many days was that before they came to the chapel P—I cannot say the precise number of
¥8. It was not & week, I went with her to the bishop,
When you first saw her did she produce any paper ?—She did not.

]I]):& :gg f:ﬁr ?—Bhe did not produce any to me, She produced no document at all.

tell you she came for the purpose of marriage *—She told me that she had directed
%I{' "iE'h;Lesl & objected. i 3
e Court—It j i ' ' ¢ ot
furvifﬂﬂl]tj# ot ﬁ.:lu:::! hr:::;tl, evidence unless ehe has been interrogated as to it, and that if is brought
r.

rewster—That is my object, my lord,—to contradict her directly. (To the wilness—
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She; told you that the gentleman was a Protestant ?—She did. ;
And alﬁ"ha;"T she told yaug:hnt, you asked him, and he told you that he was a Protestant Catholic ¢

—8he told me—
Btay, sir. Did you not ask him what he was after that? Answer the question.—I beg leave
explain—
i ot until you answer “Yes" or No.” Did you? She told you he was a Protestant ?—Yes,
After that vou asked him what relizion he was of. Is not that the fact #¥—Yes.
Mr. nmwnér_wu not that some days after her statement ;—Yes. i s
Mr. Whiteside—On your oath, did she not, in the presence of the bighop, who is now sitting
listening to you, state that he was n Catholic?—No ; before we went to the bishop she told me he
was a Protestant.
Did she not say to you he was & Catholic in the presence of the bishop?—I never heard her
say he was a Oatholic until she said so in the m&encn of the bishop (hisses).
The witness was about leaving the box, whe
Mr. Whitesaide said—Stay, sir; you are dtm:%varjr well (laughter). In the presence of the
bishop she told you he was a éut.hﬂhc, and the bishop gave you authority to marry them. On
your solemn oath, sir, did he not?—He said——- :
~ On your oath, sir, did he not 7—He Ignr&-me authority to renew (hisses)
O Whi i

teside—
Scotland .
Does not this certificate from under your hands contain the words, ““legitime matrimonio ?*'—
The words are in the certificate. Am I not, my lord, at liberty to explain why I gave it ?
Mr. Whiteside—The-fact is evidence—your motives are not _ o
Witness—1I insist on my right to explamn -
Mr. Whiteside—I object to any gentleman in the church or out of it, priest or anybody else,
trjriig to explain away the effect of a solemn document, by stating his motives
r. Brewster—That 18 from firat to” last what has been done in this case; Mrs, Yelverton
spending hours explaining away her own letters
Mr. gergeant ullivan—Deing so in reply to you
Mr. Whiteside—She said nothing of her motives in writing them
The Chief Justice—The witness is at liberty to explain the words he used, but not his motives
Mr. Brewster—The lady got greater latit &
Mr. Whiteside—I deny that ; ;
Thﬂll (E:m-f Justice—Probably the witness will say he only wrote it in eonsequence of getting the
lady’s letter : J 1
‘Witness—That is the fac mizgrﬂ
Mr. Sergeant SBullivan—You had no right to give an answer when the question was objeeted to
Witness—I ha&ﬁm’ pardon, sir
Mr. Bergeant ivan—~So you ought
- The Chief Justice—He has done so, Sergeant (laughter)
ﬁ:- ﬂ'ﬂfh * E Eeﬂlzﬁln'—fﬂ, ﬁlﬁ lord, f:i]l.lm hlﬁa object was gained
. side ess)—Did you e Bishop that you got the £107?—I did
When ?—I cannot say whgn, pmaf;al}' % ; s
%:», Whtmiiﬂ;ghat will ‘ﬂh, ﬁﬂ i 1
. Bergeant Armstrong—My the witness wishes to make some explanation
The Chief Justice—Is it as to 'w]g}he did not give the Bishop the £ lﬁp (laughter)
Mr, Whiteside—Only £5, my lord ; £5 we say was the Bishop's share (renewed laughier)
The Chief Justice—Well, Mr, Mooney, what do you desire to say
Witness—I anu‘tha uar_tlﬁmm‘l.my lord, to prove that she was validly married, and that the
¢hild might be baptized legitimately, and that is the reason. But if T had known that it would be
used for any other purpose than the Purpuna for which I gave it—to satisfy the foreign priest whe
would have to buptize the ¢hild—if I thought it would be used for the present purpose, I sould
eut off this right hand sooner than have given it (laughter)

Mr. Whiteside—Before you go, answer me this question, siri—Are priests of the Roman

o marry them ?—No; ‘to renew the comsent to marry previously givenm in

“Catholic Church in the habit of giving false certificates under their hands ?

Witness—No
Mr. Whiteside—You may go down
The witness withdrew amid hisses from the ocoupants of the gallery, and the court adjourned.
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Mr, Ball, Q.C., objected to the question, and it was overruled by the court. His lordship
aaid it would be for him and the jury to ﬂPElj" the law.

Examination resumed—Subsequent acknowledgment of a prior consent in Scotland is
unquestionably evidence of the marriage; it is not necessary that a particular prior con-
sent should be established ; my explanation is, that a particular course of eonduct and a
series of letters between the parties would justify a Scotch court and a jury in inferring a

m -

Tuﬁ Court—It two parties agreed to live together in a state of concubinage, with an
understanding that they would pass as man and wife, but that the woman should in reality
be only the m%aterass of the man, that would not constitute a valid marriage.

Mr. Whiteside—But the immeral agreement must be proved, not inferred.

Cross-examined by Dr. Ball—There are three modes of constituting an irregular marriage
in Seotland—habit and repute, promise followed by copula, and acknowledgment per verba
de presenti. The latter, without a third person present, will undoubtedly constitute a valid

PROPOSALS OF MARRIAGE CONBIDE RED.

marriage, It will not do if it is proved that the parti iberate i

_ parties had not a deliberate intention not

E:; marry, but used the ceremony as a gover for another purpose ; such has been held not to

be. :1'-1 marriage ; if it i3 done with the intent of marrying, that consent would constitute a
— ¢.—Are you aware that that is contrary to the opinion of SirJ, Campbell as ex-

};id ;D in the Dalrymple case ?—I am; but I know there is a good deal of questionable law

the uu:’;lilﬁeﬁitgljﬁlﬂat{—&r; i{m aware that it has been laid down by the House of Lords,in

I T
EElltl.!il.t o mﬂ'l'ﬁquﬁ? eamish, that ander the common law there must be a third person pre-
m“’i{’? EEE,[?:“I ivan—What they are reported to have decided is, that a clergyman cannot
i

‘ iness—Most lawyers are of opinion th i
riage, and ssme are of the ::untmrypnpiniun.“ e BT esiengation. of e
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THE DEFENCE,

. Brewster, Q.C., then proceeded to address thejury for the defendant. He said—May
it ﬁzsu Wﬂl‘*lﬁl‘ﬂ%ﬂi  and 1::llt.'harl:uem of the jury, I have new to perform the duty of iaying
-bﬁm'a you the case of the defendant, and I dare say you will be rejoiced to hear that it is
nob my intention to occupy yeur attention at any great length. The matters, in truth, to
whieh your attention will have to be directed are but few indeed—I mean the exact points,
although no doubt there is a ,fmat bedy of evidence to bear upon them. In dealing with
this case, gentlemen, which is, LILLET
most extraordi that ever came before a court of justice, 1 cannot but feel that
the prepossessions of yourselves as well as these of the audience would in all
cases be in favour of the woman and against the man. I would be extremely sorry
that it were otherwise, I have mo doubt it will alwaysbe so, and I am fully conscious of the

vantages under which the advocate of any man must labour before a cpurt of justice to
.ﬁt:gd him under cireumstanees such as those in which my client is placed. Gentlemen, I
never conceal from myself, nor do I ever astempt to conceal from others, the opimions
I entertain in reference to any matter whatever, and I make it a rule, which I shall
adhere to for, perhaps, the wvery short time I will be perferming my part on the
stage, mever to lay down a proposition in public, either upon fact or morals, that I do not
entertain in private. I don's sell myself for money. Gentlemen, I, in this case—disastrous
as it must ba to either party, whetlier it succeeds or fails—I am particularly under the
obligation T have stated. I cannot imagine Emgl:hing- more erroneous, if you will excuse
me for saying it, in reference to the real truth of the matier, than if you look upon this case
as a case between Mrs. Yelverton and Major Yelverton. To think so iz absurd, ridienlons
nonsense. Mr. Thelwall is a mere stalking horse for, 1 admi, a perfect legitimate wq&a.
You are not to understand me as naal;ln% the slightest imputation on him. He put
himself forward as the champion of Mrs. Yelverton, which gives her an advantage such as
no ever had before in a court of jnstice. Iwould begin by directing your attention to
the difference in the case o to the way it comes belore you. Gentlemen, if she had
been a party herself in a case,she could noi, in the present state of the law, have been
examined as g witness. The law does not allow a woman to briag an action against her
husband, and therefore in this case she is constituted a witness, insiead of being party and
witness. Ifshe had been party and witness it would not have been necessary for me to put
a single letter of all ufp those she had wriften into her hands, nor would it have
been competent for her to have offered explanations as to any of them. But being
a witness technically, she was enabled to have the letfers placed in her hands, -
partienlarly she had the epportunity of telling you what she meant by the expressions used
in the letters. Now, with respeet to the letters, the whole of her long cross-examination
had bat one objeet and one motive, and that was, if possible, to place before you the relative
condition and position of these two parties, how they were circumstanced to each other
hefore any of the events took place upon which an adjudication is now to be cometo. I
think I will have the sanction of his lordship in tellisg you that if there was clear, precise
and positive legal evidence in reference te the transactions that occurred, or are allege
to have occurred, in Edinburgh, in April, 1857, it would have beem unmecessary to
do mere in the case. If it were perfectly clear that, on the 1ith of August, 1847,
Major and Mrs. Yelverton were Roman Catholics, and that on that day the Rev. Mr. Mooney
Joined them in hely wedlock according tothe rites of the Roman Catholic Church, there
wonld be no further question in the case; but, as the evidence on thesd points is by no means
clear or satisfuctory, as these things ave—as I hope to be able to satisfy yon they are—in
tha:graate;a_t possible doubt, it was neeessary to bring before youn the previous circumstances
of the parties, in order to account for what happened, and in order to present to yon a
solution of the ecase. It was for that purpose anly she wns examined with respect to the
letters.  And now, as to herself, I wish to say that, with the exeeption of the absolute, indis-
pensable, inevitable nemaattg.ff am under, in treating of her credit as a witness, 1 do not
mean to say a single word of her in general disparagement. Gentlemen, I mean to present
her te yon as she presented herself to us all. 1 mean, in calling attention to her position
and circumsiances, not to add anything to her lanfuagq, but endeavour to put together the
account she has given of herselfl from time to time in her own letters.  Of course, gentleman,
everybody must see that she Is a woman of most extraordinary talents—perhaps of greater
talent than yowu ever hiad an opportunity of seeing before. Fory part, I never saw her like.
But she is more than a woman of talent—she is a woman who has ]?a.d that talent eultivated
to the highest possible piteh, Whether or not it has been cultivated in the best schoal is a
1““10;! everybody must determing for himself upon a consideration of what she has
under her own hand. I presume from the noises that I heard from time to time during the
progress of this trial, and from none more than my young friends behind me (the junior bar
that if she should be disappointed on this occasion she will not be disappointed long ; for,

perhaps, one of the most interesting, as well as one of the
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I don’t mistake, no person since the beginning of time has ever enlisted a greater numker
of ardent sympathisers and admirers, and I am not sure, when we come to consider the
nature of the case, that the very best thing for her, in every respeet but ome, would be that
she were dissevered from Yelverton. In saying that, dor't suppose I overlook the great mo-
tive with which she comes here—the motive beyond all motives in the breast of a
woman who comes here to assert her virtue and honour. There is no doubt that
that is, in her eyes, the motive above all others, although her success will ruin him
. utterly and entirely extinguish him, and so far ruin herself, for every weman must fall
with her husband. Let no one suppose that I blame ber. 1tis natural, it is laudable, and
the only censideration in the case is whether she is not prepared to go a little further than
she ought to maintain the first principle of her life. Gentlemen, if she had no consideration
of that kind, the greatest mercy that could be conferred on her would be that she were free,
and entirely free from the defendant. That she became attached to him I must endeavour
to prove was her own act, and, notwithstanding my un 1 to say one harsh or
disagreeable word, I must also say, her own fault. Gentlemen, it I den't take this case,
he was not the wooer from the beginning. If I don't mistake this case, the defendant
frequently, constantly, and determinedly endeavoured to aveid her. It appears te me that
her determination was clear to pursue him to the last. The best metion I can form of the
case, from the letter under her own hand, is that she was determiued to pursue him to the
last. I may be wrong in that. It is fer you to consider and decide upon it. 1t is only
material in one view, namely to what lengths she was prepared to go to attain that object,
and what you may expect when she attained it. In the first instance she has given under
her own hand a sufficient indication of what was her leading principle. We have her own
representations at a time when she; had no motive whatever to misrepresent herself—that
she was a woman of determination, the. like of which was never seen—a woman who,
having determined upon doing a thing, weuld accomplish it, whether by legitimate means is
quite another question. Can any larguage be stronger than that in which she describes
herself in a letter at the beginning of the intimacy between herself and Yelverton? * The
strongest and most prominent part of my character,” she writes, **is extreme tenacity of
P e ; no obstacles daunt, no sacrifice aipﬂs me, no means, however trivial, escape me,
struﬁgla only augments my courage when animated by one idea.” In the progress of
the case I venture to think yeu will come to the conclusion, that if ever a woman enter-
tained a purpose with all her heart, and soul, and strength, this lady entertained the purpose
of uniting herself to Yelverton. Gentlemen, don't misunderstand me ; I am far from saying
her original purpose, long continued and persevered in, was net to unite herself to him as
his lawful wife. I admit that that may have been what she wished; but it will be a questien
to be considered whether she did net wind herself up to a sort of craze and frenzy that
would make her stop at nothing for the purpose of obtaining her object. She has given us
light into her character in many other Emieuiars; and it is enough for me to call atten-
tion to some of the descriptions that she has given of herself. I undoubtedly was very
much surprised at many things that toek place in the progress of this case. She
was described in the opening statement of my friend, Sergeant Sullivan, as a woman
of great piety and strictmess in respect to her religious epinicns, and that this was
a circumstance which must be taken into account in considering some portions of
the case. . He told you that in consequence of that you were to believe that some
strange circumstances were not so strange, bearing in mind that such were her
principles. Gentlemen, I was not, therefore, at all surprised when I read twice ever
in one of these letters the awful description she gives of her father. If any one sup-
oses that I read these letters to her for the purpofe of annoying her, he does me wrong.
read them for a very different purpose. e first of them was written when he was
suffering under his last illness, and when she was on her way to join him. The second of
them was written, I might almest say, as he was lying dead; and it is a letter which
struck me as ome of greater ability than any other portion of her corresporndence, though
by no means of se great beauty. It is the ome im which, after her description of the
dm atheist, she indulges in an amount of coolness and of humorous description,
which, under the circumstances, was calculated to make one’s blood curdle [t is that
in which she gives a description of thg lawyers, with wool on their heads, evincing
extraerdinary powers of humour and t#lent for description; but for a Woman, an
educated, piens woman, to sit down at such a moment, and write such a letter, entirely
PASSEE MY cumErehenaiun: but, moreover, that she should have written it to & man that she
had never seen but once in her life before, and whom she had met under cireumstances which
in real life not unfrequently occur, must ﬁreaﬂy surprise any one. But, gentlemen, I cannot
believe myself that any man, having that letter in his pocket, would ever think of the writer
of it as his wife. I may admit, though, that if a man were about forming a connection not
50 Eura and so holy—if he were not going tohave a companion to comfort him in sickness,
and be a joy to him in health—if he were only g;:ins to get a companion for lighter moments,
that letter would only have the influence of making him think that he had a good chance of
getting the person who wrote it to be his mistress, not to be his wife. But, be thatas it may,
1t was one of the earliest communications she made to him. I am endeavouring, as well as
can, to put before you the characters of these people. I forbear to read the letter in full—
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't oan forget it, becanse it is one of the most striking documents thnf.
gﬁ:ﬂg “ih;: n?::'{ E;n:iﬂ;man's IJE‘.II!.‘]. Gentlemen, faney a child, and that child a dnughtﬁ! ;
writing thus of the parent who, with her notions, she must have looked on as having gone to :da.

eat acoount in a terrible frame of mind. Iam told she was brought here yesterday—an :
most deeply lament it—for the purpose of making what she called an amende to the memory
of her father. Gentlemen, ] am sorry that she made that amende, and I am sorry for t%]m
unds on which she put it. Iam told she said that the letter was written before she

ad so much experience of the world as she has now, but that she had just learned that
many good and virtuous men were atheists and infidels. Iam sorry for it. I don’t wun}: to
go into any discussien on any tapic connected wy:h our hopes hereafter. .ﬁ:ll I will say is,
that I had rather she remained in the frame of mind in which she was previously, and my
only wish is that she should not have written a light, frivolous, clever, witty, humorens
letter while her father was lying dead. Gentlemen, that there is a mixture—l use no
stromger term—of vivacity in her character, without which, in fact, she could :er be what
she is, she also has told us. She says in an, early part ef her correspondence, ““It is just

THE AFTERNOON STROLL.

possible that Alcide may throw up his civil and take a military position. In that case I
would have a wish to go with him. I had some thoughts of devoting myself to humanity as
a sister of charity. I think it is a sort of vagabond life that weuld suit me; but a vivan-
diere, I think, would be a little more exciting.” Gentlemen, you all know what a vivan-
diere i, and she gives a most graphic aceount of what her appearance would be, and no
doubt it would have been extremely charming, with a little harrel round her meck, and
marching at the head of a regiment with short petticoats and red stockings, which
are worn by the young womern who usually march at the head of the French
regiments. Yon heard a good deal, in the progress of the case, of a gentlcman
of the name of Roe, who™ happened to be a friend fof Yelverton. In reference
to this gentleman she makes a"statement,” which, considering she was making it to a man,'T
confess did surprise me. First, she beging by saying, * I wish Mr. Roe;would come here.

have yet n+hlg rother to talr:ﬂ care of me.” 'Then, reverting back to Roe, she says,;'* he was
very amusing, and kept me in a nervous fever all the time he remained in Naples, and if 1
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' i that any such thing could represent the reat secret.
;I;ﬂglﬂ;ﬁﬂ:lﬁ ?;-rf E:t ?:n:ﬂ?ahe wanted to pursue him, that he had wrmﬁ ma'ﬁ i‘l:::
her affections in such a way that on the {iﬁt teﬂn 1:'%1-.1:? of tl;::{: ﬁ%ﬂﬁ:ﬁﬁ Lo et
logt body and soul to him—that it was all for the sake ol carry : ket
have indulged in for two or three years. I have not re yo
%&gﬁg; 1;? gﬁrgzrts%ﬂal appe.mf:ue., because [ am persuaded if I'did there would be an E];:-
clamation against my availing mvself of the opportunity of attempting to lower hali mmre
‘estimation of her admirers, which I could not do; for anything so modest as she is in reter-
ence to her own personal charms I never read. She relies, w tl}-_ great wisdom, not npon
her personal charms, but upon what was “within the caske Such was the w]tiﬂl;lm.
and now what was the man? He was an officer in the armru-rugngi cannot E:]'lﬂ]" ;r n;t“
good-looking or not, for I have never seen him; but I take it granted that he m
not be bad-looking, for if he was bad-looking, a lady with such good taste as she has would
not have beem captivated by him. That he was notat all scrupuleus in reference to ladies
no person can venture to doubt, and that she was not ignorant of that circumstance;
and she, therefore, must have known that there was (I will put it as delicately as her
warmest admirers can desire) some risk in her commerce with him, There are reasons
which prevent me from entering into any enlargement whatever apon that subject. 1 mean
only to deal with the facts, and the relationship of those parties towards each other. Letno
man suppose I deny he used her badly; but, gentlemen, though he did use her badly, that is
no reason she is to be his wife. If she Is his wife, you have noth urg to do bat say so; but
the circumstance that he used her badly should net have any influence in the question,
which is, is she his wife? That circumstance might be of importance if she came here to
seek for chmﬂfes for a breach of promise of m ; but it is a different question we are
ing now. In reference to the law of marr 1 do not mean now to address the court ;
ﬁ with to Mr. Luncaster's evidence, I think he hasnot stated correctly the law ot
Scotland. It is a subject upon which every man in this ¢ountry must feel the greatest doubt.
It has my lot to hear the greatest ernaments of the Scottish bar give conflicting
in reforence to it; bat the present is the first ¢ase in which I ever saw a person
yught over to prove the law of Seotland, who was an advocate acting at the tifhe for one

0 : in the canse; and all I will say is, that all the money that ever wis coine
wrmmt me to EFO to Seotland to ﬁmﬁ'tgqlﬁt?ir-lm in which I was an advoca
is a necegsary part of the _ e : L
y 5 and Eh‘mﬁﬂ‘heﬁ%ﬁﬁnedm& . !IIJI eside), you
direct inspiration has descended u m, as Torth LHBBPAe g
animation ot a %ﬁhanm'l, and i!];Pﬁrs lat and fact to you. That s the seerat of his power,
and he will not (il to use it. It is a‘oase calculated to draw forth his powers. A beautifal
woman i8 his client—he has everything to exoite and stir him o more than ordinary
exertions—a case in which no one can fail, and ﬁﬂn‘iﬂh he wﬂ],,ﬁm-‘bhmhm successful
1 lte ever was in the whole course of B& . You must ared for it, and to
I fur as it does notmeet your sen what is just and right; bat I have no doubt
you will » {tin so far as he will lay down propositions and teuisms which, when
clethed in wm will appear to be brilliant and new ideas, and will ﬁnm
and delight invigorate evetybody. It is inevitable that it should be so; but what
‘would my learnied friend say if'he ‘himself in the witness box abeut to give evidence
‘ot TRk Gts wivantageiof Dol LY Whroo YEurs ut thban Witk waabics. him, withoa:
or tie advan . three at A enables , withou
much danger to his mpm&gh to give ’lﬁ“:ﬁlit and vein to hise views. I say
this, Because we will prodace another Scoteh lawyer, aud, if T don’t mistake, he will contra-
diet the impoftant portions of Mr Lancaster's evidence, I will now proeeed with a
short eutline of the cass, h%ﬂ&at the beginning. These two young persons met
on a sumwmer evening on the of & steamer in the harbeur of Boulogne. She said
he had ladies with him, and another gentleman; but, if I am instructed rightly, she
is entirely mistaken in that. Her sister, by a fortunate accident, or a mest unfortunate one,
flung a shawl to her from the quay, which Major Yelverton, as any gentleman might do,
picked up and placed on her shoulders, and thus the acquaintanceship began. The might
wore dn ; it was warm, and these two, at all events, preferred sitting all night on the deck,
and that plaid, which seems to be the author of all the subsequent misfortumes, was brought
up from the cabin in order to make atemporary shelter by being spread over her knees and
ose of Yelverton, I make no observation on that. I don't Know whether it is customary
for ladies whoe have never seen a certain gentleman before, especially if he be young and
apparently gallant, to sit under the same plaid (certainly only over their knees), and #o
spend the whole livelong night in that manner. Hhke says that when they came to London
he got o cab for her, and sent her home, she leaving her address, I am instructed
that that is not a correct aceeunt of what occurred. I am instructed that be had no ladies
with him en board to take care of ; that he was what is called a ¢ loose fish,” travelling by
himself; that he did got a cab and got into it with her, and drove to the place he supposed
to he her lﬂdg‘h:gx, there dressed himself, and that he spent some time there.  Don't misun-
derstand me. Don’t suppose that [ mean to convey that the slightest impropriety oceurred
on that occasion. Far from it. Itisthe beginuing, however, of the acquaimtance, and
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the whole sequaintance of a personal nature that ever occurred beiween them from
the summer of 1852 down to 1835, when they were together for about an hour at
Galeta. A sheaf of letters passed upon the strength of that acquaistance with
the man of whom she could know no more than what she saw upon that occasion.
During the time the correspondence continued she saw as much life as most people. One
can scarcely imagine more curious scenes than she detailed. In the first place there was the
danger.of getting into a scrape with Mr. Roe, and then there was the incident with the two
Itslian noblemen who were guinﬁ to fight about her. She says she did flirt with Roe, like
Topsy, because she was so wicked. That is perfectly innocent and good fun. But she must
have been perfectly heart-whole, though no doubt she wished to exercise that magnetic
influence and odic force against Yelverton. She sent him invitations to come to her, but he
always took care that the steamer shonld not be convenient for the purpose. When this
trial, which, from the interest it has excited, will go in a perfect form to all ends of the
earth, is read by the Cardinal, if he is still alive, what will he say when he reads how she
showed him the pocket pistols, and announced to him that rather than go into a convent she
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THE CALRIAGE DRIVE AT GIANT'S CAUSEWATY.

would put the contents of them through him—hew he fled, though assured by her theére was
no danger, because the pistols were notcapped. There is one thing certain, namely, that she
had the lowest possible opinien of the caurage of the Italians. In March, 1854, he wrote to
her stating that he would call to see her at Naples on her way home. But he did
not, and after a time she went to Rome. The Kussian war broke out, and Yelverton
joined the forces and went to the Crimea. It was plain that from the moment she
neard he went to the Crimes, she determined to go out there, whether solely from a desire
to become a Sister of Charity it was not for him (Mr. Brewster) to say. He returned to
England for promotion; whiie at Alderney he received a letter from her asking to see him
nn %\is way out, and he did see her at Constantinople, The interview lasted about an hour,
and she described it in her letter as the interview while he was sitting in her divan. He
(Mr. Brewster) was forced by his duty to ask iier what passed at that interview, and her
account of it might be stated in two sentences—that he proposed marriage to her, and that
she accepted the offer, and thenceforward she said they were fiance to each other. Now, if
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thie correspondence hefors the interview was remarkable for being more free than is usual
between strangers, the subsequent caerrespondence was ten times more remarkable in being
as unlike what would pass between two persons mutually engaged to each other, to enter
into the most sacred relations ef lite together. His (M. Brewster’s) eredulity was great, but
there were some things which he could mot believe. It was contrary to nature that
any man who asked a woman to be his wife would write to that woman one line
or nse one word that would have the slightest tendency to lower her in. her own es-
timation. Buat while that was so, it was equally unnatural that he would never
by any accident drop an expression calenlated fo _ShD‘ﬂ_i" that they were in the posi-
tion of engaged parties. One wounld have supposed, if this engagement had taken place,
that the defendant, who was with the army in the Crimea, sharing in the dangers of the
terrible scenes there enacting, would have, in some of his letters to the woman who was to
be his wife, referred to the hafpius in store for him if he escaped with his life. Strange to
say, not one single word of the kind oceurred in any of Yelverton's letters—and, stranger
still, there was not a word in any of the letters that appeared to him (Mr. Brewster) by any
just interpretation to refer to a marriage engagement. In the face of the correspondence it
would be nothing less than a miracle if an engagement existed. But he was instrweted to
say that it was utterly and abselutely unirue that any marriage engagement was entered
into, or that the word * marriage” was mentioned at all doring that interview at Galata.
The first letter to be referred to after that interview was this:.—
“ Dear Carlo—I know it is not your fault, but I am in the most frightful dilemma. That
- note, care of Major Chirnside, has been opened and read—scandalous tongues have coupled
our names together, and made the very worst of it—so far that some one wrote to the
superieure to warn her, 1 am nearly crazy; it takes so little to dash one’s fair fame, and
yet what harm have I done ? Both my sister and my brether (not Alcide) "knew of my cor-
respondence with you, and everytling that has ever passed between us; and if it had been
wmng they certainly would have disapproved. Ob, if my dear Sara were only here, she
would soen put a stop to i, She would very soon make Bellamy shoot any one who dared
to say & word against me. What a foolish thing to trust myselfin a place without a friend,
without a ereature to care for me " .

Was that the letter of a woman engaged to.be married to the man she was writing to ?
Would an anga‘gatf woman talk of her “ag.ﬂir fame " in that manner to her future husband?
And now for his reply :— ! ;

“ Carrissima Terésa mia—I'm so sorry you are in a dilemma, if you dislike it, but I've
heen in one ever since I can recollect. Ifyou can find ount one of the male sex who calls
iglmsdf & gentleman, and who_has given you any pain by any conjunction of our names,
I'll make a point of getting leave to go down and fight him, as we are quite idle in that
way here. I had received, one note 'Ehﬂat had been in the care of Major Chirnside when I
went off to the ship. Did fcm write two? I fancy you could not have made any very dread-
ful disclosures in the one supposed to have been violated. As I conceive it wouald be guite
an impossibility to define our indefinable relative positions, I see nothing you can do better
than ask who wrote to the superienre, and demand explanation from that individpal; it
anonymous it can safely be freated with contempt. I do not profess to be a good guide as
to right and wrong, as go called in the parlance of a scandalous society, but I will-break a
lance or argue with [part of letter cut out here] any reasonable individual—upholding
;gainn all comers or challengers that you and I (as concerns yomn) haye done no wroong.

till, ifthere be that in your position that causges these lies to give you more pain than
Ei' cessation of our correspondence, I say with pain, [cut.out.]
Neither dilemma nor puzzle was ever soomner solved by haste or force, always excepting
the Alexandrian solution. I am very sorry yon have been ill too. I hope your recovery
has been as speedy as mine. I am only now suffering from idleness. Why try the winter
at Comstantinople, if you do not feel strong? How I envy your brother in Australia,
from your description! I think I must end on the Rocky Mountains I never shall get re-

spectable and [ent ont] enough for this very old state of society. I am really very
sorry for it, but amendment on that point won't come; so don’t trust me more than is the due
of, 1 hope, a chivalrous savage.—Addio i CARLO.

' Write soon, write boldly, all you think or feel.”
Again, he (Mr, hmwsterj asked, coulil the jury believe that that was the latter of an engaged
hl]:“ writing to the woman he was to be married to? Passing one or two letters, merely stating
that, for a period of five months, Yelverton never wrote at all to the lady, a letter was now to
be read which was of the greatest importance in the case. It was a letter which the jury could
]’fi"t by possibility believe was written by a man to a woman with whom he contemplated mar-
u: e‘-t He did not Justify Major Yelverton for writing this letter. No such thing, But he
pr 1t was o letter, the import of which could not be mistaken by any woman, much less by
be:f intcli:gmt, and who possessed such Envmrs of understanding language as this lady.
Rt “: e was first asked what she understood by the letter he (Mr. Brewster) was about to
i ¢ answered that she did not understand it; afterwards she attempted an explanation,
¢ Jury would remember what that explanation was. He writes as follows :—
PO 3 : * December 10th,
4 Lleresn mis,—You are discontented, and cannot minister to your coatent, You've
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written. He did not deny that it was contemplated, and perhaps arranged, that they should
Hgﬁgﬂen toa uerminj:;rtam- The nature of that connection was to be determined upon
. went on :— 3

m‘?v‘rf:il ;z’u. ;Flﬁﬂ Eﬁilﬁfﬁw of this I know ; but I wantte ask you, Carlo mio, in the
name of the few, short, happy hours we hava spent together, to make me tha_ confidapt of
vour thonghts, as you would were I assez newrcuse to be near unnuﬁ'h to read in your heart.
Tienyou have appeared to be frank enough, and thedelight of sympatby is to share everything,

ood or bad ; and as I know the length, depth, and breadth of yovr wickedness now, you need
Eaﬁ-ug foar nf losing my good opinion—eomprenez vous #  To-day I have been running about,
and have found the benk of vialettes you were sighing for the other night, entirely closed in by
verdure ; it overhangs the sea, impervions to human eye or ear; only the nightingaleabove
wmdﬁ-_mﬁludiw onr thoughts, too deep and sacred for mortal words to tell. I send you some of
the violettes, charged with much that you might claim, if in their native bower; ne quanto fli.di
Aa il mare im tanio baci arvesti viene tortto a prato, 1 cannot at all imagine by what strange
transaction you have armved at your present state of feeling tﬂWﬂr:l!!. me. It is the very last
that I should ever have contemplated, inspiring and so opposite to my idealisation of you. Th'e

limpse you had of me four years ago co d not have produced such an effect; or supposing it
Eid so, it must have long since died a natural death. Our correspondence oucht to have
generated in you, as in me, esteem, admiration, affectionate trust and confidence, ui-_’eﬂued
ethereal love —a love to live or to die for—a little Platonic at first, but finally becoming the
elixir par excellence of life. You might be im love with a Twrkess, instead of an over
sniritualised Englishwoman. I conld easily comprehend that great external attractions might
haye operated on your sense of the: beautiful, &e.; aud being of an inflammable temperament
‘which, in spite of your apparent ¢ s and stoicism, I think you must be), you might take
ﬁrv._ But Nature has not endowed me with a single physical beauty caleulated to excite such
sentiment. I have not a feature thag will bear inspection—no eyes, but when the soul speaks
through them ; and no one conld ever logk at me a secong time, were it not for the contents,
not the casket itself. On this I rely, not euly to gain (if I have a chance), but to keep your
affections. However, by this time have no doubt come to your more sober senses, and 1
must forgive you your madness and folly this time, aye, a thousand times, if necessary, but you
must, you wi!l eventually, become all part’s desire. " i i

He paused there to ask again, was that the iage of awoman who was engaged to the

man she was writing to? If ever there was a pe in which reserve should be maintained
between parties, it was the interval that elapsrd between thie acceptance and the celebration of
ma

rriage. Waathe age in which the ladyv referred to the *“scene” on the steamboat the
lmgu.mein.hmauﬂ aged woman ! She tells Yelverton that she knew ‘‘ the length,
' Mm#hhnmw." She tells him of the violet bank for which he sighed the

‘night—she tells bim to come atonee, and that as many ““waves as had the sea there were
kisses for him.” The point he (Mr. Brewster) was endeavouring to prove was—that there had
been mo agreement to marry between the parties at this time. He coneeived that the jury
should came to the comeclusion; om: that lettér, that there was ; and if they came to that

they would then ask themselves what credit; they could attach to the t - of
the who swore there was. Contemporaneous with these transactions Yelverton received a
letter from Mrs. hm tioh he answered. That letter had come into Mrs. Yelverton's
hands, What it contained might be surmised, considering that the writer s y disap-
proved of the connexion between ber sister and this gentleman, Ifitoontained a word.
it would have been produced, and its non-production was a. matter for the consideration of
jury. Nod : :uﬁ’ promised to go to Belbec to sea her. The explanation she
gave was, that his p _ M to marry her, and that Bishop Bore, to whom she had
told melg:tbﬁ? willing to rate a seeret marriage between them, so that they would
be united and aattfl_ at liberty. All this occurred at the time the letter to which he was
about to refer was written. These letteYs had all been produced as a preliminary step in the
Seotch canse, now in progress. The parties were compelled on oath to bring in all the letters
in their possession, and Mrs. Yelverton had accordingly lodged a number of letters; but the
most important of them, namely, those that were written about the time of which he was
now speaking, were not forthcoming. One letter written at this period was, indeed, pro-
duced, bat it bad been mutilated, ‘Ihe most important half of it was missing, and the half
which was produced commenced with these words—* Without offending you by a word you
ot hear, and propriety’s false tongue will be struck dumb by the majesty of trath,”
Whetker or not that referred to the letter of Mrs, Bellamy it was impossible te say, but if
that lady bad written to him, complaining of his condunct, and ifhe had written to Mrs.
Yelverton, teiling her the answer he returned, those words would be a most appesite con-
olusion to what e might have said. The letter contained this very significant passage—** I
cannot connsel you to wait for me if any opportunity should offer which you may wish
to E-g:hmm for 1 fear my self-command, when we do meet, will almost annoy you as
much as my want of it when we last met did then.’ For a man to write s letter of
th;ju kind to his betrothed wife passed all human camprehengion. He referred to something
whieb had happened when he had lost his self command, and then he procesded to put
“iﬁ“ her a most flagrant insult. He could net imagine a woman receiving sush a letter
without experiencing most lively foelings of indignation. He was not instrueted to say
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more than that or the oecasion referred to in this letter the defendant had offered a ver
great insult to this lady—a grievous insult to an unmarried woman, and what no man wn,ﬁ
a spark of propriety would have offered to the woman he intended to make his wife, but
which mauny, teo many, would offer to a woman of great attractions with whom they did
not mean to form a lawful connection. In her reply to that letter she truly called it a
* cruel, ferocious piece of diction,” and she then went on to say—‘If you can't manage
any reality that you are always harping about, shall we go back to the ideal ?” She said, on
cross-examination, that this meant the reality of marriage; but what stood in the way of
that reality 7 Major Yelverten could have had it at any time he wished; and therefore
he submitted that was not the reality to which she referred. Major Yelverton at this
tilfie resolved that he would run ne further risk in coming into that ** dangerous proximity
of which she spoke with this fascinating woman ; and although he had promised to visit her at
Belbec, hechanged his ronteand came home by Vienna, inorder to avoid her, The letterin which
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he announced this change of plan to her wasnot like the letter of a man engaged to be mar-
ried ; and it was followed by a letter so ?‘lmu as to admit of no controversy or mistake. This
was the letter written from his father’s house at Miltown, in which he detailed the figurative
colloquy between the “ brain'" and * gelf.” The learned counsel made some very pointed
comments on this letter, dwelling strongly on the fact that it contained no reference to a
marriage, which would naturally have been mentioned if the lady's explanation of the matter
were correct. In Mrs. Yelverton's reply she said—* You ask me to write what I wish. Have
I not expressed to you that I had but one wish—that if yonu would gratify that one 1
would never trouble you to all time and eternity with another, ‘only to see you
once.'” This letter evidently referred to an occasion on which he told {Er there was
one thing that was never to be mentioned between them, and that was marriage.
She went on to say, ' Perbaps, now you will repromch me with expressing too
much what I feel. It would be qguite as consistent as your complaining of my want of
magnetic attraction when in the Crimea. Itis useless to tell you what attracted me to the
Crimea at the risk of being frozen to death. It is to mo Hurlpmm recapitulating what
patural instinct peinted out to me your little hut—how inspirit 1 begged and prayed to be
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let in for mercy sake, . for pity sake; no, you were invulnerable for al whole fortnight, you

r?asistaﬂ the smjz;.ﬂ plnintivg vﬁiue, and you must recollect, Carlo mio, that one sad morning,

forcibly withdrawing your hand from me when my heart was bursting with love

and grief, and the touch of that hand was my nn{i{y strength th]:uugh that fearful trial, when,

with one fell swoop, you tora down the cherished dream of my lite—did I murmur at my

fate whilst your love sustained me, but when you threatened, and punished me in the most

cruel manner—oh, Carlo mio, there is no use of thinking of all this; no use telling you, yon
know it all, and would at any time repeat it, and had you done ten times as bad I shoald

forgive you, for I cannot be angry or cease to love you for a mipute.” It was a most

tonching letter; no one was better entitled to sympathy and to pity than the writer of it

hut he submitted that it was quite ingonsistent with Yelverton having engaged himself to

marry her. After this she came to England, and went to live with her sister, the lady who

had received a letter from Yelverton that was so deeply grieving to her. Was it conceivable
that Mrs. Ballamy, who entertained an unfavourable opinion of Yelverton, would not have
shown that letter to her sister with a view to disenchant her, and cure her of a passion that

bad been misplaced? Mrs. Yelverton, however, said that she did not see this letter until a

much later period; aad in considering what credit she was entitled to, the jury would take
this as well as other matters into consideration. He then came to her visit to Edinburgh, when
Major Yelvertan was stationed at Leith. She wasnot invited by him to come there ; but when
she did come, and apprised him of her arrival, they saw one another f’reqémntlf, and resnmed
their habits of former interecourse. Her story was, that while in Edinburgh, she being an
earnest Catholic, and he a professing one, he took up the Protestant prayer-book on one ocea-
sion and read over the marriage ceremony between them. He (Mr. Brewster) was instructed
to say that this was a simple untruth from beginning to end. He was instructed that
things did happen in Edinburgh different from what had ever taken place elsewhere
between them ; but en this matter he wonld not dwell. Bat if there was any wish on the
part of the defendant to enter into 2 marriage according to the law of Scotland, why was
not Miss MaeFarlane present as a witness? She was in the confidence of both parties —
she was to be trusted - there was no need of concealment from her. The circumstance
that no ceremony of the kind ever took place in her presence was a strong proof that it
did not ocear at all. Mrs. Yelverton then left Edinburgh and proceeded to Hull, and three
weeks after the alleged marriﬁe. she wrote a letter to Yelverton commencing, ‘I am like
unto the woman in the Gespel, troubled about many things "—which contained a variety
of expressions that no married woman would have written to her husband., ¢ Oh,"” she
3, “ for those blessed days when I could trust yew, whem I deemed myself the object

of your innermost thoughts and desires, that my life and happiness was synonymous with
igau.r own, aye, more than yeur own. . . . . What is the use of their saying you must
p quiet. when I eannot trust, when by trusting [ may lose both life and life hereafter (or

at least the fruits of a life of patient suffering) ? for if you did deceive me again in that last
not to be remedied point, the physical part would give way. On the ether hand, my whole
aature demands the risk, the trial to be made; it has wound itself too closely about you
to lgiwa on up now. Hven writing about it I have little sharp nipping pains at my heart
if Ma my hand write a farewell I should have a palpitation there and then: I s die
withont you—is it worse to die by yon " Write a farewell! = Why, she had been married,
according to her own story, three weeks before. In another letter she said, “ I wish you
would tellme youn burn all these letters—please do.””  Who ever heard of a wife asking Er
husband to burn her letters? That was a request often made by persons who were not in
the position of wives, and, in too many instances, it was a request t]];at was most religiously
disre ed. In that state of things he admitted that the 's conscience was not satisfied
or lulled. God forbid that he should attribute to her, in the general sense of the word, any-
th::i:l like impurity. She was carried away by a passion which had taken possession of her
mind, and she must have felt that from what had ocourred between them she was placed in
a position of the most shocking and distressing nature. He distinetly repudiated the notion
of a marriage. She endeavoured to compel him to yield to her love. He (Mr. Brewster) had
no doubt that that was done in the purest spirit; but she was dragged forward, perhaps,
becanse she mdulgu:’i too much in her early youmth in the species o reading to which he
alluded ; but she did allow herself some way to be dragged into the vortex. The de-
fendant was inexorable about the marriage, and a mmfu was suggested to reconcile
her scruples and his obstinacy to a marriage. She knew that he was a Protestant,
and that a marriage could not be celebrated, so as to compel him to be her hushand,
but she felt that it would be satisfactory in the eye of God, and hapless woman that she was,
she thonght to live this fast and loose sert of life with him. He (Mr. Brewster) did not
intend to say a word in defendant’s favonr, for having disappointed her; but, be that as

it m(l,ght., it was in that hope, and under that influence, she propesed to him a meeting in
:’ge athedral, in Manchester, where he was uaknown. The lady had given a character of
e defendant in her re-examination which did not agree very well with the way the case

eéen opened. He(Mr. Brewster) never knew a slighted woman who could forgive, but
Eﬁmlﬂld that, inhis absence from court, this lad h&gjustiﬂud the dafendaut—nutghintmﬂ-

leaving her, but in his general conduct, e (Mr. Brewster) believed th
Mr. ere would
a strong discrepancy between her and her counsel in that respent. =
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i int: but, in his judgment, it was not worth the time spent in recording
mpﬂﬂn:gra;}h BHPflem;ﬂahaE himailf at they all could m_:rsh_u;l God according to their
icular views; and it was not necessary for any one to entertain cither ill-will or disrespect
towards the tenets of another. But it was absurd to contend that Yelverton saying he was a
<t Protestant Catholic” was pot in fact a Protestant, Did any one ever hear of & Roman
Catholic calling himself a.*‘ Protestant Catholic 2"’ It was somewhat singular that the lady, in
the whole course of her evidence, speaks of hev belief that Yelverton was a * Catholie,” nota
i Catholie.”
B%mhia { Justice said he was not sure of that. L

Mr. Brewster said he believed it was the case; and although the eircumstance was a
small ons, it was not to be passed over in the case. But the jury had the distinct evidence
of the Rev, Mr. Moeney that Yelverton told him he wasa Protestant. Upen that part of
the case he (Mr, Brewster) had pressed the lady stromgly—perhaps too strongly, indeed,
when he asked her us to her confession. If he did press the matter too st_roml;lly, nobody
regretted the circumstance more than he did, It had struck him or reading her letter to
the Rev. Mr. Mooney that she was net telling the truth when she said that she never told
him that Yelverton was a Protestant, acd the matter in issue was now placed beyond all
doubt by the pesitive evidence of the rev. gentleman himself, and there was internal evi-
dence in her letter that-she told him of that fact. "In the first place there was no witness.
The learned tlemen on the other side would say, no doubt, that they may use the
certificate of the Rey. Mr. Mooney to prove that witnesses were present, but would hig lord-
ship allow that ? : !

I:‘l{;, Brewster said he would demonstrate, from evidence under the hand of the lady herself,
that no witness was present; the fact was proved too by the wery circumstances of the case.,
The Rev. Mr. Mooney knew as well as any man that if he solemnised a lawful marringe on the
oceasion, he would be exposing himself to penalties of a wvery seripus character. ¥or his own
protection, therefore, the last thing he would think of would be to have a witness whowould be
a witness against himself. But in the letter of the 10th of June, 1858, the lady herself placed
the matter beyond doubt. She says:—* [ must now confide to f:ﬂ'l.l my husband’s surname,
which 1 was only allowed to do under seal of confession, although 1 never for a moment doubted
that our seeret was and is perfectly safe in your hands, My maiden name was Maria Teresa
Longworth. My hushand’s name is William Charles Yelverton. . You will please add the
surname to your own private register, as, of course, the child must be registered under the
father’s name. But I need not entreat you to allow moone to see it but yourself, unless you
had a witness to the marriage.” Did not that expression plainly prove that she had nonotion
that any person was present when the transaction  ogcurred ? ell, but was the Lev. Mr.
Mooney telling the truth when he said that she told him Yelverton was a Protestant? The
letter proceeds—** However, 1 meimiut:.lf wpon you ; and you will find when the time comes
that you have not only saved two individual souls, but rendered an incaleulable service to the
Catholic church, 1 dare not tell you more at present, but some day I shall come to see you, and
tell you all. ¥ou will be glad to hear 1 have much hopes of my hushand.”” Could the jury for
an mstant doubt that she meant by having much hopes of her husband that she expected to
make him a Catholie :

Mr. Whiteside observed that defendant’s side got the letter from the Rev. Mr. Mooney.

Mr. Brewster said— Suppose that was so, conld any one be heard saying that the Rev. Mr.
Mooney should be stigmatised for giving up that which manifested the trath? Was he not
bound to come forward and tell the truth? Ought he net to do.so in acountry of which it
was often said that where thousands knew the truth not one could be got to ceme forward to
state it ? Did the jury for & moment doubt that ‘the inealculable serviee to the Catholie
church,’” mentioned in her letter, meant the concession of her husband to that church? But
did the matter rest there 7 He had mentioned that to the lady was committed the earrying out
of the project intended to ease her own conscience ; and her first idea was that this could be
effected in Manchester, where Yelverton was wholly unknown, and where their plan could be
brought into operation without risk of discovery. In the letter which she wrote to him, sug-
geﬂ.ing a meeting in the cathedral of Manchester, she said that he would have nothing to

o or say, and that he would be no more affected by it than his going to mass once or
twice would make him a Catholic. Was it not clear from this expression that she never
could have believed him to be other than a Protestant? It could not be denied that he
travelled with her in Seotland as his wife, and wrote both their names in the book which
had been produced, but it was remarkable that he never wrote their full title, if
they were really married—namely, “* the Honourable Mr, and Mrs. Yelverton.” It was an

lute nma’ll?‘ﬂmﬁha should have represented her as his wife, for they would never
have been received in the hotels, or anywhere in Beotland, if it was supposed that
were not married ?prla. A letter had been relied on in which it was said that he
called her his “ sponse ;" but he submitied that this document had been tampered with, and
that adding a by" to ome of the Italian words it had been changed into spouse. Having
commented on eome other matters the learned uuunnal-pmuaaﬂeg as follows :— Gentlemen,
I have now brought this most melancholy case to an end. 1 can say with truth that if T had
the slightest idea of what was before me 1 would never have undertaken the task, for circum-
stanced as [ am T have fonnd it utterly impossible to prepare myself in such a way as would
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FORTREAIT OF CAPTAIN YELVERTON.

The ChiefJustice took his seat on the bench at half-past ten o'clock.

The same eounsel were in attendance (with one exception, Mr. Brewster, Q.C.), viz: —
For the plaintiff—Mr. Sergeant Sullivan, Mr. Whiteside, Q) C. : and Dr. Townsend.” For the
defendant—Mr. Sergeant Armstrong, Dr. Ball, Q.C., and ¥r. Jellett.

EXAMINATION OF THE DEFENDANT.

Major Yelverton, the defendant, was called and sworn. He repeated the last words or
the oath, * 80 help me God,"” in a very emphatic manner. The defendant is about 86 or §7
years ofage. He is a little over the middle height, and is a tolerably good-looking and
gentlemanly, but by no means a very handsome man, His hair is of a dark brown colour,
his eyes deeply set, and the expression of his countenance rather careworn and anxiows, He
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Chief Justice—Tell us what you did. It is an unpleasant subjeet, but it mast be dealt
with. Did yon make dishonourable advances to her ? ; ' ; ke
Witness—No: in words, I did not. (To Sergeant Armstrong). 1 did not tell her I had
come from England purposely to find her. I was goiag to the Crimea at that time I was
in command of a battery of sfege artillery then on board the Transit steamer, and destined
for the Crimea. [ didnot, on that occasion, meke the lady a promise to marry her. Iwent
to the Crimea. The Transit was then lying out of the harbour when I was at Galeta. In
the beginning of 1855, in February I think, [ next saw the lady at General Straubenzie’s hut
in the Crimea. I was aware of hier arrival fhere about ten days before I visited her,
vou make or renew any offer of marriage there ? wied .
Witness—I did not. I did not tell her I was under a promise to my family not tomarry
lady who could not pay my debts I told her I was under considerable pecuniary diffi-
::iﬂ I made no statement at the time that I was not able to marry then more than at
any other time—I mean that [ did not say that 1 was not able to marry in two years, or
three yeats, or five years hence. I did not mention any time at all, nor did [ mention mar-
ringe on that occasion. My lord, I have made a mistake in my last answer, which I wish to

orrect.

The Chief Justice—Let me write down your answer first, and then you may make any ex-
planation you thinkyproper. Having written down the answer, the Chief Justice said —Now
sir, you may give your explanation.

itness—1I was wrong when [ said I did not speak of marriage. I did mention marriage,
but did not propose it. '

Chief Justice—You talked of marriage, but did not propose it ?

Witness — Precisely. :

Examination resumed—1 spoke’ of marriage as, mmder the circumstances in which I was
placed, a thing in which Tcould not engage or entérinte swith Miss Longworth: she remained
three or four weessat Major Straubenzie’s ; 1 not atany period of that time make an
offer of marriage to her. s 2 _

Mr. Armstrong—Did yon make the stétement thut theeendition of your circumstances
prevented you getting married more than enee ? :

Witness (after a long pause)—It isalong time I nevér went back of it ——

Mr. Whiteside—That is no answer to my learned fri estion.

Witness—I left §t upon the one statement. "

Mr. Armxmﬂ-'ﬁnlﬂ her omeethat you could notmiarry, and did not repeat it ?

Witness—1I i repeatit. Imade the statement once, @nd followed it up.

Examination resumed—I did st albeer day from the time I went first to visit at
General Straubenzie's ; I did mobiprepose to her there a secret marriage; I did not propose 1
should get married to her in the Gteek ‘church in Balaklava ; there was no talk, that I recollect,
about Greek Catholics and Roman Oatléiies ; I left the Crimea after she left General Strau-

L3

LAt
benzie's quarters ; the letter of 15th August, 1855, from the lady, now produced, I received in
the Bosphorus; another letter directed to me at theBosphorus di’h notreach me ;’ before parting
with her at General _Strauhmma’s there was an arr ment that she Was to go on the Bos-
horus, and that I was tu-'fﬁn to see her there on m%—haﬂ; ; I ¥eft the Crimea on Waterloo
ay, 18th June, 1856, and I came home by Odessa and the Danube, by Vienna: the troops of
which I was in ‘command came home a fow days afte 15 WL did not come home with my tvoop; I
came home on leaye of abserice and by myself; I went'®6 London first on coming to England,
;:Etiihﬁtwﬁm b h,*q.!ﬂg. which [ we 'Lf_. \gn Leith Fur%. Scotland é after the
_ & ['saw ‘the ‘Leith in Januery or February, 1857 ; I took

hftr down to the¥teamer when shewas : #ie’s ; [ returned to the steamez
after General w. ﬁhn “Wwith his son, wocompanied us, went'away ; 1 did not go on my
knees on that occasion and implore of her to goashore and et murried to me; I did not go on

my knees at all on board that steamer; [ had not to gt my kaees because sail
where | was; there were very few people on board, 4 2 e e e

Did any familia:itieil take place between you on that occasion >—Yes .
E What were they, and where ?—Sitting on the raised poop of the vessel. I put my arm round
er Jﬁ?;ft“.lm :e’?i%lfl'::lrlﬁrad attfr:ipteﬁ to ﬂkn further liberties with her.
eseription : tness—I attempt ' i 5
Chief Justice—In otker ﬂtdspynu aftem pmﬂ@-ﬁﬂneg D73 Off DA D58 P T

“;;‘Flme:sv-wi did (after'a panse), but T shonld explain that the attempt did not go te'a

P Sadtion.s
@ ce-~Explain how far {t went—— '
maﬂﬂsf-qluntlua—ﬂ €8 wish to femain in cotirt during this examination T cannet help

Dr. Ball—Mr, Brewster’s statement vost -
it e yesterday was'a sufficiént intimation to them thas

eant Sullivan—Tndeed it wis 1 3
Chief Jastice—1§ ladies ch b

pleasant seemp, oofe to Pemain thiey st expose themselves to a very un-
e i ko wat rsns e ot .

4 he thotight the evidence which Iag heen given on this point was sufficient.
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The Chief Justice said that Dr. Ball knew very well that in several portions of the ex-
amination, as well as of the cross-examination, it would be absolutely necessary to put
questions of a nature which it would not be fit for females te hear. His lordship uiﬂll:m
observations did not apply to ladies who were relatives of the parties.

All the ladies present, with the exception of two or three, then withdrew. To those
who did not exhibit any intention of retiring his lordship addressed himself specially, in
reference to the propriety of their withdrawing, which they then did.

The jury expressed their satisfaction that his lordship kad taken this course.

The examimation of the defendant was then resumed. He stated that whilst sitting
on the poop of the steamer, with his hands round her waist, with the lady, he beecame very
excited, and that she did also; he then described certain liberties which he said he took
with her on that occasion, the details of which are unfit for publication. He stated
that he was interrupted by sailors coming on the poop.

He then continued—We then went down to the ecabin, where there were two gentlemen ;
the lady after a while went into the inner cabin in the stern of the vessel; T saw the captain go
into the cabin next to it, and as I know the partition between the cabins was very thin, I went

MAJOR YELVERTOXN'S FIRST THOUGHT OF DISHONOUE-

on deck, and remained there until it was time to return to the camp, having previously gone
into her cabin, and kissed her two or three times; so we parted ; that occurred on a Saturday; I
received the letter containing the following passages shortly after this occurrence :—

¢ This time last Saturday night, Carlo mio, was our second steamer seene. God grant the
third be not far distant—and the consummation of all. What a most eccentric phenomenon
that our destiny should hang by a steamboat! Did I go to sleep and dream it—that you
watched over me all night, for in the grey dawn I woke and thought I saw you? Nay, more;
or did you wake me as did Diana Endymion in the grove? That you will think seriously of
this I know; but I want to ask you, Carlo mio, in the name of the few, short, happy hours we
have spent together, to make me the confidant of your thoughts, as you would were I asses
newrewse to be near enough to read in your heart. Then you have appeared to be frank enough,
and the delight of sympathy is to share everything, good or bad; and as I know the length,
depth, and breadth of your wickedness now, you need have no fear of 1“"“‘5 my good opinion—
comprenez vous ? To-day I have been runnin ahuu_tf and have fnulgli the : a_fmnieﬂ'-_es you
you were sighing for the other night entirely closed in by verdure; it overhangs the sea, imper-
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vious to human eye or ear ; only the mightingale above would melodise our thoughts, too deep
and saered for mortal words to tell.”

I saw the lady after that in Leith,in January or February, at the Ship Hotel ; I was quartered:
at Leith Fort then: Miss McFarlane was with her at the hotel; I received a note from Miss
Longworth, 4.2

ﬁr. Whiteside—I object to the letter unless it is produced.

Examination resumed—I saw her for some little time alone before T saw Miss McFarlane,
whom I then met for the first time ; 1 was with Miss Longworth for about an hour before Miss
McFarlane appeared; we three of us were a few hours together on that oceasion ; I saw her
next in lodgings she had taken in Edinburgh, at Mrs. Gamble’s; her apartments were very
high up, the top storey ; I saw her there very often; I went out riding with her in Edinburgh ;
she remained about two months at these lodgings; I did not, at any time in Edinburgh,
propose a Scotch marriage to her; 1 did not say that a marriage in Scotland could be con-
stituted by mutual consent and then going to an hotel, without any ceremony ; she did not say
that she should be married by a Catholic priest, and that she would think it a sin unless she
was marrjed in a church ; I did not say that the parties and not the priest conferred the sacra-
ment of matrimony in themselves; I did not at any time get her to read the marriage ceremon
with me from the Church of England Frayer-book, and I did not say this makes us huahami
and wife by the law of Seotland ; I did not hear her say to Miss McFarlane, ** We have married

PORTRAIT OF MU5. YELVERIOX'S FATHER.

one annther,” T did not ask her to go to some hotel to introduce her to the landlord, and T did
not say that would be enough; I was never during that interval at the Catholic Cathedral of
Eﬂﬂmhtlrgh; I remember her gning to Hull from Edinburgh ; saw her at Waterford on the
27th or 28th of July, 1857; I received the letter produced at the post-office in Wa-
}ﬂri::_rd; I saw her at the hotel after that; she did mot tell me that she had heen
I-z:'t ;ng for a priest; I did not tell her I could get a priest at once at Waterford,
it t‘:;a! better not to stay ther: lest Mr. Bellamy should follow her; we went to Thomastown

m aterl‘nrf]‘; we remained one or two nights, T am not sure which, in Thomastown ;
o ore one night at Commin's Hotel in Waterford; I slept with her there; [ slept

with her at Thomastown; from Thomastown we went to Malahide, where we remained

?ﬂh:“nt Iﬂ“' nights at Bhaw's hotel; at Waterford T pave no name at the hotel : at Thomas-

think I gave the name of * Power’ if 1 i

: ; 3 gave any name, of which I am not
::’:i:: -:T:t ?j;-lﬂj':udﬂ we gave the name of “ Stewart,” *“Mr. and Mrs. Stewart: " at Malahide
Fhriprd-l iy \ first sitting room and bedroom on the laft hand on the hall floor side facing the
]jrnn;'i!irn.:ltl' EH',' °pt together there; we went from Malahide to Newry, where we put up at
Wia huL; d Dt:i y and remained there for two nighta; T think T gave the name of “ Power™
e 1Nuwry “f'u"..",:‘-'“"llﬂ"‘* aceurately ; we occupied a single bedroom there and slept together ;

nt to Rostrevor, where we stopped at Langster's Hotel; I cannot romember
D
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Witness—To the best of my mn:ilautinﬁl the ring was not moved off her finger ; it was only
oved upand down, if it was moved at all.
iy Emﬂmm by Mr. Armstrong resumed—Did you tell this Jady that you were not a Pro-
1 never did e
t“t%#:“ F:;;l in the habit in her presence and ‘to her of making fun of the Protestant religion
and its doctrines ;I was not. ,

What is your father's religion—TLord Aoynmore's? i

Mr. Whiteside—I submit that it is not a question that should be put. We have nothing
to do with his father’s or his grandfather's religion. Tt is his own we want te know. There
are many sons who don’t agree with their fathersin religiouns views.

Examination resumed—The religion of Lord Avonmore is a Protestant, Lady Ayvonmore
is a Protestant, and my religion is Protestant.

Were you at any timie & Roman Catholic ? —Never.

Did you ever tell this lady you were ?—I did not.

Pid you attend mass with her the Tuesday after the ceremony?—1 did mot. I don't
recollect going to the chapel the Sunday after the ceremony. oy :

Do you ever recolleet ever attending a Roman Cathelic place of worship with her?—Aft
what time?

At any time ?—I went to chapel with her at Bordeaux. I also recollect in the autumn
of 1857, going with her, but when at a chapel in Edinburgh where she was singing. :

Up to the time of the ceremeny before the Rev. Mr. Moeney, had you attended a Catholic
chapel with her, and gone through the Catholic service ?—Never. )

id you attend the Church of England service while on duty in the Crimea ?—1 did.

To what place did you proceed after you left Rostrevor ?—To Belfast.

She was with you?—Yes. -

How long did youn stay in Belfast ? —One night.

Did you part at Belfast? —Not at that time.

Where did you go to next ?—To the Giant's Canseway.

Did yow return te Belfast? —We did.

Did you then part company with her?—1 did.

Where did she go?—In the steamer to Glasgow. ;

And you ?—Back te Dublin. -

Where next did you meet her ?—At Mrs. Stalker’s house in Hdinbuargh.

Examination continued—Mrs, Stalker’s house is in Albany-street; T went there first at six
o'clock in the Eveningl; Mr. Thelwall, Mrs, Thelwall, and Miss M*'Farlane were there; before
I went into the room I met Miss Longworth in the passage ; T was introduced by Miss Long-
worth as a friend of hers ; I speak on these detaiis to the best of my recollection ; T think Miss
Longworth ealled Mrs, Thelwall her sister; I had known the Thelwalls before that; I remained
on tgat. first visit about an hour; on the former visit to Edinburgh there was an improper
intercourse between Miss Longworth and me, and also on board the steamer when she was
going to Hull on the wvisit at Mrs. Salter's which I have just mentioned; I did not pass the
night in the house ; Miss Longworth remained in Edinburgh about six weeks from the time L
went there; during that six weeks we occupied the same bedroom; the Thelwalls went away
the day after I arrived; Miss M*Farlane was in the house during the whole six wecks; I made
excursions in the neighbourhood (visitors’ book of Downe Castle handed to witness); T wrote
in thatbook ; I see the dates; it was between the 6th and 9th of November; I was there at that
time with her. We were at Linlithgow, at Dumblain, at Calender, at Dunfermline. We were
about twelve days on this tour. We returned together to Edinburgh.  While at Mrs, Stalker's
I went by the name of M‘Farlane, and she was called M‘Farlane too, She was part of the
time called Miss M*Farlane and part of the time Mrs. M‘Farlane.

The Chief Justice— At what time was she called Miss M*Farlane ?

Witness—Act the first time, my lord. She was called Mrs. MPFarlane as soon as the disguise
we had assumed became known to the landlady. T ecan hardly recollect when. She went to
Hull after her second visit to Edinburgh, leaving me behind in Bdinburgh. T next saw her at
the railway station in Hull about six weeks after. I went after her to Hull from HEdinburgh.
We stayed together at Mr. and Mrs. Thelwalls' on that oceasion. AswellasT know she had been
staying at Mr. Thelwall's since she arrived at Hull. We remained at Thelwall’s on that ocea-
sion about nine or ten days. Mr. Thelwall was at the railway station with her, and until that
time T had never seen him. I went back to Edinburgh, leaving her at the Thuiwall;'. I next
met her at the Thelwalls' when I returned after an interval of three weeks, We remained
there ahout six or seven days on the second occasion ; T should have mentioned that 1 had been
in Carlisle in the interval, by myself. I then went to London, leaving her with the Thel-
walls. T next met her at Dunkirk, in February, 1858, I had heen at Dunkirk before her,
and received her on bhoard the steamer in which sho came from Hull, We remained at
Dunkirk a couple of days, and then went to Bordeaux, passing through Paris on our
way. We went first to an hotel, and afterwards got apartments, We boarded at Madamo
Andre’s, o few yards from the house ‘where we had apartments. We remained at Bordeaux
fire or six weeks. I was on leave of absence at the time. My leave expired on th: 10th of
April. T did not state to her at Pordenux that I would communicate our marriage to my
mother, and ask her to keep it a secret. 1 left Bordeaux in the beginning of April, about ter
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that an & has been put before the p.  The second § iu posstbie as been changed sud joined on
to the ¢ following it, and made an &, so that it reads ** spusa,” only}hat‘ there 18 a long = in
sposa. 'Che letter & has been put after b over the top. The letter ¢, which '-'-f“ﬂ‘!}t to follow &
haus been lengthened and made an /, and the ‘‘f¢"" has been turned into a “ mia, u.r::l huddled
altogether, so that it is quite destroyed. It now purports to read ‘spora belle mia.” 1 never
made that alteration ; these changes are not in my handwriting ; I received the letter produced
from Miss Longworth. . . sk

Mr, Whiteside objected to the witness being asked any question as to this letter, because the
lady had not been asked about it. g - ;

Sergeant Armstrong—I admit that it was not put into her hand, and I will, thereiore, ask
your lordship to allow me to do so, and to ask her about it.

Mr. Whiteside—Not now, certainly.

Mr. Armstrong—0Oh, of course not; I mean at another stage of the case.

Examination resumed—No letters were burned or destroyed at Rostrevor ; I lodged in the
courts in Scotland on outh every letter connected with this matter which I had from this lady ;
I did not underscore any passages in her letters; L never touched them, but gave them just as 1
received them.

Did the lady in conversations you had with her on board the steamer from Boulogne, when
you first met, make youaware of any secret alfecting her life, character, or happiness, or anything
of that sort ?

Witness—Ne, I recollect nothing of the kind. Before I met the lady at Waterford
I had been at Belle Isle, my brother’s place. I was at Belle Isle from May up to the end of
June, I857. This was after she had gone to Huall. I had been in Ireland on leave of
absence, three morths and a half nearly before I met her at Waterford. My brother referred
to is dead. He was married in February, '07, and I was at Belle Isle & few months after-
wards. Previous to that, and before 1 saw her at Waterford, I had beemn at my father's
honse near Dablin. Whilst I was at Belle Isle on that occasion I attended the Protestant
Church. In the spring of '57, when quartered at Leich, I attended the Kpiscopalian Church
there. I attended church pretty regularly when at Leith. 1 have no recollection of asking
her when at General Straubenzie’s, in the Crimea, whether she would like to be an officer’'s
wife, and that she said soe would ratker like it. We did not, when at General Straubenzie’s,
always speak together like fiancess and refer to marriage. I did not tell her at General
Straubenzie's that there wasone word that must never be mentioned between us. 1 donot
recollect & conversation between us with respect to a “ fraternal scheme.”

~ Was there a verbal proposition from Ler to you or from youn to her that she was to pass as
vour sister for a time ? No.

Did she ever say anything to you about Bishop Bore? She did not.

Did she propose to you at Edinburgh that she should be marvried according to the rites of
the Catholic church there } No. _

Did you that you would have no objection if it could be done with perfict safety ? No.

Did she ask you whether you had ever been confirmed ? I don't recollect. -

Did she ask you if you believed in the doetrines of confession and absolution ? No.

_ You have already said that you did not read the marriage ceremony from the prayer- book.
Did you take her in your arms, embrace her, and say “ by the laws of Scotland you are my
wife " Idid not. , '

This concluded the direct examination of the defendant, and the court then adjourned for
about twenty minutes. :

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MAJOR YELVERTON.

On the court resuming, the defendant was -

Cross-examined by Sergeant Sullivau—DMajor Yelverton, did you ever love Teresa
Longworth ? I did.

Did you ever love her purely and honourably? (Afwr a considerable pause) Not
entirely, Sir.

% I will repeat my question—did you ever love Teresa Longworth purely and honourably ?
No.

i Tiéqn your love for her was always founded on dishonour? (Afier another pause.
es, Sir.
With the determination from the first to seduce her? | (Emphatically). No.

Explain me that? When 1 began to correspond with her I had no object cither dis-
honourable or hanourable.

A And you continued thut correspondence with her without object? When I met hier at

r-l;ﬁt::i [ was carried away by passion, and then first conceived the desire of making her my
sl

IITI the eonvent at Galeta 7—In the convent.

She wearing the habit of a Sister of Merey :(—True, Sir.

ttending the sick and wounded soldiers of the Crimea ? —True, Sir.
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o. up to June, 1858, your motions as to the culpability of seducing women were con
to Ehe’ ﬂnl;la:idemtin wh.;:thj;;— it was discovered ov nutg You asked me &m same question tiwce,

and I repeat the two answers.
Now you put them both together ?

1 t are the two answers : ;
%lgmmﬁt thrat it depends upon the nature of the seduction, by which I mean the

es. the trouble he gives himself, the positions into which he puts a woman—
ﬁﬁﬁgﬁ- ﬁﬂlﬂtﬁ]ﬁ fxpnu his part or all upon hers—I thgn,k that makes a great difference in the
i erwise of a seduction, .
1““%";‘:.;;;{'1&3}%?“_,1 sce. Do you think the laudability of it is favoured if the woman seduced
is an orphan? I don’tsay itis lnudable under any eireumstances,
Do you say that now # Ido. \ : i (LR
Did you not say dte»hat t-]t: m:&:tty depended upon whether discovered or not? I sayits lauda-
ili herwise depends upon . :
hhg :L:Eh:: it is fml:nﬂ uutmpt & material element in ita laudability # No, sir.

In what, then? In the blame it meets with. 4

Had you known, in the convent at Galata, that Teresa Longworth was an erphan? (After a
pause). She had told me, ) X

That her mother died in life—that her father was dead? The atheist.

Chief Justice—Who said & i :

Sergeant Sullivan—The witness adds that, my lord. You wrote her letters—you knew she was
an urph;; and a lady—a gentlewoman? I don't know, siv, what yourdefinition of a gentlewoman
18 exac = i

Tell me what your own is® A womlan of gentle blood. T !

Has education nothing to say to if, think you? Making a Sir.

Have manners nothing to say to it, 'ﬁhinkjfa'll B ﬂlﬂ*hﬂ& g}

i e St o kol e
lettmdﬂ‘i?zum“ that Teresa Longworth was an accomplished woman? I thought so from her
= l;i'i"au- hw&rm % lady? (After a long pause, and with a degree of hesitation)—
0 A f : o ; E F y 47 Ly L ; - -

Hum'tﬂi , who she was? She had told me that her father had been a silk merchant in
Muanchester, that her mother had been mng;fﬂn dead; that she and her family had quarrelled
with her father, and never lived with him for many years, and that she and her sister were living
concealed from everybody in the in which 1 saw them in London,

You know all about her? What she told me, CLLTNY NS - &

Was she a gentlewoman in your opinion? I think, Sir, that accomplishments, religion, and
everything else, must be added to blood, to give & proper definition of 4 gentlewoman.

ou must have gentle blood, at'all events, ageording to your definition ? ctly.
i And, perhaps, it is no harm to seduce a woman who has not that qualification ? I did not say
at,

Well, what is your opinion ? Before 18568 did you think the element of gentle blood material
in reference to seduction ¢ I think I had better give yow my idea of seduction, Sir.

Sergeant Sullivan—I should very much like to hear it.

Witness—Seduction is where a man follows a woman persistently and’ perseveringly, and with
intent throughout to make her his mistress and dishonour her. : 1

Very , Sir—that was your idea of seduction then ? It was,

Do you think that the fact of the lady not having gentle blood makes seduction better or worse ?
I dr;;:’t think i:. makes any great d:ﬁ'ﬁ;e?fm ki ! .

oes it make any in your opinion ? er a pange.) Well, it does, and ‘my reason for saying so
is, that one has murg to 1{13{* th:I:u the ether. TanE) b iy A 5

And that, as regards the woman herself, makes the seduetion better'or worse as the case may

be; is thatso? As regards the woman's own feelings, is it N0 e
Afhtmgnrda herself and her position. There is o greater loss of position in one case than in
another,

Isee. Did you believe Teresa Longworth to be a gentlewoman, ss she said that day in the
eonvent of Galata ?  (After a pause). Not nccording to my definition.

What part of the character did she lack# Gentle bload, 8ir, ' ;

y tGeq::a blood! Bhe had all but that, had she not? There was something about her manner
ot quite—
e8; you said the manner was tolerable? I think so,

But with the exception of the * tolerable manner,"” and the want of gentle bload, she was a
gentlewoman, was she not ? - With those exceptions, Sir.

Yes; we must be particular, you see? Yes,

And you believed her to be sa? Yes, Sir.

Yes, J'éljlr?ruu there formed the idea of mduning her, or of making her your mistress, as you gay? .

Do you know General Straubenzie? T have that honour,

Is he a man of honour and & gentleman? I beligve so,



THE FIIST CALL.

He was a General in the British army in the Crimea? He was Brigadier-General,

Do you know his lady? I do, Sir,

A lady of accomplishments? Yes.

Of virtue? I don'tknow, Sir; I fully believe so, S8ir. I beg to explain——

What is your opinion? I fully believe that she is one of the best wives in the world.

An excellent Emt.unt.rcsa of an orphan? An excellent protectress of an orphan,

And General Straubenzie an excellent protector? Yes, Sir.

Was her name mentioned in the convent at Galata? It was, Sir. Te the best of my recollec-

tion Miss Longworth told me she was in the convent at the time.

Did she tell g"““ she was goiug with her to the Crimea? I don't recollect that ; I think she

spoke of paying her a visit.

Was anything said about making her a confidante 2 No; I recolleet nothing of it.
Nothing as to her being trusted with a secret? No; I recollect nothing of the sort.
Do you remember nothing of that sort on reading a letter from Teresa Longworth to you? As-

sisting my memory with these letters, Tdo,

Before she went to the Crimea? Yes.
You have been refreshing your memory with these letters? Yes,
Did you lately go over the evidence to-day ? No, not at all.
She went to t{u Crimen afterwards to Lady Straubenzie? She did.
You visited the guuaml‘lﬂ hut whilst she was there? Yes,
H ntly? IFrequently,
(,f}{;:;&:'zu g{-r there E‘um di}' to day? So long ago I cannot recollect.
But vou won't swear you did not? I will swear neither one way nor the other.
Did you see her at Lady Straubenzie's? I did,
As a guest at Lady Straubenzie’s table 7 Yes. Iy .
Did you dine at the same table with her as Lady Btraubenzie’s guest * T did.
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Had you a private conversation with her at Lady Straubenzie's hut T had.
Over and over again ? Several.
Over and over again? I say several.

You wiMl only say several ? ~ It is too lonz ago.

Had you thirty interviews with her? No.

Twenty ? No. .

Fifteen? No. ] i

Ten ? Ten private conversations do you mean? XNo.

Five? Perhaps. , : _

Can you tell me how often you saw her at Lady Straubenzic's hut? T eannot say. h

In the course of any of these conversations at Lady Straubenzie's hut was marriage mentioned
between you? Yes, Bir, for the purpose of declaring its impossibility on my part.

Was it mentioned? For that purpose it was. : :

Were your pecuniary circumstances El]élﬂkeﬂ of as an excuse for not marrying ? Yes, sir.

As an excuse for not marrying whom ¢ For the impossibility of it— .

Az an excuse for not marcying whom ? I should have said—

. Come, Sir, as an excuse for not marrying whom ? May I correct my—— '

Aunswer me first and correct afterwards. As an .excuse for not marrying whom ? May I cor-
rect, my lord, what I said—— , . sqid

Chief Justice—Answer first. gL

Cross-examination resumed—As an excuse for not marrying whom? Come, out withit? As
an excuge for not marrying one who would not be approved of by my family.

Upon your oath did **'l'eresa Longworth”” hover on your lips when you said ‘* as an excuse for
not marrying #'’ What do you mean by hnveﬁniz - '

By your oath, T ask you, did the name of *“Theresa Longworth* hover on your lips when you
uttered the words ‘*as an excuse for not marrying#’* Do you mean toask me if I thought of
Theresa Longworth when—— :

No, 8ir—I ask you again upon your oath did the name of Theresa Longworth hover on your
lips when you used the words **as an excuse for not marrying.?’" < It did net.

She was not the person whom you meant in your excuse for not marrying? I beg leave to

torrect—— . ; :

Sergeant Armstrong—And so you can. LT BT i3

hmgergﬂut-ﬁyﬂimufi object to the cross-examination being interrupted. The witness is in my
8.

Sergeant Armstrong—I don't want to interrupt unnecessarily, but-the ‘witness answered’ the
question fully, and he now has a right to correct or explain. . '

Sergeant Sullivan—To escape interruption let hiin: exFla.in what he likes.

Chief Justice (to witness)— What is your explanation :

Witness—It was one of the great reasons Igr the impossibility of my marrying without some
fortune on the part of my wife, my pecuniary circumstances. It was not as an excuse, I just now
used a false word, it was more a reason——

"?'?"itﬂ J ust%au—ti;r what ? bl

itness— For ur to m at is, to show that marriage was an i ibility, I sug-
gested amother sort of Euuﬁaxeium ¢ 4 s - e enadec ot B
Chief Justice— With Teresa Longworth ? }
Witness—I did, my lord. i
. Cross-examination resumed—TIn the house of the lady of an officer in the Dritish ‘army 'at the
Crimea, suggested this connexion to Teresa Longworth 1 ; :
Chief Justice—Is that what you say 2
Witness—That is my. answer to it.

Chief Justice—Marriage being impossible, you proposed that she sh intiee
Witnese—Very ncarlygthat {uﬁnmt?iun:l. s Yyou proy should become yourmistress:

Cross-examination resnmed—Your answer is, that you spoke of marriage to Teresa Longworth
as being a thing you could not enter into® I did. g :a e i
Why, then, did you not mention the name of Teresa Longworth a while ago, when I asked,

** Ag an excuse for not entering into marriage with whom ?"' Because it was equally an explana-
tion for any one in the same particular,

And therefore you qup?l.'camﬂ her name? I gave this excuse, Sir,
Yes, “ excuse” again ! Or explanation,
You withdraw excuse ? It was “ explanation,” Sir.
Our pecuniary circumstances were spoken of b Yes.
And your family ! Yes.

d I suppose all this more than once? . It is a long time ago to recollect the exact terms of o
- conversation. Its general tendency and meaning I -:ﬂ.nggiva ruﬁ?
Al ““ﬁ““t tell g whether you spoke more than once of your pecuniary circumstances, your
that 1{::';‘2 Tt::'lﬂﬂgﬂ ¢ That is what took plaee, Sir, in that one interview ; and 1 have no doubt
i Ve to the same subject afterwards twice, or three times, perhaps,
i FD““}'““““MH: family, marringe, and its impossibility > Yes, Bir.
.&.lungﬁu ﬂ:zem doubt that you reverted to these topics several times?  Two or throe times,
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Yo d prgon ¢ It was dark. 4. 1
.5:11& ?ff.f:ﬁc Eguﬁtmr therefore—did it # It was not so bad as if it was light. I could nof

have done it if it was light. -

But you took the gng[tunitj' of the darkmess to do it? Do you make no allowanee for a

passionate man and a passionate woman fogether. Is that your question to me? Very much
Ei].'. a il

you think it more honourable for a man having such a design to keep away from a woman

than to go to her; is it not more honourable to keep away ! True, Sir, L

And you went on board that vessel with the intention of making her your mistress? I went on
board to see her and to talk with her, but I was led away afterwards by my feelings.

Ts that what you swear? By my passion.

Were you IBE away by your passion when you proposed on the steamer to make her your
mistress ? I was, Sir. 2 ;

You appear to me very cool? Not im bed (hisses).

Sergeant Armatrung—HEL says, * Not in that.” - !

Sergeant Sullivan—He did not, Sergeant, Armstrong, he said, “Not in bed.”

The Chief Justice—There is no mistake about 1t. i

Sergeant Sullivan—Repeat the word you used ?  Witness—Not in bed, Sir,

Sergeant Sullivan—Your counsel said, * Not in that.”

Sergeant Armstrong—There was a soppressed murmur when the answer was given, and I was
not sure about if.

Witness—I want to explain. Sergeant Sullivan thinks me cool, now, but T wish to explain
i.hnﬁ-ﬁg passion is very strong as regards women, and I incounsiderately used the expression ** not
in bed.™
thaffrgeant Sullivan—Your passion is strong ; is your feeling of honour as strong # Come, answer

Witness—Not so strong as it ought to be, it was not then.

You did not succeed ! I did not; the smlors intervened, or at least were about the place..

Were you on your knees at all? No, Sir. :

Hpon your oath, were you ugun your knees.at all on the pnng ¢ Not to my knowledge..

ili you swear you were not on your knees ¥ To the best of my recollection.,

Will you swear? Tothe best of my recollection.

You won't, go further ¥ No. _

s 311111 she send you a sketeh of you on your knees, she pushing you away? I don’t recollest any
sketch, now.,

A letter was handed to witness oo which was the sketeh mentioned by counsel. -

ﬁYduel;:. BRO mﬂ on your knees there, and she pushing you away ?, She.is holding up her hands
an recating i

The sailors were about the place on deck 7 They were about the place.

Did a sailor keep his eye on vou? No, he did net.

You did not aceomplish your purEm ¢ T did not. :

She went down to her cabin? She did.

You pursued her down? I went down with her, not into her cabin,

You said something about the partition being thin? The partition was thin,

Between her cabin and the captain’s, and you did not go in on that account? I think but for
that I should have gone in, : . T '

You would have gone in but for the partition? But for the danger of detection.

For her had you any feeling? For the protection of her as well as myself.

< It was mot for her sake you refrained from going in ¥ I conld gain very little diseredit,, for the
élll:l:ﬂ]‘l bm:_mld.nut know me. It was more for her sake than my own that fﬂ.iﬂ_nﬂl-’ pursue her into
¥ :

Do you swear that you would get no diseredit? T mean that T would get no discredit—that I
was unknown on board the vessel. She was going down in . the ?nmlgtren Congfantinople,, and
;h:?;f:rm it was her character that would be involved by any indiscretions on my part in Balaklava

And not yours? T should have gone on shore. :

And dismissed her from your memory, and let her care for herself the hest way sha could ;, isinot
thntﬂltdf Very muc}l:— wii" h . ; 4

1d you go to a berth: I beg to explain I should be obliged to.go on shore, for T was on duty.

thanb:ln: ﬁ? Lﬁu into her cabin in the morning? Yes, BShe igirent i'tigta Lier cabin and lay down {;n
Away from you? Yes. Because I found her there the noxt morning
You went, to her berth in the morning, and kissed her? I di :
You took your leave of her ? .Yes. & _ M GAORE, Ll
%l‘:hﬁint%my hfmm har? Yaos, d

1 e 1den that you made the attempt to. i iled ?
And you Kissed hw}'_m i gl g pt to.secure her as your mistress, but failed ? I did.,
E‘;"‘:ﬁgfi’m? a p:ﬂse}Tml unholy kiss, : '

: o her after that? I did, The next letter was from her.

Don’t. be fencing with me, Sir. Did you write to her?  Yes,
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this happened ? T have answered to

LAKDING FROM A DAY'S YACHTING.

thou well come.” T wrote her this when I heard of her arrival in England. I wrote it from
Edinburgh Castle, where I was then stationed.

And so far as you were concerned at that time the woman was pure, at all events from your

assaults? She was.

She was living at Edinburgh with Miss M'Farlane? She came to Edinburgh with Miss

M'Farlane.

Was not Miss M'Farlane living with her? She was.

They had one room for a sitting-room, and another for their bedroom—is not that so? True.
You have sworn you had improper intercourae with Teresa Longworth in Edinburgh? Yes.
Will you tell me where that first took place ? On the sofa in Mrs, Gamble’s sitting-room.
On what day? I can't tell.

1t made no impression on you * The day made no impression.

Will you tell me the month in which this took place? March,

What time in March? In the latter end of March.

Have you any doubt about that? No; I have none.

Had you ever any doubt about it? No.

You were always of the same opinion ? Yes,

Always clear agnut it? As clear as 1 am now.

And always as distinet ?  Yes, as to the fact, not as to the date.

Have you not sworn it was in the latter end of March? To the best of my recolletion. Yes.

Now 1 want to try your memory about this. Can you give me the week or the day in March
which it happened ? No.

The day made no impression on you? No.

You don't make entries of these things in your diary ? No.
Are they so numerous that you don’t recollect them ?  No.
Does the frequency of these events cause them to be the less impressed on your mind #  No,
Again, I ask you can you give me the week, the day, or the hour of the day in March on which

p the best of bility. I said the latter end of March,
What time of the day ? The nfmmgnn[ig el e ok i

What time do you eall the afternoon ?  After noon—after twelve o'clock.
Come asclose as you can to it—what time of the day # T eannot swear positively. It made no
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Was any one there to gee you going in? I don’t !‘_II:."ED“E_&L
For whgm was the berth tj;ﬂcanh'ln thﬁi st;mm “?r ?I 'i*';r B[tlsﬁniﬁgﬁfrﬂﬂh- .
; ine into her ¢abin?  No, I did not say A p
]!i?élg:&]n“;r:b:i:i-ﬁt“%rﬂ shown in? No, T 'was shown into the main eabin. There ‘were no
passengers when we came in, only the people belonging to the ship, Miss M Farlane did not come
with us to the steamer. She hnd: heen put into the convent before that. 1 don t recollect any one
i ine into the inner cabin,
5 ;': g:]f:ngulrfanximm to et possession of her in Edinburgh?  Yes.
a3 this Sdea Ten dwim“gfiﬂ' your rﬂiih{l P & waﬂ_v&ﬂr}' a&mi&us.ﬂﬁ o
i speak to her of how people were married In Scotiand : . g .
ﬂ?lliu?;g::;nnp.? I recollect on 01?0- :]i:::cnsiun speaking of what T had seen at a railway station
in coming up to London—I mean a notice—to the effect that border marriages were done away
with ; anﬁ T had # recollection then of an act of parlinment which had passed in the session before,
and ]:1}' belief was—and I recollect o conversation in which I told that belief to Miss Longworth—
that these marriages were not done away with, and that Scotland and England were more assimi-
lated with regard to marriages. . : ) ;
You had this conversation with her about Beotch mamaf? Yes, naming that'fact.
Where did that cmwc_;_mﬁan take place? In Mr, Gamble's house.
In the little room? Yes. 3 !
Was there ever a prayer-book there? Ves, Miss M-Farlane’s prayer-book; Thave a recollection
of Miss M‘Farlane having a prayer book there,
Did you ever open it? No. 2
How did you know what it was? By the outside. :
Did you éver take it into your hand ? Never, to the best of my recollection.
Will” you swear you did not? T camnot swear it; T may have moved it from one table to
another; T did not take it with an intention into my hand. . ' Y
I don't want your intentions. On your oath, Sir, did yon take that prayer book into your
hand? On my oath, I have no recollection of taking it. ;
I don't want your recollection. Did you take it? You can't make me recollect it. _
Yes, Sir, because you don’t wish to déso? I do wish to tell you the whole truth, and T am
sure I have not spared myself. gk,
I ask you again, did you take it in your hand ? I have mo recollection.
Did yon open it? I did not. ‘st : e
Will yon swear puaitive.l{ you did not? T can't say I did nof take it np, TItis possible I might
‘have moved it from one table to another. _ 3
“What was on the back of it? I have no recollection. s 1
Did you not say you knew it by reading what was on the back ? I did not say by reading it;
I said I knew it by t§1ﬂ outside, It was a stout little book of the usual shape.
Whose was the book? I suppose it was Miss M‘Farlane’s. I imagined # to have been hers
of course, because it was there. T had B?ﬂr{ veason to helieve it was Miss MFarlane’s.
How long wass Miss Longworth in Edinburgh before this occurrence in March which you have
deseribed *  Six or seven weeks.
You were anxious to have possession of her person ? Yes.
Your mind was on'it'?  Yes.
Had you the idea constantly before you? Tes,
Wonld you have stopped at anything to realize it? [The witness did not smswer,] Come, Sir,
answer my question—would you ¥ Twould not have committed a rape to do it.
But am,im ing short of a rape you would have resorted to, to realize your design? ' No, Sir. I
would not have taken possession of her person without her consent. ' ,

But would you have used any means to get that consent—anything short of rape ? "What sort
of meens do you mean ?

Anything whatever—arguments, persunsions, endearments 2 Endearments, yes,
Arguments? No.

This idex was haunting you n&natn-nt]}- dﬁy and night for seven weeks?® No. T was away part
of the time.

But did it follow you where wemt?  Yes,
ow large was this room of Mrs. Gamble's? It was a small room, about 14 or 15 feet wide, ot
thereabouts, and I should think 20 feet or so the otlier way.
Did the bedroom open'into it > 1t did. -
Did you know that Miss M‘TFarlane sat in the bedroom? She did sometimes,
3 om ;uﬁwe:cbin thﬁ nth;{ room?  Yes, :
on eaid that about the 15th of April she left in the steamer for Tull, "Where did sl to
from that ? To Abergavenny, in Wn‘.lsa. ] i e e
oumd Ii:t:l“ write to her that when she was a week in Abergavenmy yon would like her to write to
. 1

you not say in ene of your letters *“T shall be anxious to hear from you when you have
een about a week at ‘Aberg 7 ? Thatismy letter.

Had you, before she left Edinburgh, spoke of a marriage i 2 i
; at all besidea the conversation you
have said about Dorder marriages 7 15 g ? : ;

i 1 o0, unless I apoke the same thing over again.
ut you might have spoken about that several times® I only recollect one conversation. I
eannot be positive about it, ;
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THE BTREET IN CONSTANTINOPLE,

SEVENTH DAY.

The hearing of this case was resumed. It is needless to say that the public interest in a trial
which must ever hold a prominent place amongst the eauses eélébres of this nuuntr_‘i', continues with
unabated intensity. Tll:c court and all the avenues leading thereto were, as on all previous days,
crowded to excess, long before the proceedings commenced. His lordship having taken his seat om
the bench, and the jury having beeu sworn,

THE CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MAJOR YELVERTON WAS CONTINUED.

The Hon. Major Yelverton entered the witness box, and his crose-examination by Mr, Sergeant
Sullivan was resumed. Before yow went to the church st Kilone, where the ceremony took place,
a good many letters passed between you and Mrs, Yelverton? Altogether, yes,

I mean in the interval between April, '67, when she left Edin%.mrgh, up tothe beginning of
gﬁoﬁuat, 1857—did not a good many letters pass between you during that interval ? There were a

many.

Now, l{mk at this letter (original letter handed to witness). Is mot that one of hers? Yes,
]Eﬁ?fatli 'b-EliE‘lg!I is a letter which was written by her to you after she had left Edinburgh in April,

: was, Sir,

It commences ** Caro Mis,”" Now, look at this passage in it. ¢ Oh, Carlo, to suspect me of
such a thlﬂﬁ; I whose very life is ebbing away for you. I have sacrificed all but Ged to you."”
Do you see that paesage r{'ea.

a8 that true ?  (After a long pause, during which he appeared to be examining the letter), I
would rather look at the printed book.

Come, Sir, you ought to know her writing well? Yes,

Look at it, and read it from the beginning down to the passage I have mentioned—* I who
::;?e::fgjﬁwd all but God to you''—is that true? {After a long hesitation). It is an exaggerated
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Then for the purpose of her becoming your permanent mistress? In law, yes, [This answer,
given with grenl;]::uu ess and deliberation, ahqi!;_:ﬂ some mrmues of dIsgLEEmﬁn:tmn. .
Will you tell me the meaning of that I will tell youw how I explain it, Sir. hen we were
together the impossibility of my marrying her was often talked of, and was well und
tween us, e
l:'.E'.'E’hoal impossibility of your marrying her? Yes, my marrying her now at this time; and, there-
fore, she. s ulﬁ in the first 1nstamce that something should be done to save her conscience,
which ghgﬁﬁg leave me free; and I refer to one of her letters showing that, and I undertock, on
my part, to protect her and love her. That is what 1 call her * conscience saving ceremony”
¢ Thzlgni'% was arranged before she left Scotland that theve should be eome gueh ceremony ? Yes,
as well as I recollect it was arranged that it should he done abroad. 2
It was arranged before she left Edinburgh that there was to be some cevemony ?  Yes, Sir; but
we had arranged that it should be done abroad—that it war te be of a very informal nature, and
by a minister of her church, and was by no means to be as solemn a thing as was subsequently done
sensation). ;
{ And thlm:e is no doubt it was all arranged before she left Bdinburgh? Yes. -
Then, when you came with her to Ireland, was it not for the purpose of carrying eut that,
eeremony ? I did not come with her to Ireland, Sir, 4
Well, Sir, you were with her in Ireland ? I met. her here, Sir. I don't want to fence. She
eame to Waterford to meet me, It was our final arrangement that she was to come to Waterford,
and that T would meet her there, ,
: ﬁWas it not that ceremony she had settled to take place in Ireland? No; we were fo go abroad
at first, ¥
I repeat, was not that the ceremony you had settled to take place in Ireland #—It wasnot; as I
have explained, we were to go abroad-as soon as, 1 was able to go, and it was to fake plage there,
And this was to be a marringe whereghe.was to be bound, and you free?—Ng, Sir; neither of
ug was to be bound. .
And this is what you eall making her your mistress in law 7—That was eur arrangement.
Dit"l you tell IHEI' you would make her your mistress in law *—The proposition of such a thing
came from - it hid
_ Did you tell her she was to be your * mistress in law " by the ceremony, whatever it was?
Yes; adopting your words; but I don’t acknowledge to having used these words.
But it is certain there was to be a ceremony of some character 2 Yes,
And before a clergyman of her own religion?  That is true.
%_lmt tlli’u a} Catholic _priesf? Yes ;ﬂa. rﬂmglljuk onah corebd Well
g as oreign priest determined on to ¢ the marrage eeremony more- secret.?  Well, yes;
&I};] y for that reason ; that it should not coze out to any of our f::ianlnlig that we had dhnﬁa]érugh a

'lshat_ﬂgurc had been a religious ceremony between you? Yes. ,

A religious ceremony ? It was to have been a blessing, as I understood i,

Or a curse, which ? (After some hesitation). It proved a curse, Sir.

What? When we did more, even, it proved a eurse. :

Which do you think you proved, a blessing or a curse to her? A curse,

. Lbelieve so. I wish to explain, Sir.

You are fond of explanations this morning ; however, go on.. This arrangement was Miss
Longworth’s own suggestion. I acceded to it, and the minister to perform the ceremeny was not
to be of my own religion. She perfectly well knew that, . i

Ahra ot done i"1hﬂt is all. . '

An the course of the many conversations you, had in Edinburgh with 3 Jar
rals_ﬁ_cm often spoken of ? Hu{rur_v often. 3 2L AR RABATGE by ae
( Wasitatall? It was, Sir.

Several times? 1t may have beem, I will explain, ;

if'e ou think it necessary do so. ' : :

gion was spoken of principally with vegavd to Miss M ‘Farl who was then o Protestant ;
:haw?f oing to the cenvent, and ﬁsuulg.inq to her, I sad, *“Ia'lil:}twiﬂ convert you if you g&

| there, iss Longworth lnug'hed and said, ** Oh no, they won’t.” T recollect thaf conversation,
because afterwards I was asked to get a prayer-book for Miss M ‘Farlane, when shelad turned conyert.

Was religion. spoken of between you and her in Edinburgh? I have no recollection of any
particular conversation except that. I think it.is very likely some such conversations did pecur,

?ﬂmﬂ times? Yes. : 1 |

ou say you went to mass at Edinburgh ? Yes, Sir; that was in the automn '
you mean after you came back fmugt Treland? I o, i i

Were you there in the spring of that year? I was not,

Do you swear that? I do.

Atall 2. At all,

roco Sy you, attended. Protostant, places of worship? Pretty regulurly, to the best of my

What d "W :
o aY u:, OE illlllf?}l: Hi;;?rut.ty regularly "' 'Will you swear you attended it all, once even,






93

burgh, before you came to Ireland, did you ever go toa Protestant place of worship ?—T said three

or four times :
Will you swear you went four times >—I cannot recollect : :
ill you swear that you did not go three times with the men ?—I cannot swear either way;
not recollect 3 :
i m‘?og went to Ireland and met her in Waterford *—Yes, sir ; _
Before vou left Scotland did you want Mrs. Yelverton to go by Bristol and Dublin to Aberga.-
1 *—No answer ; \ :
Tﬂﬁ{d u:u pf:;ase that to her, sir >—I have no recollection of making such a proposal
Will you swear you didn't #—T won't swear either way :
Did you tell her it was shorter to go to Wales by Bristol and Dublin, upon your oath #—T cannot

i
m%iec you remember any conversation as to the shortest way to Wales ?—No, I only remember the

arrangement that was earried out -
l[%itezide, addressing his lordship, said—I understand there are witnesses here from
Waterford, and I don’t think they ought to be here during the evidence of this witness
Sergeant Armstrong—There has been no arrangement of the kind during the case
Chief Justice—I have no power if they wish to remain
Sergeant Sullivan—Let thew remain, and they will hear more about it ;
Sergeant Armstrong—I don’t eare about it, Idon'tknow anything aboutthe witnesses mentioned,
and T leave the matter in the hands of his lordship .
Chief Justice—I have no power. I won’t interfere
Sergeant Armstrong—There was no such arrangement during any part of the trial
Chief Justico—It is no business of mine. It will be altogether for the jury by and bye
Sergeant Sullivan—Just go s : i
Sergeant Armstrong—Oh, my Lord, there is no suggestion of any kind
Chief Justice—There is no suggestion, It is a matter of delicac
Sergeant Armstrong—I don’t know anything at all about the witnesses, but if it is a matter of
delicacy let them go. I don't want to keep them
* Chief Justice—It is a matter for the attorney and the counsel
Bergeant Armstrong—I know nothing at all about it '
Chief Justice—But surely, Sergeant Armstrong, you know now :
Sergeant Armetroug—Upon my word I don't. I say now let them go out if they are here
Chief Justice—I don't care whether they do or not _
Cross-examination resumed—You went to Waterford and sto at Cummins’ Hotel ?—Yes
What day of the week did you arrive at Waterford ?—0On a Wednesday
You swear it was on a Wednesday ?—I am speaking from memory, from a letter which T have
geen sines, to fix a date. e h -
- What &ajr of the week was it #—The last Wednesday in July
You swear that ?¥—No answer
_Will you swear it was not the first Wednesday in August? I swear it was the last Wednesday
in July, subject to my statement of a reference to the letter
Had you two bed-rooms at Cummins' Hotel in Waterford ?—We had, sir
You stayed there one night >—One night
You went on to Thomastown ?*—I wish to explain my answer about Cumminsg’ Hotel. The
reason we had two bedrooms was ——
I don’t want to know your reasons —— A
hief Justice—What explanation do you give of having two bedrooms ?
Witness—I wish to say in getting two bedrooms our object was
Mr. Whiteside—I object to his object. We have the fact
EE%unnt Armstrong--I wish to state, my lord, that no such thing, in faet, took place. Witneases
from Waterford being in court, the attorney went out and ascertained the fact, nuE I say that such
a tﬁcﬂg ?k:]'uuid ““tlh“;" been stated.
1ef Justice—I thought when that matter was mentioned it was a very improper thing that
the witnesses should not be withdrawn at once. SGREE ¢
Bergeant Armstrong—But they were not there at all
Sergeant Sullivan—You will hear more about it before the case is over

Sergeant Armstrong—I said I knew nothing of witnesses being in court, and it turned out that
Were none

Chief Justice—T thought you did

Sergeant Armstrong—Oh, my lord, there was a certain warmth ——

Chief Justice—Let the examination go on. To witness—You said you had two bedrooms, but
that you slept with the lady, is that true ?—That is true

Ti;éuiaf Justice—Do I understand you to say now that you slept in the same bed with the lady ?
Cross-examination resumed—Y tt F = g
HBiwo bodroors off e Srics mﬂ; went to Thomastown ; had you two bed-rooms there ! —We
You had two bedrooms *—1 will explain ——

You had two bedrooms ?—Yes

1 bring you back again—Upon your oath, during the whole time b in Leith and Edin-
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eant Armstrong—Te is enfitled to explain if he thinks it necessary to doso

gﬁﬂhiﬁf J uati.ce-ETu explain what # gs;q;s he has.a perfect recollection of having given a
pame at Malahide. How does that require explanatie: * ) - o o

Sergeant Armstrong—DBecause this answer has been followed uLb‘y an observation frém the
counsel in a tone of voice suggesting a suspicion of the trutn of what hesaid. Burely he has a
night to explain. oy i ; '

The Chief Justice—What explanation can he give? {To the witness)—Tou say you havea

foct recollection of the name you gaye it Maiahide, and you say you wlways recollected it:

es it oceur to you that this requires explanation ? _ ; i

The Witness—Not having recollected the name given at the other places, 'it eceurs to me that
I could give a reason for my perfest recollection of the name at Malalide, which might strengtlien
my evidence on that matter ' ) i

The Chief Justice—Then do =0 i R

Witness—The reason was because it was the name of Stewart, and I recollect when going out
one day saying to her ** Mind Enu spell Stewart the way I do.”" because it is a'name that people
spell in two different 8, and we aceordingly arranged in what way it was to be spelt.’

Sergeant Bullivan:\gid you give the name of Power on this journey ?—At Rostrevor the name
of Power was given, : ; :

" Or before it *—I am not sure whether it was given at Newry or not. T'am ‘not sure that any
‘name was given there, . ; ;

Will you swear it was not used at Malahide, or that you did not say you were staying there
with a friend named Power *—1 said I was travelling with ‘a mam of the name of Power, and I
left Power as my address. ' W
! ]illfl;tl you say you were staying at Malshide with a person of the name of Power?—X don’t
recollect gl

Did you get.m letter at Thomastown addressed to the name of Power?—I don't recollect. I
will not swear that T did not L 1§ 1Tily

Did Mrs. Yelverton come in with you from Malahide to attend muss at Westland-row *—I can't
recollect having come in. I saw her evidenee to the fact, but T have no recollection of it

Then you have read over her evidence #¥—Yes, in the neﬁmm" : ;

Dg“gm remember coming in from NMalahide to Dublin with her ‘to mass *—T did not go te mass

I did not say yod did, did I?*—You implied it '

‘Did she come into mass at Westland-row *—1I don’t recollect

Did she come to Dublin at all when you were there T don™ recollect

Was there any talk at Malahide about the ceremony you promised her before she Teft
Edinburgh :*—There was .

Jil'lld tyuu speak of the danger of having the ceremony in the diocese of Dublin?—I den't
recollec - ' '

But will vou swear vou did not?—I will not swear

Did Faaty that it would be dangerous to‘have any barms dapensed with in Dublin 1 have
1o recollection of banns being spoken of £ _ '

Orof a dispensation being spoken of ?—I will swear we never talked of a dispensation

_ W'IE‘: é‘ha E&t’éﬁ]}lﬂn}* spoken unf]?'a"f:a - J
an aving it in Dublin?— Tikel
Your fmﬁgﬁiﬁn?tﬁm *—Yes ) 4
Thri&: :I: might become knewn to them ?—TYes, T must explain, that it might be kneown through
E -
ou went from Malahide to where 3>—To Newry '

Had you two bedrooms at Newry ?—No .

Do you swear that >—There was a little room inside the bedrosm I had (sappressed murmurs)

Was it o bedroom ?—T used it a8 a dressing-room ' f

Was it a bedroom, Sir, answer me ?—Yes '

What wria the use of fenelng with my question *—T was not feneimg with the question
__ There were three rooms, a dressing-room, a bedroom, and & sitting=rosm : will you swear there
was not 4 bed in the dressing-room 2—1I won't swear there was not o bed in it '

What day did you get to Newry ?—I have to count days. Five days at Malahide, one’or two at
Thomastown, and one at Waterford, That would make it abeut Tuesday, sir

How long did you staap at Newry *—Two nights.  We went on to Rostrevor from Newry

How many rooms hai you there }—A sitting-room, a dressing-room, and a bedroom

A dressing-room again’  Had that dressing-room a bed in it? —The dressing-room had a bed

Why do you not call it a bedroom, sir >—Because T did not so use it

You had a sitting-room and two bedrooms?—Yes, with that explanation.

Did you not ewear to Bergeant Avmstrong that you had at Newrs but one itting-room md one
bedroom, and at Rostrevor but a sitting-room and & bedroom ?—To the best of my recollection T
::::T:m;ﬁ occupied ome sitting-room and one bedroom ; if there wius a secend bedroom we dif not

am not askin you ‘that, hut Jes had them there, sir?—There they weve, gir
Tt *”;ﬁﬂlifﬂ'gm the day you went to Malahide to Rostrevor you had three rooms wherever you went ?—

ou say you left Rostrevor—how many days were you away ?—T wae away one night

Will you swear you were not away two?—No ; I can’t awear
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}) l?uggaggeﬂtuve ‘ou any recollection of lgetting money from her, of taking it to Dublin and
bringing it back ami‘ returning it to her ?—I have no recollection of it
ad she money wiih her ?—She had
Did you see it >—Not then, Sir J
When did you see it *—That morning before we went to Mr. Mooney i
How much’ did you see >—T said that I thought it was £20, but T saw the evidence, and I am
not quite sure of the sum now : ; y i
id you take that money at any time to keep for her ?—No, 1 don’t recollect it ’ ;
Before you went to the ceremony at Kilone, you did sce the money, and were looking at it 2
—That is my recollection i ; :
Was there any mention of the fee the priest was to get before you went o chapel *—Yes, my
impression always was that he was to get £20
And that was before you went to the chapel >—That was before we went to the chapel -
What did you mean {3 telling me that you were surprised into the ceremony at the chapel of
Kilone *—I did not say I ‘was surprised mto the ceremony : :
What did you say /—1I eaid I was surprised into the nature of it, but not ints the ceremony
You knew there was to be a ceremony *—A benediction, I believe
In & Roman Catholic place of worship ! True, Sir s ;
Which, I suppose, you believe is a temple dedicated to the service of the Almighty 3—
True, Sir
' iAnd you knew Mr, Mooney was a priest of that religion *—True, Sir i
And that this ceremony was to be performed at the altar of that church >—T did not quite
meditate the altar. T had not gone into the details Sir -
You knew that the priest was to get £20 for what he was to do ?—Yes, Sir
And that was settled between you before g'ou went to chapel?—That is my impression, T don't
speak positively as to £20, We went part of the way to the chapel by water, and we walked from
tﬁ:ﬂ shore to it
And you explained to the clergyman that you were late, because you thought you had a shorter
Way to walk than it turned out you had ?—Yes, He was there expecting us,  Miss Longworth had
made the arrangements with him, and told me of it \
Had she told you he had been ‘with the bishop in reference to the ceremony ?—Yes
And that the bishop had given permission to Mr. Mooney to perform the ceremony *—1I think
she told me that it ]:-.n,g been arranged between the three that Mr. Mooney was to perform this
blessing for us \
On your oath was that what she said >—That 18 what she gave me to understand i -Loan't
recollect her words, I only know the meaning :
And that is your meaning *—That i3 the meaning T helieved
But she told you Mr. Mooney had been with the bishop, and he had allowed him to perform
the ceremony *—Yes
You had ‘arranged the fee for the work f—She had nrrangnﬂ the fee herself
Did you not tell me that it was arranged between you that the priest was to get £20 —No, I
did not.” I said my impression was that that was what the priest was to get
You went into the church ?>—Yes ;
I suppose you have some respeat for it as the house of God >—Yes
ad you any respect for it, then t—] am afraid I did not prove it
ad you any respect for the house of God 1—I had, Sir '
And for the minister of his religion 3T had, Sir
Of which religion your grandmother and some others of your family were members *—Yes
What did the priest wear on that day *—He wore a black gown'
You went to the altar >—Yeg f
And the priest went inside '—Yes
And atamri‘ before you?—Yeg
And vou and she knelt down F—We did
Side by side *—Yes
% Ei{imm to me. Did you, at the altar, before that priest, take her to bhe your wedded wife 1—
Did she take you to be her wedded husband ?—She did
id you take her ‘“for better for worse PU'—(After a pause.) T don’t recolloct theso words
id you not take her *¢ for better for worse' upon your onth. (No answer)
* For richer for poorer #*'—1 don’t recollect
* In sickness or in health #""—I don't recollect thosn words
What do you say > Dig you repeat the words after the priest 7—We did
You rc;i}_i:ntc{l them ? Yea
1

What did you repeat after the priest ?—e I, Willinm Charles, take thee, Maria TSR ey 0 IR
—what is it—¢ weddad wifu'

Well, what are the words }—7 cannot recollect them

" Perhaps T could remind you; listen—the priest said, T, William Charles, take thee, Maria
eresn, to be my wedded wife ?—Yen

i To have and to hold from this day forward, for botter for worge, for richer for jlmnmr, in
‘oknees and in health, ti1l death us do part, if Hu’l}f Church will permit, and thereto T pledge thee
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~ You looked round for fear there should be amybody in the chureh?—I did
- It was arranged it ahnﬂd be 'll::ept sg:u;atl;‘-—‘lt was !
(i} mi uld not know it #— Yes . ] |
! {t]m: Iml:: Elnﬁh?;iﬂ:ld not hear of it? That none of the famiéy should knew of it? Buf that
your uncle should not hear of it *—If my uncle heard of it everybody would hear of it
- The priest locked the door —That is my recollection ; oWy
Will you swear he ever left the altar to” lock the door *~I" cannot conseiemtiously swear more
than what T reme ber y *ED
Py th&etbtaat of ;]nur recollection ?—To the best of my recollection he looked the door
It is perfectly possible he did not >—Hardly, s
- Will you swear he did *—My recollection 15 that he did
- Was that the door you entered by ?—Yes, the door I entered by :
Was there another door near the nltar?—There was another door at the other side of the altar
‘Exactly. From which the altar and the people standing and kneeling at it could be seen —
No; I don't think =o Sout).
Do you swear that *—No; Idon't swear it. I am swearing to the bestiof my memory
_ Didn’t. you see the door from the altar #—1I don’t recollect !
f£$ﬂn’l;_ynu swear there was'a door beside the altar?—Yes. (The witness heve illustrated the
Yeelative positions of the altar and the door) - % .
1 Eoulcr-nnt a person see from that door to the altar, as you could see from the 8ltar to the door >—
L do not recollect seeing the door from the altar. I recolleet seeing the door when I was in the
shapel. 1 suppose you eould see the door from the altar -
oefore you knelt down at the altar had you a conversation with the Rev. M. Mooney I had
§ When ge asked you what religion you were did you tell him you were not much of anything ?—
L don’t recollect telling him that
e you swear you didn’t?—No, T wan't . 1
4 Inthe Answers you gave him you used the word “Protestant” 21T did
o the word ** Catholic™ »—1I did :
& is no mistake about that ?*—1T recollect that :
| You recollect distinctly that you used both words >—Yes
~ HNo doubt of that whatever?—I recollect using both words. T almost recolloot the phrase I
nade use of f
. How soon after that marringe did 3;;:11 see the Bev. Mr. Mooney to spedk to him T saw him -
& the railway station at Wartenpoint, but T did not speak to him
. When was that ?—That was in the beginning of July, 1858, T think
It was after your marriage with Mrs. i‘m*heu —After my marriage with my wife
. Who was with you >—Mr, Denvir . . -
- Is he an attorney >—Yes
- How long were you with him (your attorney) *—About five or ten minntes
- Did you speak fo him again in Ireland after that mterview I eannot recollect
 Was there anything BH.IE between you and Mr. Moon ; or between you and Mrs. Yelverton, at
sostrevor about aprior marriage in Seotland *—Not with ;{r. M
_Or between you and Teresa Longworth, as you say she was then #~No. Ireeollect no such
Wil gnu swear there was mthi:;lg about a tErin:rr marriage in Scotland, or about something that
mounted to a marriage with Mrs. Yelverton there >—Ne _
_Will you swear you had no conversation about a %riur marriage having taken place in Seotland
beonversation with either Mr. Mooney or Mrs. Yelverton before Your marriage at Rostrevor —

!r”

|

P

Lhen, Im:ct-nling to your statement, this was to be an original eeremony between you and her ?
L _+1d you send any one on your behalf to Mr, Mooney after you saw him in Treland $es] put
AFBelf in the hands of my legal advisers, and they took measures according to their own judgment
| Did you send any one to Mr, Mooney after you saw him in Ireland, in E uly, 1858—did you ?—
LOElieve my solicitor went to him, I beg to explain : it was necessary for me about October, 1858,
b measures to defend myself against a charge of bigamy ; therefore these proceedings were
AZEn about that time
o You ever state to anyone that there was a marriage, or what amounted to a marriage,
S Jou and Mrs, Yelverton in Scotland ?—No, I don't recollect
il you swear you didn't—Some sort of a marriage " No, I recollect doing riothing of the
ind. " T was at Mr, Thelwall's after, but not immediately after. The first time [ saw them was
L .nﬂmburgh. On the 31st of Decomber I went on a visit to ‘the Thelwall's at Hull, not imme-
mately after. T knew Mr. Thelwall. T was ]i'rojcuting at Thelwall's a trip on the continent, I
itk that was on the second visit. Prior to that we had a trip in the Highlands
', nd there wrote this voman as your wife. Is that your handwriting ; (T'he Visiter's Book at
%Qﬂ-ﬂﬂf handed to witness)—Yes. I wrote ¢ My, and Mrs. Yelverton'
a8 that written of her as your wifs P (After n pause)—It might bo taken &o
I8 that your writing in that bogl It is my writing, certainly

.thﬂ.t Your writi_ngﬂ[ her ag rwife i Pl . ' &
or and Mrs. Yelverton'® your wife ?—T wus not practising a disguise—I would have written
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How old is the child ?—Bix years ; . i
You cut the child’s hair off EI'.u carry round in order to get witnesses to swear hﬂ_lh P—It was
1

absolutely necessary for the trial ; I was about to protect myself against a charge of bigamy

The lock of hair was taken ?—Yes _

And by you?—Yes; I recollect taking a lock of hair

Where is it }—I don’t know, unless Mr, Dwyer has it

When did you see it last ?—I don't recollect seeing it since that time

You gave it to Mr. Dwyer ?—I cannot recollect ‘

Didn't you say you supposed he had it now *—1I said unless he had it

What became of it >—L1 cannot recollect

Did you see Rose Fagan ?>—I believe we saw 4 woman of that name

The woman who was produced here ?>—1I should not know her from Adam—Eve—I beg pardon
Did you produce the child's hair to her /—I forget ; /

You know it—did you produce it to her P—T forget, most likely T did

Did you tell her the woman you wanted to spnﬂir. about had the same colour hair?—Yes,

And there was a piece of a gown, too, 3
l Whose was the gown ?—A piece Miss Longworth left behind her at Thomastown.,
i
i

Where is that piece of gown *—I don’t know.
Upon your oath, what did you do with that and the lock of hair—I must have that from

vou ?—I don’t recollect. oot
What did you do with them *—You will have to get them from Mr, Dwyer
Do you mean to say he has them }—I do not
What did you do with the lock of hair and the piece of gown *—I cannot recollect
Did you journey round with them to all the places, from Waterford to Rostreyor *—I don't
recollect going to Hostrevor :
You don’t /—0Oh, yes, I did
Did you see the woman they call Bridget Cole !—I don't recollect
Will you swear you did not *—No : .
If you saw her I preeume you showed her the piece of gown and the lock of hair ?—I have no
recollection of that :
we 1 ask you again, upon the virtue of your oath, what has become of that lock of hair *—T don't know
:l&?%r do you know what became of 1t *—Unless Mr. Dwyer has it amongst his notes taken at
me
- Did you go to Thomastown ?¥—TYes
. Did you see a liftle girl there }—I did
_Have you her here *—I don't know
Did you go to Waterford *—We did
Whom did vou see there *—The people of the hotel
. Have you them here ?—I don’t know
- You went to Mr, Thelwall a second fime *—Yes
. You met at Dunkirk *—Yes
Did you read Mr. Goodliffe's evidence given here?—I did ;
id you produce Mrs. Yelverton as your wife to him >—I produced her in that position—yes
. **In that position”’—I don't want these equivocal words il
other than being a man's wife or not
fiﬂ you iq;r:;duﬂ;rj her vfn'}wur 1;1113 —I tiﬁltrmluln:]d her '
8 your wife *—As m e, aubject to the explanation (great laughter). I i
O o i sl e & BhRF: JJupads oy ppemit
But you had an explanation for it *—All her own arrangement, sir, Miss Longworth's as much
45 mine
Where did you go from Dunkirk *—Amiens
What hotel did you stop at there ?—I don't recollect ;
Did you go to the Roman Catholic church at Amiens with her ?—I don’t recollsct
%ﬁ: won't s:;ﬁur you didn't ?—Tttim is ni ﬁn;i:nthm}zml there
relsa service too, according to the Roman Catholic church. Were you at o
Roman ﬂathulﬁ: churches thm"n with hu;t' P—I don’t recollect ] H
. You don't recollect, non mi recordo.  Where did you go to from Amiens?—By ensy stages to
eaux
Where did you stop first ?—1I cannot recollect

rom You sir, I know of no position

_}thhriduem:in — ;:ant reunlI]E.-ct. Show me :]11 mup!han{ll will tell you
ou not amap before you when you were telling the places v topped at i 3
Imcrﬁ Ireilnnd and I don't knn{r Il;'ranuu ! R e
ow long were you going to Bordeaux *—Three or four d I dar : ’
H Did you stop at Touts -1 don't know S R S
Did you stop at Orleans 2—Yes
. Did you go to mass with her there ?—No, T have no recollection of going to mass with her, You
will come presently to what I recollect
"i‘fm;j wenthtu Bﬁgﬂuux ?—We did
1 December, 7, had you reason to think that Mrs, Yelverton was in the family wayi—
December, 1857—yes, I recollect her writing to me sl i
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Tt is not in the print, where is it, T ask you }—T don't know. I did no$ preserve it

Attend—* Now the fact is that it is not & question of mere anger on my part, but your reso-
lution is founded on false viawar Wgham;ﬁ your duty of kedping faith with me " Does not that

marriage ? To the egrémony ARG
mfef t:;fﬁtsii;eriiugc, sigr? i T never intentionally deceived you, and have done more than I pro-
mised (at great risk). 1 told you theevent we feared could be ayoided, and you cannot doubt that
it is equally unwelcome to me'as it is to you,”  What Joes that mean ?—I think it meant the birth
of a child

How was it to be avoided >—(No answer) '

How was it to be avoided ? Answer the question *—(No answer)

Ts that your letter ?—é]l: iih“t 5 :

TH". mie Upon YOur on W 1t means y

Witness Ezfﬁerym uch deliberation), I wanted to soothe her—to quict her

How was * the event we fear” to be aveided ?—(No answer)

How was * the event we fear*’ to be avaided on your oath 2—(No answer)

Waa it the birth of a child ?—The birth of a ul:ulri

How could it be avoided >—Ita coming to maturity

Chief Justice—Procuring an abortion, in fact ?#

Witness—No

Chief Justice—What else do you mean ?—(No n:n.-aw(aNr)

Chief Justice—How could the birth be avoided ! —(No answer)

Chief Justice— What do you mean, Sir#

Witness (slowly)—I understood that ¥ & woman was in great danger from childbirth that
thnfdumr would manage—would manage to get the child born alive without letting it go to
its full time

Chief Justice—His answer is, the child could be born alive without going its fuil time

Sergeant Sullivan—Very good. To Witness—Attend again to your letter :—* But if the
future proves that I have been deceived by others, that will not absolve you from your faith, the
which 12 you break with me you will never from that moment have one of even tolerable content
doring the rest of your life.”” What does that mean?—FPledging her to secrecy

What zecret was she to keep when she was only your mistress ?—She was engaged—bound in
this arrangement

Sergeant Sullivan—Listen, * If you do feel any love for me you must change that resolution **
—Did you believe she loved you *—I did

Truly }—Yes, Sir i

Entirely *—Certainly, Sir

As a wife might love im:_‘ husband ? i

Witness (after some hesitation)-—There must have been some little want of respect hetween us
i tho ILﬁ:ﬂhlwﬁfﬂElm:?r.ll:m.“1 kaaPte ikl 1 G art this life if

eant Sullivan—Listen, is life you may speak, or if you do, yo
Ly ot e et TR R T S Bt s T oalieats 08 ot oy pewsmay

Showing that you had made her your mistress **in law,"" is that it E‘--%G]‘F true, Siv

And that is the lngilﬁ you wished her to leave after she waa in her grave —Yes, Sir

Leave the legacy to the world that she was your mistress *—Leave that legacy to !msb&rit

Upon your oath was not the legacy the marriage with William Charles 'f:?ﬂ
was the ceremony

‘Was not the true legacy—that you knelt down with her at the altar and swore to God to take
her as your wife ? : |

Witness—Yes, Bir (sensation in eourt).

And that she took you as her husband ? Yes,

And in the presence of the priest

Witness—Suhject to arrangement—— ) .

** Bubject to arrangement,” that was to be the codieil to her will—wasit? No, Sir.

Listen again—** But whilst we both live you must trust me and I must trust you, When I find
niy trust misplaced, if you have any affection for me, I do not envy you the future—your duty lies

way and not that.” What is the meaning of that ? (No answer.)

What was her duty, Major Yelverton ? Keeping faith with me,

.#{:ur l.;iﬁ!é Major Yelverton 2

itness (after a long pause)—As she engaged to do.

:':-,u our wifef As sie_ ungn}gcd to do. e
S ;gpd;lﬁ; -;m[ sxmw';:fur-upun your oath was not that what you meant? No, her duty to me

Is that the duty of a mistress—is not obedience the duty of a wife ? She was bound to keep the
engagement we entered into (a laugh).
hreuk“ift you keep the engagement you enterod into, Major Yelverton® I was not the first to
mh{gﬂ ;T;_T;f;ﬂ:ﬁﬁ:‘ftm break it? No; the engngement—the arrangement—the ceremony we

Did she break the seremony? No, T beli _

sty e k{ﬂp 4 ::ar Blzzll.e-re not, but the engagement,

verton *—Thelegacy







DEPARTURE FROM BOULOGNE.

Oh, I am talking of Bordeaux now. Was there a word of quarrelling at Bordeaux? She was
too ill to think of it
" And you were very kind ! . Quite so ; !
But the resolution of breaking your vow made in the chapel had not occurred to your mind until
you came back to Edinburgh ? I believe so.

Do you ever feign your feelings? I do, sometimes.
Listen to this letter—

¢ Carissima Mia—Faney my disgust ; I have had to wait here 24 hours for an answer to my
letter to Edinburgh, and I have been refused a few days more, so cannot go to Wales, but must go
back direct. I hope you are getting better, like a good tooi tooi. I must hear of you very often,
do not forget that, and do not fancy that I do not care, for I never feign a feeling, though I
gometimes do the want of it; and what I do feel, if it does not equal in intensity your wishes and
expectations, is perhaps all the more lasting on that account, collect, that the hardest sub-
stances, when impressed, keep the most lasting impressions.” ,

Was not that intended to eonvey to her that your affection was to be lasting? Yes, Sir, she
waa very ill, and I was obliged to write very soothing, quiet letters, to her for some time.

But you had not formed the intention of deserting her then, I believe ? I had not.

But in two months after 1;'ml went through another marriage ceremony in Edinburgh? Yes,
8ir, in two months and a half.

The 26th of June was the date of the marriage in Scotland—did you not write on the 26th of
April to Madame Andre, asking her to write to you about Mrs, Yelverton, and enclosing her a
nota? The date will speak for itaelf.

You wrote to Madame Andre telling her that you were greatly afilicted at not getting an answer
to your last letter, and hﬂgﬁing her to give to Mrs. Yelverton the enclosed letter., That is dated
the 26th of April, from Edinburgh Castle; and in it you ask Madame Andre to write to you to let
you know how your dear Teresa was? Yes, I was very much alarmed at the time,

Did you ever write this to her on the 12th of May, from Edinburgh Castle ?—** Carissa Mia—I
am #0 sorry I cannot help to nurse you, and very glucf' that you have got a better nurse than I could
possibly be. . . . (rive my regards to your sister (Mme, L—bvre) #* I wrote that letter,

Madame Lefebvre was her sister who was attending to, her and from whom you got bulletins of
her health ?  Yes,

Listen to this—

““Toll her I have received her two kind letters, and anxiously watch for a third, As I am not
sure whether this can be forwarded to you, I will not write more now. I am weighed down with

R
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THE PABSAGE FROM BOULOGNE.

Why did you eome home by the Danube ? I came home—or rather I did not go by the Dos-
horus, in urzzr not to thrust myself into the danger of proximity with Miss Longworth, fearing
f ghould be led on by my passions as I had been before,

Explain as far as you can the meaning of this sketch by you which has been already produced?
It is 80 long ago I cannot recollect.
What is the huiiﬂinﬁapmam‘red in the corner ?
Chief Justice—The lady thinks it is a convent.
Witness—Somebody has written ** convent” under it, but it is not in my handwriting. It
might be a convent or an hospital. There is a lady gliding down on a sunbeam into the hogpital
or convent, and the gentleman is taking a *‘ header” into :51 gorts of trouble,
Are you able to say when or where you made that sketch ? I am not.
Do you recognise it at all as sketched by yourself?  Yes.
W&rﬂi}'uu at Leith Fort before January, ?'3.5? ? I went there in 'Dﬂh:uber, 1856.
In reference to your attendance at public worship—Mr. Whiteside objeoted, that this was re-
peating evidence. :
j Warwu_u unwell
uhulrillr:f hiteside—A good Protestant won't allow a slight cold to prevent him from going to

The court allowed the question to be put.

: wﬂﬁf you unwell in the spring of 1857, 60 as to be prevented from attending at publie worship?

gi;n:h j;ugul;:;n: such ag to keep you from ehurch? I was on the sick liat.

) ay on which yon went to the door of the chapel at Rostrevor, did you join in the
service or worship? I did not join in any serviee or worship Et Warrenpoint, at :lll!;r 3

-
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You are 8 Pmteshnntg ;Tm o ol e
fou'don’t go to mass? No. :

Do you believe in n“ﬁﬁmiwmm#: Certainty not,

|.l. 31 Itm‘t . !“- I-l .. ¥ -+ : - . ‘

Rav .-_ to :;%Et‘;umtim, when did you see Major Yeélverton? “This adfternomm. .

You saw him lately ve No : :

Jpon your :Iﬂ.ﬂl"h[lﬂ'hﬂrgﬂﬂﬂ talking to you on the subject of religion —0On my oath'hesaid to
s-day that Twas to recolleet the dates of our going to church

Urhe datos of the great war *—What great'war? (langhter)

qe Crimean war. Was it not a great war 7 —It was
Wy thers 7—No %
| Em for it, but perhaps if you were there you might not ‘be here (langhter). What'day
Major Felverron go to chureh ¥—I won't swear 'to any day. 'Tsaw him on Sunday :
On what Sunduy ?—I ecannot 'say any particular Sunday ; 3
Between '51 and '54 how often ()]'.id yousee him atchurch? Will you swear to'four {imeg b1
| swear tothree times -

2400 you think 4 man going three'times to church'in three years 'is.*nlmuhﬂl Protestant ? 'Stp-

ng now he went to mass ten ‘times, what woulll you say 3—(No answ
Shief Justice—Do T understand vou to sy that you saw him three timeés during ‘three years®—
pear to three times. It might be three dozen

4Popposing a man went to urch three times, and to mass six times, what ‘woulll you make of

would not call him Enythi'nrf, I woulll make no remark about him
ou would say he was not bigoted *—T don"t 'know .

fou have not heen guartered with him Iutal; ?—Not for two or three yemrs

irchdeacon Knox examined by Sergeant Armstrong—1 know BRelle Tile, Tord Avonmore’s

try seat I am the rector of the parish of Laura, in which it is situated, and have ‘been so
2 1834, T knew Major Yelverton when a boy, in 1838, ‘during'the time he was ot school. 1

lect him being at home during one ‘vacation. To the best of wy belief he then came te

“®ch with his mother and sisters. I have seen him at the parish chureh in his manhood, when

=

was at home on leave of absence. I-recollect his brother's marriage in 1837, I'saw Major
erton at my church in that year. Belle Isle is-about thiree miles from the chureh. ‘Bometimes
fode and sometimes he drove in'a pony phaeton to church. His horse used ‘to be put up at'my

H#e.  During the year 1857 I saw him more than once st my church.

Jo you know the reputation as to his religious faith ? .
This question was objected to, and permitted to be put, subject toan exception.]
Vitness—He was a Protestant by repute. .

W ross-examined by Sergeant Sullivan—T am positive T saw him twice at 1y chureh in 1857.
§ of tllym_m ur_:c:hmunn was not when his brother was married. The principal evidence Thave as
Wiz religion is hav

inrg_man him go to my church. I am not aware that thereis a bu =
nd at Melleek. Major Yelverton was on a visit at Belle Isle in April, May, and June, 1857,

58rd that his grandmother was a Roman Catholie,

ohn De Burgh Dwyer examined by Mr. Ball, Q.C.—My ‘unele, General Dwryer, resides at.
yquirk Castle, county Tipperary, about five miles from DeHe Tele, I h!rw'u'mtl.with my

e for a period of 20 years. We are intimate with ‘the Avonmors family. T have known

At Yelverion gince 183). In that yearhe came home from Woolwich,  He attended ‘the

ch at Laura. T Liave seen him there ‘on sibsequetit oceasions. Twelve years when he
ned from New Zealand, I remember ‘seeing hF‘:J ‘attend o Laura c¢h In 1857 Nfajor
erton's eldest brother and his wife cxme to resideat Beflo Fslr. 1 remember Maj Yelverton
2 0n & visit with his brother in May and June. He attended the same churéh wre. There
it Catholic church in the neighbourhood. He was & Protestant by repute
ross-cxamined by Mr. Whiteside—I do not keep n-record of all the ns who attend'the
Sh. It is a small church, and strangers are partieularly remnrked, 1 remewmber he praised
Zealand very much; he said he had great enjoyment there. He never told me it was a nive
for alady. " He never told me that it would be a nice thing to have one wife in'New Fealand

“fnother at home here (laughter)

2en you talk of him as a reputed Protestant. did vou beliovs him ‘to be'a relipious i

st It\:lnr.'llmzn;c11 bali:m?rm to be m'i:;%ghuznuu, T'have formed no %ipiﬁnﬁﬂz;'that
. nm not married

. Whiteside—Then, Sir your religious charatter s niot equalte that of vour friend’

gr%ﬁhw examined I;jr Mr.. Brewster, Q.C.—1 Jeap i?u'hdtulﬂ Hilﬁlﬂli"u,ml:td thﬂ

i} 2. you recollect a young couple eoming'to Tive at your house ?

‘“““‘,;N“T- unless I refer to your boulk

! id:_:lwmrﬂmn produced. Mr, Shaw said the entries in'it Baring 1857 were pnftly’im his
; .I?_tﬂg_' that some of them were mide by bis barmaid, and that Te wasin the habit
hﬁm !hﬂ miries daily. M. Whiteside ohjectad th witnoes being sllowed to look ‘/the
vkt L;EHlﬁes were not all mude by hitmsolf: and, ufter atengthened argunient, ‘the
b AL he migat look at the entries Lo mt’mdl.i:.i.a mamory. His lordship todka notd of

xamination resumed—Having refroshed my memory by loolting ot the Yook, T'ath able¢s By

" 4
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What is his name ?—Henry Willis
Were you at his funeral ?—I was nok
Is he alive >—He is dead, I think .
Dead—will you swear that ?--I can’t swear it
Do you swear he is dead ?—1I heard he was : !
“Who brought in the dinner to the lady and gentleman ?—The waiter
When did you see him last 7—He went to the hospital after I left Malahide
What was the name of the barmaid ?*—Fanny Walshe 3
Did she die, too, and did you bury her with the waiter ?—I don't know
Ts she alive ?—1 can't tell . . _
Were there many people going, to the }Ialu.hule Hotel in your time ?*—A great number
Did you keep any aﬂlé at u.!l i—Na, sir
Are you a scholar 2—Yes, sir (laughter) - ¥ ;
You can read and write, but you kept no books >—Not required, sir
Oh! of course not. Your memu?‘—-}'mlr memory. Would you know, Rose, a grown up person
y the hair of a child of four years old?  Would you be able to say what sort of person a grownup
oman was, by the hair of a child—just as you would judge of the cow by the calf? Did youever
g a lock of hair, Rose ?P—I did [ -
That's right, Rose. When did you see it *—Two years ago, in the winter
What time *—I eannot exactly say *
By the virtue of your oath, when did you see the lock of hair ?—I cannot swear
us it in December P—I have no recollection
November ?—I have no recollection of the day :
September—you are a scholar, you know, so ceme ?—I have no recollection
August, July, June—where was it *—In Rathcoffey
‘Was that the first person that called on you *—It was
How many porsons were there *—Two men
Had one of them a moustache ?>—1 cannot say Yok
Do you swear that? Would you know Major Yelverton ?—I would
‘Was he one of them ?—1I can't say
QOut with it #*—I can’t swear
On your oath was not Major Yelverton one of them ?—I can’t swear
You won’t swear it was not ?—1I can’t swear
That is only two years ago, and does your memory improve as you go back, for three years you
know are farther off —I took no notice ; 2
Don’t you know, as well as vou are sitting there, that it was Major Yelverton who showed yeu
the lock of hair ?—I can't swear ; '
Did you see him lately P—Not until I saw him in ecourt
Will you not swear that was the person who showed you the hair ?—I can’t
You swear you cannot identify the person who showed you the lock of hair ?—No
Can you identify the man who was with him ?—I can
‘Who was it *—Mr. Dwyer
* The attorney ?—Yes
Which of them had the hair ?—Mr, Dwyer -
Did the other gentleman with the moustache speak to you ?—I am not quite sure .
Now, as you expect to be believed, was not that other gentleman Major Yelverton?—I did not
know him at the time
And uf1 to this moment you are not sure whether you know him as the man that went to you
with the lock of hair. You eould not identify him *—I could not '
Did they talk much with you?—Not a great deal '
- T'll tell you what they saidZto you, although I was not there, Here's what they said, * Rose,
there's a lock of hair; do you remember seeing a couple in the month of August, 1857, at the
hotel at Malahide? the lady had hair of the colour of that lock.’”” Did theysay that .;—Yei,
Sir. (When the witness gave this answer the people in the front gallery gave u{::u(f cheer.)
Tl:ti:1 Chief Justice said he could not permit such conduct, and he directed the police to clear
ery.
T. Whiteside—Allow them to remain there a while, my lord, T'll instruet them just now.
The Chief Justice said he should have the gallery cleared.
%ﬂ:rﬁr_ﬂhserw:‘d to his Lordship that it would oceupy too much time to clear the gallery
Chief Justice did not enforce his order then, but directed the police to take into custody
““?cgﬁﬂﬂ who should in future create a similar disturbance, _
#s-examination resumed—Did you not say you tould, looking at that lock of hair, identify
the lady that was with the gentleman at Malahids Hotel 3T did

,1,;',?“-% you placed on a form over there whilst Mrs. Yelverton was giving her evidence the othe
—Yes

Was there a form placed thers to enable you to stand upon it and look at her ?—There was

Who brought you in to look at her, on your oath ?—Mr, Dwyer
o was with you >—No person

Was Biddy Cole with you ?—8he did not come in with me; she came in after I went out
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the lady who had been brought ‘into court, and was still confronting Yhe witness, who appearsd to
bR l‘ﬂ{ﬂ' with great anxiety)? I don't know the young lady
Was the ludy who ealled on you alone or accompunied by any one? 'She was alone
This concluded the examination of Rese Fagan. 1t was now six o'clock. \
Mr. Whiteside—Your lordships will not go farther ?
Chief Justice—Gentlemen, I must go cireuit on Monday.

EIGHTH DAY.

“The hearing of this case was resumed at the sitting of the court. The intense interest which
d been manifested in the proceedings from day to day as the trial advanced still continmed, and
_e:lghi_:mhl:hrriuglmut ‘the day by the crowded state of the eourt, and by the multitude that
nesteged the doors.

The Chief Justice took his seat on the benchat ten o’ clock previsely. The full bar at each side
FeTe in nt;clrrdamc&. The case was then proceeded with, jurors having answered to their
DAMEs, AR [0L0WS I— :

John Gtattan, foreman; Bernard Martin, Charles Stephens, Robert Tiong, Caleb Palmer,
G 0’ Neill, hugh Maguire, Patrick Langan, John Ord, Trever Hamilton, Patrick Barden,
William Allen. ;

Iifshn Erskine Dransfield examined by Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—You keep a hotel in Newry ?

0
Did you keep a hotel there in 1857 *—T did
Was there a book kept in the hotel at the time to record the arrival of persons > There is a
ibook kept, but we don’t enter every name in it ' ?
Have you the book with you?—I have
The book that was kept at that time ?—Yes, sir
Just ?,FEP the passage—
Mr. Whiteside—I object to this. Ts itin your handwriting, sir?
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—It is not
~“Mr. Whiteside—Then do not read one word of it \
The Chief J ustiece—(To witness, who was about to open the book)—Do not look at it at all, sir
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—In whose handwriting is 1t ?—It is in my wife's, sic
Mr. Whiteside—That won't do ; g
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—Where is your wife >—She is an invalid. T have a certificate from
doctor. She is not able to walk : she is on crutches ' :
Mr. Whitﬂﬂid&—ﬂistrus&iﬂ%&
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—Well, it is, certainly. Did you see the entries in that book from day
h @;;y in the year-1857, August?—I did
as that book kept for the purpose of your business in that establishment?—Yes
Have you seen Major Yelverton in town *—Yes :
ﬁn ;,;:u knm: 'IS:Eal erson ?—I do, perfectly well -
r. Sergeant Sullivan—My lord, T must sk permissi ] j : ;
. The Chief Justice—Let -]li.£ be sent for A R Bk m;ﬂ]a&
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—And I have a question to ask Mrs, Yélverton about some letters
E{hﬂ Ehlef Juattn-.:—'r"ury good '
r. bergeant Armstrong (to witness)—Are you able to say, from anything that oceurred—
. Mr. Whiteside—That is not evidence—his if:.f‘umnca frurmyfautal ‘I'must be on' my guard
* Mr, Sergeant Armstrong—You are more than on your guard
- Mr. "l"i‘_'hltgﬁldc—I_am as much alive as ever I was (laughiter,)
amination continued—Was Major Yelverton a guest at your house *—Ie was
¥e you eeen Mrs, Yelverton *—I have
Iﬁm she with Major Yelverton, at your houee, at the time you speak of >—Yes: :
re you able to eay what apartments they oceupied?—They occupied the apartmerts’ that
x fr.]nnes and barrister Tickell were in the habit of accupyin
D:;m l;:ke{ju:um chairman of the County.of Armagh, and Mz, Jgunag Chairman ‘of ‘the 'County
The Chicf Justice—Then they had a double st of N :
Tho Chiof Jastion— ey uble sat of a artments ?—No, m;rm-ﬁ ‘
] o Lh::’k;lt iJt;l'u.ﬂ.nli' What were they ?—ﬁ. drawing-room and a large bedroom,
wf- irgcnnt .#.rmutmng—-Huw many beds were in the large bedvoom >—Omne

a8 there p bed in the 1Nner r - 11 bed
Tio you know how lone th G} Srris. B 0 A
Bre You i thase g T, continued in your house *—Two nights

e ¢ ipartments during tleir sojourn there at auy “tine ?-=T ‘was, one'day they
Mr. Whlh!l!l.l:]-e-—Tth' went out and you popped in'? (laughter)
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Where does she go to school ?—Nowhere now
Where then }—Near Newry A ;
And she came home to amuse herself during the holidays ?7—Yes i
Quite right, sir. Did you ever give a copy of the entry in that book before you ?*—I did not
You lay an emphasis on the word “ 1.” Did your wife ?—Not to my knowledge
Do you swear that positively *—I swear not, to my knowledge
What do you believe, on your oath?
Witness—What do I believe ? . :
Mr. Whiteside—Yes, do you hear me ?>—Oh! indeed I do,—that is true. You speak loud
h (laughter 3
#hal: dagyau %elie\ra —T am as sure of it as if T was looking over you, Was a copy giveni—
I do not know
What do you believe ?
Witness—What do I believe ?
Mr. Whiteside—Yes. Have you any belief?—Yes
Then what do you believe >—It was not given, to my knowledge
Well, did the attorney take it ?—Not to my knowledge
‘What do you believe, siv ?—I believe he did not get it
You swear that ?—TYes
You swear now that Sergeant Armstrong asked you to turn to that book, and yet had 1> know-
ledge or notice through his attorney of what was in it? Do you swear that, sir t—You are not far
enough north for me dy&t (laughter). Do you awear that E‘—(YNn answer) .
ou never showed the book to any person ?—I might have shown it to a person
Come, come ; did you ?—I did
Did you show it to the man with the moustache ?>—No
Who did you show it to ?—I cannot recolloct

[
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Did anybody come with him ?—A lady
Did they give any names?—Xo

How long did they stop >—Ten days: ! . Tl -
What apartments did they cccupy r-—:} drlg];wmg-runm, bed-room, and dressing-room.

Was there a bed in the dressing-room —-There was !

Were you in the habit of examiuing the rooms after they left them !~ -Not until affer the

al done them up in the morning |
thh%ﬁ?;-?f me&n in ?:lmiz' cuufp-.mf, or did you often speak to them whilst they were there?—L

did not ;
E'i}d vou ever go into the room to them whilst they were there ?—No
Whio was the ﬂmmﬁd at the time *—Bridget Cole d E

Are you able to say, of your own knowledge, whether or not the little bed-room was oceupied 15

- iteside ob jected to this question %
E. Erclwﬁta:-—u"ﬁ}husn duty isqit to give out the sheets for the beds in the hotel =—Thae.

housemaid's. ; : :
Did you superintend them ?—T keep them myself
Gan you tell me what sheets you gaveout wilen these guests came to your house ?—No
Have you seen the lady since?—Yes
‘Where ?¥—At Rostrevor
When was that *—She called at the hotel in 1858
Was there anybody with her{—No

u

Did she ask you any questions when she eame in 1858 —No : : :
Mr. Whiteside—Mrs. Yelverton was not asked whether she had any eonversation with this

lady, and I wish to save this witness, who is a very respectable woman, from fulling into a mi-fake,,

Bring in that person i :
r. Brewsler—But you say she did call again; are you sure whether she did call again i—.

Bhe did

Did you address her when she called again *—I did.

Did you recognize her —T did at the time

And spoke to her as the person who had been al your house before }—Yes

Mr. itside said—Mra. Bangster should be required to wait in court a few minutes

The Chief Justice directed Mrs. Sangster to vemain in court ;

Bridget Cole examined by Sergeant Armstrong—Were you the Housemaid at Mr. Sangsfer®
hotel in Rostrevor P—I was 2

Were you there in 1857 *—Yea 4

Are you there yet >—2No

How long did you remain there ?—1I lived there eight years

Do you know Major Yelverton's appearance ?—Yes

Do you know Mrs. Yelverton's appearance *—Yes

Do you recollect seeing them together in that year 1837, in the hotel, while you were Houge~
maid there >—Yes :

What rooms had they ?—A private sitting room, a bedroom, and a dressing room

Was there a bed in what you eall the dressing room *—There was

During their stay in the hotel did you make up their apartments and attend as housemaid ?—.

Yes

d -;EE the bed in the dressing room made up at all, during the time tiley were there, for sleeping
in?—No
Did you make up the bed in the bedroom every day ?—Yes
In making up that bed aid you see any marks that would enable you fo say that more persona
than one slept in it #—No, I don’t remember passing any remarks on the bed,
‘Was the bed in the dressing room sheeted at all while they were there ?—No, but there was
bed and bedding in it
A Juror—Were there blankets on it >—Yes
Chief Justice—She means that there were blankets and a quilt on the bed, but no sheets
Examination resumed—Was the bed in the dressing room used at all while they were there ?—
I eould not say
Did you ever make 1t up >—I never made it w
Mr. Whiteside—You were about to sny something else
# ;:r _Jurq:ltvl;‘nuld not the lady make up the bed herself3—Tt miglt be made up without my
ing i
Did they give any name to you #—No
Did you see a pocket handkerchief in the room at any time ?'
Mr. Whiteside—Produce the handkerchief
?“ii:l;g;:l‘nt Armstrong—Produce the handkerchief—a handkerchicf that was seen in the hotel
Mr. Whiteside—Important cases have often turned on such thin
Sergeant Armatrong—In Othello a good deal depenaed on a handkerchief. (Laughter)
Mr. Whiteside—Just s0, It this handkerchief is to affect the lndy in any way, it ought to be
oduced. T don'tknow what has become of the handkerchief, but I can say that when | am at
otels I am generally under a difficulty in finding my handkerchief, (A l:tugit}







CONFIDENCE I3 GIVEN AND ADVICE TAKEN,

Was it a clerk of Mr, Dwyer ?—It might be him

On your oath, was it not the clerk of Mr, Dwyer? Come answer.—(No reply)

A Juror—Were you brought up to the gallery by any person to look at-this lady ?—I was
uipYin the gullery before that, and some person asked was not that Mrs, Yelverton, and I said
b g e

Sergeant Sullivan—Was not that the clerk ?—1I did not see the man. I have seen Mr. Dwyer's
clerk since. He may have been the man

A Juror—Had you any conversation with Rose Fagan last night ?7—I had not

Sergeant Sullivan—Did any one tell you what happened here last night ?—No. T did not hear
what happened last night; but I have heard what happened yesterday

The Sﬂicf Justice—What did you hear that happened last night ?

Witness—I could not tell particularly

A Juror—Did you see Rose Fagan this morning ?—No

Sergeant SBullivan—Were you not in the court last night when Rose Fagan was examined ?—1
was in court, but did not hear her. I was standing in the passage near the door

Did two gentlemen ever call on you about this case before this lady called on you at Rostrevor?
—XNot two gentlemen, One gentleman called on me in September, 1558

Had he a moustache >—No

Who was he ?>—He pame from Scotland. I did not know his name

Tio you know who he was *—1I do nok

Was it for Major Yelverton he called ?—He did not say

Do you swear that ?—1 do

On whose behalf do you think he ealled.?—T could not tell

Had he the lock of hair with him *~He had not
Or a piece of a gown >*—No

Did anybody eles ever call on you about this matter >—Two gentlemen aftorwards called on me
last summer,

L)
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Did the two persons pass as man and wife? :
Mr. Whiteside objected, and the question was overrnled
Can you tell how many beds were paid for?—(Objected to)
Did you send in a bill to these paaplc;-;ﬂté;] my daughter did
urhter keep your accounts '—ahe does ) g
m?xﬁ:ﬂa by Mz, %‘:’hitcsiﬂe—-—.llid you drive the lndy more than onee to Warrenpoint?—
Idid ) s : 1
drive, isn't it?>—Tt is generally considered a beautiful drive i
Ihsgzitfinus& more ﬂumfﬁfmlilegfhm li_[tﬁul'fén 'A"hf_;:? 1L 1.\{11-.1:11;{]110@.'11 there last?—Well, Eir, if yom
i he honour of ealling, you' will out (lau r
‘ﬂﬁ;:ﬂgnﬁiﬁtcn axamined b%:} ergeant Armstrang—%s daughter of last witness. Kept the books
of my father's hotel in 1857. (Book rodueed.) The entry in this book is in my writing. do
mot know the appearance of Mr. and Mrs. Yelyerton
What is the entry in that book >—(Objected to) ;
Were there any other couple livinf- together in the hotel at that time?—I do not know
Were there a gentleman and a lady together in the hotel from the th to the 15th Aunguast,
1857 *—There were; they occupied a sitting room, a bed-room, and a dressing-room
Did von hear them say where they came from ?—Nao, sir
When did they go away ?—The 15th, sir
Did you prepare their bill *—I did, sir
Were vou paid the account? ;
Mr. Whiteside—I object to the question
‘Witness—I was paid the aceount
How many rooms were you paid for >—For the three rooms
What names did they go by at the hotel >—They did not give any names ;
‘Were they called by any names ?—No, sir 3 2 s
Were you in their apartments daring their stay in the hotel ?—1I was in the sitting-room and
in the bed-room _
Were you in the dressing-room ?—The third room was not off the bed-room : "
Were the sitting-room and bed-room in direet communication with each other?—No, sir, we
entered them by separate doors, There was a separate door to each from the passage. -
You eay you were in the bed-room on one occasion. Were you in'what you call the dréssing-
room while they were there #—1I do not remember ;
Cross-examined by Mr. Whiteside—The three rooms open on the passage
George Handiside Patterson examined by Dr. Ball—I am more than twenty-six years an
advoeate at the Scoteh bar. I was called to the bar in the summer of the year 1834, I am not
sounsel for any of the parties in the suit of Yelverton . Yelverton, now pending in Szotland
State to the Chief Justice the various modes by which parties can contract irvegular marriages
in Scotland?*—I am afraid I must state first the distinetion between regular and irregular marria
in Scotland. Marriage is contracted in Seotlnnd by the interchamge of mutual eonsent, fre
wnequivocally, seriously, and deliberately given, with the immediate purpese of becoming 1u,nh~a'mi
and wife, without reference to_any further ceremony, and so expressed by evidence as will be
resognised by the law. When such consent is given, after the proclamation of banns, and before
a clergyman, it is called a regular marriage. An irregolar marriage may be contracted by mntual
written acceptance of the parties as husband and wife, mutual writings accepting each other, or
mutual written declarations or acknewledgments of marriage, or by a series of letters passing
between them, which from their own contents, as well as from the mode in which the parties
address each other in the letters and subscribe themselves, will ercate a clear and unequivoeal
acknowledgment of a marringe then subsisting between them. Supposing the gentlemayp addresses
the lady “my dear wife,” or *“ my wife.”
Mr., Whiteside—That would be a.clear case
Mr. Patterson (rising)—Not altagether, sir; and you will have the poodness not to interrupt

e e Chiet
e Chief Justice—T want information on this subject too
Mr Patterson—Your lordship's interruptions are not at all te be deprecated. Marringe is also
. zed by verbal declaration—mutual declarations or acknowledzments before witnesses
ealled in for the purpose, such declarations not being easual or transitory. [There is also a third

The Chief Justice—I wonder you are not all married there (lond laughter,)
¥ Mr, Patterson—Well, my lord, I am not m‘_ring it is a good law, I am only stating what the
lawis. The third mode is wrifing, followed up by copula. ‘The copula must be expressed im
writing, or proved by reference to the oath of the party, exclusive of all other reference. Thare
18 a mode alse which is aanctioned by statute passed in 1508 (laughter), by open and publie
_lnhnb:.tahm_ for a series of years, such na to create a universal yeputation of marriage; but it
eannot be divided reputation ; it mustbe universal. It wasso decided by the House of Lords in

a very celebrated case,

Dr. Ball, Q.0.—Ts there any cnge in Scotland in which a marriage per verba de prasenti was

ever held to be constituted without a writing or the presonoo of witnessea? 7There is no cass i
which such a marriage has been held gaod. . {

Is there any decision on that point ? Yes, there is a cass in 1766,
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When ? Three or four weeks ago . L

The papers in the Scoteh case aufm laid before you in order to enable you to give an opinion on
the general law of the country ? {Lnu%hter.} No ,

Hut the papers vhmre %;idkh}ﬂfo;? E’ﬂut. Ilhr:;: s

ave you sent them back ! ot ye 1 . R

Would an irregular man-i::agjsin ?iutigm’thhn less capable of proof if the parties declared them-

v husband and wife where? No g _
P, ]?l?:- E?::Eengrea with the judgment of Lord Stowel in Dalrymple v, Dalrymple ? I would say that
his judgment was not lﬁmiing in the courts of law in Scotland _

o you differ from him ? I don't say that I differ from him

1 balieve Lord Stowel heard sixteen advocates on one side and thirty-two on the other, and
then endeavoured to make out as best he could the law of Scotland? (A laugh.) Imust say that
you misrepresent the case g r 4

How many lawyers did he hear on cach side ? I think five or six 3

Don’t you think he must have been an able man to see his way to the truth amongst them!
(Laughter). He was & very able man ¢ :

".‘iu not Dalrymple ¢. Dalrymple the cass of a young English officer who wrote his love-letters
to a lady in Scotland, and then came to England and married again? If you wish I will give you
my account of the case. I will not answer a question of that kind which is not a correct rapresen-
tation of the case _ i

Do you mean to say, Mr, Patterson, that T am not correctly representing the case when I say
that it was one of a young English officer coming to Seotland and falling in love with a lady there,
and writing to her letters of love? He wrote, first of all, promising marriage, which was accepted,
and consummation immediately followed. . :

Do you state now that consummation followed immediately in that case? Was it not in great
doubt ¥ Well, within a few days

Do you mean that Lord Stowel’s judgment turned on the question of whether there had been
cohabitation at all? There was no cohabitation, but consummation

Do you mean to say that the judgment turned on the question of whether there had been co-
habitation oxr not? Partly on it 2

Do you agree with Lord Stowel that the contract of marriage is to be proved like any other con-
fract? It is to be made out from the writings and the whole conduct of the parties that there was
a deliberate serious consent given to marry

Do vou agree with Lord gt.owel*a judgment? Ido :

Don't you differ with him in his general exposition of principles? I did not say that

Do you mean to say that the contract of marriage is not to be proved like any other contract?
u—ﬂartai:n]g not, by the law of Scotland. All the facts and circumstances antecedent to, attendant
on, and subsequent to the alleged contract, will be taken into account in considering the wrilings
exhibited ; whereas, in an ordinary written contract between merchants, no evidence can be given
to explain it awuy

I now refer you to a ease of Hoggin ¢. Cragie, in which Lord Cottenham defines the law of
marriage per verba depresenti, He says it is not necessary fo prove the contract itself. It is
sufficient if the facts of the case are such as to furnish evidence of such a contract having taken
Bkan-a. IThe acknowledgment and contract of the parties, and repute, are sufficient. Is that so?—

rtainly.

And 1he Lord Chancellor says—*‘ It seems he infended so to manage his correspondence as fo
satisfy her conscience and to stop her importunities, but at the same time to keep the means open
to himself to escape from his contract.”” That is English law, sir—sound in its principles and
direct in its application. What do you think of it ?— It is most correct law

‘* But this will not ayail him,” says the Lord Chancellor, *¢if there be proof of apmﬂing Com-
trmtxll'i;. and if the respondent’—the Iady—* understood it to be such'’—is that right >—Quite
right.

And that, though the man there, as here, insisted that the intimacy between them was illicit.

0 you agree with that law?—It is a single passage taken from a large judgment ,
o you agree with it ?—It is exactly what I said

Do you mean to say, or to intimate, that a man who practises a fraud upon a woman can by the
law of Scotland escape ?—Certainly not

If it ean be shown by all the circumstances that marringe was the thing impressed upon the
woman's mind—will he not be bound by it ?—Yes, if clearly made out

Did you not say that it was no marriage if he did not intend it to be one?—TIn that case to
which you refer, it was shown that the man had given her letters which were held to amount to a

« eomsent to marry, and destroyed them, From the whole circumstances, and, from the consent of
the parties, it was a necessary inference that promise was given, upon which intercourse had taken
place between them

He wished to take possession of her ?—Yes :

He destroyed letters P—Yes, I am only spenking from my recollection of the case 3 '

Was not a marriage contract spelled out from the letters, though, as the Chancellor said, th;g

;:Tn: E’:ﬁ:ﬂrﬁgzﬁﬁziﬂm::ful ¥, craftily, so as to leave a loophole for his escape ?—Yes, a
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Iti.s,_Eim:. I want to know would it diminish the force of the-case I put to you ?—I think it

wonld be taken as evidence, but.of very little importance.
Would it be taken into account ?—IL am not sure that if would. e
Witness—Declarations per verha de presenti of that kind maae within Seotland are received in

Seotland, but statements of that kind made out of Seotland would not be received as evidence in
tland to constitute a marriage. :

Sn-nm- ‘Elr,Ej;;midg_Huw, Mr. %?:climinarg Patterson, that was not the question T asked vou, and,
with deference to you, you never yet gpve me adirect answer to any question L put. '[-asl::‘}rull
whether the fact of the man.and woman, concerning whom I before questioned you, being received
and addressed, as husband and wife in Ircland, France, Belgium, or Switzerland, would diminish
the force of the testimony in: Seotland ?—The cireumstances would be received in evidence.
wounld be taker ag an item of the evidenea., " ‘

Tiisten, Sir. Would letters, addressed by the woman in Scetland, reeeived by him, and calli
him husband—would they be evidence in your law to assist /—Undoubtedly, I there were 8

lettars it would be evidence. ; Mol 3 ‘ o

A.strong fact? Tt.would be an item in the evidence against him. No doubt of it,

And all these facts would go/to prove marviage Yes,

Now, listen, Sir. Do you approve of this one decision before you go? [Case of Honeyman .
Gampbell, reported in 5 Wilson Shaw, 148.] . :

“gfha Lord Chaneellor—I desire to be distinetly understood as acceding fo the doctrine that
whero, two persons are proved to have been in courtship, and, though no distinet promise was
made, yet where:ambignous expressions were used from whieh & promise might be inferred to have
been: made on the one hand aud accepted on the other, and if there is great probability of a promise
having taken place, that promise will be turned into a certainty by the copula which follows.” Is
that good'law ¢ Certainly ; no doubt. ; ;

“%ﬁd for this plain and obvious reason, that the woman under these circumstances docs not
yield her virtue for nothing, I assume that she gets that consideration for it, precisely as 1 would
assume if I had a doubt about the evidence of a common contract for the purchase or sale of mer-
ehandise. When I see one party paying a price, if there were ambiguity as to the Largain
stipulated, I should consider the ambiguity removed thhe faet of that price having been paid."
Do you approve of that as good law? T do; it is good law.

Court—Yon say that, however solemn be a contract of marriage, per verba de presenti, between
two persons in a room alone—however solemn, if there are no witnesses to. the exchange of the
w even though followed by cobabitation, 1t is not.a marriage by the law of Scotland * No,
my lord; I did not say that. What I say is this: These words passing between two parfissin a
room without wilnesses, and followed by nothing else, would not, per se, constilute murriage.

I asked you, if followed by cupola? That would be & material fact to constitute marriage:]

Were you present in court during the examination of another advozate? I was.

You are aware his opinion isiat nght angles with.yours? I think not, my lord.

What he said was: *If there be in Scotland a solemn, contract, per verba de presenti, though
no witnesses are nt, and no writing given, still, if that arises in a caee in which evidenca can
be given, and if the faet be proved, the fuct of the absence of witnesses while the contract was
made constitutes no abjection.’” Do you agreein that? I donot.

Ls that the effect of the statute law or:of the commoen law of Seotland ? Partly both, my lord.
In tha first place, neither of the parties ean give evidence of the contract,

Court—That is another matter, Neither of the parties, in a suit infer se, can be witnesses, and,
therefore; when the thing, arises inter se; there cannot be.evidence of it? No, my lord,

know ; but supposing there be a man in Secotland who performs, that contract per verba de
pressnti with a woman, he and she being alome; suppese that that man dies, and a question
then arises as to the legitimacy of a child : Is the mother of the child, in a suit Uetween that child
.and a third person, a competent witness to prove the legitimacy of the child? I am not aware of
any case of the kind being decided.

Hasmo such case arisen? 1 have no recolleetion of any such ease, my lord.

Tl'mrgl‘nre, it remains yet to be decided, according, to the lnw of Scotland. In a gasein which a
woman is a m_mEeh_znt witness, if she proves having performed that continct with a man, and if
that evidence is believed, is there any decision in Scatland that her son will not get the inheritable
lﬂ'ﬂﬁ}' ? Thereisnosuch decision. The case could not arise, my lord.

y not? For this reason, my lord: T think they would hold that, a party contracting in
such o way being interested in proving the fact of the contract, her evidence would . require
sarraboration, :

That is, that she would not be believed?: Yes, my lord.

Iam putting the caso of her evidence being believed. ICT, ns an honest man, am satisfied in
my; conscienes that this man took this woman for his wife, had cohabitation with her, and died im
.course of the noxt night, before any opportunity was given of the publication of the marria

that a son is born, and that a question arives between that son and a brother who otherwise wo
inherit the property, —if, notwithstanding the improbabilities, of the case, the judge in his con-
Belence bg:l:l.n\"{rﬂ the facts, T ask _Fﬂ-l:l. who would be entitled to the roperty, according to the law of
Seotland? Undoubtedly, if the Tacts were proved, the son would Eu entitled.

I8 there any law of cotland, ns hetween thivd parties, enabling the wife or husband to be a
witness to prove the marriage? Thore could not be any such case in Scotland,






PORTRAIT EKETCH BY A LADY BCHOOLFELLOW.

fMra, M‘Lean is very mild indeed. Summer flowers enclosed in sunless bowers pine In
delicious tranquillity in comparison as I pine for thee: every sense of soul and body pine every
instant of the long day. I_IFrom the top of the head downwards is one absorbing desire,
Every shining hair longs individually to be stroked. The eyes yearn to see you; the
ears are distended to catch the first sound of your voice or footfall ; the hands throb and tingle to
touch {l-:-u. and feel you onee more safe within their grasp. So on I could enumerate ; but I come
to the little feet which are kicking and stamping to have their boots laced. I want you ! !—want
ou!l—want you!!! As to there being any conditions about the arrears of petting, I am crazy.
must have it, or I shall hate yon, Theﬁled gea between us is an impossibility. I would rather
be a boy blower, My hand and arm have been in a ahnckini state, but are mending, and inflamma-
tion gone, but I can scarcely write, as you perceive. The Rifles are quartered here. The one here
the doctor. Do not know if he goes to the elub; but we have not seen anything of him here,
80 do not think there is much danger. Write and say what hour you will arrive, I must mest
%91-1- I see g o only leave Liverpool on the 15th, at night. That will make you a day late.
ou might leave on the 12th ; but I suppose you won’t. You stingy thing ! say am I to have the
arrears then, cento mille baccia, mia vota, mia gioin, mia tutte; but not without the payment.

§ La tua, “THRRRIA."

* Monday."

' 3 (Letter 48.—Miss Longworth to Major Yelverton.) !
‘T have just read yours, and now only. know what has been the mainspring of my existence.
I feel utterly ineapable of doing anything—of taking a decision. I ought to go straight off to that
place. I feel that is the thing to do, but have not the strength to do it. I can only feel one over-
powering anxiety to see you. I felt that once before, when my best-loved brother was drowned,
and when they could not find the body I lost my senses ; if I mu{d have seen him I ghould have suf-
fored less. T am on board myold friend the 8 _-,rhi{la, and every time I tell myself that I am not townte
to you—never to see you again, 1 approach instinctively the gangway, and there comes a swim-
b g in the head, and a violent impulse, as though some mighty force ware impelling me to go over-
oard. . , . ., ., Tam a weak, helpless woman, and God knows I have done my best not to
Id, neither have I ﬁ:rﬁntten to ask for strength from whenee alone it comes, . . . If1I
ack to Belbek, I feel that I shall walk mechanically down that green well. God helpme! I
::::‘F‘]ﬁf if it would be a'sit.  No one would ever know what had become of me to the end of time ;
3 11' eep and disused. You must come, and that quickly, or write and say when. You are the
Jnly one in the world who has any influence over me. Perhaps you can bring me back my seat-
th m‘“““- 1 am quite terrified of becoming delirious, and mYli.ug every one all aboutit. DBefore
e Closes found me out at Belbek I used to get up at night, and could not by any effort prevent
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Did you ascertain before that persons, on the part of Major Yelverton, had been searching
he?;lidenm ¥ Yds. it S Ves
id you ever sec Rose Faganr—1¢ F
g['?u:} {.a exnctly what took plice between you.—1I asked Rose Fagan if any one had been thers
inquiring about the Yelverton caso. She said that two persons had been there, and showed ber a
ﬁ of golden hair, asking her did she know, or could she remember, & ]m@}' and gentlemsn being
at the Malihide hotel in the month of August, 1857. They asked her if she could recollect a
ung bride being there, with fair hair, who wore it ofl her face in the French style. They also
Eﬂweﬂ her & pieee of a diess whieh they said she wore at that time. She told me that she had
told them she had not any recollection whatever of the parties,—she could not recollect or recall
to mind anyv lady of that description. They then told her that it weuld be greatly to her advan-
tage if she could recollect a young bride being there, who skared a bed-rcom with her husband.
She then said that she could not amongst the many that went there. Bhe could not remember.
They then told her again that it would be greatly to her advantage if she could remember, and
ahe said she could not, but believed they had some rascality in wishing her to remember (pensa-
tion). She told me that she'teld them so. : .
Are you the lady who communicated to Mrs. Yelverton the fact about the loek of hair and the
piece of dress 7 —Yes % :
Did you afterwards go to Rostrevor to see Bridget Cole >—Yes, aud saw her at the place where
ghe was, in a situation at the house of a gentleman named Clarke
Was Mrs. Yelverton with you 2—No, I wag alone
What did she say to you #—as shortly and as clearly as you have told usin the first instance,—
I asked her was she Bridget Cole; she said she was, and asked me into her room. I then raised
my veil, and asked her did she sce me before.  She said she knew me by my veice before I raised
my veil. Isaid, ““Are you sure f‘uu know me ' “Qh! " she said, **I am quite sure I know you.”
R {'au are quite sure of that? "’ Tenid. *Yesshe answered, “T remember you being at the
hetel at Rostrevor.™ T 'then asked her had any one been to see her. ;
That 1%, looking for evidence for Major Yelverton ?*—Yes. Bhe said two gentlemen had been:
there usking her if she remembered a ludy and a gentleman being there as man and wife, and what
room they oceupied.  She said she remembered that there had been two rooms taken, and one bed
was slept in; but she said the other bed locked as if it had been slept upon, but not in
What else *—ZEhe said they agked her if she had ever seen Major Yelverton in the lady’s room.
Bhe said no ; she had never seen him in her bedroom, but she had scen him once near the door in
the passage ; but could not remember what bedroom that was
g thut the substance of what was gaid then *—Yes
Did yuu offer any situation to her *—No
Do you swear that >—T swear it; I never did
Or any employment in England *—No
Or to Rose Fagan ?—No; 1 had none to offer 4 :
Cross-examined by Mr. Brewster—When did you first become acquainted with Mrs. Yelverton ?
In the early part of 1859 ;
Where did you stop when you came to Ireland *—At the Gresham Hotel.
How long were you there before you went to see Rose Fagan ?—A fow days
Had you been to the Malahide Hotel before that ?—No
Did you ever go there *—Never
Who desired you to go to Itose Fagan ?—Mre. Yelverton
Did she ell you the name of the person you went to find out ?— Yes
Did she tell you where she lived *—Yes; she gave me her address
Did she tell you she lived at Ratheoffey, near Maynootk ?—Yes
And you went down to sec her *—7Yes
When you said you did, did you tell her who you were }—No
You are sure of that ?—T am '
?ut n war:ii?—-ﬂ?p i
I am sure Mrs. Yelverton 18 a very kind person to you *—Bhe is most az .
Is she aot kihd to you E—Extreﬁy Tﬂng 5 szl
You were very fond of her $¥—I am very fond of her
Have you ever been a wearer of her bonnets >—I might have dome so
Have you not dene it ! —Once or twice T have
ave you not ;-Ivo:]?dntlmr portions of her dress ?—Yes
on youreath, did you not ge down te Rostrevor in some portion —N
ou awear that pmit?‘-’l}]f P—1 awear it el lﬂﬂ-ﬁlﬂ B
Not any portion ?—No ; none whatever '
Was it the same bonnet you have now on that vou had on then

T I:EE:;H (emphatically)—No, it was the same sort of'a bonnet, but it was warm out long sge .

Did you and she ever deal in the same milliner’s s i -
Never bought bomnets of the same description ?ﬁ—?l‘:u',:l“ ki s
8he has very good taste in dress, has she nat ?—T am aware of it

And you approve of her taste in’ dvess —Very much

Anil, approving of her taste | : ot
fea L e hga o ';1 ir. r; 1111 ::FT, you, of course, sometimes have clothes not unlike hew's —
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How did she eome to sav she knew you? By my voice. I asked her was she Bridget Cole, and
SR naid ' Yep. ! -1 went iﬁtu the kite:;rham b;r Yhm‘yinvitntiun, and I asked her !iid she know me.
When I raised up my veil she said, * Yes, ma'am, I knew you before by your veice.”

Did she tell you she was mistaken? No.

You knew ghe was mistaken ? I had a doubt.

What doubt? A doubt that she could remember, : .

When she said to you—'*I knew you by your voice before you lifted your 1.-!;11,” had you any
doubt that she meant by that that she knew you to be Mrs. Yelverton? I believe she thought

: wf:;d you, believing that, left her under that misapprehension? I did not undeceive l'fur—{aup-

applause).
pmf:;ﬁ ]an- }rm.g entered into conversation with her as Mrs. Yelverton? T asked her who had
heen there, and if any one had been there spealr.ingi to her relative to the Yelverton case? . =
_Tn that room did you write upon any paper? I wrote the address of Mrs. Yelverton's aunt in
don.
Lm,is a place for her to write to? A place for her to addressa letter, I wanted the address of
another servant who had been at the Rostrevor Hotel, to be sent there,
And was it with that view that you wrote the addvess of the aunt of Mrs. Yelverton? It was
with a view for her to send the address, if she found it, of a girl named Mary Conolly
That is, to send a letter to Mrs. Yelverton's aunt? Not a letter, but to send the address there.
Where did you get paper for the purpose ! Bhe gave it to me herself. : :
Did you nsi her for 1t? I said to her—*If you give me a piece of paper I will write the
address.”
Did vou say it was to Mrs. Yelverton's aunt? Yes. .
Did ‘you tell her that Mrs, Yelverton lived there? I said it would be forwarded to Mrs.
Yelverton if it was sent thera,
Does Mrs. Yelverton live there? Yes; when in London she does. i
. Upon your oath did you not say that any letter forwarded to that address would be received
She had mistaken you for Mrs, Yelverton? Yes.
.. And you did not at any time undeceive her? No.
And she was aﬂeaking toyou as if you were Mra, Yelverton? Yea, - :
Upon your oath did you not say, * Any letter to me will reach me if it is sent there " No; I
did not. - :
This is the third time you have been in Ireland? Yes.
¢! Have you been oftener here #  No,
Before you went to Ratheoffey did you speak to any professional gentleman? No,
- tHad you never spoken to any one upon the subject of your going there but to Mrs. Yelverton #
Aot one.
I suppose you acted exactly according to her instructions? T did.
1 Did you speak to a professional man before you went to Rostrevor >—No
. ,On each occasion did you travel by yourself >—Dy myself
- To and fro ?—Yes
« , Did yon go to the hotel in Newry?—Not to stay. I went to Dransfield’s Hotel. Mrs.
Yelverton diréeted me to call there, She did not tell me the name of the hotel. She said ten
hotel at Newry. I went there, but did not stop any time. I went into the bar, and stopped a few
minutes. [ asked had anybody been there
Did you ask did anybody know you ?—No; I did not
Before you went there, on your cath, had you seen any professional man ?—No,
Did you, with reference to any of your own visits ?—Not any.
_ In that October visit to Ireland, how long did you remain }—About six weeks.
., Were vou all the time at the Gresham }—No.
. Where else—We went to Cork.
. Was Major Yelverton quartered at Ballincollig then 7—No ; he was quartered at Cork,
+ How long did you remain there ?—Nearly five weeks.
l¥id you return to Epgland straight from Cork, or come through Dublin ?—We returned to
Wﬂ];l ¥ steamer fran[]ﬂ Gc:lrk. i3 :
When you went to London, did you continue in the employment of Mrs, Yelverton ?—I was
ﬂ'bliflqﬂ to go home, because I was unwell. I did not cnntinu}: iTﬁEr employment.
id you leave her directly ?—Yes. I remained at home about a rnnanl,
What month was it in which you went to Edinburgh *—February, 1859,
I t.hil!:!:t 18, you went there a month after you became companion }—0Oh, yes, in about three wecks,
You Etndj'eﬂ there a month ?  Are you sura.it was not more ?—Yea,
I-'ﬂ'“;}hmh id you returryto London with her #—In April. I had left her at Hull on my way to
wainburgh, and going back to Edinburgh, I called at Hull for her, and we returned to London in
the latter end of ﬁ.pnﬁ_
gﬁf:&:ﬁ“ uutwentg home Itu our father ?—Yes,
about eoming to Ireland in the mid R
And applied to you thgen 5 1hs Har 1. dle of Ostober ?—Yes,
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the purpose of having this claim of he investizate :
grvidpnuep on that 5uhjegt, nmluﬂ:ér that thull"sﬂ 01::: ?L%ltﬁ:t{!lﬁlulﬁld haed, ool hen O
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el iroctisaffbst the anly prni':l:.'ﬂﬂi el R cn‘? l:Ea-Ll:r.lf'.. ot that the dr_-lmsmn of it mow
e e, o antictpate prosesdings by nin'tlmt,g renulht could be arrived at; but in
werdict to work, at all events, some small effect upon "the ':uhll-pfjs 1 t&hu R A s
jury, the action proceeds upon the allegation that this latliv is ut,]ran. o pedamnan (e
think before I shall heve concluded my observations it will be 5 :;-1 Cul e elbnnach; ancoL
unless you are prépared to arrive at a conclusion that she is so t‘ll; perfectly apparent to you that
a verdiet, and that my elient must succeed. Gentlemen of t!iﬂ e P S
threshold of these observations, that there is 'n vast denf' Ehjur“h L rwdll sy, af the v
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call your attention to the incidents of the case, to the e e
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plaging for a great stake here. The coronet of Avon y tho geriugofthat. artfal swomun ? , Bhe is
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this woman by the hand, notwithstandi 2 R e 0 (LREGE, arotionoafo:(} ‘
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: ray by Major Yelve gider whother you will temst
! M ot dia i fian (B Et:'mﬂ 0¥ Major Yelverton, or to that which thi i
tion :—When there exists n.!writtﬁ osen to swear to, you will have to ask y e g
& il I —_— . 5 [ 1
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and to tergiversate and quib v, or whether you will believeithe lady wh g g
s b et quibble, who, directly charged yesterday wi who secks to explain away,
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Mr, Sergeant Armstron r
o e ngre {;t; nﬂ, you have the benefit of it. I.do not think she wag



_and yet rushed upon destruction, that woman was Maria Theresa Longworth. Not that I jus
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AN EVENING AT THE GENERAL'S, .
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong—Take it Mn;?w jury will have the document, and it will speak for &
itself. Gentlemen, Major Yelverton has given his version of this case. Character, talent, art,
motive, the power of the inventive faculty, in the one and in the other, are all most material for
your consideration, In this case, therefore, I feel it to be my imperative duty to invite yours
attention closely to the correspondence from first to last, so far as it is in evidence, and to ask you ™
confidently upon that, and upon the whole facts of the case, to answer me each of these questions.
And I respectfully demand a verdict in my favour oneach of them. First, whether there ever wasd
8cotch marriage; and, mmn{]]iy, whether for twelve months before the ceremony in the chapel, &
this gentleman was a professed Roman Catholic; because, talk as we may, and reason as we Wil &
to these two main questions the case must resolve itself at last; and now it is of the last importance
that you should bear with me while I eall your attention to this extraordinary mmnppndanne. ' i
seruple not to say, and I hope T will demonstrate to you, that. if ever a woman was fairly warned, §

the man who was weak enough, or wicked enough to co-operate in,autﬁ: il uﬁta;atmp'l:a: God forbid
I should! But that she persuaded him—courted him—followed him—made suggestions that will |
bring a blush when I read them to every modest cheek of man or woman, 1 will demonstrate upai
those letters. It isidle to allow our I‘n:aiinga to be carried away by a syren of that sort. We would
not be fit to conduct the tribunals of this country and see justice done, 1if feeling is to be allowed h
awa{ us in the face of the plain facts and truth of the case. £

he learned gentleman then referred to, and commented upon, geveral of the earlior legtel
from Mrs. Yelverton to the defendant.

At half-past six o'clock, a .
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong eaid—At this stage of the proceedings it might be convenient 1€
adjourn. :

His Lordship—T have not the slightest objection; but I wish now to apprize you of £if
arrangement | intend making. You have heen speaking now for three hours. I shall sit af tel
to-morrow, and will give you until half-past twelve to finish your speech, after which 1 will alle
gix hours to Mr. Whiteside for his, That will be, I think, a fair division of the time. ‘3

Sergeant Armstrong—I am quite satisfied, my lord. b

Mr. Whiteside—So am I,
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3 NINTH I}AY

Tak extraordinary interu.t whieh this romantic case I:mi excited in the puhlu: mind, and wikich has
on increasing as the trial proceeded, rose to a degree of intensity on Saturday which has never
been paralleled within our recollection. It was to have been expected that an immense nudience
would assemble on the day on which Mr. Whiteside would address thejury. The well-known eloguence
of the learned gentleman always attracts a orowded court when the case in wlhich he appears is one
even of ordinary and trivial interest, and the desire to hear so distinguished an orator was, therefore,
| naturally enhanced to an immenaurahlc extent when the cause in which he was to exert his brilliznt
powers of eloquence was one which possessed go many features of deep and thrilling intevest. But
the anxiety to hea. .«Ir. Whiteside far surpassed anything which we could have imagined. For
upwards of one hour before the proceedings commenced, the doors leading into the eonrt were besieged
by crowds of people pressing and clamouring for admission, “When the doors were openad, a rush
was made into the conrt, and évery available spot waa immediately oecupied. There was a very lavge.
attendance of ladies, and several noblemen occupied seats upon the bench. The bar benches were:
crowded to excess, and sitting modestly amongst the juniors we observed the eminent lawyer, Mr.
J'nna.thnn Henn, whose presence on such an eccasion, and in such a place, was one of the itrongest
Eﬁﬂmmu that could be offered to the surpassing interest of this case. 3
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are therefore to be trusted” That was most significant, he asserted. On the 16th Angust, 1853, he
wrote her a plain letter to say that he had come home by the Danube to avoid her. He said, “I
am sorry T made a false promise”—that was the promise to go see her. He tells her the dinlogme
which he imagines to have taken place betyween his head and his brain as to how he should come
home, and he said “the head became irresistible :” that was, that his good sense triumphed, He
{Sergeant Armstrong) asked the jury to say was this the courtship of an honourable man and virtuous
woman? The defendant said, * I purposely avoid now, as much as I can, any attempt to influenee
your decision.” If ever an' overture was made to woman to accept a position wholly irrecon-
gilable with the idea of marringe, that passage conveyed it. The jury would be asked by
the counsel on the other side in matters where the testimony conmflicted, to discredit the oath
of Yelverton becanse he acted badly. He (Sergeant Armstrong) denied that proposition alte-
gether, and contended that bad and sinful as was the conduct of Yelverton, he was not in_this case to
be discredited in a court of justice. It was manifest that, notwithstanding the temptation he was
sabjected to, he avoided the Biren, She says in, the mext letter, * You have placed 3000 miles
between us; appear before you again I dare not, and thongh to touch you will be a most fearful
temptation, yet it must be resisted, for your odic force to me is like opium to the dervish, the mao
dangerous it becomes the more gwect; but I will be content with half.” What did that peint to?
that very letter she wrote also, “ I ain possessed with but one feeling, one thought,one desire—I cannot
‘live withount the performance of it—I cannot die until it is accomplished.” What did that mean?
Was it French diction? He asked them ag men of common sense to put their interpretation on that
‘passpge ¥ Was it conceivable that any counsel could, after opening this correspondence, ask a verdict
for the plaintiff* It was impossible. The next letter to be referred to was one from Yelverton to her;
a fragment of whieh was only produced, and the residue entirely unaccounted for in the evidence.
ecommenced—* Cirenmstances and you wantto know how I make myself at times indifferent, ['11 tell
you. You mistake an effort of the will for indifference; it is that knowing I cannot gain on that
terma, T will not try on yours (neeessity made).  Addw carissimae sempre ¢ te.” What was that
but a statement that he knew her object, but as he eould not comply, he would not try to * gain on
hers.” Yet this was the man who was to e hnmbled down in a court of justice, He arrived in
England in October, '56, and he writes this short lettér—* Dearest, what do you want? T think of
thee. You be welcome.” She writes: on the 15th of Janvary, 1857, to him from, her sister’s place,
Abergavanny—* I shall want to speak to yon, and retract all I said about legitimate ways." The
jmry would recollect that inan early letter she told this deluded young man that it was a pity people
eould not go “on trial in married life.” Let the jury read these letters together, and it was impossible
to escape their meaning. In the same letter she writes, * You tell me I lost my best chance at
]'!_Al!a.]:invn-u;ood- gracions, had I ever the ghadow of a.chance.” Where was the letter in which He
told her of her *best chance" being lost at Baluklava. It must have been told by letter. Did the
jury believe the nonsense that Yelverton proposed a marriage by Bishop Bore at Balaklava? The
lady trumped up a story to that effect, but the jury, as men of common sense, would say whether that
girl, only too anxious to be in Yelverton's arms, would refuse a distinct marriage by a Catholic bighop.
Mr. Whiteside said the learned counsel was not stating the evidence. What the lady said' waas
that there was a proposition at Balaklava that she should be married in the Greek church. :
Bergeant Armstrong said hedid not care.  Let the jury take it to be a proposition to get married in
the Greek church, and ask themselves was that proposition made and rejected. It was arrant nonsense
to suppose such a thing. In the same letter he was quoting from she says, * If you allow that youm
have disordered my machinery either by breaking or, n'émporte quoi, why, it is clear you must mend
it. If you have no radical cure yon must effect a partinl one. So long as you are the practitioner I
would submit to any operation, but I vow no other hand ghall tonch me.” What did that mean? He
left it to the jury to say. Again she says, * dream of me, it is pleasant if not practical.” What did
that mean ? During the months of January and February Yelverton was unwell, which fully accounted
in his (Sergeant Armstrong’s) mind that there was delayed till February the * consummation of all,”
whichi ehe declared in a former letter.  She wanted to come. Did ever woman so fling herself into
the arms of & man as the woman who in this ease had been paraded before & crowded court as a
paragon of purity and excellence? In the name of God, what could be expected upon any ordinary
principle of human eonduct, to be the result upon a young officer receiving these suggestive, these
ﬁ‘ning letters,  What conld be expected but the sin and misery they cansed. On {lia 9th
-of March, 18567, he wrote to her not to come to his quarters at Leith, unless she was well.  Was
anything ever plainer than this—*As to whether you can come is certain—as to whether y
n:ﬂht"-—he (Sergeant Armstrong) supposed wes equally certain the other way., Imagine any
lld young fellow in Portabello Barracks receiving such a series of letters, and then writiag
such an invitation to the lady. Were they men with the passions of men, or were they etherealized
Wwithout feelings, emotions, or passions. *“ However, I will take care that no character
exeept mine, whieh is utterly unimportant.” They all knew what would be thought of the
! officer, and the woman who visited that officer In barracks. Having regard to a portion of the audience
:;dmld not refer to oeccurrences in relation to this point further than to tell them to recal t
1011- l:r?ﬁ?:i l;]tu what took place between him and heron the first visit at Edinburgh, and what oscurre
B e Steamer on the morning she was going to Hull, If his learned friend said it was odd the
| g l“ “"{'wf more frequent, or was g0 long delayed, but the man was unwell, and there wad nd op-
portanity. Was that a story any man would tell of himself gtherwise than under the nhligﬁi'dfﬂf
ng the

o

roath?  Bhe safd that before that letter was written the ceremon
" nony was gone through of r .
‘wervice from a Protestant prayer-book. That she fixed im April, 1867. She enid he read mw
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gorvice from Miss M'Furlane’s pruyer-book, and said they took each other for men and wife. No
human ear heard the words, no human eye witnessed the proceeding. Ie (Sergeant Armstrong) told
them, under Lis lordship’s correetion, the law of Scotlumd did not permit that to be a marriage, and a
miserable thing it would be if it did. She swore to this proceeding, and he contradicted her. Who
was to decide between them * What misery and confusion in society would arise if she was to be de-
elared a wife upon such an allegation, In every Christian country, if & marringe was intended, it was
celebrated in the presence of witneases, who could afterwards, if necessary, prove jt.  For the first time
in the history of the world it was to be said that,according to Scoteh law, a man and a woman might be
in a room alone, and, upon the uncorroborated, contradioted swearing of the woman, & marriage was to ba
cstablished. What reason was there, or could there be, for concealing the thing from the confidanie,
Mige M'Farlane, who was actually in the next room, and who was under pecuniary obligations to this
Iady, and one who could be trusted. "Why was she not brought into the room if there was the slightest
intention of marringe. The lady said she opened the door, and said to Miss J'Farlane they had
married one another; but Miss M'Farlane could not bring it to her conscience toswear that anything
of the kind oceurred.  So that the whole story rested upon the sole uncorroborated testimony of this
temptress, who tempted this sinful young mon farther than man was ever tempted. Turn over the
pages of romance—look to the history of Abelard and Heleise, and they would nowhere find any
ecntiments so passionate, 50 strong, so ardent, and 80 execiting, as were contained in the letters of this
woman. Was Major Yelverton flesh and blood, with the passions and instincts of & man *—or was he
to be trusted as if he were not such?  He was wrong, no doubt, and he (Sergeant Armstrong) was there
to defend him, this much abused, much assailed, and justly assailed man; but he did not stand there
to vindicate any immorality, or te pallinte it. God forbid. But he did insist that in ervimes of this
sort, as in all other, there were degrees of guilt. That he serupled not to assert the considerations that
existed in cases of murder and manslaughter were also to be regarded in dealing with assaults upon
the virtue and fithfulness of the sex. He acted wrongfully, sinfully, and wickedly ; but apart from
liz conduct in this case, what was there to digentitle him to belief upon oath or to induce them to
believe he would commit abominable perjury, though he fell a vietim to the allurements and snares of
thia most persevering and artful woman? These were his observations upon the pretended Scoleh
marriage, which he utterly denied, or any other marringe. To be told that wns an honest marriage,
or & mearriage at all, would be a blow to virtue, to the seeurity of families, o the peace, and honour,
and tranguillity of married life greater than ever had been inflicted upon that sacred connexion. God
forbid that such a transaction, even if it oceurred, would receive the stamp of approbation from an
honest jury. This woman represented lerself as s strict Roman Cothelie, and that nothing would
salisfy her conscience but a ceremony by a priest, which, according to her acoount, was & mere matter
of time axd arrangement. In a letter of the 5th of May, 1857, after the Hull steamer traneaction, she
spoke of her “ doubts and fears absut the durability of requitement.” What was to be requited? He
could nnderstand if a woman had shown & favour to a man, that she expected a requit ement; but il
there had been a marriage followed by nothing more than talk, he was at a loss to know what was the
“requitement.”  Could they solve it* Were they there, like children, to swallow this woman's asser-
tion ¥ She spoke of “ misrivings as to the endurance of attachment merely the effect of proximity,”
and fearcd * lest two monthg’ trial would prove its emptiness,” and complained of excitement,
both pernicious and dangerous. She was, then, evidently in an agitated state of mind. She goes
on to say—" If you did not deceive me arain in that Iast mot te be romedied point.” What
was that last not to be remedied point? And then she said her “nature demanded the trial
shoulld be made.” Maving read othier passages, the learned Sergeant demanded to know, was
there a syllable ealculated to show that she ever believed or regarded herself io be a married woman #
=" I ghall die without you. Is it worse to die by you? " What was all this about? Was this the
langunge of a woman who had been betrayed ?  Was it not the language of o committed woman, of
a woman who had given complete possession of herself to this man? There was one character in
history, who, and who alowe, could have withstood this temptation, and hiz name was Joseph, and
the women was the wife of Potiphar. There was mo after case of the kind in history, and this
virtuous example was recorded because it was without parallel. 'That there was some secret befween
them which they did not wish human eye to detect ke wonld demonstrate. Why did she suggest a
peculiar alphabet that no one but themselves could decipher® To men of sense there was nothing
more natural in the world than that 8 man wlho had been received Into the embraces of 4 woman
ehould have intercourze with her afterwards, and yet that was denounced as the most atrocious

condupt. Ie did net understand the outcry raised upon this part of the case. In May, 15857, she
wrote to him * Do you not still believe in the mossy violet bank?  That is to be reserved for my
apecial delectation when my turn comes.” They recollected where the defendant said this sinful
intimacy took place. The * special delectation " was to be on the * mossy violet bank.* Carrying
the imagination back to the overpainted scene reférred to in the letters, was that the language of a
mirried woman writing to her husband, or was it the language of a woman who felt that she was

commaitted, and who still wished to keep her hold on the man whom she allured and inveigled? The

letter went on—*"This I was just going to post te you. I want to see you—I must—I have been
Areaming ever since. I cannot bear it—you know it is not in nature, and you swore before God, and
you will not perjure yourself.” What was that promise? Wasit to marry her? It was not, but to

keep it a scerct. The other sentence in the letter harmonized with that conclusion, * But, I'll go, il
you wish it.” How could they reconcile this passage with her statement? Could it mean that he
“ gwore before God ” to marry her ?  No, that weuld not do when prt in juxtaposition with the other
gentenge, If she meant that he was to marry her, would =ho not say, “ The tinie ig coming when our
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to be consummated under the sanction of religion ; T am delighted to hear it." That would
:i‘:!:;am lfer language if she thought she was going to be married :_hut she said, * I will go if you
wish.” Study that sentence, and what did it imply? Took on it in this way, “ You swore before God
never to ask a similar favour until we were married.” That was the meaning of the passage. In letter
79 she wrote, enclosing * Shear's cards.” The defendant really thought at the time that those cards
came from herself, and that she was married to Mr. Shears, and there was nothing strange in that,
knowing the extraordinary erratic person she was. In answer to that he wrote a letter commencing
w Cara Theresa—excuse my continuing this old style of address.” Was not that natural on his
assumption that he believed she was married toanother man ?  He wrote that letter believing her to
be married, but believing that notwithstanding she would follow him, knowing the love she hnd_ for
him. He wrote,* I congratulate you on the step you have taken most sincerely, as the most likely
course to render your future life & contented one. . . By your marriage you have earned my
lasting gratitude.” That was his gratitude for her taking herself off his hande. In May, 1857, she
wrote the letter  Carlo mio, are you mad, or am I'? The first reading of your letter brought me to
a stop, mental and physical. . . Oh, Carlo, to suspect me of such a thing. I, whose very life was
ebbing away for you—I, who have sacrificed all but God for you—I, who have lain at your hant-."
Tnthat letter there cceurred not a line of the marriage in Scotland. Those letters were irreconcilable
with the notion of any marriage whatever, She also said, * you know you always were free.” What
was the meaning of those passages, What doesshe mean by saying that he was free.  That was not
the language of a married woman. Inletter 82 she said, “ It is bad for one to forget one is flesh and
blood ; don’t you think you cured me of that, but the cure rendered me helpless without the constant
eare of the physician—it is applicable here to say that a little knowledge iz too dangerous."
Those letters were not opened at: the beginning of the case, but were Kept back, in order that
the public mind might be affected and the poblic ears abused. The letter then went on to
gay * We are making in the sunshine a place for a Highland equestrian expedition -in the
autumn. I think we could contrive for you to join us, in which casz I should not take Arra
—we should then be une partic de quaire, comprenez-vons. My friend never judges rashly, is
rue and silent. Moreover, they live entirely out of the world, and know no person belonging to
either of us.” WWho was there at the house of the Thelwalls when the defendant was introduced there
without o name ? He believed that they had not as correct notions in England as in Ireland, He
feared there was a good deal of winking and conniving there. Why was not he introduced in
honest manner? In the postscript to that letter she said, * How I do long, Caro mio to . . . .
(oh, we must have an alphabet) to do—you can guess, you know, what T used to like." What was
the meaning of that 7 Something then occurred to her mind that she did not write, but there was a
blank. An expression in ene of her letters explained what he alluded to when he wrote * when is
reality to be?' She said there could be no reality unless they were both living together, and he
wrote to ask when eould that be, and he had sworn distinetly that it referred to the time when she
would come to live with him permanently. In another letter she said, ** Caro Mio Carlo, I have said
the word—will do all yon ask me, and name the time and place as soon as I am able. In another
passage of the same letter she said, * your master passion is expediency—mine love. Of course, the
latter must yield; and, oh God! how I have prayed to theethat I might be only permitted to give—
give everything; heart and soul ; every thought, hope, desire, my life's devotion, and the burning
love I feel, to give, give itall. . . . Write by return, and tell me if it must be before the end of
this month, or if you have obtained fresh leave, and until when? I must see my French sister—is it
to be before or after? My ears ache to hear the mia, though [ am convinced you might say it with
perfect truth now, and for exaetly three months past. This conviction decides me. I cannot be
worse ofl."  This was not the language of & woman going to be married, but of one who knew she had
surrendered her virtue three months ago, and was prepared to give herself wholly up to him—" This
eonviction decides me—I cannot be worse of.” That her mind and conscience became disturbed was
apparent; and she wished that some ceremony might take place which wonld be a salvo to her ' con-
science. She accordingly wrote to him proposing a meeting in the old eathedral of Mauchester, as it
would be without a particle of risk to him. * You are unknown (she said) and have nothing to say or
do; my purpose is and will be ignored by mortal creature. If safety is your object, what I suggest is
merely the same as being present at mass making you n Catholic.” The idea was to get Yelverton
into a Catholic chapel, where some ceremony might be gone through which might soothe her con-
science, elevats her possibly in his estimation, and lay a foundation on which she might be able to
build infuture. Again, she told him that she had got another attaché,* an ineffable spooney,” once more
trying to excite his jealousy. Talking of spooneyism, he never saw such an exhibition of it as oe-
eirred in that court—sensation and weeping whilst the artful siren was displaying hor fascinations in
the witness box. Why, when he remembered the sensibility evinced by his young friends with wigs
on them, ho eould not look on them as erring men, but as angels. They never thought a wrong thing
in their livea; and as for the immaculate gallery, they were all pure, and it was impossible thag
there conld be a nasty thought in that region of sensibility and of virtue. He now came to a letter
in which a word had been tampered with, and a pieee of vilo fabrication attempted. Tt waa evidently
suggested by an opinion which had probably been given by a Scotch advocate, that if there wero nny
k“‘“‘h*ﬂ whieh Yelverton enlled her his wife, there would be evidence to prove thatan irregular mar-
riage had taken place. In the whole of this multitudinous correspondenco there cxisted but one oppor-
tunity of fabrication, and this had besn takon advantage of with remarkable tonncity of purpose. No
peril dannted this woman, nothing affrighted her ; there was no saerifice which she was not prepared
tomake to effect her object; and this woman, capable of meving henven by hier attractjpns and hLel}
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by her wickedness, carried out the fabrication of which he wonld now eonvict her. He was not to
be detuded with French bonnets or the best-dressed actress. They would get better any day in the
theatre for 3s. 6d. Let spooneys be deluded by her—bat let the jury deal with her like men. He
would show them how the opinion of the Scoteh adwvocate had been taken advantsge of to earry out
thl;'nm} fabrication—

e Chief Justice obeerved that he did not see anything in the case to suggest that there had been a
fabrication under the advice of the Scoteh advoeate.

Sergeant Armstrong said he did not atall mean to convey that it 2ad been made by anybody bat -
herself. It would be important to have a-written communication in whieh the female was called
wife, in order to establish a marriage by the Scotch law, and he found a fabrication made to meet
that case in the only thing in which it could be attempted. He wrote this letter to her:—

** Carissima mia,—It is between one and two o'clock in the morning, and I wish I was with youm,
but yon are a very nice little girl, and I am sleepy—so good night. I purpose to arrive on Tuesday,
14th, at either ten minutes or half-past eight o'clock in the evening, as I shall go vid Carlisle; but
you had better not come to that cold station to meet me, but prepare your landlady for another
lodger, and I will go straight to you, and show myself in Leith the next morning. If you write be-
fore three in the afternoon [ shall get your letter if directed to eare of W. Featherstone H., Eaq.,
Staffield Hall, Penrith, Cumberland. I'll give you an aceount of my travels (I V.) on Tuesday night,
and many baccie, and gome —— . . .M
Here there followed what he charged wns a fabrication. Major Yelverton swore the words which
were there originally were “ petting, possiblements,” meaning, '*some petting, possibly.” 'The words as
they were read were peifing Sposa bella mea. That was, “ my pretty wife.” He charged that altera-
tion to have been made for the purpose he had stated. He would now call their attention to another
letter, in which she said, “ I cannot curb my impatience and restlessness—nothing cam distraet my
attention. Even my fingers' ends tingle to touch you. 1t is very absurd, is it not? but I canmet help:
it. . . . . Every sense of soul and body pines every instant of the long day—from the top of the
head downward is one absorbing desire, every shining hair longs individually to be stroked—the eyes
yearn to see yon, the enrs are distended to cateh the first sound of your voice or footfall; the hande
throb and tingle to touch you and feel yon once more safe within their grasp. So on, T could enume-
rate, but I come to the little feet which are kicking and stamping to have their boots laced. I want
you! want you!! want you!!! Asto there being any eonditions about the arrears of petting I am
crazy. ' I mnst haveit, or I shall hate you."

Mr. Whiteside.— That is no answer to the former letter at all.

The Chief Justice said Sergeant Armstrong had a right to make the suggestion. -

Sergeant Armstrong said he challenged his learned friends at the other side to show to what letter
it was an answer, if it was not to the letter to which he had referred. They would hear an eloquent
speech from his friend Mr. Whiteside, but lie asked the jury to look for facts and not eloquence. He
asgerted that it was after the Irish ceremony at Kilone, and that therefore there was some arvedr of
“ petting.” = Did the word * petting” oceur in any other letter? It was an answer to that letter; and
the word * possiblemente” had been deliberately altered to suit the purposes of a hopeless ease, and to
agsist in carrying a marriage by it. He challenged the other side to explain the letter in any other
way. The fact of the case was, that the woman was an erratic adventuress, hunting down this young
man to her own purpose and her own passions, and not as she had been represented at the opening of |
the case, an innocent, spotless woman. The defendant yielded to temptation at length; he profaned
the altar it was true, but that was not the reason a woman such as this was upen the evidence in this
case, supported by artifice and suppression, to rank with honourable married women who thronged the
cours that day: Wretched would be that result—shamefnl in his mind, unsatisfaé¢tory to the publie,
when the aspect of the case was known, and he felt morally persuaded that the coronet of Avonmaone

- never would decorate the brows of this temptress. He believed Rose Fagan and the woman Cole to..
be honest women. Mrs. Yelverton swore that she never heard of Rese Fagan in her life, yet Miss
Crabbe received Rose Fagan's address from Mrs, Yelverton; and how or where did Mrs. Yelvertom .
know the name? Mrs, Yelverton knew that Rose Fagan was conversant with a dangerous point in
the case. They had the same slebping apartments, and it was attempted, by the flimsy veil of get-.
ting proof of a third apartment, to suggest to the jury that this was a case where virtue struggled
against temptation. What was the conduct of this crafty woman on that part of the case? BShe
was advised, that to prove purity up to the period of the ceremony at Kilone chapel, she knew
that. the chambermaids at the hotels could prove she and Yelverton slept in the same bed, and
being well read in French. novels and full of French inventions, she conceived the plan of entrap-
ping the neceseary witnesses. For that purpose she found out and trained Miss Crabbe, who so .
resembled her in face, voice, and general appearance, that being dressed up as the real party, she
did succeed .in trapping the witnesses. Miss Crabbe was produced. The defendant koew
nothing of her, they were obliged to take her own account of what she was; bub any oné
who. attended to her eross-examination by Mr Brewster, who witnessed her compressed lip and.
scornful eye, saw how she was made up, and well ghe could impose upon the humble women who mis-
took her for the party who was at the hotels with Yelverton. - She admitted that Bridget Cole and -
Rose Fagan mistook her, and that she did not undeoeive them, and the evidence that this poor woman

ave should ba eredited by the jury. Rose Fagan told the exact truth, and nothing more. 1f she
E,“ corrupt, and intended to give false testimony, all ehe had to do was to swear that the two parties -
slept in. the same bed. Bt she did not she only stated what she- did not remark whether the bnE:
had been slept in by two persons. e now came to the tramsactlon im the chapel of Kilone
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Sergeant Armstrong) had no language adequate to express his condemnation of the man who allowed
‘himself 10 be led into sin and profanity. But that Yelverton went into that chapel ander any other
‘expectation than that of getting a blessing or & benediction consolatory to her own conscience, it was
impossible to hold upon the evidence in the case. Tt was the womun hersell who managed the busi-
‘mess; it was she who saw Father Mooney and the bishop. She told Father Mooney what she dared
mot assert in the presence of Yelverton, that there had been a Scotch ceremony ; and it might ensily
‘be comesived how Father Moouey, led away by her plausibilities, agreed to do what she asked.
There ought not to be the slightest imputation on Father Mooney, who told the truth and nothing
but the trush in the matter. No donbt what oecurred in the chapel constituted & binding marriage if
Yelverton had been a professing Roman Catholic for twelve fuonths previously, which it was demon-
strated he was not. The law in this case should be adminiztered, and alt.hnugh A Marritge was
celebrated to the surprise of the man who intended there should only be a blessing, it was fortunate
for the ends of justice that that marriage was invalid by law. The Rev. Mr. Mooney swore—and why
should not Lis oath be eredited *—that she told him Yelverton was a Protestant. What reason was
there for donbting the sworn testimony of that venerable and respectable man? Very probubly he
forgot the acét of purliument, or, perhaps, never knew of it; but at any rate he had plelged his oath
to fucts which should not be disregarded. There was no reason whatever for suspecting the evidence
'ﬂ"t_ha _RH'. Mr. Mooney. He left it to the other side to abuse the priest ; such an office was con-
-;mfﬂ to his learoed friend (Mr. Whiteside), but he wished him joy of his task., Tt was troe that &
certificate was obtained by this crafty woman ; but the reverend gentleman had sworn that if he
%knew the purpose for which it was to be used, he would have put his right hand into the fire hefore
he would have written it. It was clear from her letter to. the reverend gentleman asKing for the
certifieate that she knew Yelverton would be furprised at the nature of the ceremony that had been
performed. She spoke in the letter of the certificate being required for the purpose of the Laptism of
a child—she gave her own name and that of Yelverton—said she had ** great hopes of her Tusband,”
and she said that when the time came for making known the marriage the reverend gentleman would
find that he had rendered an * incalenlable service to the Catholic church.” Perhaps the reverend
gentleman believed her to the extent that another name, that of Yelverton would be added ii:- the 1igk
of the Catholic nobility of Ireland. The marriage was never entered in Father Mooneys register.
‘There was a ring. She wore a ring of Yelverton's hefore that upon her marrigge finger. Shé wore it
on the journey with him. Every human being who saw them on that journey from Waterford to
Rostrevor must have believed them to be man and wife. At the hotels, the proprietors, waiters, and
chambermaids it was plain received and attended upon them as man and wife. No rau could doubt
that they were living together then as man and wife. The learned counsel ;.-rué:euﬂml to refer to the
evidence as to Major Yelverton's religion, and insisted that it was proved he was always a professin
ml‘lh and never a professing Catholic. He went to church in the year—he went through t.hE
eeremony in the chapel. God forbid he (Sergeant Armstrong) would attempt to justify liis :.i:m:lgu'ct‘un
that oecasion. It weak and wicked to a degree, but he acguitted him of k'.:rmmn r all th
solemmity of the step about to be practised upon him. He believed it was to be a mere iaim ‘.E.':'
her conscicnce, but he did not believe he was about to commit the profanation wliich was tl
perpetrated.  Referring to the law bearing upon the question of marriage, he said 'I;t I‘]HF
would dmI:iauﬁTrEgrhi ;imt: lﬁmf"n" enl.;;iug into the subject, or citing a number of :ms;:. '!:aui
referre cases, Molone and O'Connor in the Irigh
serics, page 200, and the case of Davy's Minors, in wmnﬁ %ﬁ: l;'ﬂ;hiim;iﬁsﬁ’rqﬂg’:g?
very elaborate judgment, a most satisfuctory exposition of the law on the subject u%ﬂ m i
riage under the penal acts. Tt was to be found in the * Irigh Jurist,” of ’l:llm 15th of December 1‘5:;-
Having referred to the ease of Grant v. Yelverton, and stated that Major Yelverton ‘ﬂ tl '2'11.' el
grlr }; m;'; c:;: I'ba!cm:de—and :inhr Jm;;canm.-—]m feared ‘the question of the man"ip.iﬁ w;i';‘[d Jrin:u?;ﬂé
A eirned sergeant said he had come to a close, He said—I thank ;
and eincerely for the marked attention which vou hiave pai s S
in all its purts, your serious, dispassionate, maﬂly. indnpﬁ":ﬂgﬂ:ﬂ Eﬂﬁﬁiﬂ?ﬁ““sﬁﬁ 'f,f;t“:;-‘:‘ig m?b'
’:E' :;1: eminent lawyer and an impartial judge. You will tike from his 1'nslmu‘tcd lips th *lr:I g E! n}?r
D this case, and I doubt not you will hear from the same lips the declaration th E b ﬂ.';'l’ APt
Tesponaibility rests with you. Tt is not a case in whick an g ~t 11 b i u;_-m_x.:t it facts the
o Siifiineite’y oiur own TodbEeaAcot. | ¥ attempt will be made in the sliglit st degree
stand this ease when my 1;::.,“3“531;2:}]?::;]' “?'jsnl;lﬂlm}'..ullllﬂdﬂmlu. I ask you now, did von under-
; | Sergennt Sullivan sat down Tien 5 "mis
m ;l- virgud:m:imﬂci? Tl;la.s tha};;nint been turned ¥ Are y::tulgc?’l:;};g{lﬂ ?illmli:iltﬁ:r“ni:;: ll;fnl?hl’;
: 111 apy e . n gl |
ﬁnﬂ feinitation. ARl :rieTr]iﬁ‘;; o5 tﬂn];:rt?mi:; ;; E-]ﬂt.&; iq}:ﬁ:ﬁ:}tl;“ﬂ:tll;nmeﬁ. injured nun, struggling
ﬂ;irfl_'lp:m to carry the case by storm—why my learned friend i.n{'lulc;;n{]ﬂ;:l :;lu;;r unfumtia|1ﬂ T he
thie te nrc*in # court of justice, * Woe betide him if he appears here? Thi i th R
. frors of Heven fuhigth e Geer R, ¥ Tie Hnilia m 1 Hbods ¥ s migcreant muet feel
£ to Aefend bimself, and to deter his advi 3 nt enough to frighten any man from appear-
thought this was nﬁ::tfmiaed nun “:I’HI il Jad et eas, Te-echond by e ialldnt, #o
clever adventaress, a bold, erafty W w:’lml ATl s ha e toiirost: &b SR
mm on the Danube, and werit l',::r ]"_'-‘r' rd, unscrupulous womnin, who followed this man, who miksed!
shapel, cnat her “;“i il c':m m ".B quarters at Leith, still pursued Nim, inveigled Nm into ‘the
which served hor well beforg l:-- L l.“"“"’ iim, and, relying upon the same talents and (Rscinations:
her falsshoods. 1, gentiomd g ;' attempled liere to carry everything Ly her eharms, her witcherics, ang-
eourt is called on' to | en, liave consummaté relinnee in the force of truih.  That' 18 Wwh '
U investigale. We llve in o world where Immorality i el e
J 18 rampant, erime common,
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according to the law of Scotland, and, notwithstanding the threat of my learned friends. I hope to
satisfy his lordship and you, gentlemen, and the publie virtue of the gountry, there was a marriage by
the law of Ireland. The learned counsel who has last addressed you told you that you had no notion
of the case until he rose. How astonishing is that! How sublime the genius of the man who has
thrown a new light upon the question, considering that an eminent counsel, now our senior, and who
ought to be, perhaps, upon the bench, had cross-examined the leading witness in the case for three
days, and spoke a whole day, and left the subject-matter untouched and your judgment unconvineed.
Tt required the eloquence of Sergeant Armstrong, and his bold denunciations on the gide of public
morality to convinge an Irish jury to find against truth and against justice. Gentlemen of the jury,
kre s:id that you did not understand the ease before—do you thiuk, having heard my learned friend,

VISIONS OF GENTLE-BLOODED LIFE.

ﬂt you understand it better now? He told vou that my learned friend (the Bergeant) did not opan
dmluttenm you when stating the plaintiflMs case. I invite your attention to that observation—a
ing observation, cut_lslrlﬂt'ing that it was spoken by the spoliator of evidence, by the shuffling,
;'ilm""““‘-ﬂ!, prevaricating defendant, who destroyed the documents that established the cnse against
dl::::ll:l"? instructa his c-nu?aul to cast imputations on honest people. The eorrespondence may be
Inumint:‘—t?h three parts. The first part of the correspondence is that which all partigs admit to be
TR th tﬂtt:fllith took place before this lady went to Galata. The second part of the correspon.
it “:I which occurred after the promise of marringe made to her by the words and Lhe conduet
ol the » 1'!"1 ant at the house of & general olficer of the British army, whose hospitality the defendant
socepted in order that he might seduce his guest. The third part of the correspondence is—what ? The
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ecorrespondence that ensued after the ceremony which they do not dare to deny took place in the
presence of a priest in holy orders, in a church recognized by law. Four-and-twenty letters, addressed
by the wife to her husband, that wonld prove forty marriages in Scotland, have disappesred with the
exception of one only, which has been produced for a purpose, Thus the matter stands. The corre-
spondence of years ago is all ticketed and labelled for your consideration—tha correspondence in the
interval between the visit to Constantinople and the return to England, is all ready for your particular
inspection ; but, gentlemen, when, you want to find out whether the man was married, in point of faet
the correspondence between husband and wife which would have put it beyond dispute, is suppressed
and destroyed ; and the learned counsel, who compensates by the violenece of his language for the want
of wit.or delicacy, or j2st and judicious eriticism upon books, and men, and women—upon the bar,
whose opinions he misrepresents, and the publie, whose feelings he misunderstands—that learned
eounsel calls on yon to zay, there is a word in some particular letter which has been altered, whilst the
persons who have had the custody of the letters have a bag full of them going directly to the point,
but which they have suppressed, destroyed, spoliated, or burned. T call on you to recollect that fact.
Oh, how wretched the speech spoken to you by the lenrned counsel for the defendant. I find love-
letters 1aid before a special plender. He gets a bag full of love-letters written by a poetical, romantic,
brilliant creature—don’t judge of them by ler feelings, for those the learned counsel could not feel--
don't judge of them by her talents, those he does not possess—don't judge of them by her romantic
apirit, her enthusiastie natnre, or her poetic fancy —ol, no! bot hesaye, * I will piek out a word here
and a word there; and, with the perverted mind of a special pleader, I will endeawour to pervert the
facts and the truth.™ That is & wretched conrse to be taken on the part of the learned eounszel. And
now, gentlemen, another preliminary observation; for it is my duty to fallow him step by step, and
to track him through his speech—not for the purpose of esta my case, whichean be established
without it, but for the purpose of proving to you, to his lordship, to the world, that matrimony was
in the heart of this lady from first to last, and that nobody knew it better than the defendant. You
have observed the differemce between the conduct of the ease by Mr. Brewster and the speech of
Mr. Sergeant Armstrong. Mr. Brewster met in this court with a signal failure. He cross-examined
a lady who was more than a maich for him, He tried her temper, he proved her talents, he
impeached her honour, he sifted her every act, every word, every letter, and what did he make of it?
Nothing. I verily believe—and I mean no disrespect to my learned friend, whose eminent abilities no
one respects more than [ de—that there has never beem seen in & court of justice & failure 20 complete,
g0 unequivoeal, so overwhelming as that which he has met with during his three deys! eposs-examination
of this lady. You saw what happened as she appeared om thie seconsd day of that evows-examination,
when, with bold effrontery, there stood before her the mam wio was the anthor of her min. You saw
the start she gave—the start of convulgive terror and of horror:. Yeon interposed yourselves tosave her from
the influence which hestill, perhaps, possesses over her mind, her feclings and her heart. You saw her sit
there, racked and tortured by the counsel for the defendant—yow saw the brain operating on the stomach
—you saw the unfortunate but gifted creature rallying wiiem her victue was assailed, eonfronting the
<counsel when he dared to impeach her innocenge, crushing kis ealiommnies, and dissipating to the
wind every imputation on her honour, her charagter, and virtue (applanse). Yom heard the speech
of Mr, Brewsater. His eross-examination was unmercifiil—it was relentless, it was insulting, it
was cruel. His speech was calm, politie, and cautioms. She was n very clewer woman. She
was & cultivated woman. Ie had a higls respect. for her, only he eould not believe ane word she
gaid upon her oath. Such was the way Mr. Brewster tremted the witmess. What did Sergeant
Armstrong do, acting on the same side® Having heard the specch of his leader—having heard al
the letters relating to the subject discussed pnd considered—Re: tnens round and  does that which Mr.
Brewster never ventured to do—impeaches her virtue—aquestions her chastity—assails her honour,
and I stand up to defend theneall. Did yow heor whem Mr. Brewster, as a legal anatomist, was
dissecting the witness, tlie names of one gentlemam sfer another poured out, and you heard the
witness questionedimreférence to each. “ With whoem disl you stay in Ttaly, Naples, and Rome ? With
whom did you pote Eggpt? With whom H'mﬁ,ﬂm Pyramida? When did you write this
letter or that ™ What is the meaning off that eress-examination? It was an attempt to assail the
virtué and asperse the honour of the witness. And what is the result? I appeal to his lordship and
to you. The result is what ewery honest man in the commumity appreeiates, that she has come out
unscathed from the inquizy—elear she is of every imputation upon Her hemour. She may have erred
with the defendant, but in reference to no other mortal ean an imputation be made on her. Why
dare the learned sergeant use that word * courtesan *—by what degree of professional aundacity did he
make use of that word, which I fling back to him with the indignation, scorn, and contempt I cannot
express; that imputation coming from s man who vowed himself in that box to be the systematie
seducer—who has studied, considered, and found out the different degrees of seduction, where it
becomes justifiable to- seduce the vulgar, bot where aristooratic ladies should be spared. Coming
bagk again, to the cross-examination of this lady. There is nothing like beginning at the beginning.
There is a.curious custom, my lord, in:some countries, of asking every tness—" who is your father?”
—which I thought sometimes not relevant to the point; but Mr. Eswster commenced to ask this
lady all about the; family—her brothers, sisters, brothers-in-law, aunts, uneles, and eousine Her
mother and father had been commenced with; but unfortunately the same exact history of her

grandfather and grandmother has not been laid before us (laughter) Her father's character in
stated to you ; and then, that wemight save the Court of Probate some of its onerons duties, we have
an account. of his assets taken, and this for the purposc of, in some way or other, bringing some mark
of ignominy and disgrace upon the family, and thereby of reflecting on the character of the witness.
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One good effect ut least has come out of this course of proceeding, for we have plunged the family estate
inte Chancery, it is thersfore proved that the stipend of this lady will be no longer paid (laughter),
and a satisfactory reason accordingly given why you, gentlemen, should give her that support which
she wont obtain from her own resources. Then we reverted to the family. Mr. Dellamy is dead,
then there was Mrs. Bellamy's visit to this country, when the last action was expected to be tried.
Well, we were then entertained by & long inquiry why the cousin called Alcide was sometimes
galled the brother of the witness. That was o grand discovery. She gives the simple explanation
that he was brought up in her father's house, and that she always regarded himas her brother.  And
80 we dismizs him. He happensto holda high and honourable postin a distant part of the kingdom.
He is o man of honour, and a gentlempan, entitled tothe respect of sociéty. Then we have all about
the birth and education of the unfortunate but brilliant lady who appeared as & witness before you,
“ Where wers youeducated? "1 was educsted amongst or by my relations in a foreign country, in the
DOrsaline Convent of Bologne.”  *“Ah, were you ?" smid the legal anatomist; * then I have found you
out.” Gentlemen, this guestion suggests to you an important thing to keep in your consideration
from this moment tothe hour that she knelt before the priest at the chapel of Kilone. Before she
understood them ske recited the prayers that venerable men taught her. She listened tothe lessonsof
boly women, and endeavoured to repeat them with the lisping accents of childhood.  As ghe
was taught the principles.of religlon and morality when she wns an infant, was sghe likely to forget
them in' her old age. Her faith to the defendant has only been second to her faith in her
religion, During  Ber whole Ilife sha adhered to it ~with ‘Hdelity and example; ‘'and
I ask you, are you to believe ‘that every principle of truth and morality has been
erased from the breastof that girl because she was brought up from her childhood in the maxims of
morality and religion?  We come mext to the conduct of the witness to heér father. Now judge of
the defendant. ‘He is a gentleman; helis descended from a noble ancestor who won his way to the
bench by his talents, and nothing esn be more honourable than his descent'in that respect; but
what do you think of the defence whereby this gallant officer turned back upon the woman who wrote
& particular letter ix or seven years ago, in all her ardour and young confidence—what do you think
of the honest and manly defence which preserves that letter, and destroyed every letter that was
written by him to her as her dear and loving husband ? But what have they made of this letter?
She deseribes her father to him in & letter which she never expected would see the light. Ehe was
®bliged to differ from her father on Lis religious principles, but her duty to him as a child ‘was un-
remitting. Bhe stood by his bedside—she ‘could not give him the consolations of a religion in which
hedid sot haliwro_.-but ‘her filial plety was always strong for that deceased parent, who remombaered
her in his will, and made her the principal mamager of his property. No woman could'in fairness be
impeached because she might have the misfortune to possess for a father & learnedsceptic. The last of
the matters on which Mr. Brewster examined the plaintiffwith great force was as to whose action this
was. What right, Mr. Brewster said, had the plaintiff to bring this action He had a right to bring
the action becauso he believed it to be well founded. Shesaysshe consulted Mr. Stephens, in Londen,
and that Lie advised the thing that has been done. She says, “ 1 have been sustained by Mr. Thel-
wall ;" and, therefore, the action is bond fide, brought by a bond fide plaintiff, and it now only awaits
Your bond fide verdiot. The first point made—and I wish to get rid of it, because it was a shabby
Ppoint—was in reference to the lady's acquaintance with Mr. Roe—and it was a legitimate one—
because I have stated to you that if there wasany clenr evidence to show that this lady was immorsl
in her conduct she was entitled to nothing. The plan of attempting to blacken an suthor or a wit-
Hees who has written many letters has been pushed here with amazing skill, Pick out a line here
“ﬂ'tlltre—]anxa out'the context—put a colour upon what you read—misconstruoe the English tongue—
‘dow’trend what goes before, don't rend what follows—and you can make out the Bible tobe an Atheistioal
work,und that is the system which has beenadoptedhere. Why did they ask this question about Mr,
Boc? They did it to impeach the virtueofthe lady. Whointroduced Mr. Roetoher? Ihave not yet
““'ﬁ;ﬂ mysell whether there was any motive in that—any intention on the part of ‘the gallang
m““’h ﬂ?rm to introduce a‘gentleman of questionable higbits to o lady he respected—I liope not. There
v a dozen letters about Mr. Roe, of whom she gives an admirable sketch. Allow me mow to
“kﬂﬂf nttmtt.nnﬁm whut he himself says :—" I was not sufficiently explicit in my request for the
ey or books; I \m‘md them as one seeks out these dear friends of an absent friend, as I ghould
- !"ﬂllr. brother. "Twas some suck feeling that led me to send Mr. Roe to you at Naples. Tknew
»and T knew you better after you kad met im and written of him.” What does that mean but
You have givenme a true aceount of his character; If there was any design upon your honour

You resisted it. I am impressed with the virtue of your character, and with your diserimination of the
e “lii:,u my frlend?" What do you think now of three hours' eross-examination by Mr. Browstor
et e wros Ei- *‘;ﬂ h‘:hlt think you, dfter half a dozen létters, which I will not weary you by reaiding,
it i Bltn e it nry, 1865—what think you of the conduet of'the defendant? Is it manly—is
mﬂm—_m h! not, 1nsk, an infamous attempt at perverting truth® Well, what s the mext thing
R i < "hﬁf seck to impeach this'lady ? It is'a sad truth that it appears on the document, she had
Faoter, alth suitor, each eager to gain her hand in honourable wedlook—each a gentleman of cha-
m.ﬂ! hﬁﬂl perhaps not of the engaging personal appeurance of thoe defendant—each one of them
e 4 T :xnduuti're creature, which shels; but what think you of the cuse of the defendant,
i J:ﬂ'ﬂ A ﬁ;‘?ﬂﬂd them all, T filled your heart, [ engaged your affections,” and now I ask you
¥our to insinua with at'the 'yramids—who is Mr. Stuart—who is Mr. Sheares ? “and 1 endea-
i 10 o it t;;t"'"m'i-‘:ﬂ the lips of my counsel who last spoke, and who was the only man who
\ g Indy ‘F:IE acourtesan " (applause). Thut is a charge which I publicly proglaim
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b0 be utterly, absolutely, meanly, and malignantly false. Well, they say, *“ What isthe origin of this
case—why did you not begin at the beginning *'  And gpon the guestion whether these people were
publicly married, they think it is necessary to begin with the love letters written ten years ago in
order to prove that faet. I never heard the like of that before. The love letters are written, received
kept, replied to, acted upon by the defendant, and then he says—in order to save myself—in order to
prove that I did not do the very thing I did, and could not help doing, for I had no other way of
gecomplishing my object—I ask you to special plead on all the letters written in *32 and '53; in order
to decide whether I went with you, in 57, into the chapel at Kilone, and was there married by
the parish priest, or whether before that day I was married by the law of Scotland—which
he as clearly was as that I now stand before you in this ¢ourt. Gentlemen, since I am doomed
to the task, I must glance at these letfers, nand in the presence of this intelligent audience
I ask, whether anything could be more miserable than the criticism pronounced upon them
by Sergeant Armstrong ®  What right had Sergeant Armstrong to speak for the bar of Ireland—
what business had he to speak for the public of this country? He complains that these generous
men, accustomed to reason, but at the same time with hearts to feel as they have heads to think, show
what they think of this audacious and desperate case. He eomplaing that amongst the people of this
gountry, te whom this unhappy lady eame unknown, shé has found thousands to befriend her, because
ghe has been injured—because she has been oppressed—Dbecause she has been most violently, most
eruelly treated by the defendant, whom we now drag to the bar of justice, demanding for her that final
consummation of her rights which it will be your pride and privilege to give. Gentlemen, the counsel
who nundertook to criticise the lady for several expressions in her letters ought to understand the
language in which she writes, and the literature of the country which she is familiar with. Here is a
lady that speaks French, Italian, German—she indites her notes in these as easily asin English ; and
let me tell the learmed counsel that he has been reading the letters the wrong way. * She quotes from
French novels,” said the learned gentleman. No, my lord, she quotes from Coleridge, from Shakspeare,
from Lambe, from Scott, and from a poet few Englishwomen read or understand, but a poet of true
genius—Burng. She does use French phrases. Writing from Naples, June 22nd, she says, * and
although sometimes obliged to change my opinion, still nearly, invariably je refowrne foujours 4 mes
gremier amours, which meant return * to my firgst impressions.” * Ha," said Mr. Brewster, “I am
told that menns love. I have younow. What do you say to that ¥ Ehe looked down upon him with
ineffable disdain, and said, * 1t seems to me that the gentleman does not understand the méaning of
the phrase"—a phrase which is perfectly understood by anybody familiar with the language she uses ;
and it was attempted to make a point against her because she is unfortunately guperior in that respect
to the learned counsel who cross-examined her, and the learned counsel who calumniated her. I am
reminded, gentlemen, that it is a great ground of impeachment against this lady—namely, that
she met the defendant on the steam-boat. Suppose you were to take up the Peerage Book—
* that well-thumbed book,” as Mr, Brewster said—it must be by him and not by me (a laugh)}—and
inquired how many of the aristocracy have got their wives, I am sure you would think it a very lucky
thing that they always got them on board steam-boats. They found them on the stage—they found
them in the streets before now—a duchess was previously a cabbage-woman—they have found them
wherever fancy or eaprice tempted them, What is the meaning of asking the lady questions as to her
acquaintance with the defendant on board the steamer? Was it a matter of surprise that such
an aequaintance should take place between the “ siren,” ag Mr. Brewster called her, the lady of
ability, and the gentleman, who, by her wondrous conversational powers, was saved during that night
from the horrors of sea-sickness, and kept in health and freshness till morning (laughter)? The de-
fendant impeached the lady’s case because he met her on board the steamer, and had a soul for bril-
liant conversation—for just remark—a soul to appreciate one who admired the heavens, and things
that adorned the heavens—all that is beautiful and true—because he had a heart to admire that
gplendid creature whose language and discourse was such as might be appreciated by any gallant
officer who ever shone in the service of his country. Just think of this case. The defendant converses
with this lady on board the steamer—he lends her a shawl during the coldness of the night—the
Jadiesand gentlemen preferred remaining on deck to going down into the cabin, which was hot and
crowded, and after that, are the couple married both in Scotland and Ireland. The learned counsel
denounces the case because the gentleman paid the attention which any gentleman was bound to pay
to the lady under the circumstances, and she accepted them. *Did you marry me?” is the question
in this case. “I met you seven years ago in a steamer,” is the answer. *'I stayed up with you till
morning, cenversing with you—and here is the point of the case—nobody met you on your arrival in
the morning, and where did you go to? Was it to the residence of your sister or to that of the old
marchioness, and did you ask the defendant to accompany you?” That is the turning point of the case
(laughter). I don't care whether the defendant did go home with this lady ornot ; if she did ask him it
was an act that any generous lady would do under thecircumstances, believing she had been conversing
with a goldier and a gentleman, and treating him as such. What is the meaning of this wretched defence #
Is it why did you not suspect me from the beginning, why did you not doubt me, why did you not dﬂlﬂi‘lﬁ
ander the garb of a British officer an unprincipled and profligate seducer ? Our answer is, 1 believed
you to be what you were, a gentleman, what your conduct entitled you to be considered. You told
me who you were, you were courteous and polite, and I say whether he accompanied her or not to
her sister's does not weigh the hundredth part of a farthing in the iniquity that is here. I only draw
your attention to it to show the wretched condition of the defendant that resorts to such 4 point as
that to blacken the character of the woman whom he married and seeks to make his vietim. * What
business,” says the defendant after he is married, * to write to me,"—I went to Malta, you went to
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Ttaly—* why did youwrite tome #* The first letter in the printed book was wri tten by him, and not by
her, and was a letter of introduction brought to Mr. Itoe. She didnot write to him, but wanting to sand
& letter to her brother at Monastir, and being told by herbanker at Naples that she could not do #0 ex-
cept it was re-posted and post-paid at Malta—she knew no one at that place butCaptain Yelverton, she
asked him in a short note,enclosing the letter of her brother, to forward that letter to Monastir. The
defendant does that act of kindness, and writea t0 her n polite letter ; one or twao letters passed, and he
tells her to call kim by his Christian name. Heimplores ofhertodo it. She does not quite understand that
way of addressing her letter to Captain Yelverton, but he will have himself addressed by his Christian
name and no other. He tells her in a letter of the 2nd of March, directed to Rome, where sho thenwas, * I
told yourepeatedly that I don't like being called Mr. Yelverton by youn ; and [ amnot going to analyse
that or anything else, but give you your.choice between either of my other godfather and gedmother's
bestowed appellations;” and in reply to that she says * William" is out of the question. I abound
with brother Willinms, and ecould never recognise you under that title. Charles is un pew imdeuw,
nevertheless it does not recal your image—imare do I say ® T epnnot reenl your appearansee in the
least. Yoo are to me guite a myth : I almost doubt I ever didsee you.” By the bye, we were abuged
very much for using the word * erazy.” Now that ocours in a letter of Alrs. Yelverton’s, dated 27th
Jannary, where she says that she has © a erazy old fiddle” with which she diverts herself by driving her
‘meighbours wild ; and in a letter of March, Aujor Yelverton says, ' I commend you to the company of
Ahe erazy ald fiddle, but don't forget my crazy sell.” DBut, said Sergeant Armstrong, what business
had she, in her letter from Rome, to speak of * eagles, bears, and bulls#" Well, I answer that the
learned Sergeant has never been in Rome ; if he was there he would not know what todo with himself
{2 laugh), and, therefore, he iz not aware that it is impossible to avoid writing about such matters as
there are to be seen in every quarter you may go. But, gentlemen, what can you think of the case
that is supported by an argument that under that passaze is a covert indecency ? What humbug is
this—what absurdity to address to men of common gense ! Well, we next find this lady at Cheshire,
and on the 19th July she writes to hinf a letter which begins thus:—*" Carlo, Mio Carlo—1I 1o nog
know if this form of address pleases you, you are so fastidious in the matter, but I do not like it ; it is
to0 familiar—more than I can feel for such a myth as youare to me. You are a sort of pat phantom
of mine, and it is pure fuith alone which makes me belicve in your existence, as I do in that of the
Emperer of China.” You heard Mr. Armstrong say that it was the lady who pursued the gentleman,
You heard him describe Major Yelverton as a soft, innocent, gentle, loveable, young man, just let loose
from hiz mother's apron-strings, and unable to eonduct himself with such a siren, such an enchantress
—such a temptress—as the lady who was examined, when she happened to fall in his way. The
gentleman is described as a loveable young man just let loose from his mother's apron-strings, and
“i'l'hﬂ did not know how to conduct himself in the presence of sueh a siren, an enchantress, and a
temptress, as Sergeant Armstrong said she was, and who, he said, followed him everywhere. In page
17 of the printed correspondence the defendant says, * I am on board ship; shall, or will, or can
you leave all those shadowy indefinables and wander sunward this winter *” S0 much for the truth of
the assertion that she first suggested meeting him. He goes on, and gives her this sound adviee,
showing that, notwithstanding his military genius, hie has a taste for the law :— _

* Leaye parchments to those that understand them. Sign nothing that you donot understand. Try
and make it the interest of some one of the learned in deeds to be honest to you. Taek up your
trunks and give time and space an opportunity to assist yon in packing solemn remembrances info
Aheir proper receptacle, which must be a net woven by your will, and perfected gradually 20 as to bring
its contents under control. Not to come forth unbidden (and this is quoted), is the motte on the
apening of this receptacle, and we all carry one, God knows where.”

Atthe end of it he says:—* A curious thought has been haunting me. Supposé we were to meei—
(now this is the way when a man wants a lady to medt him, he puts it)—be shufled together in the
pack, come into contact in this ever-trembling kaleidoscape, do you think we should recognise one
:f'j"“'m' in gubstance, or would a sort of mesmeric sympathy cause recognition 2*  What do you think
_ﬂ,-;;hﬂ connsel who puts into the mouth of this lady the words ** mesmeric sympathy,” and says she
e used then, when they were first adopted by the defendant? He used them for the purpose of
p]n.i:lg hEE. uit & poetical and figurative way, what would be the result if they wera to meet, showing
-Iltterr i desire that tI!ny should mect again. Eergﬂ}nt Armstrong says that one passage in her
s 4t page 19, was :pdclicnte. She said—*" T consider that the fact of iy writing to you this day

s not originate, as might be supposed, from the accidental cause of your ance having been on board
-Bteamer with me, but fron:n the natural cause of effect of influence of one persos on another. I haye
Rth in stcamers scores of times before and since—so have you—in my own ease I enn positively sany
. ““1'}::'““"' results. . . . If you ever meet with Alcide in those latitudes, pray make
dﬁu!msl. " nown to him, you will find him the nicest fellow in the world ; at least I think s0.” What
e H“l; :;nura innocent than that? But they say that she followed him to the Last, and not he her,
ok ﬂame““ ‘n’:lm:ﬁf“i]fﬂ? dwelt on so much. 1 say it is directly contrary to the truth, and I am sure,
8th of ll;ui-:];. ;:II-" ?I'f': me to explain it. Major Yuiwrtﬂln ia erdered home from the BEast on the
orrlasd Uml-.the QI,;- 1] £ct? are the converse of w]]n. sergeant Armetrong stated. You are not
#hemp;ti!h of Mot o rﬁnm: unl ntp.:nti.-?rnull;.r no doubt—stated the converse of what took place.  On
ordered home on the 5th of ;[" ler:—"L am promoted, and consequently ordered home.” o way
she got a letter frop '; of March. [He arrived at Portamouth on the 4th of April, 1855. On thag
“ Caro mio cmﬂ_:‘r;‘m at Boulogne, and left Marseilles on the 10th of May. She wrote to hime
home, just when I wy ere in the wide world are you? . . ., What could induge then to send yon
: nted you tostay? . . Lam golog oxt i the suite of the Impératrice. Now
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X shall go with a bateh of Seeurs de Charité. No poetising—no sitting on deck all night—no——0"
Thit letter had been commented on by the other side. 1 appeal for justice to this lady, which, until
your lordship charge and the jury give their verdict, she has never got. Is it to be said that she fol-
Iowed him when she tells him to go back # The other letters, which have been most unjustly twisted
and perverted by Serjeant Armetrong, prove what the truth is. Inanotherletter shie writes—** Thank
God for yoursafe return.” That is the woman who planned and desired that he should go out to the
East, in order that she might entrap him in the convent at Galata and swindle at the table of
General Straubenzee. T will shiver their case to atomsas I proceed by the power of druth, and ne-
thing else. I do not want to répresent anything in fine woris, but to represent the truth to the world
and to you. Avother infamous matter is, that there is a blank at the bottom of one of her letters ;
and the argument of Sergeant Armstrong, when she said in her letter that ghe was going to the East
with the Sisters of Charity, was, that the blank that followed represented something that should not
be written. The usual spirit of charity characterized the defence when they assailed that unfor-
tumate, but brilliant and intellectual woman, and called on the jury to believe the improper snggestion
of counsel. The blank in that letter was one referring to " magnetic influences " sitting on deck, and
I'find the same blenk in a letter by him to her. That is a ground upon which her honour is to be
impeached, and her character and reputation blackened. T listened to those statements and noousa-
tions, but I knew that my time would come to speak in her vindication. All that Mr. Brewster and
Bergeant Armstrong could do was, like two Chancery barristers, to eome into court and call for proofs
from the written doouments. Here is an attack on the character of a lady on a blank left in a letter
written seven years before she was married. Then, gentlemen, the learned counsel says, * There was
o letter written by her when on'board the steamer.” Why, that referred to the deseription given by
her when she was on board the Great Britain steamer. He had said to her, “ Write to me 1 beg of
you: your letters revive me. I do not meet in society with language and thoughts like yours. I am
unaceustomed to such.,” She does write to him, and when ghe does 8o her letter is ticketed and
1abelled for the defence. That is the leiter written on Dboard the Great Britain, in which she gives
such & graphic and lively sketeh of those on board. She said that the captain was a man of sixty
years of age, but nothing the worse for that. I beg leave to differ from her on that point. (Laughter)
Bhe says sheplayed for the officers, and that they admired her. I have no doubt that she did
captivate them gll, and I am sure that not one of them but would be guite ready to enter the lists
against this defendant and maintain her honour ageinst his contemptible aspersions (applause.)
Would you believe that in those early letters which he wrote he asked her would she send him out
such bouks as he would like to read,but not such books as she thought he would like, but whatshe most
admired herself? He sald, * send me the oldest book you have, if it be yours.” Bhe wrote to her sister,
and the Bellamys pack up books, which were sent out to him te Schastopol. He wrote to her asking
her judgment sbout the books bie should read. I admit he wrote to her, because ghe was most eapable of
forming a judgment from her education, her supnerior intellectual capacity, and her knowledge of classies.
This is the way he iswriting to her, and inducing in her mind a respect for him, because every
éducated man likes a woman who displays an intellectunl and literary taste and & superior educatien.
He wrote :—* Your oldest fuvourite, which, if it were the oldest book of all, would better meet my
requirements than the cleverest or best written book of the time.” He then goes on about the plaid
—the guilty plaid. He says:—* 1t is tapestrv on the walls of the hut, as it was a respirator over the
chink and the drafts on board the steamer. It shall be sacred since your superstitions would like it
to be s0."  All these and like expressions are very creditable to Major Yelverton when writing to the
woman he ghould be glad and proud to make his wife, If I were agked why should he fall in love
with this lady, I would look to their early correspondence. He is a soldier, and invites her, by his
letter, to give her thoughts upon the character of a soldier. All this, I maintain, is & correspondence
of which any two persons in the world might be proud. Listen to her character of & soldier :—" Tt
may be some consolation to you to know that you have the deep, earnest sympathy of every true
English heart; ‘that there are thousands who, if individual exertion or sacrifice could redeem the past
or ‘save the future, would, like Curtius of old, nobly fling themselves inte the yawning gulf. Itis =
great and noble cause you are engaged in—a momentous, sulemn crisis, where every man may prove
and ‘know himself—a time to feel what sterling qualities he has within him, what moral s well as
physical courage—a time when he may claim, if he choose, worthily to be & man, when he may elaim
the honour, respect, and gratitude of his fellow-men—a* time and tide, as Shakspeare has it, ‘o
which a sman may float on to posterity.’ If a man have any character it will evince iteelf at this
time, and he will rise on the wings of mighty events, or fall crushed for ever beneath their glorious
flight. Not that every mun is born what is vulgarly considered & hero. Some men lLave more
eommon sense and less rashuess than poor Captaint Nolan (who was well known and deeply lsmented.
by a dear friend of mine); but there is, in my opinion, far more heroism required to bear with quiet,
manly fortitude, the exhausting, painful demands of nature, the sudden destruction of life-long
contracted habits and comforts, the insidious ravages of the two most positive evils, cold and hunger,
to eontemplate with stoie self-possession the sudden dissolution of one's being any moment, any houe
—+to be playing the frightful hazard of rougegt noir, with life for the stake, for months together, in
support of a principle held to be noble. SBuch a man, in my humble cstimation, is a hero. Oh, what
aglorious day it will be when these men roturn to their country ; deep, heartfelt welcome will greet
them ‘on every side; strangers hitherto will regard them as tried friends ; and oh, the happy moment
when, once moure among your own friends and family, the hearts that have loved you, thal have
suffered with, and warched, aye, and prayed for you (for be the ultimate good what it may, it is
natural to buman naturg), shall gladden at your safe return, a better, nobler being than you left.”
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tehed in that a Havelock—she has sketched in that a moral as well as a military hero.
ﬁm:?ﬁchtd a man who has & heart to feel, who understood the true genial dictates of our
pature, and felt them, and when the right moment come, stepped out from the r_lnl.m of mediocrity.
She deseribed no less than that eharacter, or mayhap she described one who is our countryman,
Pennefather, who, on the great day of Inkerman, showed the noble qualities of a beave and skilful
soldier, She showed Yelverton how he might ascend to the pinnacle of fame, scrve his conntry well,
and earn imperishable renown by his glorious achievements. It was, I say, :mpm!;ihlu not to love
her upon that correspondence. I turn now to anether letter, in which she dm_rll}m nuture, and
another of the letters which Sergeant Armstrong has attempted to pervert. It is the letter from
Boulogne, in which she speaks of two aets of their drama having passed, and ghat ten months elapsed
before the third act commenced :— If the drop-scene ever rises again, you, Carlg, must do it. 1 give
you twice the time en attendant.® The chorus strikes up and sings:—

Thro' the world, thro' the world
Follow and find me,
Search where affliction and misery dwell ;
I leave but a trace to affection behind me,
And he who would find me
_ Must first love me well.

Thro' the world, thro® the world,
Hope still remaining,

The fond heart and troe no danger can quells
And the prize ii"t be worthy a vietor's obtaining,
For labour and eare »

Will repay him full well,

A beautiful hint it may be; but she tells iim that whoever wants her love must prove himself worthy
of that love, and she points out the character she admires—the chavacter of a hero. In this zame
Tetter Is a picture which, I confess frankly, I wounld have advised Sergeant Armstrong to pass by, at
least in silence, and not spoil by his misconstructions. T want to give you this picture of nature by
her, and ask you whether any man competent to think or feel could do otherwise than admire the
writer 7 * T want,” she says, * to pull you down from your pedestal in my imagination, and pluck
you to pieces—to find out the secret mechanism and the idiosyncrasies of your inmost character—the
charm of your interior existence—whether you have" What? Ts it whether he is sensual, eorrupt,
or immodest ? No—* whether you have any community with all that iz beautiful in nature, with the
bright sunlight and the solemn shade! Whether you sympathize with Burns' *wee, modest flower”
—on summer's morning going forth, your heart expands, and you feel a spiritual comgeniality with
all nature—with the soft musie of the fluttering leaves and the bird that woos his mate—with the
bright, glad insects and the mellow light caressing the flowers. If these things speak not to your soul
in language no lips could repeat—if you do not feel that God’s mercy lies not out of reach, the moss
we crush beneath our feet, the pebliles on the wet sen-beach, linve solemn meanings, strong and sweet.
Tell me, do you not return & wiser;, happier man? These solemn voices: are' not lost upon you. There
is no monotony in nature—ever varied, ever new. Oh, for one congeninl' spirit and a ramble through
the wild woods. Let me into your soul. It iz only nmow and then L getn sly peep.  You ought to
know me better than E know you; but I fancy women have more intuitive perception than men, and
are quicker to take advantage of any unprotected nook or cormer torslip i andi take » survey. Yon
will not turn me out—will yow, Carlo?—if I am clever encugh tos ereep im, bonv gré, mal yré, all your
precantions.” Was not the mind of the woman who wrote thus: eapalile of appreciating and describ-
ing whatever is most pure and beautiful in nature® Serjeant Armstrong asked, why should the
younger son of Lord Avonmore fall in love with ler? T answer, because the womam with whom he
did fall in love was every way worthy of a higherand Better man (applause).. And Nere let me say
a word for the defendant. T deny that st thistime he lind dowe: anything, or written or said a word
to this lady, of which, as a gentleman, and o man of honour, he need be asiiamed. Now, it has been
pressed upon you, and this is a eardinal point in the case, that the correspondence from first to last
proves matrimony was not in the mind of the parties, but that another and improper connexion was.
1 meet them, meet them at once, and undertake to prove that from first to last matrimony wus in the
eontemplation of the parties. I am obliged to explain first how a mun falls into love—if anybody
could explain that satisfactorily, and secondly, what he did in love, in order to justify the fact that
he went and got married to the lady he loved. Mr. Drewster snid, and so0 did Serjeant Armstrong,
that the word * marriage” was never used by Major Yelverton. I have to inform you, my lord, it was
Major Yelverton first alluded to the subject. This I wish to make plain. Writing from the camp

Hebastopol, in January, 18565, he says in his letter—* By the bye, I suppose it is this very simple
argnmnt of monotony that makes it impossible for a man and woman, being married, to continue
aeting in the same manner townrds one another.” IHe'then goes on to describe the married state,
and continyes— Why are you not 1o call me Mr. Yelyerton, you ask. Hibernice, I answer, where is
your boasted lucidity, &c. ?° And we are to-be told (he was not in love with her then, when he ob-
Jected to HER calling M Mr. Yelverton instead of * Carlo Youw are older than I take you to be; if
you hﬂlifﬂ that statement. Now he turns to the jury by his counsel, and says—" Why did you not
oall me * My dear Garlo,’ when I desired you to do so. The affuir was becoming rather eritioal, and
the answer she gives is, I say, as good an answer ns conld be given by any lady under all the eir-
cumstances. She says—* People do not suficiently consider each other's dispositions. Men murry
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of matrimeny was referred to, and I'liope it will not be displeasing to your lordship's legal mind. It
is said matrimony was never contemplated. T will show you that from the first matrirmony was con-
templated till it was consummated. In the letter written on board the Great Britain she says, ** Ha,
ha, that flirtation was clearly and positively your doing—it has made me laugh for a week, but from
what I heard at Malta I have not the remotest doubt, that although unaware of the fact at the
moment, I was flirting with the uncle solely because you were doing so with the niece! Now, tell me,
18 not this a very singular effeet of magnetism? Now, if you had married the lady, as they went on to
BAy you were or ara to do—it will follow that I must share the same fate with the uncle. Pray,
is that the change that yon desire in our respective relative positions, Carlo mio? I think I under-
stand you better than that,do I not?" The expression, “our respective relative positions,” was a
quotation from a letter of Major Yelverton, of February the 16th, in which he Eavs, * What curtain
is going to fall over our scene of action? Tell me, is it one of the painted omes, which, rising. again,
dizcloses the same actors in new, respective relationship?™ Is it not monstrous to suggest that this
points to anything of an objectionable nature? Did you ever hear of the legal relationship of a gentle-
man with his mistrezs *  Such a tie is illegal, and it is sinful ; therefore, I am sure yon will reject
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AUSTRALIA 1S DECLINED,

with lndignat{an the interpretation sought to be put on thiy passage by the defondant’s counsel. No,
fi:ntlemen. it 18 clear thz_z;.r were writing on the subject of matrimony, and he was speaking of the rela-
4 na;;{p that would exist between them as afManced lovers, or as man and wife when the curtain
on 'hnext. be drawn up. * This that you eall indefinite (he says) has more reality than all the pos-
od fnr“:Eo t:lk I:.ve Imight have exchanged, and when it ‘ends will leave footprints on the sanda of
. f; the high-water mnrkft of our lives: but there will come g conclusion or gradual natural
s:":} ;n-:l tden—:;liuplt.ar for ever.” T say, gentlemen, that points distinctly and unequivocally to
i m_{g :End m:n:'1k ng else. In one of Mrs, Yelverton's letters, addressed to the defendant, who was
e m:t.rn:t Idelmey. she says—* I will never diseourage you in anything, but do not come and
Bt !mr p ?Jnannt dreams to a semblance only of reality"—the same ex pression muanifestly
at Guinta, 1 oo ame object, an honourable marriage.  Passing over for the present what ocourred
i e rgl;r attention to a letter written by Mrs. Yelverton on the 15th August, 1855, in whish

= - thntpthn i:.n exactly in keeping with thoae before referred to when she aays—"" How little T
na:mt MW; el tnkg x!r. ot was to be played in a convent hospital.”  He_ had asked her wlere the
Ars, Yelvirton hrer) F'Ilﬂ-m and her reply was that she little thought it would take place in Galata,
Playlully remarked that she would marry a three-tailed pasha, and Major Yelyer.
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tom, in his reply, says—** Will you postpome the pasha until I assist?" and, after requesting her to
let him know where she was to be found when he arrived in the Bosphorus, he said, peetically enengh
— Then, let no despending backward glance or hasty curse at fate proclaim disappointment or dis-
eontent ; "tis but a rock, and the ocean is not distant, and both streams must end there, and the oecu-
pants of borh eaiques may be ngain fellow-passengers,” Taking up this figure of speech, she says, in
her letter of the 1oth of August—* If ever we get into eaiques together in the Bosphorus the current
will do the rest, and we may repent or no, ns we feel disposed afterwards ;' and this is the innocent
figurative language used in the first instance by the defendant himself, to which his counsel now in-
tends to attach an infamous meaning—a suggestion which I reject with indignation, and whieh I
am satisfied you will treal with the contempt it merits. Having referred to other passages in the
letters of Mrs. Yelverton, the learned eounsel proceeded ;—In truth he was at this moment her accepted
lover—her future husband. The interview at Galata had taken place, and she tells you that he
there made love to her, and offered her marriage. You heard it said that she songht him out, but in
that statement there i8 not & word of truth; for in his letter to which I have already referred, he
usked her to let him know her whereabouts—told her that he would endeavour to make his
coming to the Bosphorus known to her, and concludes by saying, that on the eouches of
their respective cniques they womld float down the siream tegether. Im one of her subsequent
letters from Galata she writes, * I am nearly crazy.” Bhe had written a letter to Yelverton to
the care of Major Chirnside, which had been opened and read and communicated to the supe-
rior of the convent, ™ Now,” she says, “1 must either give you up or explain to the
superior our relative positions. In the first place, I sghould become n sister directly; im the
latter, I fear she will not Keep me; and where on earth to go I don’t know until Alside
comes, and he will get sach a version of the affhir from Madame, that he will think I have besn
dreadfully improdent ; and yet if we are ever to be all in all to each other, and fate keeps us apart, we
muost have some means of knowing each other.” She coneludes, * I eannot in the least remember what
I wrote, but I suppose the uwsual amount of unreflected nonsense.” She little knew that the letters
which she thus deseribed would one day adorn the bag of Mr. Sergeant Armstrong (Iazghter). I
Major Yelverton's reply he calls himself “ a chivalrous savage,” and he has proved his chivalry by fiest
enalling on her to write boldly all she thought and felt, and then instructing his eounsel to demcunee
and ealumniate her for what she bad done in obedience to his request. In his reply she says—=" And
S0 you are & chivalrous savage, are you? Jensuis enchanid; peay hear my definition of one. A mam
whe has a conpd mind asd o warm heart, nunelonded by sophism and subtle refinement-—who sees. the
naked truth by the pure light God has given him, nor seeks to pervert it by false logic snd time-
serving philosophy —whe iz bold and brave, gentle and kind, stooping on carth to nene bat the weak
and helpless—who knews noother bonds but these of honour and affection—the protector of the feeble
and the guardian of justice and honesty—too noble for a tyrant, tos gemerous to be selfish—a man
realizing the intentions of the Creator, and worthy the glorious pifts bestowed upon him—there is a
chivalrous savage for you! Oh, it is a good joke. I have been im love with such a one from the age
of ten years, when I formed my first conception of an ideal man from Scott and Cooper.™ And them she
says she will trust hims, and expresses it in this admirable verse—

Better trust all, and be deceived,
And weep that trust and that

Than doubt one heart that, if believed,
Had blessed our life with tros

She adds—** ¥ must trust all, or notat all, with you. I ecanhaveno halfmeasures: snd, come weal or woe
of it, I am prepared to meet it, and will make the best of it.” T say, gentlemen of the jury, that points te:
matrimony and tonothing ¢lse. At the conelusion of that letter she said, ** I have got quite

the meney difliculty ; andif you will only trust me, far less than I am willing to trust you, I feel personded
Teansolve it. Women have far more ingenuity and resources than men ; and by writing to my sister she
will find a way out of the labyrinth for us when she finds I will not go alone.” That is * when she fimds
T will go back with you." Itis a damning faet in this case, that, as long as it appeared she would have
more money than it turned out she had, the letters are warm; and that it is not until she
tells him to the contrary that he forms the infamous project he was obliged to avow in that box. In
this letter she speaks of “ the bond to his unele ;" therefore he must have explained to her his position
with respeet to his uncle and bis difficulties with his family, othérwise how could she know aboutit?
She says, “nevertheless, you are bound to pay your just debt to him, which we could doin time.” And
this is the mistress paying the debts of her seducer! Ilid mortal man ewer hear of such a case?
There is no need for argument. I feel I have only to expose the misrepresentations of my adwer-
sary. In that very letter in which she proposes a scheme to get him out of his difficulties le to be

found the passage about the bank of violets, which was referable to the time when they might justly =

and lawfully embrace each other ; but the context of the letter was dropped, which referred

to honourable, industrious, virtuous matrimony ; and by a degree of perversion, more daring than I
have ever seen attempted by counsel, this passage is construed with a meaning to sustain the canse of
a profligate seducer, She says in another letter, “ I conclude you will not entertain any of my plass.
I have another which might gratify your wishes and satisfy my conscience, but I have not the coarsge
to propose it.” They want to impute to her that she then desired to make the proposition of being
hig mist. css, but the plan was the private marriage whiclr she afterwnrds insisted upon. 1 sm nok
#ure there was anything more ridiculous in the speech of Sergeant Armstrong, than the attempt adivers
frem its purpose the importaut letter of May, 1857, which was writtenby the defendant to the dy when
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took into his head that she had married another. After asking her to “spare him a place in her
::-.rmif ghe ever thought of him in her new sphere,” hesaye—* Believe in me as one always ready
%0 8ot towards you as a sinoere and respectful friend. Permit me to add, that by your marriage you
have earned my lasting gratitude, as, on reflection I find I placed myself in a false position as regards
you. 1 had promised you to do more than I eould have performed when the time came"—that was
1o go by the Rhine, Mr. Armstrong said—amidst universal derision. Did any one ever hear such a
.critigism as that? * You may think."” the writer says, *this a delusion, and 2 new exnmple of the
truth of the old fable, but it is not s0.” What old fable? The Fox and the Grapes. * I hawe lost the
grapes, and then [ say they were sour—I have lost you, and now I say, pray for me; [ am your respected
friend.” Do they mean to say that he would write as if he considered that the woman who had lost
‘her honeur was & person who might be married with honour to another man, and who might some-
“times whisper in her prayers the name of her old friend, and ask, with a pure heart, on bended knees,
from an overruling Power, that meroy which, perhaps, the defendant feared to ask himself?. What is
the answer of this * courtesan ?* * The first reading of your letter brought me to a stop, mental and
physieal. . . Oh! tosuspect meof such a thing! I, whose very life-blood is ebbing away for you.
1, who have sacrificed all but God to you ; T, whose very soul is yours.,” He accepts that letter—he
does not repudiate that noble expression of the ardent, uncontrollable love of a woman such as this.
He does not deny that he feels the force of'it; and he answers by saying that when he meets her again
he will imprint upon her lips what he feels; and yet the writer of that letter now says that marriage
was not in the mind of Teresa Longworth.  Let me pass on. Bergeant Armstrong told youn that she
#aid she wanted to have “ an alphabet of our own " at that time, but it was because, as she said, * you
‘have a bad habit of leaving my letters about.” And in that same letter she says, * You sign yourself
* yours to command.' Oh, bravo, when you know yourself to be a frightful old tyraunt, with whom I
‘never did get one single thing I ever even begged for, and who, I earnestly believe, wonld continue to
‘tyramnise were I fifty times married.”. That is before the celebration of the ceremony in Ireland. I
@mow oome to a passage in a letter at page 92 of the printed book. Did yousee Major Yelverton when
the letter was put into his hand, and he was asked to look into the corner and state whatdid the letters
SH.M *stand for ?  The letter said—** The excursion in the automn will be just the thing when we come
back from our* H, AL"" What does the * H. M." mean, Major Yelverton ? He looked at it carefully,to
‘be sure, but frankly admitted the truth, that the letters meant * honey-moon.” That very autumn ex-
cursions afterwards did take place in the Highlands after the honeymoon mentioned there, and in face
of that you, grave men, are appealed to to say that matrimony was mot in the contemplation of the
party who wrote that letter, and the party to whom it-was written, Again, when sending her a guitar
from Dublin, he says, " How are yon getting on in health, carissima? And how do the dreams progress?
"What and when is the reality to be " * Reality"—that is the phrase used in several of the priorletters,
and it eame to pass when the marriage ceremony was performed in Ireland. * ¥What and when is the
Teality tobe®™ And he addswhat a religious man would say—* T am ashamed to say I have not sent
the prayer book to Morningside yet, but will before I go down to the country.” He speaks, according
to Bergeant Armstrong, of his intent to eommit an infamous crime under the sanction of religion, he
mentions the prayer book at the moment when he was seducing the guest of his friend. I passon to
‘her letter of the 10th of March, in which she says, * Write by return, and tell me if it must be before
‘the end of this month, or if you have obtained frash leave, and until when. Imust seemy French
sister. TIs it to be before or after » My ears ache to hear the mia, though I am convinced you might
#ry it with perfect truth now and for exactly three months past.” Gentlemen, remember the evidence
of the lady, that between the time of the affuir in Scotland and the marriage in Treland the word mie
‘was dropped, but as soon as the ceremony wascelebrated in the presence of the priest, the ceremony which
she believed to be a full and complete ceremony, she resumed the expression min, and it is as plain as
Might that we have there a direct reference to matrimony. Apgain, in another page, matrimony is
pointed at. Sergeant Armstrong did not find it convenient to open this letter, if he did, his case would
be dhivered to pieces. Major Yelverton writes, * I told you the event we feared could be avoided, and
You certainly cannot doubt that it is equally vnwelcome to me as it can be to yon, but if the future
proves that] have been deceived by others, that will not absolve you from your faith, the which, if you
break with me, yon will never from that moment have one of even tolerable content during the rest of
your life. If you do feel any love for me you must change that resolution. If I depart this life, you
‘may speak, or if you do, you may leave a legacy of its facts: but whilst wo both live yon must trust
‘me and I ranst trust you.  When I find my trust misplaced, if you have any affection for me, I do net
envy you the future. Your duty lies this way, not that.”  What was the legney but the history of
the marriage® In page 106 he writes that he is * devoured by anxiety to see her,” and in the same
‘Page he adds ns a postseript to a short letter, * I forgot to mention that T wanted you to be with me
‘moe gince we parted and that onee wis ever since. Iind regurds 4o the Thelwalls.” I say all these sire
Teferable to matrimony and nothing else, Again Tsny that the subsequent letters in which he tells her
1o sendl for the dootor and for hersister, and with which he sends her the parcel, are to thesame effeet.
ROw come to the last of her letters to him, the only letter of the 24 which she wrote after the Irish
wthnt has met been suppressed. In this letter she says, * You asked my forgiveness and re-
ed it withont a word of reproach. There is no need of excuses or disguising of fuets. Neither
Wasmy malady a alight one, as you are striving to persuade yourself. My gister is witness, and you
”b'.m"’““d by coming to see the wreck I now am. I ghall not die, ns you sny. She has saved
”"'ht.';nl_:l:gm‘i;'hat hard to lose health, eyesight, and every beanty in the prime of life.  Du reste,
“H!‘m'“ﬁm * B8 for your sake have not endeared me more. Do not think that there s any more
posed ‘upon you, but let it be forgobten—aequiescat in pace. 1t will be remembered jn
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ton applies that to her own case, and that is brought up as a proof of her guilt, wherens, applicable
gnd elegant as it ig, it proves the poetry of her heart, and the ehastity of Iu;r disposition (suppressed
applause). I pass by the remainder of that letter. I pass by that letter which she swore on the table
to me that when she was writing she was bursting with aflliction. I pass by the scene at Galata—
the steamer ; I pass them all by, and bring you back te England. A great deal was made of an allu-
slon to his sister. Shegyrites, * I never could have believed you guilty of an untruth.” Thatis, I
never could believe that you stated to your sister that you were not engaged to me. And he after-
wards explained that to her himself. It is said over and over again that she wished to entrap him
into a dishonourable connexion or an imprudent marriage. At page 79 she says that she was ready
to love but one man, and that if that were broken off she would enter o convent. She says, * on the
other hand, do not suppose that I wish to persuade any sacrifice of yourself or others on my aceount, I
ghould never feel happy to be the cause of misery to any one voluntarily,” She says, “if we are _tn
geparate, your name will never pass between us.” She would be the last person living to draw him
into an imprudent, much less a dishonourable connexion. When I heard first about the plaid T felt
a pang at my heart that I cannot deseribe. * Did you use the plaid*” said the counsel for Major
Felverion. * Did it cover both your knees, and was it on the first night you met #'  She told you
upon her oath that that plaid was for ever held sacred between them; that when they subsequently
contemplated marriage, they divided that plaid, each taking half, which they were to preserve umntil
matrimony was to unite them, and that when marringe did take place that same plaid was forthcoming.
He then said, * I will not allow you to take this half, I will cut a hole through it o enable me to
throw it over my shoulders, and wear it for your sake for ever.” They say, gentlemen, that his letters
10 her ghow that, after he discovered her position as to many matters, he was not digpozed to form a
matrimoniul connexion. With all deference to my learned friends, there is one letter fatal to their
iease, saying—** As I eannot got you upon your terms, I will not ask you upon mine.” Whaut were her
terms? Matrimony. And thatis said to be the proof of her guilt, whereas it is the most ¢lear and
positive proof of her inexorable virtue. She goes to Edinburgh, and that introduces 3liss M*Farlane,
the daughter of a gentleman, o scholar, and an author. You saw her, and you heard her swear that
she lived in the apartments with her friend during all the visit at Edinburgh. They slept together in
the same bedroom, and the very letters written by the defendant from the barraek coneluded with the
words ** kind regards to Miss M‘Farlane ; when I invited you I invited her.* That is the evidence of
4 = corrupt connexion. The witnesa swore thiat she never at any time knew Mra. Yelverton
to go to the barrack that she did not accompany her. They asked Miss M‘Farlane no question
of an illﬂ?limte nature.  She left the table unseathed and untouched, and her evidenee is conclusive.
She described that in the room of Mrs; Gamble he argued on what would make a Scotch marriage
with her. He admits that he had conversations with her on the subject of border mar-
ringes. Why did he tell her of the recent act of parliament?  Why reason what would constitute a
Scotch marriage ? Because he wanted to effect his purpose, and he thought, as there wns no witness
present—perhaps having been informed by some meddling, oily person that he could evade the mar-
riage. Did he take up the prayer-book from the table ? He gaid, “ I may have removed the prayer-
book from one table to another. Why was that? She has sworn, and sworn go particularly and
positively as to disperse all notions of invention as to what occurred, that he opened the book and
read the service, and when he read it, clasped her to his heart, saying, “ now we are man and wife.”
But then said Sergeant Armstrong, * Miss M'Farlane would not let you prove it It so happened
that when Miss M‘Farlane had a conversation with Mrs, Yelverton, the defendant was going down-
gtairs, g0 that when Miss M‘Farlane came to that portion of her evidence Sergeant Armstrong
us, as, according to the rules of evidence she could not state a conversation that took place in
the absence of the defendant. * 8o," gaid the learned gergeant, * she did nmot prove that which T
:lﬂﬂfiﬂmﬂn“d her from proving.” That is a specimen of his reasoning. I can conceive that Yel-
l:a[ure,dmn ::dhl“-‘;' thﬂlllght' when talking about the Scotch lhfm:ier marrigges, * If T epn get my object
- ac] 5 n h:mb] er to be satiefied mt!] the Scotch marringe, I will get herself, what I want, and
tells the lad o ta' “cm prove f:h“t marriage.” Accordingly he goes to work, reads the service, and
will not, * r;: A d ';:‘1'11‘:'"‘:' Now we are married, come to Loch Lomond.” * No,” said she, = I
O fitred o EI'“ d‘:“::_"ﬂ rilling me into the Border marriages and the recent Act of Parlinment.” That
regulating tae l;imu_ perzons ghould reside in Scotland in order to constitute a mar-
Hﬁ'r*— At the same time there is nothing wrong in a Scoteh marriage. Many excellent and respect-
¢ people have made runaway matches. I would not be surprised if there was a runaway mateh
in the noble family of Avenmore. I do mot think the worse of them for it. A runaway match, at’
:‘I]iln?m"' is & proof that a man loves the woman with whom he runs away. A man never gne; to
It ﬁlﬂ: ;:I]mn“::g away aeross the Border to Gretna Green unless he is in love with a woman.
0w that because of such a marringe a woman loses any of her respect.—Why, God
He m.':" mg Lord, did not Lord Eldon, the High Chancellor of England, run away with his wife?
: 'ltmi L:g:rwm ﬂiﬂed. He made arrangements to run away with the lady. Some kind
not married by th ﬁ?: ckumr?l!}:ﬂ;;igt_ﬁm l'gllﬂg; :.a asgist them, and they fled aeross the Border, He was
VAL thaf Lord: Bldan's wifs, aftar her ratain. was. calied by ot Leatdan u s By s 4
wards, when re.-marri d in tl . er returm, was oalled by her maiden name ; and Ill]:!lg after-
previously m.mmnrrle n the parish ehurch, shie signed her maiden name, although having been
not be satistied wity I:hu;: E:;:ull ?,E-u;f thjnt there was o Scotch marringe? She had said she would
married by & priest. It fs ab e arriage, and that she would go to a convent unless she were
Bergeant Armstron absolutely impossible that a strict Catholic could say or do otherwise.
E moralized about the English Divorce Court. The Protestants did not want ft.
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The Catholics wounld not have it. In England, married people are divorcing themselves before Sir
Tresswell Cresswell, while, in this country, we are striving to be satisfied with our wives (lnughter).
The Catholic church elevates matrimony into a sacrament. We do mot; ‘but both agrec that there
#hould be superadded the sanctilication of a religious ceremony. We are fond of pointing ‘out our
wifference in the two churches, but you will see that the marriage service of both are almost iden-
tical. Investigating for another case I traced the marriage ceremony back for 1500 years. That it
has been n gacred ceremony from the earliest mges of the Christian church we believe; and that a
muarriage feast was consecrated by our Saviour Himself we know snd rejoice ‘at. Thorefore, it ia
impossible for a strict Catholie to believe in a marriage like that of Scotland. Major Yelverton, she
says, argued with ler that the sacrament of marrisge was not conferred by the priest, but by the
parties themselves upon themselves, and there are theologians who hold that. This is the man who
is not a Catholic. He had enough wof Catholicity to get this lady, and, pleasze God, you will find he
had enough of it to bind him by this marriage. 1f you believe her, he agreed to take her, and she
agreed to take him, She did no more; and I can well conceive a gentleman of Captain Yelverton's
metal being—as he writes he then was—angry, discontented, and sulky—when she said,
®if this matter i8 to go on in this way I ehall leave BEdinburgh,” and she resolved to
leave Edinburgh saccordingly. * I will either go into & convent or have a perfect mar-
riuge ;" and he says, * I will go to perdition if you do.” Mr. Whiteside read the letters of Major
Yelverton, in which he spoke of being dissatisfied and sulky, and continued—Is that the letter of a
man just parted from o womaon who had swrendered to him her virtne?  In this saane letter he sends
her this invaluable sketeh, which is a demonstrative proof of the truth of my case, and the falsehood
of his, Look at that sketch, gentlemen, drawn by himself, after this affair at Edinburgh. There he
is, down on his marrow-bones—{lnughter)—to this beautiful woman, There she is, as she herself
swore truly and distinetly, pushing back his advances, resisting his importunities, and imexorable to
his entreaties. He then places her, as you will see, where her beauty and spiritual naturemny properly,
in poetic fancy, be placed, upon a rainbow ; she is gliding to the convent in the distance, and where is
Major Yelverton 2 There he is, going headlong to perdition. I rely upon that to sustain the swenring
of my client, which it establishes beyond doubt. That is the first letter he wrote after the Seotch
marrigge. All that is inconsistent with his hypothesis, and only intelligible wpon my hypothesis.
Why do I say they were married in Scotland * The learned gentleman proceeded to recapitulate all
the portions of the evidence uwpon which he relied to sustain the caseof the Seotch marringe—the
evidence of Mrs. Yelverton, which was admissible in the present action, to prove that marriage contraet,
which was to be proved like any other contract—the letter of May, 1857, from the defendant, admisted
By him to contain the word * honeymoon,” a piece of evidence from which marriage might be inferred
~—the entry by defendant in the book at Doon Castle, in Seotland, * Mr. and Mrs. Yelverton™—the
passport sent by him with the name * Mrs. Yelverton,” sent to Mr. Thelwall, dlear evidence that he
held her out to be his wife—three envelopes of letters written by the defendant in Seotland, addressed
o ** Madame Yelverton, Bordeaux"—the letter proved by the unimpeached witness, M. Loppe, from
the defendant in Scotland, addressed to * Madame Yelverton,” and stating to her inside that she
might communicate their marringe to her sister, who was also to keep it secret ; and furthermore, the
twenty-four letters written to him im Scotland, in which she addressed and described him as her
husband, and which he received from her as his wife. There was also the letter of Mrs. Yelverton,
signed ** Teresa Yelverton,” to the defendant, advising him to submit the whole matterto his mother—
to throw himself upon her generosity. **She has a feeling heart and clever head, and she will take
you out of the difficulty.” . Where, gentlemen, let me nsk, is that lady—where are the family of Avon-
more to disprove our ecase as to that letter® Where is the witness who could have deseribed the
truth of that statement in that closing letter, that she (the mother) knew of the marriage? That ghe
disapproved of it I can well believe ; that she is incapable of perverting the words 1 also believes; for
she ranks high, indeed, in the opinion of all who know her—higher than the accidental circumstances
of her title could place her. Every word from her would have been implicitly believed. YWhere is she to
prove who opened the letter addressed to her son, in which letter he was claimed as the husband of
this unfortunate lady *  But this is not all. We have a series of acknowledgments in Scotland. We
have the passport, never used, sent by him to Mr. Thelwall, who asked him what name was to be
written down, and the defendant said, “ Write down Teresa Yelverton.” Major Yelverton sends to
her a letter with the passport, by means of which she is discovered at Dunkirk,* The Hon. Teresa
Yelverton." If that be not recognition ample to enable you to find a Scotch marriage, nothing in the
world could eatisfy you. He called her his wife at varions places in Scotland—at Linlithgow, Craig-
hill Castle, before Miss M ‘Farlane, before the Thelwalls, before the stewardess of the Hull steamer—
he travelled with her as hig wife when ipendifug'u:g honeymoon. 'Fhen there are countless recogmi-
tions out of Scotland, which are fairly receivable to add to the force of the testimony respecting
recognitions in Scotland. Dut you have still more, yon have that marvellous piece of evidence given
by Mr. Thelwall, which proves also that this lady was a poet in her nature and always expresses
herself forcibly. She says, *if when 1 am away separated from yon 1 should die, you will have to
come out und take me up and see me properly interred, for, I have been twice baptized, and twice
married, [ must be twice buried.”  That was said to Yelverton in the presence of Thelwall, and it is
not contradicted. And with all this before you, you are to believe there was not s Scotch 'I!Iﬂ"l'lll‘!';
If all the loguacious Scotch luwyers that ever studied perverted metaphysics cnme here to say “'no,

I would still say * yes" according to their own law. After some further remarks npon this point
the learned counsel said—I come mow to Ireland. 1 mm told there is mo Irish marriage. 1 am
strong and confident upon my Scotch marriage; but am 1 8s strong upon my Irish marriage®
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As she was bet half married in one sense, though entirely married according -to the Booteh
law, yet mot marred according to the law of her conscience and her church, she resolved to
risk all and confide herself and her fortunes to the man she loved. He wrote, 1 have said the word,
T will do alk that you ask me.” That correspondence brings her to Waterford. Do you believe thag
this handsome, brave, and experienced man of the world was searching in Dublin for a wedding ring
for his wife? Her hand is the hand of a gentlewoman; it is small and delicate, and well formed.
Tt would require a very small ring to fit her finger, and it was the duty of the lover to find a ring that
would fit the finger of his bride. IHe visits the jeweller; the jewéller is perplexed. Get me a
ring, says the major, it is no matter, provided it be gold, whether it is second-hand or new. He gets
the ring and puts it next his heart—gquite righi, gentlemen, for the ring was intended for his wedded
wife ; and then he proceeds to Waterford to meet the girl of his affections, She had abandoned her
home, her country, her sister's protection; she had given up all for him, and she was there waiting
the man that she expected to be hers for ever, Why go there at all if there were to be no marriage
but a poor wretched imposture ? Why not carry out that wretehed imposture elsewhere; but no,
gentlemen, it was because & Catholic priest could be got more easily in Ireland than in Seotland that
they agreed to come to Ireland; and in that box Major Yelverton was obliged to admit that before
ha left Edinburgh it was arranged between him and this lady that they would meet in Ireland to
bave s marriage—subjeet of course to-explanation (laughter}—celebrated between them by a priest
of the Roman Catholic church., ‘That is admitted by the defendant himself; it was sworn to by Mrs.
Yelverton, and it is confirmed by every fact in the case. She swears that she went to Water{ord
to gee o priest, and that when she went to Thomastown they went together in quest of & priest. They
then went to Rostrevor ; and here I may remark that in one of his ewn letters e deseribes how he
suffered from asthma, which sometimes obliged him, he said, to sit bolt upright all night. He leaves
Eostrevor, and iz absent two days. On his return she tells him all that had passed in his absence ;
and what wasthat? She visits Priest Mooney, and tells him that there had been a Scotch ceremony
of marriage between herself and anather, and that she had never lived with the gentleman who had
thus made her his, wife, because there was no ceremony of a religious nature. Mr. Mooney commended
her for her adlierence to the law of the chureh, but said he ¢ould not marry her without submitting
the question to the bishop. They accordingly go to the bishop twice, and the bishop gave the priest
permission to marry them. As what? As Catholics, and as nothing else. Mooney was asked, Did
you hear it stated to the bishop in your presence that the contraeting parties were Catholics, and he
replied, = I did,” distinctly and emphatically. The bishop gave him permission to marry them the
next day, and the priest undertook to do all that was necessary for the purposes of the ceremony.
This innogent young man, who is led and surprised into a marriage with this lady, arranged
with her the fees that were to be paid to the priest, namely—two five-pound notes; and he gets back
from her the ring that he had given Ler in Waterford before they proceeded to the chapel to have the
ceremony performed. The fact that this was to be a secret marriage explains much that appears
strange in thiscase. The arrangement was, that the fact of the marriage was not to be disclosed to the
family of the defendant, because she had no wealth and he was encumbered by debt. To that
arrangement she entirely subseribed. They had a long way to go to the church; they go partly by
water, and this innocent youth hires a boat, places the lady of his love in it and pays the boatman.
They land about half & mile from the chureh, and when they walk up to it they find Father Mooney
waiting there in expectation of their arrival. Father Moeney chides them for being late. He
understood what they were about. He never swore that he locked the door, nor did he swear that
the door was locked either ; and it is a very significant fact that the priest did not bring up Biddy
Erennan, who I shrewdly suspect was in the vestry all the time, nor that ether person whose name
was mentioned in his certificate as a witness, Riehard Sloan, one of the servants at the chapel. Be
that as it may, Father Mooney proceeds to execute the direction he had reeeived from the lawful ecclesi-
astical superior, Now, gentlemen, on this part of the case there is a question of fact founded on the
law, of which I will speak presently to his lordship—what did Major Yelverton at this moment repre-
sent himself to be? My asgument is this, and justice demands that it should be so—that if a man
represent himself to be a Catholic, and effects & marriage on the faith that he is a Catholic, and that
the eceremony has been gone through for his own purposes, tha law of this country as against him does
not enable ldm_—nntl I rejoice in the belief of it, I delight in the belief that I will prove it to be so,
becauge the universal voice of this country expects that it.is so—the law of the land, I gny, does not
enable that misereant to eseape from the consequances. of that solemn act (applause). What, then,
does Major Yelverton represent himself to be? I got. the fact from Major Yelverton that he went delis
berately to get the ceremony performed—subject to explanation, no doubt. T have the next fact that an
explanation was made to the Bishop by Mooney, and that he permitted him to celebrate the marringe
on the representation that they wera Catholics. I have got the fact that one of these told the other
of the eontracting parties of what had happened, and that having heard it he consents to go to church
mr married. What hrought him into the chureh on that day? What is the meaning of the jargon
ed by the counsel for the defendant? I disapprove, gays one, of his eonduct. I disupprove
mightily of it, says another ; but all the time they are trying to wriggle out of the marriage. What
braught him into the church if the representation of his counsel be true? for they say he already had
poRsession of this fascinating and beautiful woman—a woman who, itis said, wns n siren, and had
h::t::]m him by her charms.  What is her narrative? The priecst stepa forvenrd and nsks, What is
:huu - ﬁ“:n:h nH:;:;li:i;I;h '-:Eu what Major Yulﬂr,hnn ealled o * conscience-saving eeremony”—but
Rt Bk thin o Ermanis n either the Catholic or Protestant church—there is no ceremony of the
- ge, which is a definite, important, and solemn ceremony superadded to a civil
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gsserabled in this eourt, and had heard the evidenee, every man of them would have told you that the
ceremony was a complete and perfect marriage. How is this to be met 2 By an act of parliament in
the reign of George IL., forbidding a priest from marrying any couple, one of whom professes the
FProtestant religion at the time of the marriage, or for twelve months before. Now, what they want
to prove is, that for twelve months before that time Major Yelverton was a professing 'rotestant. I
eay, if 2 man declares to & woman “ I am a Catholic”—if lie attends mass repeatedly—if he reasons
and argues with her on the doctrines of the church—if he accompanies her to church at home and
abroad—if he enters for the purpose of marriage a Catholic church—Iif there he says '* I am a Catholie,”
I say, for the purpose of making his marriage good, he is a Catholic, and I say there is no satisfactory
evidence that for twelve months previous to the marriage the defendant in this case was a Protestant.
The sister of the defendant, who wrote him the letter stating that it was rumoured he had become a
Catholic, was not produced ; no member of his family is produced. Some members of that family
have been and are Catholics. AMiss A*Farlane and Major Yelverton always leaned to Catholieity ; and
he went to the chapel of Warrenpoint before the marriage, and the lady went to confession after it.
It is an extraordinary fact that there is no evidence of his having taken the sacrament in his own
church for I know not how long. There is evidence that he went to church once, when he could not
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mﬂ it. Lr;IMrI'er:wr; that when gninp: to Balaklava he heard prayers for Protestants and Catholics,
fikve b‘:;ll:’;“ :::f- t:l%:i-:]e:f !;!nﬂ prayers himself once, according to the regulations, for his men (who must
iy :iir e ;1 o thereby)—that he marched the troops onee or twice to chureh, and that he was
upon ﬂm:ur];: ¥ & brother officer at a period of time which does not touch the question. There-
evidence isin fh'.:;- ﬂﬂxl?lluEamt]n,e_ th?rn is a balance of evidence upon one side, and the weight of that
cited a case r Ourl"'i b sil:u':mga F“f"ﬂ:“': for twelve months before the marriage. Counsel here
1 Eh"cpsrh!; ]II]:IM Dermott’s “ gr]:m{nal Law," 389, before Chief Baron O'Grady. A person
as a Eathnlie_gfn;:_,‘ : Pgnm_-,- » was married by a Catholie priest to his first wife, representing himse!{
as & Protestant 'I']{on ﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬂtlﬂ-nt clergyman to his second wife, representing himself on this occasion
of the first marria o F e A et bl ol that, a8 the prisoner was a Protestant at the time
must be, and nvi:iegm:i: bl s et marriage of a Catholic and Protestant by a Catholie priest
and was always tn,mi{]‘:mﬂ given, that up to the time of the first marriage the prisoner weut to ehureh,
him to be a Catholj ered a Protestant. The judge left it to the jury to sny whether they considered
c.at the time of the first marringe, and the jury found that lie was, becanse he said

h S
e was. He also referred to the case of Price o, Burke, 2nd Adoms, 471.
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and whose fate in life depended upon the validity of the marriage, he answered that he was a Catholie,

and no Protestant. Combine these facts together—unite them all. I'submit they are not contravened

by the doubtful evidence given on the other gide—of sergeants and' corporals—who go to church only
to go asleep (laughter)—of them who saw him in church once in three years, aud that evidence onne-
companied with the performanee of any one sclemn rite, such as the acceptance of the sacraiment,
which, in a sense, binds o man to his religion. Lastly, I eubmit that if you come to the conclusion:
that the day he knelt down before Priest Mooney, and clasped the hand of the woman who knelt by
his side, he then and there represented by his language, conduet, and demeanour, that he was of the
Homan Catholic religion, law, reason, justice, morality, and that religion which has been degraded
by the argument on the part of the defendant—all nsite to induce you find a verdict that will bimd:
him by the marriage—a marriage good, nceording to the argument of his own counsel, as gmd as if

d by the Archbistiop of Canterbury, good in conseience, good in the sight of God, good in the
fage of the church, good in the face of the world, if it were not for a penal statute of the time of
George the Second, that, in my opinion, was never passged to meet such o case as this (loud applanse).
‘Ihe great question in the case is whether you believe Maria Longworth. In order to damage her
character, to assail her virtue—in order to destroy ler love for fruth, they say that before she was
wedded to this defendant she spoiled hersell of the rich jewel of her virtue. How is that proved ?
ook at the reason of the thing. TFirst look at the faets. He says he admired her, he says she was
agreeable— he says im this evidence of his, which T eannot stop to rend—indignation, if I did, might
prevent my proceeding—that, as he sat beholding her, young and beantiful, in the Convent of Galata,
then it was he formed the design of making her his mistress. If that was his desipn—it was not her
design that sheshounld be so. He wishes still to be near her. He is found with her at Edinburgh and
at Rostrevor. I ask you, do you believe that if he had attained the grand object of his desires, if he had'

_ gained possession of her person, was master of the great secret of her life—do you believe hie would

have gone to that church and put himself into the predicament in which he stands to-day by becoming
her wedded husband ? Do you believe that this man, who has been represented to vou by his conngel
as a skilful seduecer—do you believe that this man, who planned her ruin, who pursued lis object persis=
tently for a long period of time, who travelled with her from Waterford to Hostrevor, and who has
studied and learned the varions degrees of the great erime of seduetion, that he, iff he had gained his
object, would ever lave married her in the church of Kilone ? © Impossible !  To weaken the foree of
her testimony, he tells you of occurrences at Edinburgh and in the Tull steamear, which youn will not
believe, which are contradicted by everything in the case, by all his own acte. He got the bill from
Cummings Hotel at Waterford, and would not prodace it, nor allow us to give evidence about it. Hae'
went everywhere to get every bit and serap of evidenee upon which he could rely. He produces from
the Rostrevor Hotel a bill dated the 156th, the faet being that he was married on the 15th, and did not
leave the hotel till the 18th ; and with all this inquiring and searching, thére is not n solitary fact
established against her. DBut, says the defendant—*" You artful woman, you temptress, you enchan-
tress, why did you dare to send anybody round the different hotels to aseertain what could be proved’
against you?* Who is it puts that question® The defendant. And what is he detected in hating
done? He cut a lock of hair from the head of a child seven years old, that lie thought was like the
hair on the head of'the woman he had deceived, and thiat he intended to marry, and not to marry, and
that he wants now to unmarry. He gets a piece of a gown he says she wove, and he places before his
witnesses what is not the hair of his wife, and a piece of a dress that may nof have been the dressof that
imfured woman, and endeavours to fabricate evidence to destroy her character, as he had destroyed her
happiness ; and when by accident we learned it—for we knew it not, I aver, un#ll the lady in the
hox told you the story of the lock of hair, which her counsel heard then for the first time, we asked'
how it was discovered, the young woman, Miss Crabbe, was telegraphed for, and now that she has
arrived, why are you not to believe her? Sergennt Armstrong talked of murder., What would be
your feelings if yon had been on the point of sending to the gallows & fellow-being upon the evidenee
of Bridget Cole and Hose Fagan, that the woman who sat in the witness-box wns the woman who
called on them, a statement falsified before your own eyes?  Would you ever enjoy a happy hour 2—'
wonld yon ever fail to deplore the rash act you had dome as jurors in being persuaded by rash
evidence of Identity to take away the life of your innocent fellow-creature? Honour and virtue are
as dear to n woman as life; Why should you rob her of her lionour, all that iz left her, upon the
rotten testimony that has been concocted against her (applanse)? Why did we do what we did s
this respect # Because we found what was being fabricated against us. That young woman told
you the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, and she hrs demonstrated that what was
sworn by Cole and the other woman is entirely and absolutely false. What, therefore, becomes of that
portion of the cnse? It has vanished. It is gone. What s the remainder of this case on the
correspondence ? 1 pray attention to it. The correspondence read by my lenrned friend (Sergeant
Hullivan), who, like a lawyer, commenced where he ought to commence, and gave it from the date
of the marringe to the closing awful scene that took place ‘at Leith—is all through, I say, the
ence of married people. Love and anxiety on his part. On lier part a statement of all
the difficulties and embarrassments to which, as his wife, she was subjected in o distant country—
letters addressed to her as his wife, letters from her to him as her husband—nll things clenr,
intelligible and distinet, until at last there is a letter—glided oyer by Sergeant Armstromg, which
I eall the ':}hrhtmu-day letters and if there is one of you hns o doubt that there was a secret,
L::El!ﬂ:::;::ﬁ;ﬂl“h;g you to hnﬂ what Major Yelverton himself has written on the subject. “I
+ e enye, “to beliove that next June will irough the serape.” :
denies that tallies with the date of the marriage. He wﬁﬂs—‘:?acixa:‘:u |f1ia--I !‘m’f it hH:n:u :.
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TENTH DAY.

Although the proceedings to-day were not so attractive as those of Suturday, yet the fack tha_-t the
trial had at length reached the critical period when the issue should be determined by the verdiet of
the jury, attached to them proportionate importance, and the desire of the public to be present was al-
most as great as on any previous day. Admission was obtained at nine o'clock by those who had tickets,
and shortly after that hour the court began to fill, but when the door was open to the public the
benches and passages were quickly occupied. The side galleries and vacant jury box were, as they
have been throughout the trial, oceupied by ladies.

" At ten o'clock precisely the Lord Chief Justice took his seat on the bench. Lord Talbot de Malahide
had the privilege of a place beside his lordship,

The names of the jury having been ealled over,

His Lordship said :—Gentlemen, before I commence the observations which it is my duty to make, I
wish to mention & circumsatance which has ocourred since I came into chamber. I found before me 2
communication, signed A Juror.” In the abstract, nething ean be more improper, under any cir-
enmstances, than to address to a judge any private communication. Any communication that should
be made to a judge shonld be made openly and publicly. At the same time, I believe in my con-
science that nothing disregpectful or improper has been intended by this communication. The nature
af this communication is substantially this, that & certain letter, which is referred to by date in this
eommunipation, containg certain expressions, and that the jury feel a difliculty in guite knowing what
was intended by them; that the description and words used in it seem to some of the jury to be
eapable of a particular meaning, and others of the jury doubt the propriety of that interpretation, or
gsomething to this effect ; but the particular letter and particular expreszions used are certainly suely
a8 could searcely be repeated before a crowded court where ladies choose to attend ; and therefore it
is that I do honestly and conscientiously believe that any approach to disrespect to the court was not
intended by the eomnmunication. I mention the circumstance, however, lest it should be supposed for
ong moment that under any circumstances I would sanction or approve of such a step having been
taken. At the same time, as I have mentioned, there is no name signed to the communication.

Mr. Long (4 Juror).—>My lorid, I am not aware of it

- Another joror.—I don't think that any of the jurors was authorized to write such a letter. For
my part I muost say I know nothing of it, and I am much astonished that anything of the kind should
have emanated from this box.
t.he?[r Long.—It was a very improper thing to send such a letter to the judge without consulting

ury.

- Foreman,—T think it is a false document, and did not emanate from the jury at all.

Mr. Long.—We distinetly deny it.

Foreman —It never was mentioned. :

Another Juror.—Esach man ought to take his oath that it did not emanate from him.

A Juror.—It is ntterly false; we never heard of such a thing.

i Another Juror.—My lord, I think we ought to be sworn.
;ﬁchicrqrxtice.—l‘hwc is 0o necessity, gentlemen. T will hand the letter up to you, and you may
over it. -

Mr. Long.—We will not look tlirough it.

Juror.—It is a very unpleasant thing that any one in the box should rest under this aspersion. T
?ilk :-I'f ghould be sworn as to whether any of us wrote this letter. T feel it to be due to mysell and

e publie, s

Chief Justice—Without any further swearing, gentlemen, I will ask you the question.

Hie Lordship then, commeneing with the foreman, asked each juror individually, did he know
anything of the letter, and was answered successively as follows :—* Certainly nos,” “ Nothing of the
Kind,” * No, my lord,” “ Not a word,” “ Never heard of it," * No, no,” *“ Never," every juror empliati-
nﬂléhan:_l‘]indignmtll}' repudinting it,

ief Justice,—I can only direct you, gentlemen, to tea: i ; i
PIN ot the. ofservationd thnve m};de.g _ tear it in pieces, Gentlemen, I must apologizoe
Jurors.—No, no, my lord. v
. Chief Justice,—1t struck me upon reading this letter that it must have emanated from some one of
the jury. I said, however, and 1 repeat it, that T did not think any disrespect was intended ; and
ore 1 found it right to make those few observations that I have made. .

durors—We thank your lerdship for giving us an rtunity of repelling the i
are much obliged to your lordship. P . R i ol

THE JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Chief Justice—Well, gentlemen, on this, the tenth llll}" of this protracted trinl, I may congratula
yom ur;m:iermlnmiun that we are about to arrive nt. I mulst, inl::.hc first inut.n.n:;e,, thn;k }'uﬂur tt::
Rmm**mr“" “'::'lhltl-nrmi appear to have pald during the whole of this investigation; and I must say
ahalt s nf“ ng a8 I have the houour of oscupying the place I now hold, I never did in the

muel o mbhﬂu-: ten years pay such undivided attention to any case that ever wae investigated
m&m---l %o ¥y !':beﬂ-ﬂllmn. becanae I foel shnat the investigation is one of the greatest possible im-
tan By e beeause T feel that I am ealled upon to nssist in the luyestigation of truth, and to






167

‘the question is of the law of Scet] -
Bk Tand Bom Bivevi de: r‘:& Al Ws e oa Ot s tatlom (s information as to what is the la w
ity ce produced before us ; and it will ultimately be th : :
: from the evidence they have heard, with such assistan the e duty of the jury to de-
Bl ot iaesags, 7w rg e AP e ki
- e oo e M e Sotardintowthe Tvw onEEOLIAA e fact
n whether there was or was not a valid marriage in Ireland At B e
fact in Ireland there is no dispute, because all the evidenc man : Epfithecs ki Xt L

&3 that the ceresnony was gone through in the temple :i‘ thzh ek e o
_Almighty Being was called on to witness the procesding tl living Geod, in which ceremony that
‘the temple of the living God, before His altar, in the n:m mt took place. There is mo doubt that, in
#his man took this woman, in words at least, for his ol Bl e o bl
I'.]llrt‘lula more, makes them man and wife, Fr"r.widad by t:haT::I In:hs:.n'.’l wife ; and that alone, without one

gtanee extraneous or connected with the parties, that would r«a:mﬂlﬁEI Erm“ I AreiE REEE D oA -
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ﬁh]@' binding marriage took place, and that, I rather thinf: 'iﬂ ﬂ;.rm that you are trying whether
with respec 10t demand or 2501, I believs it is mot disput oo Sty b e e
that amount, and that, i she i the defendant’s witt, e T

m!‘e according to the lnw of Scotland, you may D:‘ m : ;md to mElgchin her. . I7OHNAALE I8
according to the Scotch law, it will be altogether e L farther. If you find she is his wife
according to the law ofthis country. If you find she is hi;ﬂaq.g hlu consider whether she is his wife
mecessary to consier whether she is s wife by the R o s mArTaln 1 s equatly e
e o et e, 1 e eienc ) i 1 ol o

- than that in relation to th ; . i smaller in compass and
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E what this woman was Major W.C. Yelverton, on th
met by this man, & young and attracti was—if instead of being, as she was when | .
first she :
B a3 s v e o e o ing i ot S e e s,
man will m-—‘“m she had been the mistress uf.,:ff'g wil LI, sl e Sl gt On 2.5
e il e 3 i wilh ¢ voman O ha Qi Shire i 0t (e o Gt (.
But, on the ot e purest and most virtuons woina a; b that
v :1::“ hand, there is no doubt whatever th“'_h‘;;h:!tﬂeﬂr entered into such holy bonds.
“ﬂdﬂl‘m o marriages are alleged to have gﬂ: to the peculinr cireumstances
“h" -ﬂl“ e Wﬂwﬂﬂtﬁmﬂﬂmdmmwfn% may be able to discover the i},mcmp:;:“?l;m?ziﬂ passed
dail you u 0 r hearts, may
e g S g i oy L
7 that object, . ? iat in mind.
E:‘“'#M of your consideration, 1 ma'ﬁ and for that purpose only, these letters can be mm;i,
letters, the occurren ok oRka procecd to state, ns well as I can, from jeoper.y
There is no dﬂubtﬂu:tir:hih:tm 5‘“ between the parties, in ﬁ‘:: m i m“'ﬂﬂﬂe and
from utumn of 1852, this : : n which they occur.
R S T
! harfnf Boulogne to London by the : years of age. It appears Major Yelv
ends' had EAME par in which she ] erton
that ber friend hd sotie acquaintance with the captain of the packet S S A, TR Rk s
with anotier . tleman . at night. She says she tho : e sasp el spas alone. . The
travelling alone, s 12 500 e o, P A s X gmpAny
e. It appears a chawl, or something of the : IH"'J“ Yelverton, however, says he was
et o g and Major Yelverton offered his services ;Hmm R R IS s, tint
s on board gave something like 8 to arrange the shawl. She states tl
B 50 i e & ey et g clrommat. anintroduction. But, pentle it
must hl'ﬂ'.' that m T-H." Emma i Een men;, whether that was
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at London on the following morning at about nine or ten o'clock. Here a difference of recollection
exists, which, however, is really a matter of very slight consequence. This lady eays :—* Major
Yelverton good-naturedly called a cab, put me into it, wished me good morning, and asked might he
call upon me ; I said he might, and drove off, and he called upon me on the following day.” Ehe says
further:—* My recollection is that this visit wns paid at the houge of an aunt, or other
relative in Nottingham-place, but I cannot be quite positive of that, because though that is
my own recollection, my gister Sarah's recollection is that it was at another house where we were
staying, and in consequence of her recolleetion being go strong on that subject, I am loth to place my
recollection against hers; still I believe I am right and that ehe is mistaken, but this visit certainly
was at either of these two houses.,” But ghe says positively, according to my note of the evidence,
that she came home by herself, and that Major Yelverton called in the course of the day. Major
Yelverton's account, however, of the transaction is this :—He gays * That is not exactly the true state
of the case. The true circumstances are these :—During the voyage, or while we were nearing the
idock, I mentioned to her that I had to go to a club at the West-end of the town, and to go back to
Woolwich, and she kindly eaid, if it would be any convenience to me to come to her house or lodgings,
where herself and her gister were, * You ean have a dressing-room there, and that will save you a drive

THE YELVERTON MARRIAGE DISCUSSED 1% THE BMITHY. !

to the West-end.'” And he says, “T accepted that proffered civility on her part, and I went to the
house, was introduced to the sister, dressed, and remained there a couple of hours.” But it.‘is I:lfl_!i:‘i
guggested that during the period from the previous evening to eleven or twelve o'elock on this d;r,,
anything happened which might not cecur to the wife or daughter of every one here, or ever entered -
jnto the imagination of any of them. VWhether a woman would ask a gentloman whom ghe had met
for the first time, to go home with her in a cab, is really a matter of taste, but of no importance inthe
t inquiry. As I understand, this interview took place in the autumn of 1852,and it would §
appear that nothing further oceurred until March, 1853, It next appears that this lady, having gong s
in the meantime to Naples, was anxious to forward a letter to a cousin of hers who was at Monastir, .
and she says that, it being necessary, according to the post-office regulations at the time, that a letter =
forwarded there should be post-paid by somebody in some Dritish possession, it therefore became
necessary for her to gend the letter cither to Corfu or Malta, or back to England ; and she soys that, .
Naving heard that her friend, Major Yelverton, was in Malta, and that he would forward this letter =
for lier, aceordingly ghe enclosed to him the letter, with a request that he would forward it thrwﬂ: :
thie post-office at Maltn to her brother, as she gnid, but he was only her cousin. That letter has no
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i jor Yelverton
idence ; but it would appear that immediately after that oceurrence Major
._bem F:::';[elrf:l:i?m 22nd of March, 15@3. and he sent that ]et.t_e:r to her by a j'ne_r.d of thfliht ::Ir: I::i:l
wrot observations have been made on the style of the address in some of the aul.mq:mn e al:an :
-Isﬂm;; as well, in passing, state to you, as far as I judge ﬁ'u'l:‘n. this mrreapu:dmmct. 1:1?“& B, E-
.munrred. The first letter of his was addressed * My dear Miss Longworth. _In tha ef“;: : winv
—* I hope you will write to let me know how you have I:IEEEI!L and are, ‘md whlthler your : ura.no!.her
. derings may be. T sent the letter to Corfu for Monastir. I think, if you have rmr”i‘ w'denmi
‘acquaintance, that you will like Mr. Roe after a little time.” The mext letter given _x}ﬂew ‘ mn:
also addressed ** My dear Miss Longworth.” and was evidently written after she had 1}1 ; en uu
something about Mr, Roe, for he says:—* I did not know Mr., Roe was so daugerous ; I hope I?h nﬁ
not scorched.” Then he says:—* I told Mr, Hoe that we travelled to,gcﬂlﬂr in the s&cm;‘ier. ik
liked your conversation, and wished to know yousbetter.” He then desires to know her lw ;hr? ‘I]‘lh‘ -
and she writes an answer, in which she says :—* I shall trouble you to forward the enc QEH ‘lt mi_l;
is evidently another letter for her cousin ; and she says, ** What shall I do when you leave Th- nti.l
that is, who is then to be her postman; but there is nothing of any importance in it. en there
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AN “ORDERLEY ¥ MAKES INQUIRY,

F
comes the lotter of 20th Aungust, 1853, written from Delleisle, the family residence of the dc%endant's
family, and instead of addressing her as “ My dear Miss Longworth,” he calls her My dear Theresa."
is nothing in that letter ; it is the plain small talk between a Young lady and a young gen-
n, except that, instead of addressing her in his usual way, he commences by saying “ My dear
&;" ahe, in answer to that, calls him My dear Mr, Yelverton.! She gives him an aecount of
fin excursion she had up to Mount St. Nicholas, and she writes about coffee and other matters, She
tes amother letter which she beging * My dear Captain Yelverton.” He writes to her again, ** My
ar Theresa,” in answer to this one of hers, in which there is nothing except at the conelusion, in
which he says, * My future intended is like this,” and here there is a eircle of some kind, and her
whereabouts is likewise expressed and defined.  * That pictorial effort I favoured you with was meant
to have a deprecatory attitude and expression, fearing your anger at my mode of addreess, which
you Liave evineed by captaining and mistering me.” That is, by calling her Theresa instead of Miss
gworth, The lettor gaes on ** Which you have evinced by captaining and mistering me, becnyse |
suppose you recollect that T have an objection to that form and fashion; =o the figure failed in ita al-
deety as much at it eonlq fail to represent my imaginary Theresa,” There he expressed aoger af her

a
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~ directed your attention. Now, gentlemen, we come more nearly to the parts upon which there iz a
Eei.t divergence in their evidence. Both agree that Mujor Yelverton called upon this lady at the
convent. Major Yelverton says that he talked to her for an hour or two, and that she was dressed in
the habit of the order, and was not in the convent, but in the hospital. Tt was superintended by a
pumber of French Sisters of Charity, who wore a peculiar habit or robe. He says he spoke of love,
but not of marriage ; that he took off her bonnet, and embraced her. He says he talked of love, but
he says he only spoke of loveand affection, and that then, for the first time, he formed the idea in his
own mind to dishonour her, and make her his mistress. T am not surprised, much as I deprecate exhi-
bitions of feeling in a conrt of justice, at’ the expression of indignation the avowsal of this man must
have excited in the breast of any man with a particle of honour or virtue in his ‘composition. This
girl, who mnderwent one of the most scarching cross-examinations T ever witnessed, and in whose
conduct up to this moment there does not appear to have been anything to justify amy person in m-
}mungm her anything that would be discreditable or improper to any woman, excited the admiration,
ove, and affection of thiz man, as he tells us. But, my God ! should not the garb in which she appeared,
and the work of charity in which she was engaged, have had some influence on this man, and driven
from his mind the idea which he zays he entertained at that time? My God! gentlemen, all of ns see
in this city numbers of young and beautiful women who have engaged in this holy work of charity,
and though men may entertain different opinions as fo the prudence and propriety of a conventual
life, there is not 2 man ameng us who wounld be capable of offering an insult to those young and devoted
women a5 they go to and fro in their mission of charity, visiting the haunts of suffering and misery.
That, gentlemen, is the account this man gives of himself, and the idea he entertained at that time.
He says he loved and ‘admired her, but that she was not of gentleblood, and that, therefore, he formed
the idea or desire of obtaining possession of her person, not in an honourable manmer, but by dis-
ring her. That is his declaration. However, gentlemen, whatever may be the feelings of indig-
nation which such a declaration naturally excites in the mind, we must endeavour to get rid of them
here, and consider the ease, not as a matter of feeling, but as one on which we have a duty to discharge
according to the principles of law and justice. We must, as far as we can, endeavour to ascertain
what was really the nature of this interview at Galata. You will inquire whether his declarations and
eonduct towards her then were snch as to lead her to believe that his intentions were honourable.
This lady was not of a noble family, it is true, nor in the same position as Major Yelverton ; but still
she was of a respectable family, and known to, and associating with, respectable people. VWhatever
else she was, there can be no doubt that she was in every respect as attractive a girl as ever fell
to the lot of any man; and no one can doubt that, if she continued to be what she then was,
virtnons and honourable, she was one who, in manner, demeanocur, appearance, intelligence,
and talents would do homour to any station to which any man, however high or well-born his
position, could raise her (suppressed applause). Well, gentlemen, as to what passed on that
occasiom, his own declaration is that, though he entertained the idea of dishonouring her,
mﬂlhlg improper was snggested, but that he spoke of love and affection, and that he kissed her. We
know, gentlemen, that if a woman has not fallen, so long as she retains the priceless jewel of female
virtue and modesty, she does not suppose that the man who approaches her, and speaks of love, means
I t but honourable, yirtuous love. Yon will ask yourselves, gentlemen, whether a lady who
rields to the embraces of a man who spoke of honourable love, and with whom she had been in corre-
ce, even if marriage was not, as he says, spoken of, might not think that the man who
roached her as he did, and spoke of love and affection, did intend marriage. Gentlemen, it is all-
ant that when there is a conflict of evidence, we should look at the contemparaneous documents
that are available in the case, to ascertain if we can, what was passing in their minds at the time
The first letter after that interview was one written by Major Yelverton who was at the time about
to return home from the Crimea. In that letter he addresses her as “My dear Theresa,” and gives her

| & description of the movements ofthe war. e says—

M Camssiva THERESA MIA,—I have not even been sufficiently in danger of wounds, &a. i
any more of the bubble reputation. I only just arrived in cAmp i:|:: time tug?ga the anﬁm?ui:::il
en. what the H:ussilm acknowledged ns the key of the long-disputed south side, by burning; blowing
up, and departing that night ; anda grand scene they made for us, become spectators by the failure of
eir troops on the E_ednn. Our.engineers had not kept pace with the Freneh, and were not ready for
the assault, there still remaining 100 yards of qpen ground which ought to have been traversed in safety
by help of a ditch. All the hononr and glory is therefore to the French and Russians, We have there-
lost our oceupation, ns our duty was to have been entirely in the trenches, and have been sent
Jnm to Balaklava to put on board ship all that remains serviceable of our guns, ghot, &e. No attempt
intended, evidently, on the north side, this year, and we shall probably winter where we are. I have
:lﬂrzed to get the ague, and' fecl as weak, helpless, and irritable as a baby might: but I am getting
and am sorry the post goes to-day, and I must write to you, as next mail my letter would be all
different. 1 have al_ruadr missed two mails, one by our change down here, and the Inst by thiz most
m:f lliivermg complaint. I only received one of your letters in the care of Major Chernside,
oy hn came here. It was a curions mistake nbout the Transit steamer. She and her bad
toachi - irn n:i‘:xern:ruﬂ an influence on my fate and foture, either in retanding my ndvanee in repn-
Faving my limbs of life~~who knows which? Who eares? Addio Carissima. Penso & te,

: : 4 CAnvo,*
m:ﬂgﬁg'tﬁﬂm her, in which she speaks of one from him having been opened and read
' At seandalons tongues had coupled thelr names together, nnd made the most of it :
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go far that some one wrote to the supérienre to warn her, and that she must either give him up or
explain to the supérieure their relative position. She goes on:—* Now, I must either give you up or
explain to the supérieure our relative position, In the first place, I should become a Sister direetly ;
in the latter, I fear she will not keep me, and where on earth to go to I do not know, until Alcide
comes, and he will get such a version of the affair from Madame, that he will think I have been dread-
fully imprudent; and yet, if we are ever to be all to cach other, and fate keeps us apart, we must have
some means of knowing each other. I never could write to you again with any degree of confidence.
I tremble at every word. However, I can trust you, come what may. Pray, write me directly, and
tell what yon think I had better do,—find out the author of the mischicf, or treat the matter with the
contempt it deserves; for when the person is base enough to open and read a letter, in my opinion
they would be cuilty of anything bad enough. I never could sufliciently express my contempt of such
meanness. I cannot in the least remember what I wrote, but I suppose the usual amount of unre-
flected nonsense. Pray excuse this. I am really wretched about it; a woman is so totally at the
mercy of any wretch who chooses to be base enough to calumniate her. Addio.” As I understand the
sense of this letter, she alludes to the engagement which had taken place between them—that he had
declared his love, his honourable attachment to her, and proposed marriage, but that no definite time had
been fixed forit. His answer to that letter is this :—* Carissima Theresa mia,—I'm so sorry you are in a
dilemma, if you diglike it, but I've been in one ever since I can recollect.  If you can find out one of the
male sex who has given yon pain by any conjunction of our names, I'll make a point of getting leave to
go down and fight him, as we are quite jdle in that way here. . . . . AsT conceive it would be
quite an impossibility to define our indefinable relative position, I see nothing you can do better than
ask who wrote to the superioress and demand explanation from that individual; if anonymous, it can
be safely treated with contempt. Ido not promise to be a good guide as to the right and wrong, as
20 called in the parlance of & scandalous soeiety ; but I will break a lance or argue with [part of the
letter cut ont here] any reasonable individual—uopholding against all comers or challengers that you
{or I, as concerns you) have done mo wrong.” He coneludes by saying, * Sodon't trust me more than
is the due, I hope, of a chivalrous savage. Addio—Write soon; write boldly all you think or feel.
Penso i te.”

Then, there are other letters, but these, I believe, are all that it is necessary to refer to on this part
of the case, These are, in fact, all the letters that passed between them at that period, with the excep-~
tion of one, in which she-writes, **In truth, I am not friends with yeu, Mr. Carlo, and you ghall
never sit on my divan again until you fulfil the promise better that yon made there, [don't care so
much about you mow, for T have got another !—a little Carle with whom I am quite enchanted. It
reguired all my diplomaey to get it—such an unlocking and locking up every mnight —such long
happy chats until my lamp goesout! Ihope that fellow standing up in top boots will not betray us.”
The meaning of this, one would have thought, was that she had got a new lover, but the explanation
she gave is, that it was a photographic likeness of the man she loved. This correspondence is only
material as ghowing what was passing in the mind of Yelverton himself, that she considered him in
the light of an honourable accepted lover, though no time was fixed for their marriage. If is for
you to say whether those letters bear out the view of the case that has been presented on her behalf,
The correspondence goes on in this way for some time, and I think it was in“tlie month of February,
1856, that this lady went from Galata to the house of Madame Straubenzee, the previous interview
having taken place in October, an interval of four months, The parties differ very much in their
aceount of the relationzhip that existed between them during that visit at Madame Straubenzee’s. It
appears that General Straubenzee commanded a brigade in the Orimea. He was a man whom Major
Yelverton gays it was his honour to be acquainted with. Hehad a wife—a woman, 03 far A8 We cnn
judge from the evidence here, which, of course, is the only thing that we can take into consideration,
for we are not at liberty to refer to our personal knowledge or recollection of that lady—but she was,
at oll events, 8 devoted wife and an honourable woman. She was a woman who followed her
husband,—her honourable and her loved husband,—through the dangers of that'campaign ; she was a
woman, who, during a portion of that campaign, and at the very time, I believe, that this gentleman
paid his first visit to Galata, was an inmate of the hospital, as appears from some of the letters; buf
it appears that her desire and her wish was, that if her husband should be in danger, his wite should
be his nurse, and accordingly she followed him to the camp, and became the respected inmate of her
husband's hut. It appears that Mrs. Stranbenzee had formed an acquaintance with Miss Longworth.
It appears, also, from some of the letters, that Mra, Straubenzee was in some way or other—though
not, perhaps to the full extent that Miss Longworth represented—aware of the acquaintance between
her and Major Yelverton ; andthere can beno doubt that she invited this young lady to visit her at her
hut. Perhaps we might not be very far wrong in believing that Mrs, Straubenzee may have been'
in some degree influenced in giving that invitation by a belief that an honourable attachment existed
between the parties; for I believe that if an honourable attachment exists between a young
woman and @ man who is looked upon as her future husband, there is no ohjection or unwillingness
displayed onthe part of the young lady to go under honourable and safe protection intd the neighbour-
hood of that young man. Therefore I do not doubt that in her visit to the Crimea this young lady
was influenced by the wish of meeting there the object of her love; and up to that time there can be
no doubt that nothing had passed between this couple that could have induced the lady to have
looked on him in any light except that of an honourable admirer and an honourable lover.
That she loved him as women, honourable women, love the objects of their choice, I believe this
correspondence shows. I believe, whatever change may have come over this woman afterwards—it
will be altogether for yon to say whether there did or not—at this time she was influenced by as pure
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.a flame as ever existed in the mind of o woman. It appenars I!:hat, from some cause or other, if we are to
- give credit to Lis own evidence, he at that time harboured with respect to her a dishonourable design,
I hope it wasa sense of virtus that kept him from visiting this lady for a fortnight nﬁn}r her arrival at
Mrs. Straubenzee's ; and [ wish, if his purpose was what he hasavowed, that he had continued to abstain
from visiting her, However, it appears that after ten days or a fortnight he became a constant visitor at
_the hut of General Straubenzee. The inmates were Mrs, Straubenzee and Maria Theresa Longworth.
Maria Theresa Longworth says : * Heyisited as my accepted lover. Madame Straubenzee was perfectly
" aware of all this, and she made opportunities for our being alone, which she would not have done it
she did not know the relation in which we stood.”,  But she says that during this interval he told her
such were his circumstances, and such his position, particularly in relation to his uncle, to whom he
was under many compliments, that he could not marry unless he got a fortune to pay his debts, and
that, therefore, the undefined relation that had previously existed between them should cease. Ehe
says ** I told him if that were so, we should part,” and that aught dishonourable during these yisits or
conversations was never suggested; | She says he was her honourable accepted lover, but still that his
circumstances were such that marriage could not then take place.  That swwhen he told her about his
elrenmstances she said, * There, in God's name, let us part—visit me no more ;" but that, to her great
__ithrgri.se, he visited her the same evening. At that time, in copsequence of the presence of the
‘General, she had no opportunity of speaking to him; but he continued his visits, and in some few days
after she asked him why he continued to come. Acgording to her evidemee he said:—* Because 1
_cannot help it; because I cannot stay away ; because I must be alongside you.” ' But she says a dis-
‘honourable, or any proposition that would disgrace thig man, or that would make his conduct, not
_merely towards her, but towards a virtuous married woman, an insult, never escaped the defendant's
lips. Dut, pentlemen, that is not the account Major Yelverton gives of this interview. He says he
explained to her plainly and distinctly that such was his situation, marriage was out of the gquestion
£ither then or at any other time; that he was aware of her property being merely an annuity, and
.,H;gt.al_m had no bulk sum, and therefore told her marriage was out of the question.  But he has sworn,
I, therefore, it is evidence for you, that he violated the house of a general otficer, that he abused the
diberty he got of entering that house by in express terms proposing to this woman to become his mis
tress. This is not the case of a man being near a woman, and being suddenly carried awey by pas-
.slon, and taking liberties with her. - But, upon his evidence, this case is that of a man coolly and de-
rately, a3 a matter of bargain, proposing to a woman who had not fallen to become his mistress.
;It-, appears to me, though sworn to, a matter that one can scarcely eonceive to oceur.  We are all, un-
fortunately, acenstomed to what occurs here and elsewhere.  We preside at trials—we hear and read
of miserable, miserable outeasts of society. We hear and know how they become so—Dby yielding, in
.an _n:l.gua.rded moment, to the illicit embraces of a man who either professes or feels love. But that to
A virtuous, houourable woman a man should bring himself to make such a proposition in cool, ealen-
lating blood and mind, I cannot understand.  However, that iz the case of the defendant, and it is a
age which [ feelit my bounden duty to leave to you upon all the evidence of the man himself, because
here is no doubt that if this woman, with her eyes open, no matter by what feeling or passion she was
Ainfluenced—no matter how pure and uncontaminated she had been before—if she, in cool blood,
ahoser_ to accept, as a matter of contract and bargain, the proposal of the man that she was to become
his mistress, and if, in pursuance of that vile bargain, all the other matters stated in this case oe-
curred, that fact will very materially influence your verdiet. Therefore, of course, I leave it to you
Jupen the positive evidence of Major Yelverton that such was his proposition—not at all implied, not
‘at all, but his plain deliberate proposition to the woman, and a proposition to which she, if not
verbally, virtually assented. Upon this part of the case we are confined to the oral evidence of the
parties themselves, for while both were in the Crimea there were no letters. But what subsequently
occurred may afford some clue as to the nature of that interview at General Straubenzee’s, and assist us
in deciding where truth or falsehood was in the evidence on the subject. IE appears that on a Satuy-
JAay at the latter end of March, or probably very early in April, 1853, this lady was returning to Con-
stantinople by steamer from Balaklava, and that General Straubenzee nod his relative Captnin Strau-
m* accompanied her on a car from the general’s hut, some seven or eiglt miles, to the steamer, 1
.ﬂtmq}k la_nppeursfmmaubuuq?mt letters, that during that excursion or short journey to Balaklava,
AAjor Lelverton sat on the side of the car with Miss Longworth ; and Major Yelverton gays that it
Was arranged between them that as soon as they got rid of the Straubenzees, after leaving her aboard,
_ml:::: tﬁ-: rreturn to the vessel. No doubt, he says that, and I am not awnre that she was asked about

mﬂﬁtgehi:;t Sullivan—g&he says, my lord, that he came back unexpectedly, pretending that he forgat
mfuh X Justice—At all events, there Is no doubt that she took leave of him and the two Strauben.
ﬂ'ﬂﬂ::?:niuittl:;“ having du!:l-Fﬁ{t.ed her there, he rgmer on board. It was then about eight or mine
e rﬁ eveniig. The vessel was not to sail until daybreak the following morning. There
which E:;ri::“w“m on board, and when he returned they sat together on the poop of the vessel,
“"L1 e I:u extent, was o private p]nu:l;, there not being many people going backward or for-
knees to her ;“dm put lis arm round her waist. She says he sat beside her, that he went upon his
ST YA ao u:lnl'ffd her to consent to o marriage in the church of Baluklava, which was then in
that she rﬁlimtﬂl i Tl:llu made a{rminr‘pmpﬂsiﬁum to her within sight of Constantinople ; but she says
marringe uless a 'I“ml refused him, and, as I understand, that nothing would suit her ideas of a

regulir one, celebrated at a church belonging to the communion of which she was

& member, the Roman Catholie Church ; but she also swears that no indelicate proceeding took place.

&
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 He gays that then a scene occunrred, which T shall not advert to further than to say that it was of as
indecent a character as one could well conceive. At the same time he swears positively that it did
occur, and that, as well as T could understand, there wae no unwillingness on the part of the lady,
bat that it was interrupted by one of the sailors, and that it was for want of opportunity he did not
‘effect his objeet. There can be no doubt, if that be true, if this woman was a willing party to the
proceeding on that oecasion, and that that proceeding oceurred, it would be very strong evidence to
show that there was some foundation for the assertion that she had previously consented to become
on a future occasion his mistress. She, however, says on her oath that no such thing oceurred. She
‘says he went on his knees to her, not for a dishonourable, but for an honourable purpose—to endea-
vour to persuade her to become his wife, and be married by a priest of the Greek Church; that she
refused ; that they went to the cabin, where she left him chatting with the captain and the doetor;
that she retired to her own eabin ; and that in the morning she saw hiz fipure in the cabin, she being
then half asleep, and that he kissed her, but that most positively nothing of an immodest or Inde-
cent character oceurred between them. She went to Galata, and it is said she wrote a certain letter,
and, no doubt, that letter is & matter for your careful consideration, relied om, as it has been, by the
able counsel for Major Yelverton. Whether it corroborates his or her statement of the transaction
it is for vou to say. [ will not take a single passage of that letter. T think it fairer to both parties
to read it fully for you. She has sworn here that marringe was fixed on between them, but that
owing to his pecuniary difficulties it was postponed, and no time fixed for it to take place. He zaid—
“ True, I spoke to her of my affairs, but it was only with & view to show that marringe was an impos-
sibility,” and that the relationship proposed was that of keeper, or protector, to use a more polished
phrase, and mistresss and that as protector he endeavoured, though ineffectually, to have a part per-
formance of the engagement that was entered into between them. Now this is the letter, all of
which I think it right to read to you:— '

“ This time last Saturday night, Carlo mio, was our second steamer scene. God grant the third be
not far distant, and the eonsummation of all!  What a most eccentrie phenomenon that our destiny
should hang by a steamboat. Did I go to gleep and dream it—that you watched over me all night,
for in the grey dawn I woke and thought I saw you? Nay, more! Or did yon wake me as did
Diana Endymion in the grove? Things have turmed out different from what I anticipated; you
would never find me now thongh you hunted the world over for me. I arrived safely at Galata; the
good Boeurs were delighted to see me—notre mére much surprised {and overjoyed ; she had heard that
I was gone to the Crimea, and of course had given me up as a lost sheep. She was very affectionate ;
we conversed for a little while, when suddenly a thought struck her (the clever little thing)—she
guessed you would know where I was coming to, and might follow me ; so she said, * Oh! ma chere
enfant, vous ne pouvez pas rester ici un instant *  * What is the matter ¥ I said. * We have got the
peste inthe house, a8 in all the hospitals, and I will not sacrifice your young life, you who have been
g0 devoted, and of whom we have such great hopes’ T replied, * Bot you kmow I don't fear
infection in the least, and don't care a fig for my life—it is a burden to me’ T felt at the
moment that the plague would be a blessing to make a finale. She read my wretched thought,
and said anxiously, * Yon have given him up? I wanted to say pes, but the word seemed to choke
me—my teeth got very fast together, and I could not utter a syllable. She then sent for le Pére Bord, ,
who is the head of all—a species of Jesuit, who has never ceased to endeavour to get an influence over *
me, which, I suppose, he will eventually succeed in, as he is very clever and very kind to me. To.
his charge I was committed, and he has placed me here in & kind of little Eden—the loveliest spot in:
the world, shut in by mountains on every side, except where T just get a beautiful peep of the,
Bosphorus. Such a delicious little nook never was, and only wants somebody to make it paradise, .
Eve herself could not enjoy it alone, but here it is golitudino ; no onebut the Padre, who, when he does
not lecture me, is very agreeable. Why should he always be scolding, and yet ever so kind um;l
thoughtfulto me * He is a very superior man—a good man, but frightfully strict and severe ; perhaps s
he feels sorry for me, that he takes so much interest in me. Oh ! if the Pole only knew of my retreat, ,
wouldn’t he steal me away ? I saw him for a minute only; he was under the impression that I was |
guing to Menastir, and was much inelined to go too,—for the shooting, no dowdt.  Well, if he goes now,
he will miss his mark, I think. T sleep under the plaid every night—it gives me pleasant dreams, and |
makes me go happy ; but I am quite afraid of your being without it. How stupid of me not to think of
giving you mine to replace it. I do notknow in the least how I am to get this to you, but T cannot !
help writing, et je guetterai pour une occasion. T shall always be looking out for your ship. I fancy Il
can distinguish artillery even at such a distance. You must pass mon pefit nid on your road toy
Constan. It ison the European side of the Bosphorus, some little way from an old eastle, and is called !
Bebek. Such lovely walks, and quiet nooks and corners —such picturesque bits for sketcling, and such s
a romantic well to drown one's self, if necessary! [ am getting quite sanguine sbout the money diffi=«
oulty, ¥f you will only trust me, far less than I have been and am willing to trust you; I feel persuaded
I can mannage it; women have far more ingenuity and resource than men. I have writtento my !
sister all about it, and I am sure she will find a way out of the labyrinth for us, when she finds [ will |
not go alone; besides, by Bellamy's last aceounts, there is every prospect of our doubling our imcome &
in two or three years. In the meantime, Aleide, who was here still when T arrived, offered me £1000
a-year if I'would go with him and be his secretary, write his despatches, and read up the Blue ¢
Book. 'This oecupation would just suit me, and there I should not be able to spend sixpence.  Now, '
supposing you break throngh your bond with your uncle, which he has no moral right 1o impose upon &
you, for it is tantamount to placing you on the high road to ruin.  Any just mnn wenld pronomnee it
unrighteons and iniquitous; and the non-fulfilment can leave no stain on your honour or conscience.t
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gvertheless, you are bound to your just debt to him, which we could do in time. I suppose there
.'Enuld be the }:::igiunl debt, t.haP:grnrlr premium on the life policy, and the interest on the premiom.
f'he policy could be sold, if he does not wish to keep it and, had this been done before the peace,
would have brought much more. We could soon pay the original debt—and surely he would wait a
little, and not proceed to extremities? But even in that case, yon wpuld only have to go out of the
gountry—they would stop your pay. Ishould go and live with my friends, and require no funds.
After all, it would come nearly to the same, whether you lived on your own and gave up mine, or
lived on mine and gave up your own ; both would entail temporary separation; but I would teach you
t0 trust me, and then we should not be too unhappy. That you will think seriously of this 1 know;
bat I want to ask you, Carlo mio, in the name of the few short, happy hours we have spent together,
to make me the confidante of your thougls, as you would were I asees heureuse to be near enough to
read in your heart- Then you have appeared to be frank enough, and the delight of sympathy is to
ghare everything good or bad ; and as I know the length, depth, and breadth of yoyr wickedness now,
you need have no fear of lJosing my good opinion-—comprenez-vous? To-day I have beem runming
about, and have found the bank of violettes you were sighing for the other night, entirely closed in by
werdure; it overhangs the sea, impervious tg human eye or ear; only the nightingale above
would melodise our thoughts, too deep and sacred for mortal words to tell. I send you some of the
violettes, charged with much that you might elaim, if in their native bower; nequanto fludi ha il
mare Im tanto baci bael arresti vi che tertto a prato.

T cannot at all imagine by what strange transition you have arrived at your present state of feel-
ing towards me. It is the very last that I should ever have contemplated inspiring, and so opposite.
to my idealization of you. The glimpse you had of me four yeara ago could not have produced such
an effect ; or supposing it to be so, it must have long since died a natural death. Our correspondence

t to have generated in you, as in me, esteem, admiration, affectionate trost and confidence, ideal-
ized ethereal love,—a love tolive or to die for,—a little Platonic at first, but finally becoming the elixir
par excellence of life. You might be in love with a Turkess, instead of an over-spiritualized English-
woman. I could easily comprehénd that great external attractions might have operated on your sense
of the beautiful, &e¢. ; and being of inflammable temperament (which, in apite of your apparent eold-
ness and stoicism, I think you must be), you might take fire. But nature has not endowed me with
physical beauty calculated to excite such sentiments. I have not a feature that will bear inspection,
—nn eyes, but when the soul speaks through them—and no one would ever look at me a gecond time,
were it not for the contents,—not the casket itself. On this I rely, not only to gain (if T have a chance),
but to keep your aflections. However, by this time, you have, no doubt, come to your more sober
senges, and I must forgive you your madness and folly this time, aye, a thousand times, if necessary,
but you must,—you will eventually,—become all my heart's desire. The strongest and most prominent
point of my character is the extreme tenagity of purpose—and I may say the incapacity to relinguish
an object onece fairly sought. No obstacle dannts—no sacrifice appals me—mno means, howerer trivial,
escape me, and struggle only augments my courage. When animated by a one idea, I ean win my
way with any one, and have, under these circumstances, made the most unpromising people do the most
ghael_r ﬁuga; butt it is seldom I get ronsed to thjn’mergr 3 1 am usually very quiet and harmless, and

“When you write me, will you, je t'en prie, write from your heart, and not those indifferent licicle
letters which have cost me such bitter moments, and utterly failed in their purpose of alienating me?* I
can never feel indifferently towards you, so you might as well bea little kind, and now you have betrayed
yourself too far ever to think of cheating me again. Will you ever have patience towade through all
hig ? Il{.lmﬂ:m;r knife in the Crimea, and cannot mend my pen. Your letters are unfortuuate love
Her construction of it is, that it is a figurative and fanciful expression, pointing to the joy in store
for them when they were honourably married. You will have to consider whieh construction is the
jmore natural one. Not but that, supposing you should come to the conclusion that after she had
accepted his proposition to marry, he, relying on that acceptance, had attempted to take a liberty and
degrade his wi.fe: there is nothing in that which would disqualify them afterwards from hononrably
pontrocting marriage, though in that case there would be a good deal in it to take away from the vera-
ity of the lady, and to set up his veracity in contradiction of hers. However, gentlemen, of that im-
artant letter you are better judges than I am, and I leave it for you to say which of the constructions
U are disposed to adopt. There are other letters which I think very material, immediately following
her return from the Crimea, because, of course, if this engagement for marriage took place, as she says,
it-did 80 in the Crimea. If, on the contrary, it was the other proposition that was made, it was made
bere also; and, therefore, it is most material to see the other letters that passed immedintely after,
I now ask your attention to letter No, 46, In it she snys:—I brought away your twhy with me,—it
AEeRts a greal many whys to my mind. Why do I feel an absolute necessity to communicate to yon
S s e o alrmtanosbeviog e s e Tavmion o
aI0/that often. the Iind apdn e the personal experience of himself or his friends, when he
ssible in th e kindest and most tender-hearted women are mistresses. There is nothing
s ¢ gtatement that, thoogh such was the relationship which, as he says, was to subsiat
i Swouild m‘{f"“ was also to give him, as she proposed, all her property to pay off’ his debts so far ns
'I'Wr 80- - Xou will, on the other hand, have to consider whether the relationship was not to be

1 G ppan mnd wife, and whether such is not more consistent with the proposition to give up her
et l.'utn:c!:, ?Eﬂ:;:-li:n was to become his mistress, it wns to bLe carried out by a separation in the
; v that she might carn a salary of 1004 a year in writing up the blue books. One
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i ; human being ean
i i ot the time desperately in love with this man, no
HHL ﬁlutzhgh:ﬁ:;ﬁt I‘J:fulrg“ honest, lionourable, virtuous flame, or whether it was an unholy unie.
of course is the matter you are called upon to inquire into. In one of l:.:;- lettors ::e_m f:a niﬁggf m:;
‘whi r i i d the interpretation of your note 15 decp .
which she says, “ My sister is in a dreadful way, an \ O iat it o ST ersags
= hether that was not a letter of his in wl_uch he s
:ﬁﬂ ?:l:i hl&sg‘:u‘:tﬁi u:l:icd gh: says not ; that the letter was one saying that they were not engaged. . In
another letter she au;,r'a—-“ They are killing me with kindness, but I am only dying of impaticnce. _Sei
‘la ben venuta ® is turning itzelf into a thousand summer dreams. r.B“" 81Y5 IS::E ﬁcli!;s;pu;ﬁ:;hetrﬁg
' - ticoat. (No impropriety
enongh since [ came here to make a searlet pet e ettt S W
< in epen day.) I wonder “what you lua{: like now—xa civilize .
:'EEH ;b:t:::ﬂ I[ilkupruu ni well, and whether yon will know me in a French horin&t.. 'nln: you
have cut off the moustache, T shan't want to speak to J‘n:, and retractl ;:; & ;i“::la]-:]l:;r ;
i letter about legitimate ways, &c. You tell me my best .uance wis
Eﬂuﬁafmﬁgl had I fmr a shadow of a chance?® The same question arises a8 to what was
meant by losing the best chance. Observations have been made about letters of his which have not

guiia
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‘Been produced, and which, his counsel say, contain expressions showing at different timea kindness
Eﬁd unkindness. Tdo not believe there are any other letters of any consequence until the arrival of
this lady in Edinburglh. Gentlemen, I have referred at very considerable length tothe eorrespondence,
“beeause I consider it, as it has been relied upon, as very important.  As the key to the transaction
which took place at Editburgh, of course these letters are all-important in the present case. I said
- before that, as the key to the understanding, or applying, or believing the evidence of what took
place in the Crimea, it was necessary to consider the letters that passed between Galata and the Cri-
men; 80 as a key to the probability or improbability of the transactions that are said to have occurred
in Edinburgh, it 1a necessary to have the key of the previous correspondence. This gentlemnn was
stationed at Leith, As I have already said, there is no doubt, in my mind at least, that it was beeause
he was stationed at Leith that she went in February, 1867, to pay a visit to Edinburgh. Of that there
ean be no doubt. Well, then, the question is—In what relation did they stand immediately before
and at that period? Major Yelverton says—* We stood in this relation: the woman had agreed to
 become my mistress,” and, T suppose, had come, in the fulilment of that contract, to becoms his rals-
tress in Edinburgh. She, on the contrary, snys—* I was at that time an honest, virtuons woman. I had
‘received the honourable addresses of that man, T was awars that there were difficulties of n pecuniary
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—the bed-room, I suppose—" We have married each other.” Miss M‘Farlane does not corroborate
that statement, becanse she was asked was Major Yelverton present at whatever was said, and as he
was not, it could not be received in evidence; and, therefore, this statemens:, if there be nothing else
in the case, is merely dependent upon the evidence of the lady herself. On the other hand, Major
Yelverton says that no such thing occurred. * It is true,” he says, *“we may have been talking, and on
one occasion did talk, about a Scotch marridge, and that an Aet of Parliament had been recently
introduced for the purpoze of doing away with Border marriages.” No doubt they did talk on the
gubject of Scotch marringes, but he says that he never intended to go through such a ceremony, and,
that he ever read the service, as alleged by her, is ntterly untrue. Instead of that, he says that o
scene very different indeed did oceur between them at the time she says the marriage took place. He
says that one day Miss M'Farlane was out, and that sitting together on the sofa, he for the first time
effected the object of his wishes conceived in Galata ; and he says that she was an nnobjecting, consenting,
and willing party. It does not appear according to his evidence that anything further oceurred during
the week or ten days that she remained. She says that one reasom and the principal reason she left
Edinbargh was that this gentleman, in eonsequence of the Seoich marriage, whenever an opportunity
offered, was always teasing her to Hve with him as his wife, and that she considered it would be
sinful. That, of course, directly contradicts everything that this man has said about her. Of course,
gentlemen, it will be for you to say upon this all-important part of the case, which of these parties you
| believe, and yon will have to ask yourselves whether this improper intereourse, as epoken of by him, or
this eeremony, a8 spoken of by her—and which of them—took plase. On this part you have no evidence
except her statement ms to the actual occurrence withinm the room. Yon will next ask yourselves
whether these eircumstances deposed to took place in thet reom. [ need not tell yoa that, if it so
happened that both parties were telling the truth om this oecasion to this extent, that the cercmony
took place, and that the purity of that ceremony was afterwards conceded, though it would detract
from the veracity of Major Yelverton and not Miss Lomgworth, it wonld not, in the slightest degree,
detraet from the validity of the ceremony, provided it occurred. Tt would rather be sorroborative of it.
Eut of course there is this dificulty in the case, that if you come to the conclusion that Theresn Long-
worth has sworn filsely when she swore that she left Edinburgh a virtnous, undefiled woman, it would
be very hard for you to believe any portion of her staicment. On the other hand, if you disbelieve
ﬁhﬁ?hﬂﬂ:&rﬂ:ﬁrﬁmh '!:i“ oceasion, and if you come to the conclusion
deliberately wilfully sworn falsely, upon the same ground of
argument that wonld make you disbelieve him in the one way, equally Il."ym disbelieve hniﬂl::in the
other. Therefore, it is in the consideration of the evidence you will have to determime in your mind
from all the facts and cireumstances of the case which of the two you believe. However, pentlemen,
that is all for you; it is not for me, nor do I mean, in any observations that I may make on this part
of the case, when we come to contradictionsin the parole evidence, to snggest to you what is passing in
my mind. That would be, in a case like this, utterly incongistent with the duty which, whatever my
feelings are, I trust I shall discharge to the best of my ability. I believe that it would not be my duty,
488 matter of fact, where witnesses contradict each other, to endeayour in the slightest degree to influence
the opinion of the jury. I disdain it, and beg of you, as many of you know me in the discharge
of the duty which I fulfil here, that if you think yon ean detect the slightest expression of opinion on
my part on a matter of fact, you will attribute it altogether to an inability to use proper langnage
I declare most solemnly my desire is to leave the matter of fact in this case to you, the 0&1?.
f;gitimate and constitutional tribunal in such cases. (Murmurs of applanse). Major Yelverton BAYS
- during the ten days she remained in Edinburgh after this occurrence, a repetition of it took place.
e certainly can hardly doubt that if the ocourrence took place as described by him, and if oppor-
It m? ‘:'1;':”'&* and she were a consenting party, it would not be human nature if it were not repeated.
hl-ll.l:l,{f m_ﬁllﬂ that no opportunity did offer, Miss M‘Farlane being in the way; but, on the other
e 15 woman were 4 consenting party, and if it was a part of the original contract, agrecment,
be understanding, one can hardly doubt that some opportunity would have been made. However
that as it may, the case they make is this—that this woman once fell in Edinburgh., Tt sppears,
» ipon the evidence, that i A St o ppears,
I s | on the morning that she was about returning tolFull, from Edinburgh,
¥ t]I;[ Farlane was left in a convent in the neighbourhood of Edinbnrgh,—some two or three miles,—
, at Major Yelverton met her at the steamer, Ife says he then went with her into the ladies’
ﬁql“bin, and that there was there a repetition of the Edinburgh scene. This lady, on the contrary, says
. ;::mﬂh thing occtirred, nor any matter at all approaching fo it,—that he eame into the eabin
oy, mtted with her on the same terms that he had in Edinburgh, as an honourable man, Of course,
0 erl']ved. the question for you will be—Whether a Scoteh marriage did, in fact, take place. It
lﬂpﬁnﬂ that this lady, within ten days after her alleged defilement, entered into a correspondence,
mmmt h:;H from the middle of April to the latter end of July, and that, in pursuance of an arrange-
by a b thfm' she arrived in Waterford, for the purpose and with the intent of being married
took place o ﬂl olic priest. In fifteen or sixteen days afterwards a ceremony of marriage in fact
mm“hi'l};.t]; ‘:"ﬂf_lﬂd h}fnl_hmnn Catholic priest. It appeared that npon that occasion she had
mtmwhn:h;mth the priest ; that she conversed with him; and prior to her first marriage ghe
After the the Roman Catholic Church is considered n sacrament—she went to confession.
Geremony in the Roman Catholic cliurch, or chapel, of Kil 1 le went togeth
and lived a8 man and wife, Ita b Pl Lilome, those people went together
| plaintiff and his wife, Mr. o ppears that after that ceremony they went to the house of the present
Bt tradesnes Jal o hri and Mrs, Thelwall. To be sure they are not of gentle blood. They are
'y pi Ple, he being an iron-master. He is o regpectable mang he is not a man, nor his wifa
woman, of gentle blood ; but still they are near and dear relative ;
s of this woman, The parties are
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THE HOUR OF SUPPLICATION IN BORDEAUX.

received there as man and wife. This is after the Irish marriage, and, thevefore, if it stood there and
then on nothing else in the case, it would refer prebably to the Irish marriage; but this appears not
upon the evidence of the woman, but upon the evidence of Mr. Thelwall, the plaintiff here, that in a
conversation which Major Yelverton does not recollect, but does not contradict, they were talking of
this woman travelling alone on the Continent, and they talked of the possibility, or probability, or
danger of her meeting with an accident and losing her life. She said, playfully, on that occasion, in
presence of BHIr. Thelwall and this man :—* If I should be killed, and if T should die during this
journey, I shall be buried where I die, but, of course, you shall come to look after my remains;
you will bury ‘me again; you will bury your wife again,” I do not know whether she sup-
posed that she would be buried at the burial-place of this man's family, but ghe gaid, * You surely
will bury me again, and then when this extraordinary circumstance will oecur, I shall have been
twice baptized, I shall have been fwice married, and I shall have been twice buried,” Did that occur?
It depends not upon the evidence of this lady alone, but is also sworn to by Mr. Thelwall. Thak
statement, trivial as it was at that time, is one not unlikely to impress itself upon the memory of &
man. IMd it oceur? Of course it is possible that Mr. Thelwall, the friend of this lady, may have come
forward here to depose to that which is not true. But if he deposes to what is true—when was ghe
twice married? Where did the second marriage occur?  One marringe took place in the chapel of
Kilone. Where did the second marringe occur?  Where did this woman get this chimera into her
mind ? Had she not gone through the marriage for which she had been looking for years—a marriage
in her own church in the presence of God and in the presence of a minister of that God ? If so, what
other marriage did she refer to in that observation made in the presence of the defendant and Mr.
Thelwall ? If you believe that evidence, it is for you to say what other marriage was alluded to. Was
it possible both parties were telling truth, each as to some of the occurrences? Was it possible that
the marriage took place as deposed to by the lady,and that in consequence of thdt marriage, he—partly
againgt the lady’s will, enjoyed the rights of a husband on the occasion he alleges? I am aware she
swears to the contrary. He says he enjoyed her without any marringe ceremony. You are te inquire
did a marriage ceremony take place in April, 1857 2 1If you should come te the conclusion that this
i no fancy or delusion, but that a marriage in fact then took place, the next matter for your consideration
is whether it wns according to the law of Scotland. Upon this part of the ease you have to exercise »
your judgment, I would really wish, as we are go intimately connected with Scotlund, that the onus |
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Lof stating what was the law of Scotland lay upon the judge. TBut that is not so, and we are ﬂhilgﬁtr.lktf:
take the Scotch law as we learn it from the ndvocates examined here. If the ceremony did not : =
place, there is no question of law, but if it did take place as n matter of fact—if this man took this
woman to be his lawful wedded wife, and she aceepted him as her husband—if he told her, Nﬂ_'r'r you
are mine in the sight of the living God,” who witnesses all our actions—then comes the qupstion, irﬂ
she his wife according to the law of Scotland ? T confess, as far as I am able to form avery lmner:‘i n
opinion myself as to the law of Scotland, I rather think there are mntn‘rmls for you to come uu}
correct conclusion upon that subject. A young man of three years' atnnﬂ.u;g: at the bar, but a m::l_l; 4
extraordinary cleverness and extraordinary intelligence, and, as farasT can judge, of very great ability
{Mr. Lancaster), has been examined for the plantiff, and has given all hiz evidence with great clearness
and precizsion, Hesays that, according to the law of Seotland, there are various ways of contracting
an irregular marriage. You must know that the only regular marrinzes celebrated in Scotland are
those before clergymen—in foro ecclesice,  According to the common law both of England and Ireland
it is necessary, and itis all that is necessary in marriages between Roman Catholics, that a marringe
should be celebrated by or with the intervention of a priestin orders. Such is not the law of Scotland.

BIDDING ADIEU IN ITALY.

And when I use the words, © such is not the law of Scotland,” T am not to be taken as giving you,
from my own judgment, an account of the Seotch law. I am giving it to you from the evidence. Both
the advocates agree that the intervention of a clergyman is not necessary in Scotland. They both
agree in this, that what is necessary is that there should be a full, perfect, clear, unequivocal—I don’t
know how many expressions were used (laughter)—but the whole amount of it is this—a clear unam-
biguous comsent of the parties, without reference toa future ceremony, to take each other for man and
Wife at once.  According to Mr. Lancaster, that is all that is required to constitute the parties man
and wife in the eye of God, and also in the eye of the Scoteh law. But there is this difference between the
two advocates, Mr. Pattison says it is necessary that the fact should be proyed by one or more witnesses,
or by an interchange of writing, showing the taking each other nd man and wife. I am not quite

certain he went the length of saying that a witness was absolutely necessary.
r. Ball, Q.C.—He did say it.

Sergeant Sullivan.—Not ultim ately.

Chief Juatice—He did say it was essential there should be a witncss actually present. Mr, Lancaster
says his senior is mistaken in that, He says, * All that is required is an unequiveecal, elear consent,
but I deny that if the consent be given and proved, that it is necessavy for the validity of the mar-
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riage there should be a witness present at the moment the consent is given.,” His lordship read other.
passages of Mr. Lancaster's evidence, and continued, Itdid ccour to me that I might give some little
assistance on this part of the case, and I asked Mr. Pattison—suppose a man and woman are married
by acontract, per verba de presenti, that no eye but the eye of God has witnessed the proceeding, that
the man dies before he has an opportunity of denying or admitting the marriage, that he dies the day
after, intestate, that there is a child, and that the question is between that child and his father's
brother as to who is to inherit the property—it occurred to me a8 pertinent to ask, In such a case,
would the evidence of the lady be received to prove that the plaintiff was the born issue of a lawful
marriage 7 In answer to that question which I put to Mr. Paitison, he says he has no recollection of
such a case arising, but that it was hiz opinion that, according to the principles of the Scotch law, if
it did arise as to the legitimacy of the child, the wife would be allowed to prove her marriage with the
child’s father. I also asked both gentlemen whether the fact of the woman refusing copula after the
marriage would prevent the ceremony being considered a marriage, and they both said not; so he was
gure, if the refusal of the copula meant that the party did not intend marriage, it would have that
effect. Ome of these learned advocates—Mr, Lancaster—happens to be in some way the counsel for
one of the parties; but, as I understand, what he says was, that he was not the permanent counsel,
but that he merely held a brief temporarily during the illness of a friend, who is counsel in the case.
Perhaps, it would have been just as well if he was not engaged in the case at all ; but I confess I cannot
think that a young man who, I hope and trust, is in the way of advancement in his profession, would
be influenced by any considerations of that sort in giving evidence which he did not Lelieve to be
true. DBut, like everything else that is to be taken by youwinto your consideration, you will tell me
whether, in this case, you are of opinion that the marringe was eelebrated according to the law of
Scotland or not—that is, of course, assuming you believe the lady, that it was in fact celebrated. You
must decide as to the existence of the Scotch marriage upon the eredit you give to the lady herself. I
really wish the Legislature would interfere to regulate these Beotch marringes, because they certainly
leave usherein a great mess of confusion. We really don’t know what fo make of them. But then
it may be said, if persons don't take the trouble of having witnesses, it is their own fault. It may be
asked why Miss M‘Farlane was not asked to be present at this Scotch marriage. No doubt, it is =
very fair observation to be made, and it is & matter for your consideration ; because there is no doubd,
if the parties chose they might have had her as a witness to the ceremony, and the only answer that
eould be given to that observation is, that Major Yelverton did not want & witness—that he had been
inquiring into Scotch law—that he knew something aboat it, and that if the witness was not had it
wis merely for the purpose of having the ceremony a marriage or not, just as he liked. On the other
hand, it may be said, “ It is a very odd thing that you had not your friend present at the cerémony if
you wished to eontract a marriage.” It is for you, om the evidence, to say whether there was or was
not a ceremony of marriage in Scotland. And now we must consider what occurred sabsequently to
the period of her leaving Scotland and going to Hull, when a large number of letters passed between
them. Thereis this letter, not in peneil :—* Carissima—I had forgotten the photograph. I departto
the other side of the water to-morrow, I #. I hope you had a plessant and drenms. Tam
sulky, hate uncertainties, and believe in nothing—.dddio, penso a te” is a little hand put
here which he says he does mot think is his. Her evidence is, that it eame with the letter, and alsos
sketch. Well, then, gentlemen, be that as it may, the letter was received on a Thursday, aud then she
writes :—* I am Jike unto the woman in the Gospel, troabled sbout many things, troubled not to see
you with the snspeakable longings for an sbsent loved one, in doubts and fears about the durabilifyef
requitement.” It is suggested by Mr. Armstrong that this meant reqnitement for losi honour sad
virtue. BShe says, * Having bound myself to you by a Scotch marriage, which though it binds me to
you, does not bind my conscience.” The letter goes on to say—* Misgivings lest the anlency of attach-
ment was merely the effect of proximity—lest a two months® trial will not prove it emptiness.” It was
in this letter that she spoke about his deeeiving her aguin, that her physical power would give way.
Does that mean that she was deceived by his taking possession of her honour? She says not, that
what she alluded to was her marriage, Then there comes a portion of a letter from Major Yelverton to
her. There is some doubt between the parties as to what part of the correspondence this belongs to.
He says—* You shall have a lump of sugar after it, especially if you do not make too many ugly
faces, and ery for it like a naughty little girl.” In answering this letter, she says—"' Conventionality
is not the question between us. I dislike every shadow of it as much as yourself—my whole life, you
know, has been a protest against it, and in my relations with you it has never yet been brought to
bear or wished for.” I now come to the letter in which she enclosed the cards of Mr. and Mrs, Shears.
He wrote to her, * Cara Teresa—Excuse me for continuing (for this one time more) the old style of ad-
dress inpart. I congratulate you on the step you have taken most sincerely as the most likely course
to render your future life a contented one.” When he wrote that letter he must, I suppose, have believed
that she had married Mr. Shears; and he asks her to give him a place in her prayers—that he
would always act towards her as a sincere friend—that he rejoiced to hear of the marriage, because
he found himself in a false position, namely, that he promised to do more than he could perform when
the time came. On the intention meant in this letter there is a controversy between the parties. It
is suggested on his behalf that he believed she was married, and that he rejoiced at it, because he had
made her a promise that he could not perform, namely, to take her under his protection as his mistress,
or, as she says, to marry her in the Roman Catholic ehurch, The question for you to consider is,
what was his intention as shown by that letter ; but it has not much to say to the matter, as, if they
were married in Edinburgh, this letter could not unmarry them. It is very legitimate for you to
consider whether or not the marriage took place in Edinburgh. In doing this these lotters will assist
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you, for they show to some extent what was passing in the minds of the parties. From the com-
mencement of this correspondence both parties were writing their thoughts im letters which they
thought would not be used again. It hardly oceurs to me that people writing on the impulse of the
moment, and in the way they did, that they were thinking what construction would afterwards be
put on them. She, in reply to that last letter which I read of his, says—* Are you mad or am L
The first reading of your letter brought me to & stop mental and physical,” and she goes on to say—
% Oh, Carlo, to suspeet me of such & thing—I whose very life is ebbing away for you—I who have
sacrificed all but Ged to you. I whohave lain at your heart and in sight of heaven been called yours.”
Does that refer to an illicit intercourse which teok place eitheron board the steamer, to an illicit in-
tercourse that ocourred in any other place, or is it possible that if this man defiled this woman, a8 he
states he did before any ceremomy of marriage, that he would subsequently have gome through a
ceremony. Would not this be more likely—that he referred to marriage, taking into account what
she says in her letter, that her locked her to his heart, and that he eafled Heaven to witness that she
was his? She says—* Could you imagine it—I who have lain at your heart and in the sight of
Heaven am yours.” That means that everything which occurred was done in the sight of Heaven to
her as liis wife. She says there was a Scotch marriage, and it was to this ghe referred. She further
says, this is your promise and your duty towards me—this binds me to you, but if you do not wish to
do what I want, I will press you no more ; I will go into a convent and never trouble you more.” It
is for you, gentlemen, to say which is the more foreible, or natural construction to put on the matter.
She gives an answer to his letter in which he says he will become her respeetfnl friend, and she
says—" Only imagine I would be content with Shears after loving such a dear Carlo a3 you. You
cured me of & dangerous ailment, but I must kmow whether it is applicable to this matter. A
little knowledge is a dangerous thing.” No doubt the expressiom there is= open to the comstruc-
tion which has been put upon if. A little knowledge of sexual infercourse. If yon come to the
conclusion that is so, you must make your mind clear that such intercourse had taken place, or if,
opon the other Land, you think there is clear evidence of the existemce of such a ceremony, you must
only balance both sides as best you can. You must say whether both of these things—mnamely, the
ceremony, and the subsequent cohabitation took place—whether he had imtercourse with this woman
after the Scotch eeremony. She denies that she has placed herself in this position. It is for you to
gay if she here swore falsely. It is impossilde that both have sworn the entire truth. It is consistent
with possibility that each may have told some truth—how much it is for you, and you alone, to
determine. You have lieard Sergeant Armstromng’s comments on the letter, where she speaks of no
more poetizing, no more walking on the deck, no——. He contends that what she then wanted was
a repetition of tris intimacy, which, he says, occurred both on board the steamer and once in Edin-
burgh. The next poiat is relative to what oceurred on the steamboat. According to Major Yelverton,
he met with no resistance on either this or the other oceasion. He says a sailor stopped them in one
place, but in the other everything went on all right. I would think that letter of his which I last
read was written in reference to the first steambonat seene, not the second. I must now refer to the
sketch which he sent in a letter. It may be a fancy sketch that will state the whole of his advances
up to that time, but it does not appear to be a sketch that would come from a man who had at that
time gained his object.
A Juror.—l don't think that sketch refers to the second steamboat seene.
The next letter which it is material to call your attention to is one written by Major Yelverton, in
- Which he says, ** How are you getting on in health, Carissima® and how do the dreams progress?
What and when is reality to be? I have been dragged out to several midnight crushes—misnamed
balls, There are a great many pretty girls here, and two helresses, who have been pointed out to me
with the usual l:emmmendl.uun. I am ashamed to say I have not sent the prayer-book to Morning-
side yet, but will before I go down to the country.” This is followed by a letter from Miss Long-
worth, in June, 1857, as follows :—* Carlo mio—Your silence works me up to the highest state of
alarm ; ha‘l-fa_}ruu found out that in some natures fear increages desire. Oh, no, I cannot help fearing
that you are ill ? You said you were in your lnst—ague is ever accompanied by fever—and no one
to nurse you, perliaps. Do let me come. Could I see you or remain near you, if I did find my way
there—I could get a 8. de C. costume. You might say you preferred a regular nurse. Besides, I
cannot bear this suspense, and I have said what you wished now, and I want the bon-bons you pro-
mised when I submitted. Oh, do write a line if you areill, and let me come. I have returned to
Aberg—, that Place was 8o damp, Write dircet, so that there way be no delay. Think of that little
Zoom, five stories high, where we have been so bappy, and don't feel so apathetic.” Another letter,
dated July L0th, is as follows :—* Dear Carlo—We are going to Manchester in o week or ten days,
'-'1;“ shall probably remain there about that time to see about the property. You can feteh me from
HEN if jiﬂ-u chovee after they mtym home here. Perhaps you would prefer meeting me in the old
IWMTE {(where my forefathers lie) to ll.‘m.'r't.]ll?l‘ projeet, as it would be without any particle of risk to
ntmtnre?u :;::e u::lknnwn and have nothing to say or do, my purpose is and will be ignored by mortal
makin safety is your object, what I suggest is merely the same as being present ai mass,
% aii E youn Catholic.” In another letter she said—* Caro mio Carlo—I have said the word—will
tell m: f;“ﬂ me, and name the time and place as soon s I am able. . . . . Write by return, and
I must “;inmu;}. be before the end of this month, or if you have obtained fresh leave, and until when,
B ivinond rﬂ::l n:'_u:nl; skntf:r-—hl it to be before or after * My ears ache to hear the mia, though I am
¢lon decides me, 'Ellt say it with perfect truth now, and for exactly three months past.  This convie-
80 be put on the cannot be worse of.” Gentlemen, it is for you to say what interpreeation ought
Various cxpressions in these letters, on which the counsel for the defendant have so
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etrongly relied. They contend that when she says—* You may say méz with perfect truth now, and
for exactly three months past,” she refers to the oceurrence that had taken place in Edinburgh, if you
believe the evidenee of Major Yelverton. On the other hand, they say that she referred to the mar-
riage which was said to have taken place according to the law of Scatland, and that she meant this:
—* T am yours in the eye of God and of the law, though my conseience requires a ceremony accord-
ing to the rites of the church to which I belong. Tt haa been observed that, from the time of the
marringe, in all the letters of this lady she addressed the defendant as * Mia Carlo."

Mr. Brewster.—That is not the case. The expression Carlo mis occurs frequently in all the letters
from the berinning of this correspondence.,

Mr. Whiteside.—We say that she dropped using the * mia" for some time, and did not resume it
until the marriaze was eelebrated.

The Chief Justice.—At all events, gentlemen, however this may be, it is not on little matters of this
description that the guestion must be ultimately decided. There ean be no doubt that an understand-
ing subsisted between them that she was to come to Ireland for the purpose of having a ceremony of
marriage celebrated. In pursuance of that arrangement she found her way alone to Milford-Haven,
znd arrived in Waterford on the 27th or 28th of July. She states in her evidence that on her arrival
in Waterford she found that Major Yelverton had provided himself with a ring, and that he presented
it to her there, but afterwards got it back from her for the purpose of the marringe ceremony. Major
Yelverton gays that it is a mistake or an untruth, for that he did not get the ring until after their
arrival at Malahide, and that he then substituted it for one he had previously given her, and which
he now wears.  On this point the evidence of the lady is very curiously corroborated, becanse we have
the statement of Mr. Joseph Martin, a jeweller, living on Aston’s-quay, who says that on the 25th of
July a gentleman, whom he believes, though he eannot be positive, was Major Yelverton, purchased a
ring from him, and that the circumstance made a strong impression on his mind, becanse he had
some difficulty in finding a ring small enough for the purpose. The ring produced by Mra. Yelverton
was, he believed, the ring which he had sold on that oceagion. The ring, however, was purchased—
whether before Mrs. Yelverton's arrival at Waterford or after the visit to Malahide, is a matter of
but little consequence, except that if bought at the former time, it would prove that the marringe
cercmony had been determined on before she arrived in Ircland. It is alleged by the defendant, and
denied by Mrs, Yelverton, that at Waterford, Malahide, Newry, and Rostrevor, certain matters took
P]nne- b‘.‘-t-w‘.."e“ them; 'but, thtsﬂ' mﬂttm Are D-I'impﬂrtnnnl!! Dnlr WIH'I " Vlﬂw Lo test l;.llE t['l.lthﬂlhlﬂ's of
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the witnesses.—There is no doubt they were received in the Malahide Motel on the supposition that
they were man and wife. There is no doubt that she came gver to this country Lo have her conseience
gatisfied by some gort of a religious ceremony in her own church; and travelling together as they did, it
is no wonder they were understood to be man and wife. But she says, that though they travelled ap-
parently as such, ghe,in point of fact, persisted in her determination of not graniing him the rights
of & husband until the ceremony was performed in the church of Kilone. MHis lordship recapitulated
the evidence of the hotel people examined on the part of the defendant, and having obseryed upon it,
said they at length came to Rostrevor. Arrangements were made for the ceremony, and on the day
it was to be celebrated they arrived at the clhiurch after the congregation had separated. The Rev.,
Afr. Mooney was in waiting for them, and having expressed his surprise that they did not come
gooner, they explained the ennse of the delay. Major Yelverton says the door was locked, and it is
very much to be regretted that neither the Rev. Mr. Afooney nor Mre. Yelyerton was aﬂ:eg{ ANy ques-
tions on this subject. They proceeded to the altar steps, theéy knelt down in the presence of the
priest; the priest asked Major Yelverton was he, William Charles, willing to take this woman here,
Maria Teresa, as his lawful, wedded wife, for better for worse, and William Charles in an audible and
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%ﬁn::l Eﬂu:!o? says, “ T will." “ Marin ’I_‘eru;anT will yon take thiz man, Willinm Charles, for your law-
m,w insband, for better for worse #* T wili,» Alajor Yelverton says with regard to the
£ that it was on her finger, and that what he did was to move it up and down the finger. The
mr says money was produced, and that he said, “T do endow tliee with all my worldly goods and
ﬂﬂ:::l:;:d Major Yglvertnn says that was not the case. Mr. Mooney has no recollection of money
. t:r]':mmt. ut he recollects that they nccepted each other ns man and wife, for better for
I“h':“““;c iy Frmnlce -Iaf' the minister of God, and they joined hands. There is no doubt whatever
that'm;tiu :Eg to the law of England and Ireland, and acconding 1o the law of all civilized countries,
ralar I{I; 8 a4 marringe in the fice of the [;ﬂ:ng God. That a marriage in fact took place in the
candihy ;}:: I'I:{: one can doubt, : I mllu?tmn no doubt whatever, notwithstanding that the Rer.
e wiire at{lhmmq,.;ﬂ w;s under the impression he was not marrying them—I have no doubt that if
FULIL 1]l 1oy tllﬂ.{i sﬁl any Catholic or I'rotestant divine versed in matters of this deseription, he
depend upon aty nrn;i ll;r chureh sueh a ceremony constitited a valid marriage, and that it did not
$oline thare; bat mlz: : cular part being omitted, as Mr, Mooney supposes, ' He says lie wnd wot mar.
St in Eﬂc;tlund :'4'3; cnabling them to renew a marringe consen previously entered inty Letwean
. th regard to religion, if one of the parties be a Roman Catholic and the other
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. Whiteside—T wish to draw attention to two points of evidence in this ease—that he always
“l::tm;lﬂu:mn Catholie Church with her to prayers after they were married, that he ﬂw’j"’
wrent with her in France, and that he used to pray with her at home, at which time he said, “I
mever in my life prayed before” You have also the letter of his sister, in which she asks if he has
‘become & Homan Catholie, stating that she has heard it on good anthority. His answer to that was,
they must have seen me in chapel.
AMr. Brewster— This is not ﬂiﬂdnmm i
g, ﬂz—[ hﬁ n‘l:l.'l' F DI], !"‘ By
'll"ll:e gh-r;itfﬁ ustice— Bgll::- said she had good authority for knowing of his change of religion, and the
defendant said that some one must have seen him in chapel. If he reprezented himself as a Roman
Catholie, it is strong evidence such was his religion. My opinion is that that does not amount to an
estoppal. My opinion Is, that on the eonstroction of this Act of Parliament, that if & man comes here
to-morrow, introduces himself to me as the suitor of my danghter—representing himself to be a2 Roman
Catholic, though I act on the faith of that representation, I do not think in point of law there is an
estoppal for the purpose of showing in point of fact all that was presumed, and that in point of
fact he had been & believer in and practiser of the tenets of the Established Church up to the moment
before. I am aware I may differ from others on that point, but I say, according to my construction of
the Act of Parliament, what T believe to be law. I may further say, that if a man does represent
himself solemnly before the priest and before the woman, and induces the priest and
woman to believe him to be & Roman Catholie—T do not mean to say that the jury ought to require the
most convincing evidence that could be possibly received, and that the jury ought to take the man's
own statement of what he says almost against ofher evidence. But,in my opinion, the law of estoppal
is mot applicable to such a case. But, whether the law of estoppal is applicable to this portion of the
¢ase you must consider whether you are satisfied. But this man made the representations stated by
Mrs. Yelverton to Mr. Mooney——

Mr. Whiteside—Does your lordship remember that she was asked what she said in confession ?

Chief Justice—Yes ; and that she said in confession that her husband was not a Frotestant.

Mr. Brewster—She did not say that he was not a Protestant.

‘Chief Justice—She did not at confession or otherwise, or ever inform Mr. Mooney that her husband
was & Protestant. Well, gentlemen, of course, as an humble member of the Church of Rome, I re-
gretted to see the account given by Mr. Mooney of this transaction, because, I confess, T do not under-
stand, according to the doctrines of that ehurch, what he meant by not describing as a marriage what
did occur. At the same time, I am one of those who are most unwilling that the jury or myself should
annecessarily run away with the truth of any witness, much less a witness of any position, and of a
minister of that living God whom we all differently and unworthily adore. I am most unwilling to
do so: but I care not what iz the position of the witness, T make the observations which oceur to ma
at the time. T am unwilling to run away with the honesty or the truth of any man, particularly a
minister of the living God, without the jury fairly, and fully, and patiently considering the letter de-
posed to by himself. Mr. Mooney says—and here T have no doubt at all that he is at right angles
with Mrs. Yelverton—there is no doubt Mr. Mooney says that Mrs. Yelverton informed him before
they went to the bishop that he was a Frotestant, and that, notwithstanding that, that she wanted to
have & marriage or & consent renewed. There is no doubt, if Mr. Mooney's evidence be true, that what
Was passing in his mind was this, that he thought he would be exposing himgelf to some pains and

_pemalties if he celebrated a marriage in the church between a Roman Catholic and a Protestant. But,
on the other hand, there is a matter in which I cannot follow him—namely, in his theology—how he
makes out what he did on that oceasion was not conferring a marriage. Whether that was ignorance
on his part (I do not like using those expressions), I do not know. I entertain not a shadow of a
doubt that, according not merely to thé law of the land, but the law of the Roman Catholic
Church, that every well educated Roman Catholi¢ divine would state what he did there was a
marriage, not only in law, but in the eye of the Church. 'We can nssume what may have been pass-
ing in his mind. I am quite aware of this, Itis quite possible that Mr. Mooney may have married
those people, as he did marry them, if you believe Mrs, Yelverton's stdtement, conscientiously believ-
ing they were both Roman Catholics. Mrs, Yelverton says that is the representation which was made.
It is right here to mention that Mr. Mooney's certifiente is not a particle of evidence, in the present
case, of his having married these people according to the laws of the Church. Tt iz evidence that there
is n document under his hand and seal ds a clergyman that he married them, and there is no doubt
but that he made that statement ; and there is no doubt that any man who, under the ciroumstances,
puts falsehood on paper under his hand has only himself to blame if, when he comes to tell the truth,
he may find it difcolt to get credence given to a statement different from what he on another ocea-
slon had stated. It does appear that some time after the seeond marriage of Major Yelverton to Mrs.
Forbes, he and his solicitor, Mr. Denvir, went to the Rev. Mr. Mooney, and there is no doubt Mr.
ﬁmﬂ!hu been under, the impression that he got into a scrape by incautiously marrying a Protestant

d Roman Catholie, notwithstanding the representations made to him. And I can understand why,
h‘ﬂT“IE done that, it might occur to him it would be better for me not to prove my own liability to
punishment—I mean his liability to punishment—and, if necessary, to swear in point of fact I did not
marry this couple at all, but T performed a céremony between them, As T understand the arpuments
“f]';‘““ﬂﬁ'f'-tﬂm #uggestion is that yon shotld not believe Mr, Mooney, He says he did not marry them
T nly did say he did so at one time, and you should not now believe him when he says the
words ** Protestant ﬂnt’mlﬂlc" were used by Major Yelverton on that occasion, beenuse Mr. Mooney
has since found he was in scrape, and that he might be prosecuted for marrying a Protestant
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jef Justice—What do you propose to do? i g .

gt!.:. Drewster— We say that the marriage contract was not in writing, and th?-t reading the mﬂ-l'ﬂaf_ﬂ
service of the Church of England without thie presence of a third person as a witness, doeg not consti-
tute a valid marriage according to the law aftﬂi:mtluml.

Chief Justice—I will take that as an exception. ; : 1

Ar. Brewster—We say also that this lady did not consider herself the wife of ' Alajor lehertfm.
thongh married, as it is contended, according to the law of Scotland ; that she required to be married
by nﬂlimmnn Catholic priest after, and that such alleged marriage in Scotland did not therefore con-

jitute a valid marringe. .
sucmefJusﬂuc—-][}r recollection of what she said was that though she considered that they were
married according to the law of Scotland, she Delieved that if she lived with him as her husband sl e
wonld be living in sin. oy

uhlr. ‘E\'hitﬁigde—-S]m did not state that she did not consider herself as his wife after the Scotch

marriage.

L_-:F'ilﬂ::jmnl I :! il |
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TIE VERDICT EXCITES CONSTERNATION AT LORD AVONMORE'S.

The Chief Justice referred to his notes, and said the evidence of Mrs. Yelverton was as follows: “I
eomsidered myszelf his wife as far as the law of Seotland was conceérned, but not in fact, ag T had seruples
of a religious nature. He insisted that we were rightly married, and had eenferred the sacrament
upon one another.”
ﬂAn exception founded on this evidence was taken by the defendant's counsel to the judge's

arge,

They also took the two following exceptions :—Tirst with reference to the Scotch marringe. That
in order to constitute a marriage by the law of Scotland per verba de presenti the matrimonial inter-
change of consent should be final, abaolute, and unconditional, and with the inténtion of their becoming
husband and wife without relation to any further ceremony, and that, therefore, if the jury believed"
that the alleged matrimonial consent between the defendant and Maria Theresa Longworth was relative
to and depended upon a further ceremony to be performed by a Roman Catholie priest, such alleged
matrimonial consént did not constitute a marriage according to the law of Scotland,

Second—In reference to the Irish marringe. That to congtitute a ceremony of marriage celebrated
in Treland h.'i" a Catholie priest a valld marviage. it was necessary that both parties should for twelve
months previously to, said ceremony have uniformly, uninterruptedly, and publicly professed the
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the chariot, which stood in the western court-yard.—About seven o'clock, the Hon, Mrs. Yelverton, on
jssuing from the court to take her place in the carriage, was received with vehement cheering, Every
window of the offices of the courts was crowded, and, ‘mid a storm of applause, the earriage occupied
by the Hon. Mrs. Yelverton and her friends slowly proceeded through the court-yard to the quay.
On {ssuing from the gateway on the western side the sceme was most exciting. The joy
of everybody was to be seen and heard everywhere, In the centre of apreat moving multitnde was
0 be observed the Honourable Mra. Yelverton's carringe borne along by the people. The procession
turned down Capel-street into Mary-street, and it would beggar all experience to give an adequate idea
of the vast body of enthusiastic people that preceded and followed the carringe as it passed through
Henry-street. In anticipation of the arrival of the Hon. Mrs. Yelverton, the space in front of the
Gresham Hotel was erowded to such an extent that it was almost impessible for horses or vehicles to
pass the street. The basea of Nelson's Pillar were fully occupied by persons who joined in the cheer-
ing of the thonsands who were now approaching, who surrounded the carriage of a great and brave
woman who had suffered much and had conquered in the end. The flag ways at both sides of Upper
Backville-street became densely erowded. Cars containing persons who sought to be in time took up
position in the centre of the street, and now came the great crowd, with the carriage in the centre.
Cheer after cheer came from the hearts of the people, and mid a scene of perhaps unsurpassed excite-
ment, the carriage, which was rolled up the left-hand side of Sackville-street until it came in front of
the hotel, ¢rossed the street, and drew up at the centre entrance. The warmth of the enthusiasm of
the people knew no bounds, and a considerable time elapsed before space eould be made for the lady to
pass into the hotel. The people, amidst tremendons cheering, waving of hats and handkerchiefs, called
loudly for the Hon. Mrs, Yelverton, Incompliance with the universal call of the vast multitude, num-
bering many thousands, she presented herself at one of the drawing-room windows. When the enthu-
gigstic applause which her presence excited Lad subsided, she came forward on the balcony and
gaid :—

“ My noble-hearted friends, you have made me this day an Irishwoman, by the verdict that I am
the wife of an Irishman (vehement cheering).

“I glory to belong to such a noble-hearted nation (great cheering). Yon will live in my heart for
ever, as I have lived in your hearts this day (tremendous applause).

“I am too weak to say all that my heart desires, but you will accept the gratitude of a heart that
was made sad, and is now made glad (loud cheers),

“ Farewell forthe present, but for ever I belong in heart and soul to the people of Dublin.”

The Hon, Mrs. Yelverton then withdrew, amidst loud and long-continued cheering. The people

slowly retired, adfd many of them observed that Sergeant Armstrong's prayer has been heard, as ** God
had defended the right.”
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